BASE PROSPECTUS



Santander International Debt, S.A. Unipersonal

(incorporated with limited liability in Spain)

and

Santander Issuances, S.A. Unipersonal

(incorporated with limited liability in Spain)

guaranteed by

Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A.

(incorporated with limited liability in Spain)

€32,000,000,000 Programme for the Issuance of Debt Instruments

This document constitutes a base prospectus (the "Base Prospectus") for the purpose of giving information required by Directive 2003/71/EC (the "Prospectus Directive") in relation to instruments (the "Instruments") issued under the above Programme and each of Santander International Debt, S.A. Unipersonal, Santander Issuances, S.A. Unipersonal (each, an "Issuer" and together the "Issuers") and Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (the "Guarantor"). The Base Prospectus has been approved on 16 November 2006 by the Luxembourg Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (the "CSSF"), which is the Luxembourg competent authority for the purpose of the Prospectus Directive and relevant implementing measures in Luxembourg, as a base prospectus issued in compliance with the Prospectus Directive and relevant implementing measures in Luxembourg for the purpose of giving information with regard to the issue of Instruments under the Programme during the period of twelve months after the date hereof. Application has been made for Instruments to be admitted to trading on the regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, which is a regulated market for the purposes of the Investment Services Directive 93/22/EEC (an "EEA Regulated Market") and to listing on the official list of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The Programme also permits Instruments to be issued on the basis that they will not be admitted to listing, trading and/or quotation by any listing authority, stock exchange and/or quotation system or to be admitted to listing, trading and/or quotation by such other or further listing authorities, stock exchanges and/or quotation systems as may be agreed with the relevant Issuer.

Arrangers for the Programme

BANCO SANTANDER CENTRAL HISPANO, S.A. MORGAN STANLEY

Dealers

ABN AMRO
BANCO SANTANDER DE NEGÓCIOS PORTUGAL
COMMERZBANK CORPORATES & MARKETS
DEUTSCHE BANK
HSBC
LEHMAN BROTHERS
MORGAN STANLEY

THE ROYAL BANK OF SCOTLAND

BARCLAYS CAPITAL
CITIGROUP
CREDIT SUISSE
GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
JPMORGAN
MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL
SOCIÉTÉ GÉNÉRALE CORPORATE &
INVESTMENT BANKING
UBS INVESTMENT BANK

16 November 2006

http://www.oblible.com

The Base Prospectus should be read and construed together with any supplements thereto and with any other documents incorporated by reference therein and, in relation to any Tranche (as defined herein) of Instruments, should be read and construed together with the relevant Final Terms (as defined herein).

The Issuers and the Guarantor have confirmed to the Dealers that the Base Prospectus (together with the relevant Final Terms (each "Final Terms") referred to herein) contains all such information as investors and their professional advisers would reasonably require, and reasonably expect to find, for the purpose of making an informed assessment of the assets and liabilities, financial position, profits and losses, and prospects of the Issuers and the Guarantor and of the rights attaching to the relevant Instruments.

This document constitutes two base prospectuses; one in relation to Santander International Debt, S.A. Unipersonal and one in relation to Santander Issuances, S.A. Unipersonal.

Neither the Issuers nor the Guarantor has authorised the making or provision of any representation or information regarding the Issuers, the Guarantor, and the companies whose accounts are consolidated with those of the Guarantor (together, the "Group") or the Instruments other than as contained or incorporated by reference in the Base Prospectus, in the Dealership Agreement (as defined herein), in any other document prepared in connection with the Programme or any Final Terms or as approved for such purpose by either of the Issuers or (where applicable) the Guarantor. Any such representation or information should not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Issuers, the Guarantor, the Dealers or any of them.

No representation or warranty is made or implied by the Dealers or any of their respective affiliates, and neither the Dealers nor any of their respective affiliates make any representation or warranty or accepts any responsibility, as to the accuracy or completeness of the information contained in the Base Prospectus. Neither the delivery of the Base Prospectus or any Final Terms nor the offering, sale or delivery of any Instrument shall create, in any circumstances, any implication that there has been no adverse change in the financial situation either of the Issuers or the Guarantor or the Group since the date hereof or, as the case may be, the date upon which the Base Prospectus has been most recently amended or supplemented or the balance sheet date of the most recent financial statements which are deemed to be incorporated into the Base Prospectus by reference. The distribution of the Base Prospectus and any Final Terms and the offering, sale and delivery of the Instruments in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law. Persons into whose possession the Base Prospectus or any Final Terms comes are required by the Issuers, the Guarantor and the Dealers to inform themselves about and to observe any such restrictions. For a description of certain restrictions on offers, sales and deliveries of Instruments and on the distribution of the Base Prospectus or any Final Terms and other offering material relating to the Instruments, see "The Instruments — paragraph 5.2 (Plan of Distribution and Allotment)". In particular, Instruments have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933 (as amended) and may include Instruments in bearer form which are subject to U.S. tax law requirements. Subject to certain exceptions, Instruments may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or to U.S. persons.

Neither the Base Prospectus nor any Final Terms may be used for the purpose of an offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorised or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation.

Neither this Base Prospectus nor any Final Terms constitutes an offer or an invitation to subscribe for or purchase any Instruments and should not be considered as a recommendation by the Issuers, the Guarantor, the Dealers or any of them that any recipient of this Base Prospectus or any Final Terms should subscribe for or purchase any Instruments. Each recipient of this Base Prospectus or any Final Terms shall be taken to have made its own investigation and appraisal of the condition (financial or otherwise) of the Issuers and the Guarantor.

IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUE OF ANY TRANCHE OF INSTRUMENTS, THE DEALER OR DEALERS (IF ANY) NAMED AS THE STABILISING MANAGER(S) (OR PERSONS ACTING ON BEHALF OF ANY STABILISING MANAGER(S)) IN THE APPLICABLE FINAL TERMS MAY OVER-ALLOT INSTRUMENTS (PROVIDED THAT, IN THE CASE OF ANY TRANCHE OF INSTRUMENTS TO BE ADMITTED TO TRADING ON AN EEA REGULATED MARKET, THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF INSTRUMENTS ALLOTTED DOES NOT EXCEED 105 PER CENT. OF THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THE RELEVANT TRANCHE) OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WITH A VIEW TO SUPPORTING THE MARKET PRICE OF THE INSTRUMENTS AT A LEVEL HIGHER THAN THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL. HOWEVER, THERE IS NO ASSURANCE THAT THE STABILISING MANAGER(S) (OR PERSONS ACTING ON BEHALF OF A STABILISING MANAGER) WILL UNDERTAKE STABILISATION ACTION. ANY STABILISATION ACTION MAY BEGIN ON OR AFTER THE DATE ON WHICH ADEQUATE PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF THE TERMS OF THE OFFER OF THE RELEVANT TRANCHE OF INSTRUMENTS IS MADE AND, IF BEGUN, MAY BE ENDED AT ANY TIME, BUT IT MUST END NO LATER THAN THE EARLIER OF 30 DAYS AFTER THE ISSUE DATE OF THE RELEVANT TRANCHE OF INSTRUMENTS AND 60 DAYS AFTER THE DATE OF THE ALLOTMENT OF THE RELEVANT TRANCHE OF INSTRUMENTS.

There are certain risks relating to an investment in the Instruments. See "Risk Factors".

References herein to "Conditions" are to the Terms and Conditions of the Instruments.

All references in this Base Prospectus to "\$", "U.S. \$" or "U.S. dollars" are to United States dollars, references to "Sterling" and "£" are to pounds sterling and references to "euro", "EUR" and "€" are to the currency introduced at the start of the third stage of European economic and monetary union pursuant to the Treaty on European Union, as amended.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| | | Page |
|-----|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------|
| SUN | MMARY | 15 |
| RIS | SK FACTORS | 23 |
| | Risks Relating to the Issuers | 23 |
| | Risks Relating to the Guarantor | 23 |
| | Risks Relating to Withholding | 28 |
| | Risks Relating to Procedures for Collection of Holders' Details | 28 |
| | Risks Relating to the Comisario | 29 |
| | Risks Relating to the Insolvency Law | 29 |
| | Risks Relating to the Instruments | 29 |
| DES | SCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAMME | 34 |
| THI | E ISSUERS | 35 |
| 1 | PERSONS RESPONSIBLE | 35 |
| 1.1 | All persons responsible for the information given in the Base Prospectus and, as the case may be, for certain parts of it, with, in the latter case, an indication of such parts. In the case of natural persons including members of the issuer's administrative, management or supervisory bodies indicate the name and function of the person; in case of legal persons indicate the name and registered office. | 35 |
| 1.2 | A declaration by those responsible for the base prospectus that, having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case the information contained in the base prospectus is, to the best of their knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import. As the case may be, declaration by those responsible for certain parts of the base prospectus that, having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case, the information contained in the part of the base prospectus for which they are responsible is, to the best of their knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import. | 35 |
| 2 | STATUTORY AUDITORS | 35 |
| 2.1 | Names and addresses of the issuer's auditors for the period covered by the historical financial information (together with their membership in a professional body). | 35 |
| 2.2 | If auditors have resigned, been removed or not been re-appointed during the period covered by the historical financial information, details if material. | 35 |
| 3 | SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION | 36 |
| 3.1 | Selected historical financial information regarding the issuer, presented, for each financial year for the period covered by the historical financial information, and any subsequent interim financial period, in the same currency as the financial information. The selected historical financial information must provide key figures that summarise the financial condition of the issuer. | 36 |
| 3.2 | If selected financial information for interim periods is provided, comparative data from the same period in the prior financial year must also be provided, except that the requirement for comparative balance sheet data is satisfied by presenting the year end balance sheet | 36 |
| | information. | |
| 4 | RISK FACTORS | 36 |
| 5 | INFORMATION ABOUT THE ISSUER | 36 |
| 5.1 | History and development of the Issuer | 36 |
| | 5.1.1 the legal and commercial name of the issuer | 36 |
| | 5.1.2 the place of registration of the issuer and its registration number | 37 |

| | | Page | | |
|------|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------|--|--|
| | 1.1.3 the date of incorporation and the length of life of the issuer, except where indefinite | 37 | | |
| | 1.1.4 the domicile and legal form of the issuer, the legislation under which the issuer operates, its country of incorporation, and the address and telephone number of its registered office (or principal place of business if different from its registered office) | 37 | | |
| | 1.1.5 any recent events particular to the issuer which are to a material extent relevant to the evaluation of the issuer's solvency. | 37 | | |
| 5.2 | nvestmentsnvestments | 37 | | |
| | 2.1 A description of the principal investments made since the date of the last published financial statements. | 37 | | |
| | 2.2 Information concerning the issuer's principal future investments, on which its management bodies have already made firm commitments. | 37 | | |
| | 2.3 Information regarding the anticipated sources of funds needed to fulfil commitments referred to in item 5.2.2. | 37 | | |
| 6 | BUSINESS OVERVIEW | 37 | | |
| 6.1 | Principal activities | 37 | | |
| 0.1 | 5.1.1 A description of the issuer's principal activities stating the main categories of products sold and/or services performed | 37 | | |
| | 1.1.2 an indication of any significant new products and/or activities. | 37 | | |
| 6.2 | Principal markets: A brief description of the principal markets in which the issuer competes | 38 | | |
| 6.3 | The basis for any statements made by the issuer regarding its competitive position. | 38 | | |
| 7 | DRGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE | 38 | | |
| 7.1 | f the issuer is part of a group, a brief description of the group and of the issuer's position within it | 38 | | |
| 7.2 | If the issuer is dependent upon other entities within the group, this must be clearly stated together with an explanation of this dependence. | | | |
| 8 | TREND INFORMATION | 38 | | |
| 8.1 | nclude a statement that there has been no material adverse change in the prospects of the issuer since the date of its last published audited financial statements. | 38 | | |
| 8.2 | nformation on any known trends, uncertainties, demands, commitments or events that are reasonably likely to have a material effect on the issuer's prospects for at least the current financial year. | 38 | | |
| 9 | PROFIT FORECASTS OR ESTIMATES | 38 | | |
| 9 | f an issuer chooses to include a profit forecast or a profit estimate, the base prospectus must contain the information items 9.1 and 9.2 | 38 | | |
| 9.1 | statement setting out the principal assumptions upon which the issuer has based its forecast, or estimate. | 38 | | |
| 9.2 | report prepared by independent accountants or auditors must be included stating that in the opinion of the independent accountants or auditors the forecast or estimate has been properly compiled on the basis stated and that the basis of accounting used for the profit forecast or estimate is consistent with the accounting policies of the issuer. | 38 | | |
| 9.3 | The profit forecast or estimate must be prepared on a basis comparable with the historical financial information. | 38 | | |
| 10 | ADMINISTRATIVE, MANAGEMENT, AND SUPERVISORY BODIES | 39 | | |
| 10.1 | Names, business addresses and functions in the issuer of the following persons, and an indication of the principal activities performed by them outside the issuer where these are | | | |
| | significant with respect to that issuer | 39 | | |

| | | Page | | | |
|------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------|--|--|--|
| 10.2 | Administrative, Management, and Supervisory bodies conflicts of interests: Potential conflicts of interests between any duties to the issuing entity of the persons referred to in item 10.1 and their private interests and or other duties must be clearly stated. In the event that there are no such conflicts, make a statement to that effect. | 39 | | | |
| 11 | BOARD PRACTICES | 39 | | | |
| 11.1 | Details relating to the issuer's audit committee, including the names of committee members and a summary of the terms of reference under which the committee operates | | | | |
| 11.2 | A statement as to whether or not the issuer complies with its country's of incorporation corporate governance regime(s). In the event that the issuer does not comply with such a regime a statement to that effect must be included together with an explanation regarding why the issuer does not comply with such regime. | | | | |
| 12 | MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS | 40 | | | |
| 12.1 | To the extent known to the issuer, state whether the issuer is directly or indirectly owned or controlled and by whom and describe the nature of such control, and describe the measures in place to ensure that such control is not abused. | 40 | | | |
| 12.2 | A description of any arrangements, known to the issuer, the operation of which may at a subsequent date result in a change in control of the issuer. | 40 | | | |
| 13 | FINANCIAL INFORMATION CONCERNING THE ISSUER'S ASSETS AND LIABILITIES, FINANCIAL POSITION AND PROFITS AND LOSSES | 40 | | | |
| 13.1 | Historical Financial Information: Audited historical financial information covering the latest 2 financial years (or such shorter period that the issuer has been in operation), and the audit report in respect of each year. Such financial information must be prepared according to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002, or if not applicable to a Member States national accounting standards for issuers from the Community. | 40 | | | |
| 13.2 | | | | | |
| 13.3 | Auditing of historical annual financial information | 103 | | | |
| | 13.3.1 A statement that the historical financial information has been audited. If audit reports on the historical financial information have been refused by the statutory auditors or if they contain qualifications or disclaimers, such refusal or such qualifications or disclaimers must be reproduced in full and the reasons given | 103 | | | |
| | 13.3.2 An indication of other information in the base prospectus which has been audited by the auditors. | 103 | | | |
| | 13.3.3 Where financial data in the base prospectus is not extracted from the issuer's audited financial statements state the source of the data and state that the data is un-audited. | 103 | | | |
| 13.4 | Age of latest financial information | 103 | | | |
| 13.1 | | 103 | | | |
| | 13.4.1 The last year of audited financial information may not be older than 18 months from the date of the base prospectus. | 103 | | | |
| 13.5 | Interim and other financial information | 103 | | | |
| | 13.5.1 If the issuer has published quarterly or half yearly financial information since the date of its last audited financial statements, these must be included in the base prospectus. If the quarterly or half yearly financial information has been reviewed or audited the audit or review report must also be included. If the quarterly or half yearly financial information is un-audited or has not been reviewed state that fact | 103 | | | |

| | | Page |
|------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------|
| | 13.5.2 If the base prospectus is dated more than nine months after the end of the last audited financial year, it must contain interim financial information, covering at least the first six months of the financial year. If the interim financial information is un-audited state that fact. | 108 |
| 13.6 | Legal and arbitration proceedings: Information on any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which the issuer is aware), during a period covering at least the previous 12 months which may have, or have had in the recent past, significant effects on the issuer and/or group's financial position or profitability, or provide an appropriate negative statement. | 108 |
| 13.7 | Significant change in the issuer's financial or trading position: A description of any significant change in the financial or trading position of the Issuers which has occurred since the end of the last financial period for which either audited financial information or interim financial information have been published, or an appropriate negative statement. | 108 |
| 14 | ADDITIONAL INFORMATION | 109 |
| 14.1 | Share Capital | 109 |
| | 14.1.1 The amount of the issued capital, the number and classes of the shares of which it is composed with details of their principal characteristics, the part of the issued capital still to be paid up, with an indication of the number, or total nominal value, and the type of the shares not yet fully paid up, broken down where applicable according to the extent to which they have been paid up. | 109 |
| 14.2 | Memorandum and Articles of Association. | 109 |
| | 14.2.1 The register and the entry number therein, if applicable, and a description of the issuer's objects and purposes and where they can be found in the memorandum and articles of association. | 109 |
| 15 | MATERIAL CONTRACTS | 109 |
| 15.1 | A brief summary of all material contracts that are not entered into in the ordinary course of the issuer's business, which could result in any group member being under an obligation or entitlement that is material to the issuer's ability to meet its obligation to security holders in respect of the securities being issued. | 109 |
| 16 | THIRD PARTY INFORMATION AND STATEMENT BY EXPERTS AND DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTEREST | 109 |
| 16.1 | Where a statement or report attributed to a person as an expert is included in the Base Prospectus, provide such person's name, business address, qualifications and material interest if any in the issuer. If the report has been produced at the issuer's request a statement to that effect that such statement or report is included, in the form and context in which it is included, with the consent of that person who has authorised the contents of that part of the Base | 100 |
| 160 | Prospectus | 109 |
| 16.2 | Where information has been sourced from a third party, provide a confirmation that this information has been accurately reproduced and that as far as the issuer is aware and is able to ascertain from information published by that third party, no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading. In addition, the issuer shall identify the source(s) of the information. | 109 |
| 17 | DOCUMENTS ON DISPLAY | 110 |
| 17.1 | A statement that for the life of the base prospectus the following documents (or copies thereof), where applicable may be inspected | 110 |

| ГНЕ | GUAR | ANTOR | | |
|------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--|--|
| 1 | PERSO | ONS RESPONSIBLE | | |
| 1.1 | All per Gua of su man | sons responsible for the information given in this Base Prospectus relating to the rantor and, as the case may be, for certain parts of it, with, in the latter case, an indication ach parts. In the case of natural persons including members of the issuer's administrative, agement or supervisory bodies indicate the name and function of the person; in case of a persons indicate the name and registered office. | | |
| 2 | to en the (omis certa is the respo | tration by those responsible for this Base Prospectus that, having taken all reasonable care issure that such is the case, the information contained in this Base Prospectus relating to Guarantor is, to the best of their knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no ission likely to affect its import. As the case may be, declaration by those responsible for ain parts of this Base Prospectus that, having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such the case, the information contained in the part of this Base Prospectus for which they are consible is, to the best of their knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no which they are still the to affect its import. | | |
| | | sion likely to affect its import. | | |
| 2 | | UTORY AUDITORS | | |
| 2.1. | | and addresses of the Guarantor's auditors for the period covered by the historical ncial information (together with their membership in a professional body) | | |
| 2 | If auditors have resigned, been removed or not been re-appointed during the period covered by the historical financial information, details if material. | | | |
| | RISK FACTORS | | | |
| .1. | | nent disclosure of risk factors that may affect the Guarantor's ability to fulfil its obligations or the securities to investors in a section headed "Risk Factors". | | |
| | INFOI | RMATION ABOUT THE GUARANTOR | | |
| .1. | History | and development of the Guarantor | | |
| | 4.1.1. | Legal and trading name of the issuer | | |
| | 4.1.2. | The place of registration of the Guarantor and its registration number | | |
| | 4.1.3. | The date of incorporation and the length of life of the Guarantor, except where indefinite | | |
| | 4.1.4. | The domicile and legal form of the Guarantor, the legislation under which the Guarantor operates, its country of incorporation, and the address and telephone number of its registered office (or principal place of business if different from its registered office). | | |
| | 4.1.5. | Any recent events particular to the Guarantor which are to a material extent relevant to the evaluation of the Guarantor's solvency. | | |
| i | BUSIN | IESS OVERVIEW | | |
| .1. | Principal activities | | | |
| | 5.1.1. | A brief description of the Guarantor's principal activities stating the main categories of products sold and/or services performed. | | |
| | 5.1.2. | An indication of any significant new products and/or activities | | |

| | 5.1.3. Principal markets: A brief description of the principal markets in which the Guarantor competes. | |
|-------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--|
| 6 | ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE | |
| 6.1 | If the Guarantor is part of a group, a brief description of the group and of the Guarantor's position within it. | |
| 6.2 | If the Guarantor is dependent upon other entities within the group, this must be clearly stated together with an explanation of this dependence. | |
| 7 | TREND INFORMATION | |
| 7.1. | Include a statement that there has been no material adverse change in the prospects of the Guarantor since the date of its last published audited financial statements. In the event that the Guarantor is unable to make such a statement, provide details of this material adverse change. | |
| 7.2. | Information on any known trends, uncertainties, demands, commitments or events that are reasonably likely to have a material effect on the Guarantor's prospects for at least the current financial year. | |
| 8 | PROFIT FORECASTS OR ESTIMATES | |
| 8.1. | A statement setting out the principal assumptions upon which the Guarantor has based its forecast, or estimate. There must be a clear distinction between assumptions about factors which the members of the administrative, management or supervisory bodies can influence and assumptions about factors which are exclusively outside the influence of the members of the administrative, management or supervisory bodies; be readily understandable by investors; be specific and precise; and not relate to the general accuracy of the estimates underlying the forecast. | |
| 8.2. | A report prepared by independent accountants or auditors stating that in the opinion of the independent accountants or auditors the forecast or estimate has been properly compiled on the basis stated and that the basis of accounting used for the profit forecast or estimate is consistent with the accounting policies of the Guarantor. | |
| 8.3. | The profit forecast or estimate must be prepared on a basis comparable with the historical financial information. | |
| 9 | ADMINISTRATIVE, MANAGEMENT, AND SUPERVISORY BODIES | |
| 9.1. | Names, business addresses and functions in the Guarantor of the following persons, and an indication of the principal activities performed by them outside the Guarantor where these are significant with respect to the Guarantor | |
| 9.2. | Administrative, Management, and Supervisory bodies conflicts of interests. Potential conflicts of interests between any duties to the issuing entity of the persons referred to in item 9.1 and their private interests and or other duties must be clearly stated. In the event that there are no such conflicts, make a statement to that effect. | |
| 10 | MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS | |
| 10.1. | To the extent known to the Guarantor, state whether the Guarantor is directly or indirectly owned or controlled and by whom, and describe the nature of such control, and describe the measures in place to ensure that such control is not abused. | |
| | A description of any arrangements, known to the Guarantor, the operation of which may at a | |

| | | | Page |
|-------|----------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------|
| 11 | | CIAL INFORMATION CONCERNING THE GUARANTOR'S ASSETS AND BILITIES, FINANCIAL POSITION AND PROFITS AND LOSSES | 133 |
| 11.1. | finan audit to Re stand infor pursu count infor | cal Financial Information: Audited historical financial information covering the latest 2 cial years (or such shorter period that the Guarantor has been in operation), and the report in respect of each year. Such financial information must be prepared according gulation (EC) No 1606/2002, or if not applicable to a Member State national accounting tards for issuers from the Community. For third country issuers, such financial mation must be prepared according to the international accounting standards adopted tant to the procedure of Article 3 of Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 or to a third try's national accounting standards equivalent to these standards. If such financial mation is not equivalent to these standards, it must be presented in the form of restated cial statements. | 133 |
| 11.2. | | al statements: If the Guarantor prepares both own and consolidated financial nents, include at least the consolidated financial statements in this Base Prospectus | 135 |
| 11.3 | Auditin | g of historical annual financial information. | 135 |
| | 11.3.1. | A statement that the historical financial information has been audited. If audit reports on the historical financial information have been refused by the statutory auditors or if they contain qualifications or disclaimers, such refusal or such qualifications or disclaimers must be reproduced in full and the reasons given. | 135 |
| | 11.3.2. | An indication of other information in this Base Prospectus which has been audited by the auditors | 135 |
| | 11.3.3. | Where financial data in this Base Prospectus is not extracted from the Guarantor's audited financial statements state the source of the data and state that the data is unaudited. | 135 |
| 11.4. | Age of l | atest financial information. | 136 |
| | 11.4.1. | The last year of audited financial information may not be older than 18 months from the date of this Base Prospectus. | 136 |
| 11.5. | Interim | and other financial information | 136 |
| | 11.5.1. | If the Guarantor has published quarterly or half yearly financial information since the date of its last audited financial statements, these must be included in this Base Prospectus. If the quarterly or half yearly financial information has been reviewed or audited the audit or review report must also be included. If the quarterly or half yearly financial information is unaudited or has not been reviewed state that fact | 136 |
| | 11.5.2. | If this Base Prospectus is dated more than nine months after the end of the last audited financial year, it must contain interim financial information, covering at least the first six months of the financial year. If the interim financial information is unaudited state that fact. | 136 |
| 11.6. | proce Guar have, | nd arbitration proceedings: Information on any governmental, legal or arbitration edings (including any such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which the antor is aware), during a period covering at least the previous 12 months which may or have had in the recent past, significant effects on the Guarantor and/or group's | |
| | finan | cial position or profitability, or provide an appropriate negative statement. | 136 |

| | | Page |
|-------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------|
| 11.7. | Significant change in the Guarantor's financial position: A description of any significant change in the financial position of the group which has occurred since the end of the last financial period for which either audited financial information or interim financial information have been published, or an appropriate negative statement. | 141 |
| 12 | MATERIAL CONTRACTS | 141 |
| 12.1 | A brief summary of all material contracts that are not entered into in the ordinary course of the Guarantor's business, which could result in any group member being under an obligation or entitlement that is material to the Guarantor's ability to meet its obligation to security holders in respect of the securities being issued. | 141 |
| 13 | THIRD PARTY INFORMATION AND STATEMENT BY EXPERTS AND | 1.40 |
| 13.1. | Where a statement or report attributed to a person as an expert is included in this Base Prospectus, provide such person's name, business address, qualifications and material interest if any in the Guarantor. If the report has been produced at the Guarantor's request a statement to that effect that such statement or report is included, in the form and context in which it is included, with the consent of that person who has authorised the contents of that | 142 |
| 13.2. | part of this Base Prospectus. Where information has been sourced from a third party, provide a confirmation that this information has been accurately reproduced and that as far as the Guarantor is aware and is able to ascertain from information published by that third party, no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading. In addition, the Guarantor shall identify the source(s) of the information. | 142 |
| THE | INSTRUMENTS | 143 |
| 1 | PERSONS RESPONSIBLE | 143 |
| 1.1 | All persons responsible for the information given in the prospectus and, as the case may be, for certain parts of it, with, in the latter case, an indication of such parts. In the case of natural persons including members of the issuer's administrative, management or supervisory bodies indicate the name and function of the person; in case of legal persons indicate the name and registered office. | 143 |
| 1.2 | A declaration by those responsible for the prospectus that, having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case, the information contained in the prospectus is, to the best of their knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import. As the case may be, declaration by those responsible for certain parts of the prospectus that the information contained in the part of the prospectus for which they are responsible is, to the best of their knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import. | 143 |
| 2 | RISK FACTORS | 143 |
| 2.1 | Prominent disclosure of risk factors that are material to the securities being offered and/or admitted to trading in order to assess the market risk associated with these securities in a section headed "Risk Factors" | 143 |
| 3 | KEY INFORMATION | 143 |
| 3.1 | Interest of natural and legal persons involved in the issue/offer | 143 |
| 3.2 | Reasons for the offer and use of proceeds | 143 |

| 4 | INFORMATION CONCERNING THE SECURITIES TO BE OFFERED/ADMITTED TO TRADING | | | |
|------|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--|--|--|
| 4.1 | A description of the type and the class of the securities being offered and/or admitted to trading, including the ISIN (International Security Identification Number) or other such security identification code. | | | |
| 4.2 | Legislation under which the securities have been created | | | |
| 4.3 | An indication of whether the securities are in registered form or bearer form and whether the securities are in certificated form or book-entry form. In the latter case, name and address of the entity in charge of keeping the records | | | |
| 4.4 | Currency of the securities issue | | | |
| 4.5 | Ranking of the securities being offered and/or admitted to trading, including summaries of any clauses that are intended to affect ranking or subordinate the security to any present or future liabilities of the issuer | | | |
| 4.6 | A description of the rights attached to the securities, including any limitations of those rights, and procedure for the exercise of those rights | | | |
| 4.7 | The nominal interest rate and provisions relating to interest payable | | | |
| 4.8 | Maturity date and arrangements for the amortization of the loan, including the repayment procedures. Where advance amortization is contemplated, on the initiative of the issuer or of the holder, it shall be described, stipulating amortization terms and conditions | | | |
| 4.9 | An indication of yield. Describe the method whereby that yield is calculated in summary form | | | |
| 4.10 | Representation of debt security holders including an identification of the organisation representing the investors and provisions applying to such representation. Indication of where the public may have access to the contracts relating to these forms of representation | | | |
| 4.11 | In the case of new issues, a statement of the resolutions, authorisations and approvals by virtue of which the securities have been or will be created and/or issued | | | |
| 4.12 | In the case of new issues, the expected issue date of the securities | | | |
| 4.13 | A description of any restrictions on the free transferability of the securities | | | |
| 4.14 | In respect of the country of registered office of the issuer and the country(ies) where the offer being made or admission to trading is being sought | | | |
| 5 | TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE OFFER | | | |
| 5.1 | Conditions, offer statistics, expected timetable and action required to apply for the offer | | | |
| | 5.1.1 Conditions to which the offer is subject | | | |
| | 5.1.2 Total amount of the issue/offer; if the amount is not fixed, description of the arrangements and time for announcing to the public the definitive amount of the offer | | | |
| | 5.1.3 The time period, including any possible amendments, during which the offer will be open and description of the application process | | | |
| | 5.1.4 A description of the possibility to reduce subscriptions and the manner for refunding excess amount paid by applicants. | | | |
| | 5.1.5 Details of the minimum and/or maximum amount of application, (whether in number of securities or aggregate amount to invest). | | | |
| | 5.1.6 Method and time limits for paying up the securities and for delivery of the securities | | | |
| | 5.1.7 A full description of the manner and date in which results of the offer are to be made public. | | | |
| | 5.1.8 The procedure for the exercise of any right of pre-emption, the negotiability of subscription rights and the treatment of subscription rights not exercised | | | |

| | | | Page |
|-----|--------------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------|
| 5.2 | Plan e | of distribution and allotment | 159 |
| | 5.2.1 | The various categories of potential investors to which the securities are offered. If the offer is being made simultaneously in the markets of two or more countries and if a tranche has been or is being reserved for certain of these, indicate any such tranche. | 159 |
| | 5.2.2 | Process for notification to applicants of the amount allotted and indication whether dealing may begin before notification is made | 162 |
| 5.3 | Pricin | g | 162 |
| | 5.3.1 | An indication of the expected price at which the securities will be offered or the method of determining the price and the process for its disclosure. Indicate the amount of any expenses and taxes specifically charged to the subscriber or purchaser | 162 |
| 5.4 | Placir | ng and Underwriting | 162 |
| | 5.4.1 | Name and address of the co-ordinator(s) of the global offer and of single parts of the offer and, to the extend known to the issuer or to the offeror, of the placers in the various countries where the offer takes place. | 162 |
| | 5.4.2 | Name and address of any paying agents and depository agents in each country | 162 |
| | 5.4.3 | Name and address of the entities agreeing to underwrite the issue on a firm commitment basis, and name and address of the entities agreeing to place the issue without a firm commitment or under "best efforts" arrangements. Indication of the material features of the agreements, including the quotas. Where not all of the issue is underwritten, a statement of the portion not covered. Indication of the overall amount of the underwriting commission and of the placing commission. | 162 |
| | 5.4.4 | When the underwriting agreement has been or will be reached | 163 |
| 5.5 | Additi | onal Disclosure Requirements for Derivative Securities | 163 |
| 3.3 | 5.5.1 | A clear and comprehensive explanation to help investors understand how the value of their investment is affected by the value of the underlying instrument(s), especially under the circumstances when the risks are most evident unless the securities have a denomination per unit of at least EUR 50,000 or can only be acquired for at least EUR 50,000 per security. | 163 |
| | 5.5.2 | The exercise price or the final reference price of the underlying | 163 |
| | 5.5.3 | A statement setting out the type of the underlying and details of where information on the underlying can be obtained | 163 |
| | 5.5.4 | A description of any market disruption or settlement disruption events that affect the underlying. | 163 |
| | 5.5.5 | Adjustment rules with relation to events concerning the underlying | 163 |
| | 5.5.6 | Name and address of a calculation agent | 163 |
| | 5.5.7 | An indication in the prospectus whether or not the issuer intends to provide post-issuance information. Where the issue has indicated that it intends to report such information, the issuer shall specify in the prospectus what information will be reported and where such information can be obtained. | 163 |
| 6 | ADMISSION TO TRADING AND DEALING ARRANGEMENTS 16 | | |
| 6.1 | An ind adn mai with | dication as to whether the securities offered are or will be the object of an application for nission to trading, with a view to their distribution in a regulated market or other equivalent retes with indication of the markets in question. This circumstance must be mentioned, hout creating the impression that the admission to trading will necessarily be approved. If | 164 |

| | | Pag |
|-----|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----|
| 6.2 | All the regulated markets or equivalent markets on which, to the knowledge of the issuer, securities of the same class of the securities to be offered or admitted to trading are already admitted to trading. | 164 |
| 6.3 | Name and address of the entities which have a firm commitment to act as intermediaries in secondary trading, providing liquidity through bid and offer rates and description of the main terms of their commitment | 164 |
| 7 | ADDITIONAL INFORMATION | 164 |
| 7.1 | If advisors connected with an issue are mentioned in the prospectus, a statement of the capacity in which the advisors have acted. | 164 |
| 7.2 | An indication of other information in the prospectus which has been audited or reviewed by statutory auditors and where auditors have produced a report. Reproduction of the report or, with permission of the competent authority, a summary of the report. | 164 |
| 7.3 | Where a statement or report attributed to a person as an expert is included in the prospectus, provide such persons' name, business address, qualifications and material interest if any in the issuer. If the report has been produced at the issuer's request a statement to that effect that such statement or report is included, in the form and context in which it is included, with the consent of that person who has authorised the contents of that part of the prospectus | 164 |
| 7.4 | Where information has been sourced from a third party, provide a confirmation that this information has been accurately reproduced and that as far as the issuer is aware and is able to ascertain from information published by that third party, no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading. In addition, identify the source(s) of the information. | 164 |
| 7.5 | Credit ratings assigned to an issuer or its debt securities at the request or with the cooperation of the issuer in the rating process. A brief explanation of the meaning of the ratings if this has previously been published by the rating provider. | 164 |
| TEF | RMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE INSTRUMENTS | 165 |
| PRO | FORMA FINAL TERMS | 228 |
| THI | E GUARANTEES | 244 |
| 1. | NATURE OF THE GUARANTEE | 244 |
| 1.1 | A description of any arrangement intended to ensure that any obligation material to the issue will be duly serviced, whether in the form of guarantee, surety, Keep well Agreement, Mono-line Insurance policy or other equivalent commitment (hereafter referred to generically as "guarantees" and their provider as "guarantor" for convenience). | 244 |
| 2. | SCOPE OF THE GUARANTEE | 244 |
| 2.1 | Details shall be disclosed about the terms and conditions and scope of the guarantee. Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, these details should cover any conditionality on the application of the guarantee in the event of any default under the terms of the security and the material terms of any Mono-line Insurance or Keep well Agreement between the issuer and the guarantor. Details must also be disclosed of any guarantor's power of veto in relation to changes to the security holder's rights, such as is often found in Mono-line Insurance | 244 |
| FOI | RM OF SENIOR GUARANTEE | 244 |
| FOR | RM OF SUBORDINATED GUARANTEE | 250 |

SUMMARY

This summary must be read as an introduction to the Base Prospectus. Any decision to invest in any Instruments issued under the Programme should be based on a consideration of the Base Prospectus as a whole, including the documents incorporated by reference, by any investor. No civil liability attaches to the persons responsible for this summary in any Member State of the European Economic Area which has implemented the Prospectus Directive solely on the basis of this summary, including any translation thereof, unless it is misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent when read together with the other parts of this Base Prospectus, including any information incorporated by reference. Where a claim relating to information contained in the Base Prospectus is brought before a court in an EEA State, the plaintiff may, under the national legislation of the EEA State where the claim is brought, be required to bear the costs of translating the Base Prospectus before the legal proceedings are initiated.

The Base Prospectus has been approved by the Luxembourg Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (the "CSSF"), which is the Luxembourg competent authority for the purpose of Directive 2003/71/EC (the "Prospectus Directive") and relevant implementing measures in Luxembourg, as a base prospectus issued in compliance with the Prospectus Directive and relevant implementing measures in Luxembourg for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Instruments during the period of twelve months after the date hereof. Application has been made for Instruments to be admitted to Listing and trading on the regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

Information relating to the Issuers

| Issuer of Senior Instruments: | Santander International Debt, S.A. Unipersonal, a wholly-owned |
|-------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------------------------------|
| | subsidiary of the Guarantor, was incorporated by a public deed on |
| | 21 April 2004, and registered in the Mercantile Registry of Madrid on |
| | |

5 May 2004.

Issuer of Subordinated Instruments: Santander Issuances, S.A. Unipersonal, a wholly-owned subsidiary of

the Guarantor, was incorporated by a public deed executed on 27 February 2004, and registered in the Mercantile Registry of

Madrid on 2 March 2004.

Each of the Issuers was incorporated in Spain as a private limited liability company (sociedad anónima) under the Ley de Sociedades

Anónimas (Spanish companies law) for an unlimited duration.

Business: The exclusive object of Santander International Debt, S.A.

Unipersonal is to issue ordinary or senior debt with the guarantee of

Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A.

The exclusive object of Santander Issuances, S.A. Unipersonal is to issue subordinated debt with the guarantee of Banco Santander

Central Hispano, S.A.

Registered Office of the Issuers: The registered office address and telephone number of each of the

Issuers is Ciudad Grupo Santander, Avenida de Cantabria s/n, Ciudad Grupo Santander, 28660 Boadilla del Monte, Madrid, Spain.

Telephone: +34 91 257 20 59.

Auditors: The auditors of each of the Issuers and the Guarantor is Deloitte, S.L.

whose address is at Plaza Pablo Ruiz Picasso, 1, 28020 Madrid. The

auditors are registered in the official register of auditors under number S-0692. The auditors are members of the Instituto de

Censores Jurados de Cuentas de España.

Share Capital: The share capital of each of the Issuers is €60,200 divided into 602

> ordinary shares with a par value of €100 each. All of the shares of each Issuer are issued and fully paid-up and constitute a single class.

Directors: The directors of each of the Issuers are: Javier Antón San Pablo,

Pablo Roig Garcia Bernalt, José Antonio Soler and Antonio Torío

Martín.

Information relating to the Guarantor:

Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (the "Guarantor" or the Guarantor: "Bank") is domiciled in Spain and has the legal form of a limited liability company (sociedad anónima) and its activities are subject to

special Spanish legislation governing credit institutions in general and

the supervision, control and regulation of Bank of Spain in particular.

The Bank was incorporated in Spain and has its registered office at Paseo de Pereda, numbers 9 to 12, Santander. The principal operating headquarters of the Bank is located at Ciudad Grupo Santander, Avda. de Cantabria s/n, 28660 Boadilla del Monte, in the province of Madrid. The telephone number of the principal operating

headquarters of the Bank is +34 91 659 6520.

Business: The Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries (the "Group") are a

> financial group operating through a network of offices and subsidiaries across Spain, other European countries and Latin

America, offering a wide range of financial products.

The Group operates through 5,389 offices in Continental Europe, 712 in the United Kingdom and 4,100 in Latin America. The Group's business is divided into the following principal areas: European Retail Banking, Latin American Retail Banking, Asset Management and

Private Banking, global wholesale banking and financial management and holdings.

Major Shareholders: The Bank is not aware of any person which exerts or may exert

> control over the Bank within the terms of Article 4 of Ley 24/1988, de 28 de julio, del Mercado de Valores (Law 24/1988 of 28 July of the

Securities Market).

Directors of the Guarantor: Emilio Botín Sanz de Sautuola y García de los Rios

> Fernando de Asúa Alvarez Alfredo Sáenz Abad Matías Rodríguez Inciarte Manuel Soto Serrano

Assicurazioni Generali, S.p.A. (represented by Antoine Bernheim)

Antonio Basagoiti García-Tuñón

Ana Patricia Botín-Sanz de Sautuola y O'Shea

F. Javier Botín-Sanz de Sautuola y O'Shea

Lord Terence Burns

Guillermo de la Dehesa Romero Rodrigo Echenique Gordillo Antonio Escámez Torres Francisco Luzón López Abel Matutes Juan

Mutua Madrileña Automovilista (represented by Luis Rodríguez)

Luis Ángel Rojo Duque

Luis Alberto Salazar-Simpson Bos

Jay S. Sidhu

Employees: At 31 December 2005, the Group had 129,196 employees (45,207 in

Continental Europe, 21,080 in the United Kingdom and 62,611 in

Latin America).

Auditors: See "Information relating to the Issuers — Auditors" above.

Risk Factors: There are certain risks associated with an investment in the

Instruments, as described under "Risk Factors". Such risks relate to, among other things, each Issuer's dependence on the Guarantor and the Group in order to fulfil its obligations under the Instruments; risks inherent in the business of the Guarantor and the Group and the industries in which they operate, and risks relating to the nature of the Instruments and to the structure of certain types of Instruments (such as Credit Linked Instruments). Other risks described herein relate to: the risk of suffering a withholding on payments in accordance with Spanish law and surrounding the procedures established for avoiding such withholding; risks relating to the role of the *Comisario*; and risks relating to the reclassification of the ranking of claims under the Instruments on an insolvency of the Issuers and/or the Guarantor.

Description of the Programme

Arrangers: Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. and Morgan Stanley & Co.

International Limited.

Dealers: ABN AMRO Bank N.V., Banco Santander de Negocios Portugal, S.A.,

Barclays Bank PLC, Citigroup Global Markets Limited, Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft, Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited, Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch, Goldman Sachs International, HSBC Bank plc, J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd., Lehman Brothers International (Europe), Merrill Lynch International, Morgan Stanley & Co. International Limited, Société Générale, The Royal Bank of Scotland plc and UBS Limited and any other dealer appointed from time to time by the Issuer(s) and the Guarantor either generally in respect of the

Programme or in relation to a particular Tranche of Instruments.

Issue and Paying Agent: The Bank of New York.

Luxembourg Listing Agent and Paying

Agent: The Bank of New York (Luxembourg) S.A.

Programme Amount:

Euro 32,000,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of Instruments outstanding at any one time (or its approximate equivalent in any other currency at the date of the agreement to issue any Tranche of Instruments).

Constitution of Instruments:

The Instruments will be constituted by virtue of the relevant public deed of issuance to be executed and registered with the Mercantile Registry of Madrid on or prior to the issue date.

Guarantee:

The Instruments are guaranteed (on an unsubordinated basis in relation to Senior Instruments and on a subordinated basis in relation to Subordinated Instruments) by the Guarantor. For a description of the Guarantee, see "The Instruments — The Guarantees".

Issuance in Series:

Instruments will be issued in Series. Each Series may comprise one or more Tranches issued on different issue dates. The Instruments of each Series will all be subject to identical terms except that the issue dates and the amount of the first payment of interest may be different in respect of different Tranches. The Instruments of each Tranche will all be subject to identical terms in all respects save that a Tranche may comprise Instruments of different denominations.

Form of Instruments:

Instruments may be issued in registered form, without interest coupons ("Registered Instruments"), or in bearer form, with or without interest coupons ("Bearer Instruments"). Bearer Instruments will, unless otherwise specified, only be sold outside the United States to non-U.S. persons in reliance on Regulation S and will, unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms, initially be represented by a Temporary Global Instruments without interest coupons attached, deposited: (a) in the case of a global note which is not intended to be issued in new global note form (a "Classic Global Note" or "CGN"), as specified in the relevant Final Terms, with or on behalf of a Common Depositary located outside the United States for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg; or (b) in the case of a global note which is intended to be issued in new global note form (a "New Global Note" or "NGN"), as specified in the relevant Final Terms, with a common safekeeper for Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg. Interests in a Temporary Global Instrument will be exchangeable (i) for interests in a permanent global Instrument in bearer form, without coupons (a "Permanent Global Instrument"), or (ii) in whole but not in part for definitive Instruments in bearer form (each, a "Definitive Instrument"), following certification of non-U.S. beneficial ownership as required by U.S. Treasury regulations. Bearer Instruments may be exchangeable for Registered Instruments. Registered Instruments will not be exchangeable for Bearer Instruments.

Currencies:

Instruments may be denominated in any currency or currencies subject to compliance with all applicable legal and/or regulatory requirements and/or central bank requirements. Payments in respect of Instruments may, subject to such compliance, be made in and/or linked to, any currency or currencies other than the currency in which such Instruments are denominated.

Status of Instruments and the Guarantee:

Senior Instruments and the guarantee in respect of them will constitute unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of Santander International and the Guarantor, respectively, and Subordinated Instruments and the guarantee in respect of them will constitute subordinated and unsecured obligations of Santander Issuances and the Guarantor, respectively, all as described in "The Instruments — Terms and Conditions of the Instruments — Status of the Instruments and the Guarantee".

Issue Price:

Maturities:

Instruments may be issued at par or at a discount to par or a premium over par and on a fully paid basis, as specified in the relevant Final Terms. The issue price and the principal amount of the relevant tranche of Instruments will be determined before filing of the relevant Final Terms of each tranche on the basis of then prevailing market

conditions.

Instruments may be issued with any maturity subject, in relation to specific currencies, to compliance with all applicable legal and/or regulatory and/or central bank requirements. Subordinated Instruments qualifying as regulatory capital (recursos propios) in accordance with Banco de España requirements will have a maturity of not less than five years from their date of issue or as otherwise

permitted by Banco de España.

Where Instruments have a maturity of less than one year and either (a) the issue proceeds are received by the Issuer in the United Kingdom or (b) the activity of issuing the Instruments is carried on from an establishment maintained by the Issuer in the United Kingdom, such Instruments must: (i) have a minimum redemption value of £100,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies) and be issued only to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses or who it is reasonable to expect will acquire, hold, manage or dispose of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses; or (ii) be issued in other circumstances which do not constitute a contravention of section 19

Redemption:

Instruments may be redeemable at par or at such other redemption amount (detailed in a formula or otherwise) as may be specified in the relevant Final Terms subject to compliance with all applicable legal and/or regulatory requirements. See "Maturities" above in relation to Instruments having a maturity of less than one year.

of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 by the Issuer.

Early Redemption:

Early redemption will be permitted for taxation reasons as mentioned in "The Instruments — Terms and Conditions of the Instruments — Early Redemption for Taxation Reasons", but otherwise early redemption will be permitted only to the extent specified in the relevant Final Terms.

Any early redemption of Subordinated Instruments qualifying as regulatory capital (recursos propios) is subject to the prior consent of Banco de España and may not take place within a period of five years from their date of issue or as otherwise permitted by Banco de España.

Payments (whether in respect of principal or interest and whether at maturity or otherwise) in respect of index-linked Instruments will be calculated by reference to such index and/or formula as the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) may agree (as indicated in the relevant Final Terms).

Instruments may be interest-bearing or non-interest bearing. Interest (if any), may accrue at a fixed or floating rate or other variable rate and may vary during the lifetime of the relevant Series.

Save as set out below, instruments will be issued in such denominations as may be specified in the relevant Final Terms, subject to a minimum denomination of €1,000 (or, if the Instruments are denominated in a currency other than Euro, the equivalent in another currency at the date of issue), and as specified in the relevant Final Terms, subject to compliance with all applicable legal and/or regulatory and/or central bank requirements.

Save as described below, all amounts payable (whether in respect of principal, redemption amount, interest or otherwise) in respect of the Instruments, the Receipts and the Coupons, the Senior Guarantee and the Subordinated Guarantee by an Issuer or the Guarantor (as the case may be) will be made free and clear of and without withholding or deduction for or on account of any present or future taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature imposed or levied by or on behalf of Spain or any political subdivision thereof or any authority or agency therein or thereof having power to tax, unless the withholding or deduction of such taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges is required by law. In that event, the relevant Issuer or (as the case may be) the Guarantor shall pay such additional amounts as will result in receipt by the holder of any Instrument or Coupon of such amounts as would have been received by them had no such withholding or deduction been required.

Neither the relevant Issuer nor the Guarantor shall be required to pay any such additional amounts as referred to above in relation to any payment in respect of any Instrument or Coupon in the circumstances described in Condition 8.02 of the Terms and Conditions of the Instruments. In particular, prospective holders of Instruments should note that no such additional amounts are payable to holders of Instruments in respect of whom the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor does not receive such information (which may include a tax residence certificate) concerning such holder's identity and tax residence as it may require in order to comply with Law 19/2003 of 4 July and any implementing legislation (see Condition 8.02(ii) of the Terms and Conditions of the Instruments) or to, or to the third party on behalf of, individuals resident for tax purposes in the Kingdom of Spain or a resident in a tax haven (see Condition 8.02(vi) of the Terms and Conditions of the Instruments).

Index-linked Instruments:

Interest:

Denominations:

Taxation:

Disclosure of identity of holders:

Under Spanish Law 13/1985 the Guarantor is obliged to disclose to the Spanish tax and financial supervisory authorities certain information in relation to the identity and residence of the holders of Instruments. For a description of certain agreed procedures in relation to the collection of such details, see "The Instruments — Taxation and Disclosure of Noteholder information in connection with interest payments". See also "The Instruments — Risk Factors — Risks Relating to Procedures for Collection of Holders' Details".

Governing Law:

The issue of the Instruments, including their legal nature (obligaciones) the status of the Instruments and the status of the guarantee in respect of them, the capacity of the Issuers, the relevant corporate resolutions, the appointment of the Commissioner and the constitution of the Syndicates of Holders of the Instruments will be governed by Spanish law. The terms and conditions of the Instruments and all related contractual documentation will be governed by, and construed in accordance with, English law.

Listing and Admission to Trading:

Each Series may be listed and traded on the regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and/or any other listing authority, stock exchange and/or quotation system (each, a "Stock Exchange") (as may be agreed between the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor and the relevant Dealer and specified in the relevant Final Terms) or may be unlisted. Under Spanish law, unlisted Instruments are subject to a different tax regime than that applicable to listed Instruments and, if issued under the Programme, such Instruments will be the subject of a supplement to the Base Prospectus.

Terms and Conditions:

Final Terms will be prepared in respect of each Tranche of Instruments, a copy of which, in the case of Instruments to be listed on any Stock Exchange will be delivered to each relevant Stock Exchange in accordance with the rules and regulations of each relevant Stock Exchange. The terms and conditions applicable to each Tranche will be those set out under "The Instruments — Terms and Conditions of the Instruments" as modified or replaced by the relevant Final Terms.

Negative Pledge:

Applicable to Senior Instruments only. See "The Instruments — Terms and Conditions of the Instruments — Negative Pledge".

Cross Default:

Applicable to Senior Instruments only. See "The Instruments — Terms and Conditions of the Instruments — Events of Default — Cross Default".

Enforcement of Instruments in Global Form:

In the case of Instruments in global form, individual investors' rights will be governed by a Deed of Covenant dated 16 November 2006.

Clearing Systems:

Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or, in relation to any Instruments, any other clearing system as may be specified in the relevant Final Terms.

Selling Restrictions:

For a description of certain restrictions on offers, sales and deliveries of Instruments see "The Instruments — 5.2 (*Plan of distribution and allotment*)". Further restrictions may be specified in the documentation relating to a particular Tranche.

Rule 144A:

Offers and sales in accordance with Rule 144A under the United States Securities Act of 1933 (as amended) will be permitted, if specified in the relevant Final Terms, subject to compliance with all applicable legal and/or regulatory requirements of the United States of America.

Risk Factors:

For a description of certain risks involved in investing in the Instruments, see "The Instruments — Risk Factors". These risks relate to withholding taxes, procedures for the collection of holders' details, the *Comisario*, the fact that there is no active trading market for the Instruments and that the Instruments may be redeemed prior to maturity. See also "Information relating to the Guarantor — Risk Factors" above.

Representation of holders of the Instruments:

The Holders of Instruments of the relevant Series shall meet in accordance with the regulations governing the relevant Syndicate of Holders of the Instruments (the "Regulations"). The Regulations shall contain the rules governing the functioning of each Syndicate and the rules governing its relationship with the relevant Issuer and shall be attached to the relevant Public Deed of Issuance. Pro forma Regulations are included in the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement.

RISK FACTORS

Investing in Instruments issued under the Programme involves certain risks. Prospective investors should consider, among other things, the following:

Risks Relating to the Issuers

Each Issuer is a finance vehicle established by the Guarantor for the purpose of issuing Instruments under the Programme and on-lending the proceeds within the Group. Each Issuer is therefore dependent upon other members of the Group paying interest on and repaying their loans in a timely fashion. Should any Group member fail to pay interest on or repay any loan in a timely fashion this could have a material adverse effect on the ability of the Issuer to fulfil its obligations under Instruments issued under the Programme.

Risks Relating to the Guarantor

Since the Group's loan portfolio is concentrated in Continental Europe, the United Kingdom and Latin America, adverse changes affecting the Continental European, the United Kingdom or certain Latin American economies could adversely affect the Group's financial condition.

The Group's loan portfolio is mainly concentrated in Continental Europe (in particular, Spain), the United Kingdom and Latin America. At December 31, 2005, Continental Europe accounted for approximately 49% of the Group's total loan portfolio (Spain accounted for 36% of the Group's total loan portfolio), while the United Kingdom and Latin America accounted for 39% and 12%, respectively. Therefore, adverse changes affecting the economies of Continental Europe (in particular Spain), the United Kingdom or the Latin American countries where the Group operates would likely have a significant adverse impact on the Group's loan portfolio and, as a result, on its financial condition, cash flows and results of operations.

Some of the Group's business is cyclical and the Group's income may decrease when demand for certain products or services is in a down cycle.

The level of income it derives from certain of the Group's products and services depends on the strength of the economies in the regions where the Group operates and certain market trends prevailing in those areas. While the Group attempts to diversify its businesses, negative cycles may adversely affect the Group's income in the future.

Since the Group's principal source of funds is short term deposits, a sudden shortage of these funds could increase the Group's cost of funding.

Historically, the Group's principal source of funds has been customer deposits (demand, time and notice deposits). At December 31, 2005, 17.2% of these customer deposits are time deposits in amounts greater than \$100,000. Time deposits have represented 51.7% (under previous Spanish GAAP) and 46.9% of total customer deposits at the end of 2003 and 2004, respectively, and 43.5% at the end of 2005. Large-denomination time deposits may be a less stable source of deposits than other type of deposits. In addition, since the Group relies heavily on short-term deposits for its funding, there can be no assurance that the Group will be able to maintain its levels of funding without incurring higher funding costs or liquidating certain assets.

Risks concerning borrower credit quality and general economic conditions are inherent in the Group's business.

Risks arising from changes in credit quality and the recoverability of loans and amounts due from counterparties are inherent in a wide range of the Group's businesses. Adverse changes in the credit quality of the Group's borrowers and counterparties or a general deterioration in Spanish, UK, Latin American or global economic conditions, or arising from systemic risks in the financial systems, could reduce the recoverability and value of the Group's assets and require an increase in the Group's level of provisions for credit losses. Deterioration in the economies in which the Group operates could reduce the profit margins for the Group's banking and financial services businesses.

Increased exposure to real estate makes the Group more vulnerable to developments in this market.

The decrease in interest rates globally has caused an increase in the demand of mortgage loans in the last few years. This has had repercussions in housing prices, which have also risen significantly. As real estate mortgages are one of the Group's main assets, comprising 53% of the Group's loan portfolio at December 31, 2005, the Group is currently highly exposed to developments in real estate markets. A strong increase in interest rates might have a significant negative impact in mortgage payment delinquency rates. An increase in such delinquency rates could have an adverse effect on the Group's business, financial condition and results of operations.

The Group may generate lower revenues from brokerage and other commission- and fee-based businesses.

Market downturns are likely to lead to declines in the volume of transactions that the Group executes for its customers and, therefore, to declines in the Group's non-interest revenues. In addition, because the fees that the Group charges for managing its clients' portfolios are in many cases based on the value or performance of those portfolios, a market downturn that reduces the value of the Group's clients' portfolios or increases the amount of withdrawals would reduce the revenues the Group receives from its asset management and private banking and custody businesses.

Even the absence of a market downturn, below-market performance by the Group's mutual funds may result in increased withdrawals and reduced inflows, which would reduce the revenue the Group receives from its asset management business.

Market risks associated with fluctuations in bond and equity prices and other market factors are inherent in the Group's business. Protracted market declines can reduce liquidity in the markets, making it harder to sell assets and leading to material losses.

The performance of financial markets may cause changes in the value of the Group's investment and trading portfolios. In some of the Group's business, protracted adverse market movements, particularly asset price decline, can reduce the level of activity in the market or reduce market liquidity. These developments can lead to material losses if the Group cannot close out deteriorating positions in a timely way. This may especially be the case for assets of the Group for which there are not very liquid markets to begin with. Assets that are not traded on stock exchanges or other public trading markets, such as derivative contracts between banks, may have values that the Group calculates using models other than publicly quoted prices. Monitoring the deterioration of prices of assets like these is difficult and could lead to losses that the Group did not anticipate.

Despite the Group's risk management policies, procedures and methods, the Group may nonetheless be exposed to unidentified or unanticipated risks.

The Group has devoted significant resources to developing its risk management policies, procedures and assessment methods and intends to continue to do so in the future. Nonetheless, the Group's risk management techniques and strategies may not be fully effective in mitigating the Group's risk exposure in all economic market environments or against all types of risk, including risks that the Group fails to identify or anticipate. Some of the Group's qualitative tools and metrics for managing risk are based upon the Group's use of observed historical market behavior. The Group applies statistical and other tools to these observations to arrive at quantifications of its risk exposures. These tools and metrics may fail to predict future risk exposures. These risk exposures could, for example, arise from factors the Group did not anticipate or correctly evaluate in its statistical models. This would limit the Group's ability to manage its risks. The Group's losses thus could be significantly greater than the historical measures indicate. In addition, the Group's quantified modeling does not take all risks into account. The Group's more qualitative approach to managing those risks could prove insufficient, exposing it to material unanticipated losses. If existing or potential customers believe the Group's risk management is inadequate, they could take their business elsewhere. This could harm the Group's reputation as well as its revenues and profits.

The Group's acquisition of Abbey, and any future acquisitions may not be successful and may be disruptive to the Group's business.

The Group has acquired controlling interests in various companies, and more recently, has completed the acquisition of Abbey National Plc ("Abbey"). Although the Group expects to realize strategic, operational and financial benefits as a result of the Abbey acquisition, the Group cannot predict whether and to what extent such benefits will be achieved. In particular, the success of the Abbey acquisition will depend, in part, on the Group's ability to realize the anticipated cost savings from assuming the control of Abbey's business. In addition, the Group will face certain challenges as it works to integrate Abbey's operations into the Group's businesses. Moreover, the Abbey acquisition increased the Group's total assets by 51.7% (under previous Spanish GAAP) as of December 31, 2004, thereby presenting the Group with significant challenges as it works to manage the increases in scale resulting from the acquisition. The Group's failure to successfully integrate and operate Abbey, and to realize the anticipated benefits of the acquisition, could adversely affect the Group's operating, performing and financial results. Additionally, the Group may consider other strategic acquisitions and partnerships from time to time. There can be no assurances that the Group will be successful in its plans regarding the operation of past or future acquisitions and strategic partnerships.

The Group can give you no assurance that its acquisition and partnership activities will perform in accordance with its expectations. Despite its due diligence efforts, the Group must necessarily base any assessment of potential acquisitions and partnerships on inexact and incomplete information and assumptions with respect to operations, profitability and other matters that may prove to be incorrect. The Group can give no assurance that the Group's expectations with regards to integration and synergies will materialize.

Increased competition in the countries where the Group operates may adversely affect the Group's growth prospects and operations.

Most of the financial systems in which the Group operates are highly competitive. Recent financial sector reforms in the markets in which the Group operate have increased competition among both local and foreign financial institutions, and the Group believes that this trend will continue. In particular, price competition in Europe and Latin America has increased recently. The Group's success in the European and Latin American markets will depend on the Group ability to remain competitive with other financial institutions. In addition, there has been a trend towards consolidation in the banking industry, which has created larger and stronger banks with which the Group must now compete. There can be no assurance that this increased competition will not adversely affect the Group's growth prospects, and therefore its operations. The Group also faces competition from non-bank competitors, such as brokerage companies, department stores (for some credit products), leasing companies and factoring companies, mutual fund and pension fund management companies and insurance companies.

Volatility in interest rates may negatively affect the Group's net interest income and increase the Group's non-performing loan portfolio.

Changes in market interest rates could affect the interest rates charged on interest-earning assets differently than the interest rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities. This difference could result in an increase in interest expense relative to interest income leading to a reduction in the Group's net interest income. Income from treasury operations is particularly vulnerable to interest rate volatility. Since the majority of the Group's loan portfolio reprices in less than one year, rising interest rates may also bring about an increasing non-performing loan portfolio. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond the Group's control, including deregulation of the financial sector, monetary policies, domestic and international economic and political conditions and other factors.

Foreign exchange rate fluctuations may negatively affect the Group's earnings and the value of its assets and shares.

Fluctuations in the exchange rate between the euro and the U.S. dollar will affect the U.S. dollar equivalent of the price of the Group's securities on the stock exchanges in which its shares and ADRs are traded. These fluctuations will also affect the conversion to U.S. dollars of cash dividends paid in euros on its shares.

In the ordinary course of The Group's business, it has a percentage of The Group's assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the euro. Fluctuations in the value of the euro against other currencies may adversely affect The Group's profitability. For example, the appreciation of the euro against some Latin American currencies and the U.S. dollar will depress earnings from The Group's Latin American operations, and the appreciation of the euro against the sterling will depress earnings from The Group's UK operations. Additionally, while most of the governments of the countries in which the Group operates have not imposed prohibitions on the repatriation of dividends, capital investment or other distributions, no assurance can be given that these governments will not institute restrictive exchange control policies in the future.

Changes in the regulatory framework in the jurisdictions where the Group operates could adversely affect its business.

A number of banking regulations designed to maintain the safety and soundness of banks and limit their exposure to risk apply in the different jurisdictions in which the Group's subsidiaries operate. Changes in regulations, which are beyond the Group's control, may have a material effect on the Group's business and operations. As some of the banking laws and regulations have been recently adopted, the manner in which those laws and related regulations are applied to the operations of financial institutions is still evolving. Moreover, no assurance can be given generally that laws or regulations will be adopted, enforced or interpreted in a manner that will not have an adverse affect on the Group's business.

Operational risks are inherent in the Group's business.

The Group's businesses depend on the ability to process a large number of transactions efficiently and accurately. Losses can result from inadequate personnel, inadequate or failed internal control processes and systems, or from external events that interrupt normal business operations.

In 2005, the Group adopted IFRS, which has affected the manner in which the Group reports its financial results, as IFRS differs in significant respects from previous Spanish GAAP.

Until December 31, 2004, the Group prepared its financial statements in accordance with previous Spanish GAAP. In June 2002, the Council of Ministers of the EU adopted new regulations requiring all listed EU companies, including Santander, to apply IFRS (previously known as "International Accounting Standards" or "IAS") in preparing their consolidated financial statements beginning January 1, 2005. Because IFRS emphasizes the measure of the fair value of certain assets and liabilities, applying these standards to the Group's financial statements has had a considerable impact on a number of important areas, including, among others, goodwill and intangible assets, employee benefits and financial instruments, and accounting for share-based payments, long-term assets and business combinations. Because the Group's financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS differ from the Group's financial statements prepared in accordance with previous Spanish GAAP, the methods used by the financial community to assess the Group's financial performance and value its publicly-traded securities could be affected.

If the Group is not able to adequately implement the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and is the subject of sanctions or investigation, the Group's results of operations and its ability to provide timely and reliable financial information may be adversely affected.

Changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and related regulations implemented by the SEC are creating uncertainty for public

companies, increasing legal and financial compliance costs and making some activities more time consuming. The Group is evaluating the Group's internal control over financial reporting to allow management to report on, and the Group's registered independent public accounting firm to attest to, the Group's internal controls over financial reporting. The Group will be performing the system and process evaluation and testing (and any necessary remediation) required to comply with the management certification and auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which the Group is required to comply with in its annual report which it will file in 2007 for The Group's 2006 fiscal year. As a result, the Group expects to incur substantial additional expenses and diversion of management's time. While the Group anticipates being able to fully implement the requirements relating to internal controls and all other aspects of Section 404 by the Group's deadline, it cannot be certain as to the timing of completion of the Group's evaluation, testing and any remediation actions or the impact of the same on its operations since there is presently no precedent available by which to measure compliance adequacy. If the Group is not able to implement the requirements of Section 404 in a timely manner or with adequate compliance, the Group might be subject to sanctions or investigation by regulatory authorities such as the SEC. Any such action could adversely affect the Group's financial results or investors' confidence in the company and could cause the price of the Group securities to fall. In addition, if the Groups Fares to develop and maintain effective controls and procedures, the Group may be unable to provide the financial information in a timely and reliable manner.

The Groups is exposed to risk of loss from legal and regulatory proceedings.

The Group and its subsidiaries are the subject of a number of legal proceedings and regulatory actions. An adverse result in one or more of these proceedings could have a material adverse effect on the Group's operating results for any particular period.

Risks Relating to Latin America

The Group Latin American subsidiaries' growth, asset quality and profitability may be adversely affected by volatile macroeconomic conditions.

The economy of the 9 Latin American countries where the Group operates have experienced significant volatility in recent decades, characterized, in some cases, by slow or regressive growth, declining investment and hyperinflation. This volatility has resulted in fluctuations in the levels of deposits and in the relative economic strength of various segments of the economies to which the Group lends. Latin American banking activities (including Retail Banking, Asset Management and Private Banking and Global Wholesale Banking) accounted for €1,776 million of the Group's net attributable income for the year ended December 31, 2005 (an increase of 21% from €1,470 million for the year ended December 31, 2004). Negative and fluctuating economic conditions, such as a changing interest rate environment, impact the Group's profitability by causing lending margins to decrease and leading to decreased demand for higher margin products and services.

Additionally, the recent economic and political crisis in Argentina which led to the conversion by the Argentine government of all the U.S. dollar-denominated debt which was subject to Argentine laws and jurisdictions into Argentine peso-denominated debt had a negative impact on the Group's Argentine banking subsidiaries. The negative effects on the Group's operations in Argentina included losses generated by this forced conversion of U.S. dollar-denominated debt to Argentine pesos at below market rates, lower lending and deposit-making activities, increased restrictions on the transferability of funds and a larger number of defaults by Argentine customers. Although Argentina's economy continued to recover in 2005, and the results of operations of the Group's Argentine banking subsidiaries have also improved, it is possible that, despite its recent economic growth, Argentina could return to a period of economic and political instability. If this were to occur, the financial condition and results of operations of the Group's Argentine subsidiaries could be materially and adversely affected.

Significant competition in some Latin American countries could intensify price competition and limit the Group's ability to increase its market share in those markets.

Because some of the Latin American countries in which the Group operates (i) only raise limited regulatory barriers to market entry, (ii) generally do not make any differentiation between locally or foreign-owned banks, (iii) have permitted consolidation of their banks, and (iv) do not restrict capital movements, the Group faces significant competition in Latin America from both domestic and foreign commercial and investment banks.

Latin American economies can be directly and negatively affected by adverse developments in other countries.

Financial and securities markets in Latin American countries where the Group operates are, to varying degrees, influenced by economic and market conditions in other countries in Latin America and beyond. Negative developments in the economy or securities markets in one country, particularly in an emerging market, may have a negative impact on other emerging market economies. These developments may adversely affect the business, financial condition and operating results of the Group's subsidiaries in Latin America.

Risks Relating to Withholding

Under Spanish law, income in respect of the Instruments will be subject to withholding tax in Spain, currently at the rate of 15 per cent., in relation to payments to (a) individual Holders (as defined herein) who are resident in Spain; (b) Holders who receive payments through a Tax Haven (as defined in Royal Decree 1080/1991, of 5 July, as amended from time to time); and (c) Holders in respect of whom the Guarantor does not receive such information (which may include a tax residence certificate) concerning such Holder's identity and tax residence as it may require in order to comply with Law 13/1985 and any implementing legislation. Neither the Issuers nor the Guarantor will gross up payments in respect of any such withholding tax in any of the above cases (See "Terms and Conditions of the Instruments — Taxation").

Offers of Instruments into Spain are not permitted, as contemplated in paragraph 5.2 (plan of distribution). Notwithstanding this restriction, if Instruments are held by Spanish corporate entities there is a risk the Spanish tax authorities may determine that the exemption from withholding tax currently applicable to payments of interest to Spanish corporate holders (as described in paragraph 4.14 (Taxation and Disclosure of Information in Connection with Interest Payments — 2. Legal Entities with Tax Residency in Spain), does not apply to such Instruments. If such determination were made, the relevant Issuer would be required to make a withholding at the applicable rate, currently 15 per cent., on payments of interest under the Instruments and no additional amounts will be payable by such Issuer or the Guarantor in such circumstances, as provided in "Terms and Conditions of the Instruments — Taxation" paragraph (vii).

Risks Relating to Procedures for Collection of Holders' Details

It is expected that the Issuers, the Guarantor, the Paying Agents, the common depositary for the Instruments and the Clearing Systems will follow certain procedures to facilitate the collection from Holders of the information referred to in "Risks Relating to Withholding" above. A summary of those procedures is set out in a schedule to the Agency Agreement and should be read together with "Taxation and Disclosure of Holder information in connection with interest payments". Such procedures may be revised from time to time in accordance with applicable Spanish laws and regulations, further clarification from the Spanish tax authorities regarding such laws and regulations and the operational procedures of the Clearing Systems. While the Instruments are represented by one or more global Instruments, Holders must rely on such procedures in order to receive payments under the Instruments free of any withholding, if applicable. Holders must seek their own advice to ensure that they comply with all applicable procedures and to ensure the correct tax treatment of their Instruments. None of the Issuers, the Guarantor, the Arranger, the Dealers, the Paying Agents or the Clearing Systems assume any responsibility therefor.

Risks Relating to the Comisario

Under Spanish law, the Issuers are required to appoint a commissioner (*comisario*) (the "Commissioner") in relation to issues of Instruments. The Commissioner owes certain obligations to the Syndicate of Holders (as described in the Issue and Paying Agency Agency Agreement — The Fifth Schedule, Part I). However, prospective investors should note that the Commissioner will be an individual appointed by the relevant Issuer and that such individual may also be an employee or officer of such Issuer or of the Guarantor.

Risks Relating to the Insolvency Law

Law 22/2003 (*Ley Concursal*) dated 9 July 2003 ("Law 22/2003" or the "Insolvency Law"), which came into force on 1 September 2004 supersedes all pre-existing Spanish provisions which regulated the bankruptcy, insolvency (including suspension of payments) and any process affecting creditors' rights generally, including the ranking of its credits.

Law 22/2003 provides, among other things, that: (i) any claim may become subordinated if it is not included in a company's accounts or otherwise reported to the insolvency administrators within one month from the last official publication of the court order declaring the insolvency, (ii) provisions in a contract granting one party the right to terminate on the other's insolvency may not be enforceable, (iii) interest accrued and unpaid until the commencement of the insolvency proceedings (*concurso*) shall become subordinated, and (iv) interest shall cease to accrue from the date of the declaration of insolvency.

Certain provisions of the Insolvency Law could affect the ranking of the Senior Instruments or claims relating to Senior Instruments on an insolvency of Santander International Debt, S.A. or the Guarantor. In particular, there is uncertainty surrounding the interpretation of article 87.6 of the Insolvency Law, which may result in claims against Santander International Debt, S.A. under the Instruments being re-classified as claims of creditors "specially related" to Santander International Debt, S.A. as defined in article 92 (5) of the Insolvency Law and become subordinated. However, even if such claims were so re-classified the payment obligations of the Guarantor under the Guarantee would continue to be classified as ordinary debts.

From the entry into force of Law 22/2003, and in accordance with the insolvency procedures regulated therein, creditors whose rights arise from a Spanish public document, including holders of Instruments, do not have a preference to enforce their rights and do not rank ahead of other creditors whose rights may arise from a document not so witnessed.

Risks Relating To The Instruments

Suitability

Prospective investors should determine whether an investment in the Instruments is appropriate in their particular circumstances and should consult with their legal, business and tax advisers to determine the consequences of an investment in the Instruments and to arrive at their own evaluations of the investment.

There is no active trading market for the Instruments.

Instruments issued under the Programme will be new securities which may not be widely distributed and for which there is currently no active trading market (unless in the case of any particular Tranche, such Tranche is to be consolidated with and form a single series with a Tranche of Instruments which is already issued). If the Instruments are traded after their initial issuance, they may trade at a discount to their initial offering price, depending upon prevailing interest rates, the market for similar securities, general economic conditions and the financial condition of the relevant Issuer and the Guarantor. Although applications have been made for the Instruments issued under the Programme to be admitted to listing on the regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, there is no assurance that such applications will be accepted, that any particular Tranche of Instruments will be so admitted or that an active trading market will develop. Accordingly, there is no assurance as to the development or liquidity of any trading market for any particular Tranche of Instruments.

The Instruments may be redeemed prior to maturity.

If in the case of any particular Tranche of Instruments the relevant Final Terms specifies that the Instruments are redeemable at the relevant Issuer's option in certain other circumstances the relevant Issuer may choose to redeem the Instruments at times when prevailing interest rates may be relatively low. In such circumstances an investor may not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds in a comparable security at an effective interest rate as high as that of the relevant Instruments.

Because the Global Instruments are held by or on behalf of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, investors will have to rely on their procedures for transfer, payment and communication with the relevant Issuer and/or the Guarantor.

Instruments issued under the Programme may be represented by one or more Global Instruments. Such Global Instruments will be deposited with a common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg. Except in the circumstances described in the relevant Global Note, investors will not be entitled to receive definitive Instruments. Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg will maintain records of the beneficial interests in the Global Instruments. While the Instruments are represented by one or more Global Instruments, investors will be able to trade their beneficial interests only through Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg.

While the Instruments are represented by one or more Global Instruments the relevant Issuer and the Guarantor will discharge their payment obligations under the Instruments by making payments to the common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg for distribution to their account holders. A holder of a beneficial interest in a Global Note must rely on the procedures of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg to receive payments under the relevant Instruments. The relevant Issuer and the Guarantor have no responsibility or liability for the records relating to, or payments made in respect of, beneficial interests in the Global Instruments.

Holders of beneficial interests in the Global Instruments will not have a direct right to vote in respect of the relevant Instruments. Instead, such holders will be permitted to act only to the extent that they are enabled by Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg to appoint appropriate proxies. Similarly, holders of beneficial interests in the Global Instruments will not have a direct right under the Global Instruments to take enforcement action against the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor in the event of a default under the relevant Instruments but will have to rely upon their rights under the Deed of Covenant.

Risks related to the structure of a particular issue of Instruments

A wide range of Instruments may be issued under the Programme. A number of these Instruments may have features which contain particular risks for potential investors. Set out below is a description of the most common such features:

Instruments subject to optional redemption by the Issuers

An optional redemption feature of Instruments is likely to limit their market value. During any period when the Issuers may elect to redeem Instruments, the market value of those Instruments generally will not rise substantially above the price at which they can be redeemed. This also may be true prior to any redemption period. The Issuers may be expected to redeem Instruments when their cost of borrowing is lower than the interest rate on the Instruments. At those times, an investor generally would not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds at an effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on the Instruments being redeemed and may only be able to do so at a significantly lower rate. Potential investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of other investments available at that time.

Structured Instruments (including Index Linked Instruments and Dual Currency Instruments)

The Issuers may issue Instruments with principal or interest determined by reference to an index or formula, to changes in the prices of securities or commodities, to movements in currency exchange rates or other factors

(each, a **Relevant Factor**). In addition, the Issuers may issue Instruments with principal or interest payable in one or more currencies which may be different from the currency in which the Instruments are denominated. Potential investors should be aware that:

- (i) the market price of such Instruments may be volatile;
- (ii) they may receive no interest;
- (iii) payment of principal or interest may occur at a different time or in a different currency than expected;
- (iv) they may lose all or a substantial portion of their principal;
- (v) a Relevant Factor may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes in interest rates, currencies or other indices;
- (vi) if a Relevant Factor is applied to Instruments in conjunction with a multiplier greater than one or contains some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the Relevant Factor on principal or interest payable likely will be magnified; and
- (vii) the timing of changes in a Relevant Factor may affect the actual yield to investors, even if the average level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier the change in the Relevant Factor, the greater the effect on yield.

Partly-paid Instruments

The Issuers may issue Instruments where the issue price is payable in more than one instalment. Failure to pay any subsequent instalment could result in an investor losing all of their investment.

Variable rate Instruments with a multiplier or other leverage factor

Instruments with variable interest rates can be volatile investments. If they are structured to include multipliers or other leverage factors, or caps or floors, or any combination of those features or other similar related features, their market values may be even more volatile than those for securities that do not include those features.

Inverse Floating Rate Instruments

Inverse Floating Rate Instruments have an interest rate equal to a fixed rate minus a rate based upon a reference rate such as LIBOR. The market values of those Instruments typically are more volatile than market values of other conventional floating rate debt securities based on the same reference rate (and with otherwise comparable terms). Inverse Floating Rate Instruments are more volatile because an increase in the reference rate not only decreases the interest rate of the Instruments, but may also reflect an increase in prevailing interest rates, which further adversely affects the market value of these Instruments.

Fixed/Floating Rate Instruments

Fixed/Floating Rate Instruments may bear interest at a rate that may convert from a fixed rate to a floating rate, or from a floating rate to a fixed rate. Where the relevant Issuer has the right to effect such a conversion, this will affect the secondary market and the market value of the Instruments since the Issuer may be expected to convert the rate when it is likely to produce a lower overall cost of borrowing. If the relevant Issuer converts from a fixed rate to a floating rate in such circumstances, the spread on the Fixed/Floating Rate Instruments may be less favourable than then prevailing spreads on comparable Floating Rate Instruments tied to the same reference rate. In addition, the new floating rate at any time may be lower than the rates on other Instruments. If the relevant Issuer converts from a floating rate to a fixed rate in such circumstances, the fixed rate may be lower than then prevailing rates on its Instruments.

Instruments issued at a substantial discount or premium

The market values of securities issued at a substantial discount or premium from their principal amount tend to fluctuate more in relation to general changes in interest rates than do prices for conventional interest-bearing securities. Generally, the longer the remaining term of the securities, the greater the price volatility as compared to conventional interest-bearing securities with comparable maturities.

The Issuers' obligations under Subordinated Instruments are subordinated

Santander Issuances' obligations under Subordinated Instruments will be unsecured and subordinated and will rank junior in priority of payment to all unsubordinated obligations of Santander Issuances. Although Subordinated Instruments may pay a higher rate of interest than comparable Instruments which are not subordinated, there is a real risk that an investor in Subordinated Instruments will lose all or some of his investment should Santander Issuances and the Guarantor become insolvent. The payment of principal and interest in respect of the Subordinated Instruments and any relative Coupons and Receipts and all amounts due under the Deed of Covenant in respect of the Subordinated Instruments and any relative Coupons and Receipts will be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the Guarantor pursuant to the Subordinated Guarantee. The Guarantor's obligations under the Subordinated Guarantee will be unsecured and subordinated and will rank junior in priority of payment to all unsubordinated obligations of the Guarantor.

Risks relating to Credit Linked Instruments

Suitability

Investment in the Credit Linked Instruments is only suitable for investors who:

- are particularly knowledgeable in investment matters and have the requisite knowledge and experience in financial and business matters and access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical resources to evaluate the information contained in this Base Prospectus and the relevant Final Terms and to evaluate the merits and risks of an investment in the Credit Linked Instruments in the context of their financial position and circumstances;
- are capable of bearing the economic risk of an investment in the Credit Linked Instruments for an indefinite period of time;
- are acquiring the Credit Linked Instruments for their own account for investment, not with a view to resale, distribution or other disposition of the Credit Linked Instruments (subject to any applicable law requiring that the disposition of the investor's property be within its control); and
- recognise that it may not be possible to make any transfer of the Credit Linked Instruments for a substantial period of time, if at all, and are aware of the transfer restrictions contained herein.

Before making an investment decision, prospective purchasers should inform themselves about and make a detailed evaluation of the financial condition and affairs and of the creditworthiness of the Issuer, the Guarantor, the terms of any Reference Obligation, the creditworthiness of any Reference Entity based upon publicly available information and of the tax, accounting and legal consequences of an investment in the Credit Linked Instruments for such investor.

Neither the Issuer nor any party represents that it has had any access to any obligor of any Reference Obligation for the purposes of conducting any such investigation and no such person makes any representations as to the financial condition or creditworthiness of any such Reference Entity. In addition, prospective purchasers should consider the nature and financial position of the Issuer and the Guarantor as well as the terms and conditions of the Credit Linked Instruments and the other related Programme documents described herein.

Exposure of holders to credit risk on other parties and loss of principal

The payment of interest and principal under the Credit Linked Instruments is dependent upon, inter alia, the value, performance and solvency of certain Reference Entities. The Credit Linked Instruments expose investors to credit risks in relation to such Reference Entities, as well as that of the Issuer and the Guarantor. Early redemption of the Credit Linked Instruments may be triggered through certain events which are linked to the performance and creditworthiness of the Reference Obligations.

If so specified in the Final Terms, the Credit Linked Instruments may be declared immediately due and payable prior to their scheduled date for redemption following the occurrence of any event of default or other mandatory redemption event.

If so specified in the Final Terms, on any mandatory redemption of the Credit Linked Instruments, the net proceeds available to the Issuer may be insufficient to pay all amounts due on redemption to the Holders and any claims of the Holders remaining after application of proceeds in accordance with the Conditions shall be extinguished. Neither the Issuer nor the Guarantor or any obligor under any of the Reference Obligation shall have any obligation to any Holder for payment of any amount owing by the Issuer in respect of the Credit Linked Instruments.

Relevant Information

The Issuer, the Guarantor or the relevant Dealer or any of their affiliates may be in possession of information in relation to any Reference Entity that is or may be material in the context of the Credit Linked Instruments and that may or may not be publicly available and such parties may be prohibited from disclosing or using such information for the benefit of the Issuer. Purchase of the Credit Linked Instruments by any investor does not create any obligation on the part of the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Dealer, the Arrangers or any of their affiliates to disclose to such investor any such relationship or information (whether or not confidential) and none of shall be liable to such investor by reason of such non-disclosure.

Limited liquidity

There may be no active trading market for any of the Credit Linked Instruments, and the Credit Linked Instruments may be subject to restrictions on transfer.

None of the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Dealer, the Guarantor, the Arrangers or any of their affiliates will be obligated to make a market in the Credit Linked Instruments or otherwise to buy and sell the Credit Linked Instruments following the issue thereof. The Credit Linked Instruments will be owned by a relatively small number of investors and it is highly unlikely that an active secondary market for the Credit Linked Instruments will develop. Purchasers of the Credit Linked Instruments may find it difficult or uneconomic to liquidate their investment at any particular time, and it may be difficult for the Holders to determine the value of the Credit Linked Instruments at any particular time. Consequently, a purchaser must be prepared to hold the Credit Linked Instruments until maturity.

Early Redemption

If the Credit Linked Instruments are redeemed early according to their terms at times when prevailing interest rates may be relatively low, an investor generally will not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds in a comparable security at an effective interest rate as high as that of the Credit Linked Instruments.

No investigations

No investigations, searches or other enquiries have been made by or on behalf of the Issuer, the Guarantor or the Dealer in respect of any Reference Entity and any prospective Holders should make their own investigations, searches and enquiries. No representations or warranties have been given by such parties in respect of any Reference Entity or Reference Obligation.

None of the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Dealer, the Arrangers or any of their affiliates has made or is making any representations whatsoever as to any obligor of the Reference Obligations or the Reference Entities or any information contained in any document filed by any obligor of the Reference Obligations or the Reference Entities with any exchange or with any regulatory authority or governmental entity.

Purchasers of the Credit Linked Instruments cannot rely, and will not at any time in the future be able to rely, on the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Dealer, the Arrangers or any of their affiliates to provide them with any information relating to, or to keep under review on their behalf, the business, financial condition, prospects, creditworthiness, status or affairs of any obligor of the Reference Obligations or any Reference Entity or to conduct any investigation or due diligence with respect to any obligor of the Reference Obligations or any Reference Entity.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAMME

The Programme is a programme for the issuance of debt instruments up to an aggregate principal amount of Euro 32,000,000 to be issued on a continuing basis by one or more Dealers appointed under the Programme from time to time by the Issuers, which appointment may be for a specific issue or on an ongoing basis. Under the Programme, the Issuers may issue Instruments bearing a fixed or a floating rate of interest, or structured Instruments, such as Credit Linked Instruments or Index Linked Instruments or a combination of any of the foregoing or any other kind of Instrument. Santander International Debt, S.AU.. will issue unsubordinated Instruments and Santander Issuances S.A. will issue subordinated Instruments under the Programme, in each case guaranteed by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. Instruments may be issued with any maturity subject, in relation to specific currencies, to compliance with all applicable legal and/or regulatory and/or central bank requirements. The Bank of New York will act as Issue and Paying Agent and Registrar and The Bank of New York and The Bank of New York (Luxembourg) S.A. will act as Paying Agents and Transfer Agents in relation to the Instruments.

THE ISSUERS

1 PERSONS RESPONSIBLE

1.1 All persons responsible for the information given in the Base Prospectus relating to the Issuers and, as the case may be, for certain parts of it, with, in the latter case, an indication of such parts. In the case of natural persons including members of the issuer's administrative, management or supervisory bodies indicate the name and function of the person; in case of legal persons indicate the name and registered office.

Each of Santanter International Debt, S.A. Unipersonal and Santander Issuances, S.A. Unipersonal (the "Issuers") accept responsibility for the information contained in this Base Prospectus relating to the Issuers.

1.2 A declaration by those responsible for the base prospectus that, having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case the information contained in the base prospectus relating to the Issuers is, to the best of their knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import. As the case may be, declaration by those responsible for certain parts of the base prospectus that, having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case, the information contained in the part of the base prospectus for which they are responsible is, to the best of their knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import.

Each of Santanter International Debt, S.A. Unipersonal and Santander Issuances, S.A. Unipersonal confirms that, having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case, the information contained in this Base Prospectus relating to the Issuers is, to the best of their knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import.

2 STATUTORY AUDITORS

2.1 Names and addresses of the issuer's auditors for the period covered by the historical financial information (together with their membership in a professional body).

The auditors of each of the Issuers are Deloitte, S.L. (registered in the official registry of auditors of accounts (registro oficial de auditores de cuentas)). Deloitte S.L. are members of the Instituto de Censores Jurados de Cuentas de España. The address of Deloitte, S.L. is Plaza Pablo Ruiz Picasso, No.1, 28020 Madrid, Spain.

2.2 If auditors have resigned, been removed or not been re-appointed during the period covered by the historical financial information, details if material.

Auditors have not resigned, been removed or re-appointed during the period covered by the historical financial information contained herein.

3 SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

3.1 Selected historical financial information regarding the issuer, presented, for each financial year for the period covered by the historical financial information, and any subsequent interim financial period, in the same currency as the financial information. The selected historical financial information must provide key figures that summarise the financial condition of the issuer.

| | As at and for the year ended | |
|------------------------------|------------------------------|-------------------|
| Santander International Debt | 31 December 2004 | 31 December 2005 |
| Total Assets | 3,895,467,167.96 | 14,111,033,548.62 |
| Deposits | 3,890,559,539.37 | 14,067,569,820.42 |
| Share Capital | 60,200.00 | 180,600.00 |
| Profit/Loss | -26,239.47 | 43,552.38 |

| | As at and for the year ended | |
|---------------------|------------------------------|------------------|
| Santander Issuances | 31 December 2004 | 31 December 2005 |
| Total Assets | 1,005,961,622.54 | 1,005,919,552.84 |
| Deposits | 996,035,000.00 | 996,035,000.00 |
| Share Capital | 60,200.00 | 60,200.00 |
| Profit/Loss | 46,000.44 | 35,042.23 |

3.2 If selected financial information for interim periods is provided, comparative data from the same period in the prior financial year must also be provided, except that the requirement for comparative balance sheet data is satisfied by presenting the year end balance sheet information.

| | As at and for the six months ended (in Euros) | |
|------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------|-------------------|
| Santander International Debt | 30 June 2006 | 30 June 2005 |
| Total Assets | 21,906,761,478.39 | 10,998,645,734.49 |
| Deposits | 21,772,961,169.53 | 10,967,220,043.77 |
| Share Capital | 180,600.00 | 60,200.00 |
| Profit/Loss | 19,880.73 | -20,458.56 |

| | As at and for the six months ended (in Euros) | |
|---------------------|--------------------------------------------------|------------------|
| Santander Issuances | 30 June 2006 | 30 June 2005 |
| Total Assets | 3,835,938,164.28 | 1,017,210,413.63 |
| Deposits | 3,801,296,086.26 | 1,001,781,098.39 |
| Share Capital | 60,200.00 | 60,200.00 |
| Profit/Loss | -22,809.63 | 46,000.44 |

4 RISK FACTORS

Prominent disclosure of risk factors that may affect the issuer's ability to fulfil its obligations under the securities to investors in a section headed "Risk Factors" contained in the Prospectus.

See "Risk Factors".

5 INFORMATION ABOUT THE ISSUER

- 5.1 History and development of the Issuer:
 - 5.1.1 the legal and commercial name of the issuer;

The names of the Issuers are Santander International Debt, S.A. Unipersonal and Santander Issuances, S.A. Unipersonal.

5.1.2 the place of registration of the issuer and its registration number;

Santander International Debt, S.A. Unipersonal was registered with the Mercantile Registry of Madrid on 5 May 2004 at Volume 19529, Folio 135, Section 8, page number M-342989.

Santander Issuances, S.A. Unipersonal was registered with the Mercantile Registry of Madrid on 2 March 2004 at Volume 19747, Folio 181, page number M-347561.

5.1.3 the date of incorporation and the length of life of the issuer, except where indefinite;

Santanter International Debt, S.A. Unipersonal was incorporated pursuant to a public deed executed on 21 April 2004 for an unlimited duration.

Santander Issuances, S.A. Unipersonal was incorporated pursuant to a public deed executed on 27 February 2004 for an unlimited duration.

5.1.4 the domicile and legal form of the issuer, the legislation under which the issuer operates, its country of incorporation, and the address and telephone number of its registered office (or principal place of business if different from its registered office);

The registered office address and telephone number of each of the Issuers is Ciudad Grupo Santander, Avenida de Cantabria s/n, Ciudad Grupo Santander, 28660 Boadilla del Monte, Madrid, Spain. Telephone: +34 91 257 20 59. Each of the Issuers was incorporated in Spain as a private limited liability company (*sociedad anónima*) under the *Ley de Sociedades Anónimas* (Spanish companies law).

5.1.5 any recent events particular to the issuer which are to a material extent relevant to the evaluation of the issuer's solvency.

There are no such recent events.

5.2 Investments

5.2.1 A description of the principal investments made since the date of the last published financial statements.

No investments made since the date of the last published financial statements.

5.2.2 Information concerning the issuer's principal future investments, on which its management bodies have already made firm commitments.

No commitments regarding future investments have been made.

5.2.3 Information regarding the anticipated sources of funds needed to fulfil commitments referred to in item 5.2.2.

Not applicable.

6 BUSINESS OVERVIEW

- 6.1 Principal activities:
 - 6.1.1 A description of the issuer's principal activities stating the main categories of products sold and/or services performed; and

Each of the Issuers is a special purpose financing vehicle for Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. Each Issuer's sole business is raising debt to be on-lent to the Guarantor and other members of the Group on an arm's length basis. Each Issuer is accordingly dependent the Guarantor and other members of the Group servicing such loans.

6.1.2 an indication of any significant new products and/or activities.

There are no such new products and/or activities.

- 6.2 Principal markets: A brief description of the principal markets in which the issuer competes.

 Not applicable.
- 6.3 The basis for any statements made by the issuer regarding its competitive position.

There are no such statements included.

7 ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

- 7.1 *If the issuer is part of a group, a brief description of the group and of the issuer's position within it.*Each of the Issuers is a wholly owned subsidiary of Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A.
- 7.2 If the issuer is dependent upon other entities within the group, this must be clearly stated together with an explanation of this dependence.

See paragraph 7.1 above.

8 TREND INFORMATION

8.1 Include a statement that there has been no material adverse change in the prospects of the issuer since the date of its last published audited financial statements.

In the event that the issuer is unable to make such a statement, provide details of this material adverse change.

There has been no material adverse change in the prospects of each of the Issuers since 31 December 2005.

8.2 Information on any known trends, uncertainties, demands, commitments or events that are reasonably likely to have a material effect on the issuer's prospects for at least the current financial year.

Not applicable.

9 PROFIT FORECASTS OR ESTIMATES

9 If an issuer chooses to include a profit forecast or a profit estimate, the base prospectus must contain the information items 9.1 and 9.2:

Not applicable.

9.1 A statement setting out the principal assumptions upon which the issuer has based its forecast, or estimate.

There must be a clear distinction between assumptions about factors which the members of the administrative, management or supervisory bodies can influence and assumptions about factors which are exclusively outside the influence of the members of the administrative, management or supervisory bodies; the assumptions must be readily understandable by investors, be specific and precise and not relate to the general accuracy of the estimates underlying the forecast.

Not applicable.

9.2 A report prepared by independent accountants or auditors must be included stating that in the opinion of the independent accountants or auditors the forecast or estimate has been properly compiled on the basis stated and that the basis of accounting used for the profit forecast or estimate is consistent with the accounting policies of the issuer.

Not applicable.

9.3 The profit forecast or estimate must be prepared on a basis comparable with the historical financial information.

Not applicable.

10 ADMINISTRATIVE, MANAGEMENT, AND SUPERVISORY BODIES

- 10.1 Names, business addresses and functions in the issuer of the following persons, and an indication of the principal activities performed by them outside the issuer where these are significant with respect to that issuer:
 - (a) members of the administrative, management or supervisory bodies;
 - (b) partners with unlimited liability, in the case of a limited partnership with a share capital.

The name, business address, position and other position in the Group of each of the members of the Board of Directors of each of the issuers is as follows:

The name, business address, position and other position in the Group for each of the Issuers is as follows:

| Name | Business Address | Position | Other position in the Group |
|---------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------|----------------------------------------|
| José Antonio Soler | Ciudad Grupo Santander Edificio Encinar Avenida de Cantabria, s/n 28660 Boadilla del Monte Madrid, Spain | Chairman | Senior Vice-president of the Guarantor |
| Javier Antón San Pablo | Ciudad Grupo Santander Edificio Encinar Avenida de Cantabria, s/n 28660 Boadilla del Monte Madrid, Spain | Director | Vice-president of the Guarantor |
| Antonio Torío Martín | Ciudad Grupo Santander Edificio Encinar Avenida de Cantabria, s/n 28660 Boadilla del Monte Madrid, Spain | Director | Vice-president of the Guarantor |
| Pablo Roig Garcia Bernalt | Ciudad Grupo Santander Edificio Encinar Avenida de Cantabria, s/n 28660 Boadilla del Monte Madrid, Spain | Director | Vice-president of the Guarantor |

10.2 Administrative, Management, and Supervisory bodies conflicts of interests: Potential conflicts of interests between any duties to the issuing entity of the persons referred to in item 10.1 and their private interests and or other duties must be clearly stated. In the event that there are no such conflicts, make a statement to that effect.

There are no such conflicts of interest.

11 BOARD PRACTICES

11.1 Details relating to the issuer's audit committee, including the names of committee members and a summary of the terms of reference under which the committee operates.

The Issuers do not have an audit committee.

11.2 A statement as to whether or not the issuer complies with its country's of incorporation corporate governance regime(s). In the event that the issuer does not comply with such a regime a statement to that effect must be included together with an explanation regarding why the issuer does not comply with such regime.

The Issuers is a special purpose company and is not subject to any corporate governance regime. However, the Group (of which the Issuers form part) complies with the applicable Spanish corporate governance regime.

12 MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS

12.1 To the extent known to the issuer, state whether the issuer is directly or indirectly owned or controlled and by whom and describe the nature of such control, and describe the measures in place to ensure that such control is not abused.

Each of the Issuers is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Guarantor.

12.2 A description of any arrangements, known to the issuer, the operation of which may at a subsequent date result in a change in control of the issuer.

There are no such arrangements.

13 FINANCIAL INFORMATION CONCERNING THE ISSUER'S ASSETS AND LIABILITIES, FINANCIAL POSITION AND PROFITS AND LOSSES

13.1 Historical Financial Information: Audited historical financial information covering the latest 2 financial years (or such shorter period that the issuer has been in operation), and the audit report in respect of each year. Such financial information must be prepared according to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002, or if not applicable to a Member States national accounting standards for issuers from the Community.

For third country issuers, such financial information must be prepared according to the international accounting standards adopted pursuant to the procedure of Article 3 of Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 or to a third country's national accounting standards equivalent to these standards. If such financial information is not equivalent to these standards, it must be presented in the form of restated financial statements.

The most recent year's historical financial information must be presented and prepared in a form consistent with that which will be adopted in the issuer's next published annual financial statements having regard to accounting standards and policies and legislation applicable to such annual financial statements.

If the issuer has been operating in its current sphere of economic activity for less than one year, the audited historical financial information covering that period must be prepared in accordance with the standards applicable to annual financial statements under the Regulation(EC) No 1606/2002, or if not applicable to a Member States national accounting standards where the issuer is an issuer from the Community. For third country issuers, the historical financial information must be prepared according to the international accounting standards adopted pursuant to the procedure of Article 3 of Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 or to a third country's national accounting standards equivalent to these standards. This historical financial information must be audited.

If the audited financial information is prepared according to national accounting standards, the financial information required under this heading must include at least:

- (a) balance sheet;
- (b) income statement;
- (c) cash flow statement; and
- (d) accounting policies and explanatory notes.

The historical annual financial information must have been independently audited or reported on as to whether or not, for the purposes of the base prospectus, it gives a true and fair view, in accordance with auditing standards applicable in a Member State or an equivalent standard.

Pursuant to Articles 181 and 190 of the *Ley de Sociedades Anónimas* (Spanish Corporations Law) the Issuers may prepare abridged financial statements for the respectives dates of incorporation of each Issuer to 31 December 2004 and, with respect of Santander International Debt, S.A.U. for the year ended 31 December 2005. The following financial information relating to the Issuers is set out below:

Santander Issuances, S.A.

- (a) Financial Statements and Management Report for the year ended 31 December 2005, together with Auditor's Report;
- (b) Abridged Financial Statements for the period from 27 February 2004 (the date of incorporation) to 31 December 2004, together with Auditor's Report;
- (c) Auditor's Report on additional disclosures and cash-flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2005; and
- (d) Auditor's Report on additional disclosures and cash-flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2004.

Santander Issuances, S.A. accepts responsibility for the correct translation from Spanish into English of the information set out below relating to Santander Issuances, S.A.

Santander International Debt, S.A.

- (a) Abridged Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2005, together with Auditor's Report;
- (b) Abridged Financial Statements for the period from 21 April 2004 (the date of incorporation) to 31 December 2004, together with Auditor's Report;
- (c) Auditor's Report on additional disclosures and cash-flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2005; and
- (d) Auditor's Report on additional disclosures and cash-flow statement from 21 April (the date of incorporation) to 31 December 2004.

Santander International Debt, S.A. accepts responsibility for the correct translation from Spanish into English of the information set out below Santander International Debt, S.A.

SANTANDER ISSUANCES, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company)

Financial Statements and Management Report for the Year Ended December 31, 2005, together with Auditors' Report

Translation of a report originally issued in Spanish based on our work performed in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in Spain and of financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 17) In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails

Deloitte.

Plaza Pablo Ruiz Picasso, 1 Torre Picasso 28020 Madrid España

Tel: +34 915 14 50 00 Fax: +34 915 14 51 80 +34 915 56 74 30 www.deloitte.es

Translation of a report originally issued in Spanish based on our work performed in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in Spain and of financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 17) In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.

AUDITORS' REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Sole Shareholder of

Santander Issuances, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company):

We have audited the financial statements of SANTANDER ISSUANCES, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) — "the Company" — comprising the balance sheet as of December 31, 2005, and the related statement of income and notes to financial statements for the year then ended. The preparation and content of these financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's directors. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole based on our audit work performed in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, which require examination, by means of selective tests, of the evidence supporting the financial statements and evaluation of their presentation, of the accounting principles applied and of the estimates made.

As required by Spanish corporate and commercial law, for comparison purposes the Company's directors present, in addition to the 2005 figures for each item in the balance sheet and statement of income, the figures for the period from February 27, 2004 (the date of incorporation) to December 31, 2004. Our opinion refers only to the 2005 financial statements. On April 1, 2005, we issued our auditors' report on the abridged financial statements for the period from February 27 to December 31, 2004, in which we expressed an unqualified opinion.

For a proper interpretation of the accompanying financial statements, it should be taken into account that the Company carries on its business activities as part of the Santander Group ("the Group"), from which it obtains the financing necessary for its operations. Consequently, the Company's management, transactions and accounts must be considered in the context of the Group.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements for 2005 present, in all material respects, a true and fair view of the net worth and financial position of Santander Issuances, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) as of December 31, 2005, and of the results of its operations and of the funds obtained and applied by it in the year then ended, and contain the required information, sufficient for their proper interpretation and comprehension, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and standards applied on a basis consistent with that of the period from February 27 to December 31, 2004.

The accompanying management report for 2005 contains the explanations which the directors consider appropriate about the Company's situation, the evolution of its business and other matters, but is not an integral part of the financial statements. We have checked that the accounting information in the management report is consistent with that contained in the financial statements for 2005. Our work as auditors was confined to checking the management report with the aforementioned scope, and did not include a review of any information other than that drawn from the Company's accounting records.

DELOITTE

Registered in ROAC under no. S0692

Germán de la Fuente

June 21, 2006



SANTANDER ISSUANCES, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company)

Financial Statements and Management Report for the Year Ended December 31, 2005

SANTANDER ISSUANCES, S.A. (SOLE-SHAREHOLDER COMPANY) BALANCE SHEETS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004 (NOTES 1, 2, 3 AND 2004)

(Euros)

| ASSETS | December 31, 2005 | December 31, 2004 (*) | SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY AND LIABILITIES |
|--------------------------------|-------------------|--------------------------|------------------------------------------------|
| NONCURRENT ASSETS: | | | SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY (Note 9): |
| Start-up expenses (Note 5) | 1,334 | 1,745 | Capital stock |
| Long-term investments (Note 6) | 996,035,000 | 996,035,000 | Reserves |
| | | | Income for the year |
| Total noncurrent assets | 996,036,334 | 996,036,745 | Total shareholder's equity |
| | | | LONG-TERM DEBT: |
| | | | Debt securities and other similar issues |
| | | | (Note 10) |
| | | | Payable to Group companies (Notes 11 and |
| | | | Total long-term debt |
| DEFERRED CHARGES (Note 7) | 2,834,781 | 3,207,373 | PROVISIONS FOR CONTINGENCIES |
| Ì | | , , | AND EXPENSES: |
| | | | Provision for taxes (Note 11) |
| | | | Total provisions for contingencies an expenses |
| | | | CURRENT LIABILITIES: |
| CURRENT ASSETS: | | | Taxes payable |
| Cash (Note 8) | 1,256,843 | 6,522,875 | Accrual accounts (Note 10) |
| Accrual accounts (Note 6) | 5,791,595 | 194,630 | Other nontrade payables |
| Total current assets | 7,048,438 | 6,717,505 | Total current liabilities |

1,005,919,553

The accompanying Notes 1 to 17 are an integral part of the balance sheet as of December

1,005,961,623

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER'S EQUIT

AND LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS (*) Presented solely for comparison purposes.

46

Translation of financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with g accounting principles in Spain (see Note 17). In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language

SANTANDER ISSUANCES, S.A. (SOLE-SHAREHOLDER COMPANY)

STATEMENTS OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND FOR THE PERIOD FROM FEBRUARY 27, 2004 (THE DATE OF INCORPORA TO DECEMBER 31, 2004 (NOTES 1,2,3, AND 4)

(Euros)

| | | Period from February 27 to December 31, | |
|------------------------------------------------|------------|-----------------------------------------------|-----------------------------|
| DEBIT | 2005 | 2004 (*) | CREDIT |
| EXPENSES: | | | REVENUES: |
| Outside services (Note 12) | 58,147 | 19,237 | |
| Start-up expense amortization expense (Note 5) | 411 | 308 | |
| | 58,558 | 19,645 | |
| Operating income | | | Operating loss |
| Financial and similar expenses — | | | Financial revenues (Note 6) |
| On other debts (Note 10) | 34,537,795 | 8,790,710 | |
| Other financial expenses (Note 7) | 460,379 | 110,881 | |
| Financial income | 112,469 | 90,315 | Financial loss |
| Income from ordinary activities | 53,911 | 70,770 | Loss on ordinary activities |
| Extraordinary income | | | Extraordinary loss |
| Income before taxes | 53,911 | 70,770 | Loss before taxes |
| Corporate income tax (Note 11) | -18,869 | -24,770 | |
| Income for the year | 35,042 | 46,000 | Loss for the year |

^(*) Presented solely for comparison purposes.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 17 are an integral part of the statement of income for 2

Translation of financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 17). In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails

Santander Issuances, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company)

Notes to Financial Statements For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

1. Company description

Santander Issuances, S.A (Sole-Shareholder Company) — "the Company" —, a corporation forming part of the Santander Group — "the Group" (Note 9) —, was incorporated for an indefinite period of time on February 27, 2004.

The Company's registered office is located at Ciudad Grupo Santander, Avenida de Cantabria, s/n, Boadilla del Monte.

Its sole corporate purpose is to issue subordinated debt secured by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S. A. (Note 9).

In view of the business activity carried on by the Company, it does not have any environmental liability, expenses, assets, provisions or contingencies that might be material with respect to its net worth, financial position or results. Therefore, no specific disclosures relating to environmental issues are included in these notes to financial statements.

2. Basis of presentation of the financial statements

a) True and fair view

The 2005 financial statements, which were prepared by the Company's directors in accordance with the revised Corporations Law, are presented in the formats established by Royal Decree 1643/1990 approving the Spanish National Chart of Accounts and, accordingly, give a true and fair view of the Company's net worth, financial position and results of operations for the period.

The financial statements have not yet been approved by the Sole Shareholder. However, the Company's Board of Directors considers that they will be approved without any changes.

b) Accounting policies and valuation standards

The financial statements were prepared by applying the accounting principles and valuation standards described in Note 3. All obligatory accounting principles and valuation standards with a material effect on the financial statements were applied in their preparation.

3. Accounting principles and valuation standards applied

The main accounting principles and valuation standards applied in preparing the financial statements were as follows:

a) Incorporation and preopening expenses

Start-up expenses are recorded at cost, net of the related accumulated amortization. They are amortized on a straight-line basis over five years.

b) Debt securities and other similar issues

The subordinated debt issues launched by the Company, which are secured by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (Notes 9 and 10), are recorded at their redemption value.

c) Deferred charges

Debt arrangement expenses are recorded at cost and are charged to income systematically over a maximum period ending on the date on which the debt can be repaid in full.

Deferred interest expenses are recorded for the difference between the redemption value and the amount received on issuing the related debt securities and are charged to income systematically over a maximum period ending on the date on which the debt can be repaid in full.

d) Recognition of revenues and expenses

Revenues and expenses are generally recognized on an accrual basis, i.e. when the actual flow of the related goods and services occurs, regardless of when the resulting monetary or financial flow arises.

e) Corporate income tax

As permitted by current legislation, the Company files consolidated corporate income tax returns as part of Consolidated Group 17/89, the parent company of which is Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (Notes 9 and 11).

The expense for corporate income tax of the period is calculated on the basis of book income before taxes, increased or decreased, as appropriate, by the permanent differences from taxable income, which are taken to be the differences between taxable income and income per books before taxes which do not reverse in subsequent periods. This expense is recorded under the "Corporate Income Tax" caption in the statement of income.

f) Classification of receivables and payables

The various items in the accompanying balance sheet are classified as current assets and current liabilities when they mature at less than twelve months from year-end. Receivables and payables maturing at over twelve months are recorded as long-term items.

4. Distribution of income

The proposed distribution of 2005 income that the Board of Directors will submit for approval by the Sole Shareholder is as follows:

| | Euros |
|-------------------------|--------|
| Net income for the year | 35,042 |
| Distribution to: | |
| Legal reserve | 3,504 |
| Voluntary reserves | 31,538 |
| Total | 35,042 |

5. Start-up expenses

The detail of the balance of this caption in the accompanying balance sheet and of the variations therein is as follows:

| | Euros |
|------------------------------|-------|
| Balance at January 1, 2005 | 1,745 |
| Amortization expense | (411) |
| Balance at December 31, 2005 | 1,334 |

6. Long-term investments

The detail of the balance of this caption in the accompanying balance sheet as of December 31, 2005, is as follows:

| | Currency | Interest Rate | Maturity Date | Amount (Euros) |
|------------------------------------------|----------|------------------|------------------|----------------|
| Time deposits at: | | | | |
| Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A.(*) | Euros | Floating | 09/30/19 | 497,250,000 |
| Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A.(*) | Euros | Floating | 09/30/14 | 498,785,000 |
| | | | | 996,035,000 |

(*) Note 9

As of December 31, 2005, the Company had arranged time deposits at Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. in order to finance the payment of interest on the subordinated debt issue.

The interest earned on these time deposits in 2005, which amounted to €35,110,643, is recorded under the "Financial Revenues" caption in the accompanying statement of income. As of December 31, 2005, €5,791,595 of this interest had not yet been collected, and this amount is recorded under the "Accrual Accounts" caption in the accompanying balance sheet. The average annual interest rate earned in 2005 was 3.53%.

7. Deferred charges

The detail of the balance of this caption in the accompanying balance sheet is as follows:

| | Euros |
|---------------------------------------------------------------|-----------|
| Debt arrangement expenses | 330,803 |
| Deferred interest expenses on marketable securities (Note 10) | 2,503,978 |
| Total | 2,834,781 |

The financial expenses incurred in this connection in 2005 totaled €460,379, and this amount is recorded under the "Financial and Similar Expenses — Other Financial Expenses" caption in the accompanying statement of income.

8. Cash

The amount recorded under this caption in the accompanying balance sheet as of December 31, 2005, relates in full to the balance of a demand deposit held by the Company at Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (Note 9). This demand deposit, which is denominated in euros, did not earn any interest in 2005.

9. Shareholder's equity

The variations in equity accounts in the accompanying balance sheet in 2005 were as follows:

| | Euros | | | | |
|-------------------------------|---------|---------|-----------|----------|---------|
| | | | | Income | |
| | Capital | Legal | Voluntary | for the | |
| | Stock | Reserve | Reserves | Year | Total |
| Balances at January 1, 2005 | 60,200 | _ | | 46,000 | 106,200 |
| Distribution of 2004 income | _ | 4,600 | 41,400 | (46,000) | _ |
| 2005 income | _ | _ | _ | 35,042 | 35,042 |
| Balances at December 31, 2005 | 60,200 | 4,600 | 41,400 | 35,042 | 141,242 |

Capital stock

The Company's capital stock as of December 31, 2005, consisted of 602 fully subscribed and paid common registered shares (of a single series) of €100 par value each. All of the shares are owned by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. and, consequently, in accordance with Law 2/1995, the Company is a sole-shareholder company.

Legal reserve

Under the revised Corporations Law, 10% of income for each year must be transferred to the legal reserve until the balance of this reserve reaches at least 20% of capital stock.

The legal reserve can be used to increase capital provided that the remaining reserve balance does not fall below 10% of the increased capital stock amount. Otherwise, until the legal reserve exceeds 20% of capital stock, it can only be used to offset losses, provided that sufficient other reserves are not available for this purpose.

10. Debt securities and other similar issues

The balance of this caption includes the various subordinated debt issues launched by the Company and secured by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (Note 9), which for debt seniority purposes rank below general creditors, the detail being as follows:

| | Currency | Interest | Issue Date | Maturity Date | Amount (Euros) |
|------------------------------------|----------|----------|---------------|------------------|----------------|
| Subordinated debt: Series 1 (*) | Euros | Floating | 09/30/04 | 00/30/10 | 500,000,000 |
| Series 2 (*) | Euros | _ | 09/30/04 | | |
| | | | | | 1,000,000,000 |

(*) Debt securities listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange

Each of the series is composed of 5,000 book-entry debentures with a unit value of €100,000 and the joint and several guarantee of Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. As of December 31, 2005, these issues had been subscribed and paid in full.

The main features of each series are as follows:

Series 1: 5,000 securities of €100,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99.55% Debenture holders are entitled to receive an annual return of 4.5% for the first ten years, payable on September 30 each year. The interest rate for the remaining five years is 3-month Euribor plus 0.86%, payable quarterly. At the discretion of the issuer, the debentures can be redeemed in full, with the prior authorization of the Bank of Spain, on or after September 30, 2014.

Series 2: 5,000 securities of €100,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99.857%. Debenture holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.25%, payable quarterly, for the first five years. The interest rate for the remaining five years is 3-month Euribor plus 0.75%, payable quarterly. At the discretion of the issuer, the debentures can be redeemed in full, with the prior authorization of the Bank of Spain, on or after September 30, 2009.

The difference between the issue value and the redemption value of the two series is recorded under the "Deferred Charges" caption, net of the amount of interest accrued in 2005, which was recorded under the "Financial and Similar Expenses — Other Financial Expenses" caption in the accompanying statement of income (Note 7)

In 2005 this subordinated debt issue bore interest of €34,537,795, which is recorded under the "Financial and Similar Expenses — On Other Debts" caption in the accompanying statement of income. As of

December 31, 2005, €5,709,317 of this interest had not yet been paid, and this amount was recorded under the "Accrual Accounts" caption on the liability side of the accompanying balance sheet. The average annual interest rate borne in 2005 was 3.45%.

11. Tax matters

The Company is included in the Consolidated Tax Group headed by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A.

The Company has all applicable taxes from its date of incorporation open for review by the tax inspection authorities (Note 1)

As of December 31, 2005, the reconciliation of the income for the year per books to the taxable income for corporate income tax purposes and the calculation of the tax expense are as follows:

| | Euros |
|-------------------------|--------|
| Net income for the year | 53,911 |
| Accumulated losses | _ |
| Taxable income | 53,911 |
| Tax rate | 35% |
| Gross tax payable | 18,869 |

As of December 31, 2005, the Company had recorded this amount under the "Provision for Taxes" caption in the accompanying balance sheet.

As a result of the policy followed by the Santander Group in connection with taxes generated by Group companies which file consolidated tax returns, the Company recorded the balance payable in relation to the 2004 corporate income tax return, amounting to €4,807 (Note 13) as of December 31, 2005, in a long-term account payable to Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. under the "Long-Term Debt — Payable to Group Companies" caption.

12. Outside services

The balance of the "Outside Services" caption in the accompanying statement of income includes €18,920 relating to the fees paid by the Company to its auditor for the 2005 audit, which had not yet been paid as of December 31, 2005, and this amount is included in the "Accrual Accounts" caption on the liability side of the accompanying balance sheet.

13. Transactions with related companies

The revenues and expenses arising from transactions performed by the Company in 2005 and the balances at 2005 year-end with related companies were as follows:

| | Euros |
|-----------------------------------------------------|-------------|
| BALANCE SHEET: | |
| Assets | |
| Long-term investments (Note 6) | 996,035,000 |
| Cash (Note 8) | 1,256,843 |
| Accrual accounts (Note 6) | 5,791,595 |
| Shareholder's equity and liabilities | |
| Long-term debt payable to Group companies (Note 11) | 4,807 |
| Accrual accounts (Note 10) | 5,709,317 |
| STATEMENT OF INCOME: | |
| Credit | |
| Financial income (Note 6) | 35,110,643 |

14. Other disclosures

Since the Company does not have any employees and is managed directly by its directors, it did not record any employee welfare expenses in the period.

The Company's directors did not receive any compensation, salaries or attendance fees of any kind in 2005.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company had not granted any advances or loans to former or current members of the Board, and it did not have any pension, life insurance or guarantee commitments to them.

Pursuant to Article 127 ter 4 of the Spanish Corporations Law, introduced by Law 26/2003, which amends Securities Market Law 24/1988, and the revised Spanish Corporations Law, in order to reinforce the transparency of listed corporations, following is a detail of the companies engaging in an activity that is identical, similar or complementary to the activity that constitutes the Company's corporate purpose in which the members of the Board of Directors own equity interests, and of the functions, if any, that they discharge thereat:

| Owner | Investee | Activity | Investment/ Number of Shares | Functions |
|--------------------------|------------------------------------------|----------|------------------------------------|---------------------------------|
| José Antonio Soler Ramos | Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. | Banking | 2,392 | Manager of Financial Management |
| Iñigo Barrera Amann | Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. | Banking | 7,500 | Manager of Corporate Issues |
| Antonio Torío Martín | Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. | Banking | 572 | Manager of Corporate Issues |

Also, pursuant to the aforementioned Law, set forth below are the activities carried on, as independent professionals or as employees, by the various members of the Board of Directors that are identical, similar or complementary to the activity that constitutes the corporate purpose of Santander Issuances, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company):

| Name | Company through which the Activity is Performed | Positions or Functions at the Company Concerned |
|--------------------|-------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------|
| | Santander US Debt, S.A. | Chairman |
| | (Sole-Shareholder Company) | |
| | Santander Perpetual, S.A. | Chairman |
| | (Sole-Shareholder Company) | |
| | Santander Commercial Paper, S.A. | Chairman |
| | (Sole-Shareholder Company) | |
| José Antonio Soler | Santander International Debt, S.A. | Director and Chairman since |
| Ramos | (Sole-Shareholder Company) | February 9, 2005 |
| | Santander Finance Capital, S.A. | Director and Chairman since |
| | (Sole-Shareholder Company) | February 9, 2005 |
| | Santander Finance Preferred, S.A. | Director and Chairman since |
| | (Sole-Shareholder Company) | February 9, 2005 |
| | Santander de Titulización, Sociedad | Director |
| | Gestora de Fondos de Titulización, S.A. | Bricetor |
| | Santander US Debt, S.A. | Director |
| | (Sole-Shareholder Company) | |
| | Santander Perpetual, S.A. | Director |
| | (Sole-Shareholder Company) | |
| | Santander Commercial Paper, S.A. | Director |
| Iñigo Barrera | (Sole-Shareholder Company) | |
| Amann | Santander International Debt, S.A. | Director |
| | (Sole-Shareholder Company) | |
| | Santander Finance Capital, S.A. | Director |
| | (Sole-Shareholder Company) | |
| | Santander Finance Preferred, S.A. | Director |
| | (Sole-Shareholder Company) | |
| | Santander US Debt, S.A. | Director |
| | (Sole-Shareholder Company) | |
| | Santander Perpetual, S.A. | Director |
| | (Sole-Shareholder Company) | |
| | Santander Commercial Paper, S.A. | Director |
| Antonio Torío | (Sole-Shareholder Company) | |
| Martín | Santander International Debt, S.A. | Director |
| | (Sole-Shareholder Company) | |
| | Santander Finance Capital, S.A. | Director |
| | (Sole-Shareholder Company) | |
| | Santander Finance Preferred, S.A. | Director |
| | (Sole-Shareholder Company) | |

15. Events subsequent to year-end

Subsequent to December 31, 2005, the Company launched a new subordinated debt issue, the main features of which are as follows:

Series 3: 20,000 book-entry securities of €50,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99.906%, issued on March 3, 2006 Debenture holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.20%, payable quarterly, on March, June, September and December 3 of each year until the debentures mature on March 3, 2016. These securities are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

16. Statement of changes in financial position

The Company's statement of changes in financial position for 2005 is shown below

Since the Company prepared abridged financial statements in 2004, no comparative figures for 2004 are presented

| | Euros | | Euros |
|-------------------------------|---------|--------------------------------|---------|
| APPLICATION OF FUNDS | 2005 | SOURCE OF FUNDS | 2005 |
| Provision for taxes | 5,901 | Funds obtained from operations | 408,045 |
| | | Long-term debt | 4,807 |
| TOTAL FUNDS APPLIED | 5,901 | TOTAL FUNDS OBTAINED | 412,852 |
| FUNDS OBTAINED IN EXCESS OF | | FUNDS APPLIED IN EXCESS OF | |
| FUNDS APPLIED | | FUNDS OBTAINED | |
| (INCREASE IN WORKING CAPITAL) | 406,951 | (DECREASE IN WORKING CAPITAL) | |
| TOTAL | 412,852 | TOTAL | 412,852 |

| | Euros | |
|------------------------------|-----------|-----------|
| | 2005 | |
| VARIATION IN WORKING CAPITAL | Increase | Decrease |
| Cash | _ | 5,266,032 |
| Accrual accounts (net) | 5,687,997 | _ |
| Taxes payable | 6,934 | _ |
| Other nontrade payables | | 21,948 |
| TOTAL | 5,694,931 | 5,287,980 |
| VARIATION IN WORKING CAPITAL | 406,951 | |

| | Euros |
|--------------------------------------------|---------|
| | 2005 |
| Income per books | 35,042 |
| Add- Depreciation and amortization expense | 411 |
| Add- Deferred interest expenses | 372,592 |
| Funds obtained from operations | 408,045 |

Translation of a report originally issued in Spanish. In the event of a discrepancy the Spanish-language version prevails.

Santander Issuances, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company)

Management report for 2005

In 2005 Santander Issuances, S.A. reported income after taxes of €35,042.

In 2005 the Company did not acquire or dispose of shares of its parent company, Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A.

In 2006 the Company's activities are projected to follow the same trend as in 2005.

In 2005 the Company did not incur any research and development expenses.

From December 31, 2005, through the date of preparation of these financial statements, the following significant event is worth noting:

1. The Company launched a new subordinated debt issue on March 3, 2006, comprising 20,000 book-entry securities of €50,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99.906%. Debenture holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.20%, payable quarterly on March, June, September and December 3 of each year until the debentures mature on March 3, 2016. These securities are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

SANTANDER ISSUANCES, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company)

Abridged Financial Statements for the Period from February 27, 2004 (the Date of Incorporation) to December 31, 2004, together with the Auditors' Report

Translation of a report originally issued in Spanish based on our work performed in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in Spain. In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.

AUDITORS' REPORT ON ABRIDGED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Sole Shareholder of Santander Issuances, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company):

We have audited the abridged financial statements of SANTANDER ISSUANCES, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) — "the Company"— comprising the abridged balance sheet as of December 31, 2004, and the related abridged statement of income and notes to abridged financial statements for the period from February 27, 2004 (the date of incorporation) to December 31, 2004. The preparation and content of these abridged financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's directors. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the abridged financial statements taken as a whole based on our audit work performed in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, which require examination, by means of selective tests, of the documentation supporting the abridged financial statements and evaluation of their presentation, of the accounting principles applied and of the estimates made.

In our opinion, the abridged financial statements for the period from February 27 to December 31, 2004, referred to above present, in all material respects, a true and fair view of the net worth and financial position of Santander Issuances, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) as of December 31, 2004, and of the results of its operations in the aforementioned period, and contain the required information, sufficient for their proper interpretation and comprehension, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and standards.

DELOITTE

Registered in ROAC under no. S0692

Germán de la Fuente

April 1, 2005

Deloitte S.L. are members of the Instituto de Censores Jurados de Cuentas de España.

58

SANTANDER ISSUANCES, S.A. (SOLE-SHAREHOLDER COMPANY) ABRIDGED BALANCE SHEET AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2004 (NOTES 1, 2, 3 a

(Euros)

| ASSETS | December 31, 2004 | SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY AND LIA |
|----------------------------------|-------------------|----------------------------------------------------|
| NONCURRENT ASSETS: | | SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY: |
| Start-up expenses (Note 5) | 1,745 | Capital stock (Note 9) |
| Long-term investments (Note 6) | 996,035,000 | Income for the period |
| Total noncurrent assets | 996,036,745 | Total shareholder's equity |
| | | LONG-TERM DEBT: |
| | | Debt securities and other similar issues (Note 10) |
| | | Total long-term debt |
| DEFERRED CHARGES (Note 7) | 3,207,373 | PROVISIONS FOR CONTINGENCIES AND |
| | | Provision for taxes (Note 11) |
| | | Total provisions for contingencies and exp |
| | | CURRENT LIABILITIES: |
| CURRENT ASSETS: | | Taxes payable |
| Cash (Note 8) | 6,522,875 | Accrual accounts (Note 10) |
| Accrual accounts (Note 6) | 194,630 | Other nontrade payables |
| Total current assets | 6,717,505 | Total current liabilities |
| TOTAL ASSETS | 1,005,961,623 | TOTAL SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY AN |

The accompanying Notes 1 to 14 are an integral part of the abridged balance sheet as of Decen

59

$SANTANDER\ ISSUANCES, S.A.\ (SOLE-SHAREHOLDER\ COMPANY)$

ABRIDGED STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE PERIOD FROM FEBRUARY 27, 2004 (THE DATE OF INCORPORA TO DECEMBER 31, 2004 (NOTES 1, 2, 3 AND 4)

(Euros)

| | Period from | |
|------------------------------------------------|----------------------|-----------------------------|
| DEBIT | 02/27/04 to 12/31/04 | CREDIT |
| EXPENSES: | | REVENUES: |
| Outside services (Note 12) | 19,237 | |
| Start-up expense amortization expense (Note 5) | 308 | |
| | 19,545 | |
| Operating income | _ | Operating loss |
| Financial and similar expenses — | | Financial revenues (Note 6) |
| On other debts (Note 10) | 8,790,710 | |
| Other financial expenses (Note 7) | 110,881 | |
| Financial income | 90,315 | Financial loss |
| Income from ordinary activities | 70,770 | Loss on ordinary activities |
| Extraordinary income | _ | Extraordinary loss |
| Income before taxes | 70,770 | Loss before taxes |
| Corporate income tax (Note 11) | (24,770) | |
| Income for the period | 46,000 | Loss for the period |

The accompanying Notes 1 to 14 are an integral part of the abridged statement of income for the period from Feb

Translation of abridged financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (Note 14). In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails. The issuer confirms that the abridged financial statements have been correctly translated.

Santander Issuances, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company)

Notes to Abridged Financial Statements for the Period from February 27, 2004 (the Date of Incorporation) to December 31, 2004

1. Company description

Santander Issuances, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) — "the Company" —, a corporation forming part of the Santander Group — the "Group" (Note 9) —, was incorporated for an indefinite period of time on February 27, 2004.

The Company's registered office is located at Ciudad Grupo Santander, Avenida de Cantabria, s/n, Boadilla del Monte.

Its sole corporate purpose is to issue subordinated debt secured by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (Note 10).

In view of the business activity carried on by the Company, it does not have any environmental liability, expenses, assets, provisions or contingencies that might be material with respect to its net worth, financial position or results. Therefore, no specific disclosures relating to environmental issues are included in these notes to abridged financial statements.

2. Basis of presentation of the abridged financial statements

a) True and fair view

The abridged financial statements for the period from February 27 to December 31, 2004, which were prepared by the Company's directors in accordance with the revised Corporations Law, are presented in the formats established by Royal Decree 1643/1990 approving the Spanish National Chart of Accounts and, accordingly, give a true and fair view of the Company's net worth, financial position and results of operations for the period.

The abridged financial statements have not yet been approved by the Sole Shareholder. However, the Company's Board of Directors considers that they will be approved without any changes.

b) Accounting policies and valuation standards

The abridged financial statements were prepared by applying the accounting principles and valuation standards described in Note 3. All obligatory accounting principles and valuation standards with a material effect on the abridged financial statements were applied in their preparation.

3. Accounting principles and valuation standards applied

The main accounting principles and valuation standards applied in preparing the abridged financial statements were as follows:

a) Incorporation and preopening expenses

Start-up expenses are recorded at cost, net of the related accumulated amortization. They are amortized on a straight-line basis over five years.

b) Debt securities and other similar issues

The subordinated debt issues launched by the Company, which are secured by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (Note 10), are recorded at their redemption value.

c) Deferred charges

Debt arrangement expenses are recorded at cost and are charged to income systematically over a maximum period ending on the date on which the debt can be repaid in full.

Deferred interest expenses are recorded for the difference between the redemption value and the amount received on issuing the related debt securities and are charged to income systematically over a maximum period ending on the date on which the debt can be repaid in full.

d) Recognition of revenues and expenses

Revenues and expenses are generally recognized on an accrual basis, i.e. when the actual flow of the related goods and services occurs, regardless of when the resulting monetary or financial flow arises.

d) Corporate income tax

As permitted by current legislation, the Company files consolidated corporate income tax returns as part of Consolidated Group 17/89, the parent company of which is Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (Note 11).

The expense for corporate income tax of the period is calculated on the basis of book income before taxes, increased or decreased, as appropriate, by the permanent differences from taxable income, which are taken to be the differences between taxable income and income per books before taxes which do not reverse in subsequent periods. This expense is recorded under the "Corporate Income Tax" caption in the abridged statement of income.

e) Classification of receivables and payables

The various items in the accompanying abridged balance sheet are classified as current assets and current liabilities when they mature at less than twelve months from year-end. Receivables and payables maturing at over twelve months are recorded as long-term items.

4. Distribution of income

The proposed distribution of the income for the period from February 27 to December 31, 2004, that the Board of Directors will submit for approval by the Sole Shareholder is as follows:

| | Euros |
|---------------------------|--------|
| Net income for the period | 46,000 |
| Distribution to: | |
| Legal reserve | 4,600 |
| Voluntary reserve | 41,400 |
| Total | 46,000 |

5. Start-up expenses

The detail of the balance of this caption in the accompanying abridged balance sheet and of the variation therein is as follows:

| | Euros | | |
|------------------------|------------------------|---------|------------|
| | Amortization Balance a | | |
| | Additions | Expense | Period-End |
| Incorporation expenses | 2,053 | 308 | 1,745 |
| Total | 2,053 | 308 | 1,745 |

6. Long-term investments

The detail of the balance of this caption in the accompanying abridged balance sheet as of December 31, 2004, is as follows:

| | Currency | Interest Rate | Maturity Date | Amount (Euros) |
|------------------------------------------|----------|------------------|------------------|-------------------|
| Time deposits at: | | | | |
| Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A.(*) | Euros | Floating | 09/30/19 | 497,250,000 |
| Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A.(*) | Euros | Floating | 09/30/14 | 498,785,000 |
| | | | | 996,035,000 |

During the reporting period the Company arranged time deposits at Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. in order to finance the payment of interest on the subordinated debt issue.

7. Deferred charges

The detail of the balance of this caption in the accompanying abridged balance sheet is as follows:

| | Euros |
|---------------------------------------------------------------|-----------|
| Debt arrangement expenses | 335,395 |
| Deferred interest expenses on marketable securities (Note 10) | 2,871,978 |
| Total | 3,207,373 |

The financial expenses incurred in this connection in the period from February 27 to December 31, 2004, totaled €110,881, and this amount is recorded under the "Financial and Similar Expenses — Other Financial Expenses" caption in the accompanying abridged statement of income.

8. Cash

The amount recorded under this caption in the accompanying abridged balance sheet as of December 31, 2004, relates in full to the balance of a demand deposit held by the Company at Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (Note 9). This demand deposit, which is denominated in euros, did not earn any interest in the period from February 27 to December 31, 2004.

9. Capital stock

The Company's capital stock as of December 31, 2004, consisted of 602 fully subscribed and paid common registered shares (of a single series) of €100 par value each. All of the shares are owned by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. and, consequently, in accordance with Law 2/1995, the Company is a sole-shareholder corporation.

10. Debt securities and other similar issues

The balance of this caption includes the various subordinated debt issues launched by the Company and secured by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (Note 9), which for debt seniority purposes rank below general creditors, the detail being as follows:

| | Currency | Interest | Issue Date | Maturity Date | Amount (Euros) |
|--------------------|----------|----------|---------------|------------------|-------------------|
| Subordinated debt: | | | | | |
| Series 1 (*) | Euros | Floating | 09/30/2004 | 09/30/2019 | 500,000,000 |
| Series 2 (*) | Euros | Floating | 09/30/2004 | 09/30/2014 | 500,000,000 |
| | | | | | 1,000,000,000 |

^(*) Debt securities listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

Each of the series is composed of 5,000 book-entry debentures with a unit value of €100,000 and the joint and several guarantee of Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. As of December 31, 2004, these issues had been subscribed and paid in full.

The main features of each series are as follows:

Series 1: 5,000 securities of €100,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99.55%. Debenture holders are entitled to receive an annual return of 4.5% for the first ten years, payable on September 30 each year. The interest rate for the remaining five years is 3-month Euribor plus 0.86%, payable quarterly. At the discretion of the issuer, the debentures can be redeemed in full, with the prior authorization of the Bank of Spain, on or after September 30, 2014.

Series 2: 5,000 securities of €100,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99.857%. Debenture holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.25%, payable quarterly, for the first five years. The interest rate for the remaining five years is 3-month Euribor plus 0.75%, payable quarterly. At the discretion of the issuer, the debentures can be redeemed in full, with the prior authorization of the Bank of Spain, on or after September 30, 2009.

The difference between the issue value and the redemption value of the two series is recorded under the "Deferred Charges" caption, net of the amount of interest accrued in the period from February 27 to December 31, 2004, which was recorded under the "Financial and Similar Expenses — Other Financial Expenses" caption in the accompanying abridged statement of income (Note 7).

In the period from February 27 to December 31, 2004, this subordinated debt issue bore interest of $\in 8,790,710$, which is recorded under the "Financial and Similar Expenses — On Other Debts" caption in the accompanying abridged statement of income. As of December 31, 2004, $\in 5,800,349$ of this interest had not been paid, and this amount was recorded under the "Accrual Accounts" caption on the liability side of the accompanying abridged balance sheet. The subordinated debt issue bore average annual interest of 3.52% in the aforementioned period.

11. Tax matters

The Company is included in the Consolidated Tax Group headed by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A.

As of December 31, 2004, the income before taxes per books was the same as the taxable income for corporate income tax purposes.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had recorded €24,770 in this connection under the "Provision for Taxes" caption in the accompanying abridged balance sheet.

12. Outside services

The balance of the "Outside Services" caption in the accompanying abridged statement of income includes €18,920 relating to the fees paid by the Company to its auditor for the audit of the period from February 27 to December 31, 2004. Also, in the aforementioned period the Company paid its auditor €24,840 for other services required under current legislation.

13. Other disclosures

Since the Company does not have any employees and is managed directly by its directors, it did not record any employee welfare expenses in the period.

The Company's directors did not receive any compensation, salaries or attendance fees of any kind in the period from February 27 to December 31, 2004.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had not granted any advances or loans to the former or current members of the Board, and it did not have any pension, life insurance or guarantee commitments to them.

Pursuant to Article 127 ter.4 of the Spanish Corporations Law, introduced by Law 26/2003, which amends Securities Market Law 24/1988, and the revised Spanish Corporations Law, in order to reinforce the transparency of listed corporations, the members of the managing body hereby state that they do not own any equity interests in companies engaging in an activity that is identical, similar or complementary to the activity that constitutes the corporate purpose of Santander Issuances, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company).

Also, pursuant to the aforementioned Law, they hereby state that they do not perform, as independent professionals or as employees, any activities at non-Santander Group companies that are identical, similar or complementary to the activity that constitutes the corporate purpose of Santander Issuances, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company).

14. Explanation added for translation to English

These abridged financial statements are presented on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in Spain. Certain accounting practices applied by the Company that conform with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain may not conform with generally accepted accounting principles in other countries.

Deloitte.

Plaza Pablo Ruiz Picasso, 1 Torre Picasso 28020 Madrid España

Tel.: +34 915 14 50 00 Fax: +34 915 14 51 80 +34 915 56 74 30 www.deloitte.es

AUDITOR'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

To the Board of Directors of Santander Issuances, S.A, Unipersonal (the "Company"):

- 1. We report on the accompanying cash flow statement for the year ended December 31, 2005 and the related notes that have been prepared for the purposes of inclusion in the Registration Document dated November, 2005. The cash-flow statement has been prepared in order to complement the Company's abridged financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005 to the extent necessary to meet the disclosure requirements of EU Regulation 2004-8009.
- It is Directors' responsibility to prepare the additional disclosures in accordance with the requirements of EU Regulation 2004-809 and CESR/05-054b.
 - The Spanish Corporations Law and the Royal Decree 1643/1990 approving the Spanish National Chart of Accounts, which are applicable to the elaboration of the Company's abridged financial statements, do not require a cash-flow statement; consequently, no accounting principles exist in Spain in order to regulate the elaboration of such statement. Consequently, as described in the related notes, following the contents of the paragraph 86 of the CESR/05-054b, the Directors of the Company have used the methodology of compilation and presentation described in the International Accounting Standard 7, applied over the financial information contained in the Company's abridged financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005, prepared in accordance with the accounting standards generally accepted in Spain.
- 3. It is our responsibility to provide the opinion required by Annex IV item 13.1 of EU Regulation 2004-809. We do not accept any responsibility for any information derived from financial statements previously reported on and used and used in the compilation of the additional disclosures beyond that owed to those whom any reports on those financial statements were addressed by us at the date of their issue.
- 4. Our work consisted primarily of considering the evidence supporting the additional disclosures and making inquires to the people responsible of financial and accounting matters. We planned and performed our work to obtain all the information and explanations we considered necessary to provide us with reasonable assurance that he cash-flow statement has been properly prepared in accordance with the contents of the related notes.
- 5. In our opinion, the attached cash flow statement has been properly prepared accordingly with the accompanying related notes.
- 6. This report has been issued by requirement of Santander Issuances, S.A., Unipersonal, in the context of the incorporation by reference to the Base Prospectus dated 18 November 2005 by virtue of a Supplement to such Prospectus for the Santander International Debt, S.A., Unipersonal and Santander Issuances, S.A. Unipersonal €25,000,000,000 Programme for the Issuance of Debt Instruments to be listed in the Luxembourg Stock Exchange or for its inclusion in any other Base Prospectus in relation to a Programme for the Issuance of Debt Instruments by the Issuers to be registered with the Luxembourg Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (the "CSSF") on or after 18 November 2005, and may not be relied on by you or used for any other purpose, not be referred to in any other document nor made available to any other party nor published in a document other than referred to above without our consent. We will not accept any responsibility from third parties other than the addressees.

DELOITTE S.L.

Germán de la Fuente

September 29, 2006



CASH-FLOW STATEMENT OF SANTANDER ISSUANCES, S.A. (Unipersonal) FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 (NOTES 1 AND 2)

| | EUROS |
|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------|
| | 31/12/2005 |
| Cash flows from operations: | |
| Net Income for the period | 35,042 |
| Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: | |
| Amortization of deferred cost of incorporation | 411 |
| Amortization and depreciation | 460,379 |
| Increase/ (Decrease) in taxes payable | 18,869 |
| Increase/ (Decrease) in accrual accounts | (100,787) |
| Net cash from/ (used in) operating activities | 413,914 |
| Cash flows from investment activities: | |
| Decrease/ (Increase) in inter-group long-term investments | 4,807 |
| Net cash from/ (used in) investment activities | 4,807 |
| Cash flows from financing activities: | |
| Issuance Cost | (87,787) |
| Net cash from/ (used in) financing activities | (87,787) |
| Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents | 330,934 |
| Cash balance at the beginning of the period | 6,717,504 |
| Cash balance at the end of the period | 7,048,438 |

The Accompanying Notes 1 and 2 are an integral part of the cash flow statement for the year ended December 31, 2005

Santander Issuances, S.A., Unipersonal

Notes to the cash flow statement for the year ended December 31, 2005.

1) Basis of presentation of the cash flow statement

The cash flow statement of Santander Issuances, S.A., Unipersonal (the "Company") for the year ended December 31, 2005 and the related notes have been prepared for the purposes of its incorporation by reference to the Base Prospectus dated 18 November 2005 by virtue of a Supplement to such Prospectus, related to the Santander International Debt, S.A. Unipersonal and Santander Issuances, S.A., Unipersonal (together the "Issuers") guaranteed by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. €25,000,000,000 Programme for the Issuance of Debt Instruments to be listed in the Luxembourg Stock Exchange or for its inclusion in any other Base Prospectus in relation to a Programme for the Issuance of Debt Instruments by the Issuers to be registered with the Luxembourg Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (the "CSSF") on or after 18 November 2005.

The cash flow statement has been prepared in order to complement the Company's financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005 to the extent necessary to meet the disclosure requirements of EU Regulation 2004-809.

The Spanish Corporations Law and the Royal Decree 1643/1990 approving the Spanish National Chart of Accounts, which are applicable to the elaboration of the Company's financial statements, do not require a cash flow statement as an integral part of the financial statement or as a separate financial statement; consequently, no accounting policies exist in Spain in order to regulate the elaboration of such statement.

Consequently, the Company's Directors, who are responsible for preparing the additional disclosures in accordance with the requirements of EU Regulation 2004-809 and CESR/05-054b, have elaborated the cash flow statement according with the following bases:

- a) The methodology of compilation and presentation described in the International Accounting Standard 7 has been used; consequently, the cash flow statement is presented accordingly with the aforementioned standard.
- b) The calculation has been performed using the figures and other financial information included in the Company's financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005, prepared in accordance with the accounting standards generally accepted in Spain, which have not been modified or adjusted. Those financial statements were approved by the sole-shareholder as of June 29,2006.

2) Method of elaboration of the cash flow statement

- a) Cash and cash equivalent: comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. An investment normally qualifies as a cash equivalent only when it has a short maturity of less than three months.
- b) Operating activities: are the principal revenue-producing activities. The Directors have chosen to report cash flows from operating activities using the indirect method, whereby profit or loss is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals o accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expense associated with investing or financial cash flows.
- c) Investing activities: are the acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other investments.
- d) Financing activities: are activities that result in changes in the size and composition of the contributed equity and borrowings of the Company.

Deloitte.

Plaza Pablo Ruiz Picasso, 1 Torre Picasso 28020 Madrid España

Tel: +34 915 14 50 00 Fax: +34 915 14 51 80 +34 915 56 74 30 www.deloitte es

AUDITOR'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

To the Board of Directors of Santander Issuances, S.A., Unipersonal (the "Company"):

- We report on the accompanying cash flow statement for the period from February 27, 2004 (the date of incorporation) to December 31, 2004 and the related notes that have been prepared for the purposes of inclusion in the Registration Document dated November 2005. The cash-flow statement has been prepared in order to complement the Company's abridged financial statements for the period from February 27, 2004 (the date of incorporation) to December 31, 2004 to the extent necessary to meet the disclosure requirements of EU Regulation 2004-809.
- It is Directors' responsibility to prepare the additional disclosures in accordance with the requirements of EU Regulation 2004-809 and CESR/05-054b.
 - The Spanish Corporations Law and the Royal Decree 1643/1990 approving the Spanish National Chart of Accounts, which are applicable to the elaboration of the Company's abridged financial statements, do not require a cash flow statement; consequently, no accounting principles exist in Spain in order to regulate the elaboration of such statement. Consequently, as described in the related notes, following the contents of the paragraph 86 of the CESR/05-054b, the Directors of the Company have used the methodology of compilation and presentation described in the International Accounting Standard 7, applied over the financial information contained in the Company's abridged financial statements for the period from February 27, 2004 (the date of incorporation) to December 31, 2004, prepared in accordance with the accounting standards generally accepted in Spain.
- 3. It is our responsibility to provide the opinion required by Annex IV item 13 1 of EU Regulation 2004-809. We do not accept any responsibility for any information derived from financial statements previously reported on and used in the compilation of the additional disclosures beyond that owed to those to whom any reports on those financial statements were addressed by us at the date of their issue.
- 4. Our work consisted primarily of considering the evidence supporting the additional disclosures and making inquires to the people responsible of financial and accounting matters. We planned and performed our work to obtain all the information and explanations we considered necessary to provide us with reasonable assurance that the cash flow statement has been properly prepared in accordance with the contents of the related notes.
- 5. In our opinion, the attached cash flow statement has been properly prepared accordingly with the accompanying related notes.
- 6. This report has been issued by requirement of Santander Issuances, S.A., Unipersonal, in the context of the elaboration of the Registration Document for the Santander International Debt, S.A., Unipersonal and Santander Issuances, S.A., Unipersonal €25,000,000,000 Programme for the Issuance of Debt Instruments and may not be relied on by you or used for any other purpose, nor be referred to in any other document nor made available to any other party nor published in a document other than the Registration Document referred to above without our consent. We will not accept any responsibility from third parties other than the addressees.

DELOITTE, S.L.

Germán de la Fuente

November 11, 2005



CASH-FLOW STATEMENT OF SANTANDER ISSUANCES, S.A. (Unipersonal) FOR THE PERIOD FROM FEBRUARY 27, 2004 (DATE OF INCORPORATION) TO DECEMBER 31, 2004 (NOTES 1 AND 2)

| | EUROS |
|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------|
| Cash flows from operations: | |
| Net Income for the period | 46,000 |
| Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: | |
| Amortization of deferred cost of incorporation | 308 |
| Amortization and depreciation | 110,881 |
| Increase/(Decrease) in taxes payable | 24,769 |
| Increase/(Decrease) in accrual accounts | 5,830,653 |
| Net cash from/(used in) operating activities | 6,012,612 |
| Cash flows from investment activities: | |
| Decrease/(Increase) in long-term investment | (996,035,000) |
| Net cash from/(used in) investment activities | (996,035,000) |
| Cash flows from financing activities: | |
| Issuance Cost | (3,318,254) |
| Deferred cost of incorporation | (2,053) |
| Debt securities and other similar issues | 1,000,000,000 |
| Increase/(decrease) in Capital Stock | 60,200 |
| Net cash from/(used in) financing activities | 996,739,893 |
| Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents | 6,717,504 |
| Cash balance at the beginning of the period | _ |
| Cash balance at the end of the period | 6,717,504 |

The accompanying Notes 1 and 2 are an integral part of the cash flow statement for the period from February, 27 to December 31, 2004.

Santander Issuances, S.A., Unipersonal

Notes to the cash flow statement for the period from February 27, 2004 (the date of incorporation) to December 31, 2004.

1. Basis of presentation of the cash flow statement

The cash flow statement of Santander Issuances, S.A., Unipersonal (the "Company") for the period from February 27, 2004 (the date of incorporation) to December 31, 2004 and the related notes have been prepared for the purposes of inclusion in the Registration Document dated November 2005, related to the Santander International Debt, S.A. Unipersonal and Santander Issuances, S.A., Unipersonal guaranteed by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. €25,000,000,000 Programme for the Issuance of Debt Instruments in the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

The cash-flow statement has been prepared in order to complement the Company's abridged financial statements for the period from February 27, 2004 (the date of incorporation) to December 31, 2004 to the extent necessary to meet the disclosure requirements of EU Regulation 2004-809.

The Spanish Corporations Law and the Royal Decree 1643/1990 approving the Spanish National Chart of Accounts, which are applicable to the elaboration of the Company's abridged financial statements, do not require a cash flow statement as an integral part of the abridged financial statements or as a separate financial statement; consequently, no accounting policies exist in Spain in order to regulate the elaboration of such statement.

Consequently, the Company's Directors, who are responsible for preparing the additional disclosures in accordance with the requirements of EU Regulation 2004-809 and CESR/05-054b, have elaborated the cash flow statement according with the following bases:

- a) The methodology of compilation and presentation described in the International Accounting Standard 7 has been used; consequently, the cash flow statement is presented accordingly with the aforementioned standard.
- b) The calculation has been performed using the figures and other financial information included in the Company's abridged financial statements for the period from February 27, 2004 (the date of incorporation) to December 31, 2004, prepared in accordance with the accounting standards generally accepted in Spain, which have not been modified or adjusted. Those abridged financial statements were approved by the sole-shareholder as of June 22, 2005.

2. Method of elaboration of the cash flow statement

- a) Cash and cash equivalent: comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. An investment normally qualifies as a cash equivalent only when it has a short maturity of less than three months.
- b) Operating activities: are the principal revenue-producing activities. The Directors have chosen to report cash flows from operating activities using the indirect method, whereby profit or loss is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals o accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows.
- c) Investing activities: are the acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other investments.
- d) Financing activities: are activities that result in changes in the size and composition of the contributed equity and borrowings of the Company.

SANTANDER INTERNATIONAL DEBT, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company)

Abridged Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2005 together with Auditors' Report

Deloitte.

Plaza Pablo Ruiz Picasso, 1 Torre Picasso 28020 Madrid España

Tel.: +34 915 14 50 00 Fax: +34 915 14 51 80 +34 915 56 74 30 www.deloitte.es

AUDITORS' REPORT ON ABRIDGED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Sole-Shareholder of Santander International Debt, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company):

We have audited the abridged financial statements of Santander International Debt, S.A (Sole-Shareholder Company) — "the Company" — comprising the abridged balance sheet as of December 31, 2005, and the related abridged statement of operations and notes to abridged financial statements for the year then ended The preparation and content of these abridged financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's directors. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the abridged financial statements taken as a whole based on our audit work performed in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, which require examination, by means of selective tests, of the evidence supporting the abridged financial statements and evaluation of their presentation, of the accounting principles applied and of the estimates made.

As required by Spanish corporate and commercial law, for comparison purposes the Company's directors present, in addition to the 2005 figures for each item in abridged balance sheet and abridged statement of operations, the figures for the period from April 21, 2004 (the date of incorporation) to December 31, 2004. Our opinion refers only to the 2005 abridged financial statements. On April 1, 2005, we issued our auditors' report on the abridged financial statements for the period from April 21 to December 31, 2004, in which we expressed an unqualified opinion

In order to interpret the accompanying abridged financial statements correctly, it should be taken into account that the Company carries on its business activities within the context of the Santander Group ("the Group"). Consequently, the Company's management, operations and abridged financial statements should be considered within the context of the Group.

In our opinion, the accompanying abridged financial statements for 2005 present, in all material respects, a true and fair view of the net worth and financial position of Santander International Debt, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) as of December 31, 2005, and of the results of its operations in the aforementioned period, and contain the required information, sufficient for their proper interpretation and comprehension, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and standards, applied on a basis consistent with that of the period from April 21 to December 31, 2004.

DELOITTE

Registered in ROAC under no. S0692

Germán de la Fuente April 14, 2006



Translation of abridged financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance was accounting principles in Spain (see Note 15). In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language

SANTANDER INTERNATIONAL DEBT, S.A. (SOLE-SHAREHOLDER COMPABRIDGED BALANCE SHEET AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004 (NOTES 1, 2

(Euros)

| ASSETS | December 31, 2005 | December 31, 2004 (*) | SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY AND LIABILITIES |
|-------------------------------------|-------------------|--------------------------|----------------------------------------------------|
| NONCURRENT ASSETS: | | | SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY (Note 9) |
| Start-up expenses (Note 5) | 3,042 | 1,770 | Capital stock |
| Long-term Investments (Note 6) | 14,067,569,821 | 3,890,559,539 | Accumulated losses |
| | | | Income (loss) for the period |
| Total noncurrent assets | 14,067,572,863 | 3,890,561,309 | Total shareholder's equity |
| DEFERRED CHARGES [Note 7] | 7,627,123 | 536,918 | DEFERRED REVENUES |
| | | | LONG-TERM DEBT: |
| | | | Debt securities and other similar issues (Note 10) |
| | | | Total long-term debt |
| CURRENT ASSETS: | | | CURRENT LIABILITIES: |
| Cash (Note 8) | 2,241,059 | 262,722 | Taxes payable |
| Accrual accounts (Note 6) | 33,426,621 | 4,106,219 | Accrual accounts (Note 10) |
| Sundry accounts receivable (Note 6) | 165,883 | | Sundry accounts receivable |
| Total current assets | 35,833,563 | 4,368,941 | Total current liabilities |
| TOTAL ASSETS | 14,111,033,549 | 3,895,467,168 | TOTAL SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY AND LIABILITIES |

(*) For comparison purposes only.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 15 are an integral part of the abridged balance sheet as of Decen

Translation of abridged financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance was accounting principles in Spain (see Note 15). In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language

SANTANDER INTERNATIONAL DEBT, S.A. (SOLE-SHAREHOLDER COMP

ABRIDGED STATEMENTS OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 FOR THE PERIOD FROM APRIL 21, 2004 (THE DATE OF INCORPORATION TO DECEMBER 31, 2004 (NOTES 1, 2, 3 AND 4)

(Euros)

| DEBIT | 2005 | Period from April 21 to December 31, 2004(*) | Income (loss) for the period | 2 |
|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------|----------------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------|------|
| EXPENSES: | | | REVENUES: | |
| Outside services (Note 12) Start-up expense amortization | 40,465 | 30,036 | | |
| expense (Note 5) | 429 | 234 | | |
| Operating Income | | | Operating loss | |
| Financial and similar expenses — On other debts (Note 10) Other financial expenses | 241,888,723 | 4,094,957 | Financial revenues (Note 6) Exchange gains (Note 8) | 243, |
| (Note 7) Exchange losses | 1,387,819 16,001 | 7,231 | | |
| Financial Income | 93,213 | 4,031 | Financial loss | |
| Income from ordinary activities | 52,319 | | Loss on ordinary activities | |
| Sundry accounts receivable (Note 6) | 555 | | Extraordinary loss | |
| Income before taxes | 52,874 | | Loss before taxes | |
| Corporate income tax (Note 11) | 9,322 | | | |
| Income for the period | 43,552 | | Loss for the period | |

^(*) For comparison purposes only.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 15 are an integral part of the abridged statement of operations for the year e

Translation of abridged financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (Note 15) In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.

Santander International Debt, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company)

Notes to Abridged Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2005

1. Company description

Santander International Debt, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) — "the Company" —, a corporation forming part of the Santander Group ("the Group", Note 9), was incorporated for an indefinite period of time on April 21, 2004.

The Company's registered office is located at Ciudad Grupo Santander, Avenida de Cantabria, s/n, Boadilla del Monte.

Its sole corporate purpose is to issue ordinary or senior debt secured by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (Note 9).

In view of the business activity carried on by the Company, it does not have any environmental liability, expenses, assets, provisions or contingencies that might be material with respect to its net worth, financial position or results. Therefore, no specific disclosures relating to environmental issues are included in these notes to abridged financial statements

2. Basis of presentation of the abridged financial statements

a) True and fair view

The 2005 abridged financial statements, which were prepared by the Company's directors in accordance with the revised Corporations Law, are presented in the formats established by Royal Decree 1643/1990 approving the Spanish National Chart of Accounts and, accordingly, give a true and fair view of the Company's net worth, financial position and results of operations for the year.

The abridged financial statements have not yet been approved by the Sole Shareholder. However, the Company's Board of Directors considers that they will be approved without any changes

b) Accounting policies and valuation standards

The abridged financial statements were prepared by applying the accounting principles and valuation standards described in Note 3. All obligatory accounting principles and valuation standards with a material effect on the abridged financial statements were applied in their preparation

3. Accounting principles and valuation standards applied

The main accounting principles and valuation standards applied in preparing the abridged financial statements were as follows:

a) Incorporation and preopening expenses

Start-up expenses are recorded at cost, net of the related accumulated amortization. They are amortized on a straight-line basis over five years

b) Debt securities and other similar issues

The ordinary or senior debt issues launched by the Company, which are secured by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (Note 10), are recorded at their redemption value.

c) Deferred charges

Debt arrangement expenses are recorded at cost and are charged to income systematically through the date of maturity of the issues. Deferred interest expenses are recorded for the difference between the redemption value and the amount received on issuing the related debt securities and are allocated to income by the interest method over a maximum period ending on the date on which the debt can be repaid in full

d) Recognition of revenues and expenses

Revenues and expenses are generally recognized on an accrual basis, i.e. when the actual flow of the related goods and services occurs, regardless of when the resulting monetary or financial flow arises

d) Corporate income tax

As permitted by current legislation, the Company files consolidated corporate income tax returns as part of Consolidated Group 17/89, the parent company of which is Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (Notes 9 and 11).

The income tax expense for the year is calculated on the basis of book income before taxes, increased or decreased, as appropriate, by the permanent differences from taxable income, which are taken to be the differences between taxable income and income per books before taxes which do not reverse in subsequent periods. This expense is recorded under the "Corporate Income Tax" caption in the abridged statement of operations

e) Classification of receivables and payables

The various items in the accompanying abridged balance sheet are classified as current assets and current liabilities when they mature at less than twelve months from year-end. Receivables and payables maturing at over twelve months are recorded as long-term items.

f) Foreign currency transactions

Long-term investments whose acquisition cost was denominated in foreign currencies were translated to euros at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of each deposit. At year-end they are adjusted to the exchange rates then prevailing.

Foreign currency on hand is translated to euros at the exchange rates ruling at year-end.

Debts whose amount was denominated in foreign currencies were translated to euros at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of arrangement of the debt. At year-end they are adjusted to the exchange rate then ruling.

Negative differences arising from application of the aforementioned methods are charged to income for the year, while unrealized positive differences arising in each homogeneous group of currencies are recorded as "Deferred Revenues" on the liability side of the balance sheet and can be offset against the negative differences relating to the same group of currencies charged to income for the period. In the case of exchange rate hedging transactions, for translation purposes, only the unhedged portion of the risk will be considered.

4. Distribution of income

The distribution of 2005 income that the Board of Directors will submit for approval by the Sole Shareholder is as follows:

| | Euros |
|-------------------------|--------|
| Net income for the year | 43,552 |
| Distribution to: | |
| Legal reserve | 4,355 |
| Accumulated losses | 26,239 |
| Voluntary reserve | 12,958 |
| Total | 43,552 |

5. Start-up expenses

The detail of the balance of this caption in the accompanying abridged balance sheet and of the variation therein is as follows:

| | Euros |
|----------------------------|-------|
| Balance at January 1, 2005 | 1,770 |
| Additions | 1,701 |
| Amortization expense | (429) |
| Total | 3,042 |

6. Long-term investments

The detail of the balance of this caption in the accompanying abridged balance sheet as of December 31, 2005, is as follows:

| | Interest Rate | Maturity Date | Amount (Euros) |
|-------------------------------------------|------------------|------------------|----------------|
| | Rate | Date | (Euros) |
| Time deposits at | | | |
| Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A.(*): | | 12/1/10/ | 4 000 020 000 |
| Euros | Floating | 12/14/06 | 1,999,928,000 |
| U S. dollars | Floating | 06/15/06 | 42,302,856 |
| Pounds sterling | Floating | 12/17/07 | 364,318,866 |
| Euros | Floating | 12/20/07 | 1,499,880,000 |
| Euros | Floating | 01/25/10 | 998,531,600 |
| Euros | Floating | 02/22/08 | 1,000,114,000 |
| Euros | Floating | 03/18/08 | 1,498,640,000 |
| Pounds sterling | Floating | 09/18/06 | 80,241,618 |
| Euros | Floating | 09/21/06 | 174,985,000 |
| Pounds sterling | Floating | 04/01/08 | 145,862,626 |
| Euros | Floating | 10/04/06 | 149,985,000 |
| Euros | Floating | 10/13/06 | 349,985,000 |
| Euros | Floating | 05/06/09 | 998,960,000 |
| Euros | Floating | 06/02/08 | 499,960,000 |
| Euros | Floating | 12/01/06 | 199,985,000 |
| Pounds sterling | Floating | 06/22/09 | 218,867,645 |
| Euros | Floating | 06/29/09 | 499,670,000 |
| Euros | Floating | 06/23/10 | 99,937,000 |
| Euros | Fixed | 09/05/35 | 18,722,000 |
| Euros | Floating | 09/20/10 | 499,840,000 |
| Canadian dollars | Floating | 09/20/07 | 218,558,575 |
| Pounds sterling | Floating | 11/11/10 | 510,680,035 |
| Euros | Floating | 10/21/09 | 998,610,000 |
| Euros | Floating | 12/22/10 | 999,005,000 |
| | | | 14,067,569,821 |

^(*) Note 9.

The Company has arranged time deposits at Banco Santander Central Hispano, S A. (Note 9) in order to finance the payment of interest on the related ordinary or senior debt issue (Note 10).

The interest earned on these time deposits in 2005, which amounted to €243,375,554, is recorded under the "Financial Revenues" caption in the accompanying abridged statement of operations. As of December 31, 2005, €33,426,621 of this amount had not yet been collected and, accordingly, it is recorded under the

"Accrual Accounts" caption on the asset side of the accompanying abridged balance sheet. The average annual interest earned during the year was 2.54%.

The "Sundry Accounts Receivable" caption in the accompanying abridged balance sheet includes the uncollected amount receivable of the interest payment as of December 21, 2005, that was collected in January 2006.

7. Deferred charges

The detail of the balance of this caption in the accompanying abridged balance sheet is as follows:

| | Euros |
|---------------------------------------------------------------|-----------|
| Debt arrangement expenses | 1,513,535 |
| Deferred interest expenses on marketable securities (Note 10) | 6,113,588 |
| Total | 7,627,123 |

The financial expenses incurred in this connection in 2005 totaled €1,387,819, and this amount is recorded under the "Financial and Similar Expenses — Other Financial Expenses" caption in the accompanying abridged statement of operations.

8. Cash

The detail of the balance of this caption in the accompanying abridged balance sheet as of December 31, 2005, is as follows:

| | Amount (Euros) |
|------------------------------------------|----------------|
| Demand deposits at: | |
| Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A.(*) | |
| Euros | 1,868,538 |
| US dollars | 134,759 |
| Pounds sterling | 231,451 |
| Canadian dollars | 6,311 |
| | 2,241,059 |

(*) Note 9.

The balance of these deposits did not earn any interest in 2005

Revenues arising from exchange differences in 2005 totaled €10,202, and this amount was recorded under the "Exchange Gains" caption in the accompanying abridged statement of operations.

9. Shareholder's Equity

The variations in 2005 in equity accounts in the accompanying abridged balance sheet were as follows:

| | Euros | | | |
|---------------------------------|------------------|--------------------|----------------------------|---------|
| | Capital Stock | Accumulated Losses | Income (Loss) for the Year | Total |
| Balances at January 1, 2005 | 60,200 | _ | (26,239) | 33,961 |
| Allocation of the loss for 2004 | _ | (26,239) | 26,239 | _ |
| Capital increase | 120,400 | _ | _ | 120,400 |
| 2005 income | _ | _ | 43,552 | 43,552 |
| Balances at December 31, 2005 | 180,600 | (26,239) | 43,552 | 197,913 |

In October 2005 the Company's Board of Directors resolved to increase capital through the issuance of 1,204 registered shares of €100 par value each. This capital increase was subscribed and paid in full by its sole shareholder, Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A.

Following this increase, the Company's capital stock as of December 31, 2005, consisted of 1,806 fully subscribed and paid common registered shares (of a single series) of €100 par value each. All of the shares are owned by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. and, consequently, in accordance with Law 2/1995, the Company is a sole-shareholder corporation.

Legal reserve

Under the revised Corporations Law, 10% of income for each year must be transferred to the legal reserve until the balance of this reserve reaches at least 20% of capital stock.

The legal reserve can be used to increase capital provided that the remaining reserve balance does not fall below 10% of the increased capital stock amount. Otherwise, until the legal reserve exceeds 20% of capital stock, it can only be used to offset losses, provided that sufficient other reserves are not available for this purpose

10. Debt securities and other similar issues

The balance of this caption includes the various ordinary or senior debt issues launched by the Company and secured by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (Note 9), which for debt seniority purposes rank below general creditors, the detail being as follows:

| | | | Issue | Maturity | Amount |
|------------------------------|------------------|----------|----------|----------|----------------|
| | Currency | Interest | Date | Date | (Euros) |
| Ordinary or senior debt (*): | | | | | |
| Series 1 | Euros | Floating | 12/14/04 | 12/14/06 | 2,000,000,000 |
| Series 2 | U.S. dollars | Floating | 12/15/04 | 06/15/06 | 42,383,657 |
| Series 3 | Pounds sterling | Floating | 12/17/04 | 12/17/07 | 364,803,735 |
| Series 4 | Euros | Floating | 12/20/04 | 12/20/07 | 1,500,000,000 |
| Series 5 | Euros | Floating | 01/25/05 | 01/25/10 | 1,000,000,000 |
| Series 6 | Euros | Floating | 02/22/05 | 02/22/08 | 1,000,000,000 |
| Series 7 | Euros | Floating | 03/18/05 | 03/18/08 | 1,500,000,000 |
| Series 8 | Pounds sterling | Floating | 03/18/05 | 09/18/06 | 80,256,822 |
| Series 9 | Euros | Floating | 03/21/05 | 09/21/06 | 175,000,000 |
| Series 10 | Pounds sterling | Floating | 04/01/05 | 04/01/08 | 145,921,493 |
| Series 11 | Euros | Floating | 04/04/05 | 10/04/06 | 150,000,000 |
| Series 12 | Euros | Floating | 04/13/05 | 10/13/06 | 350,000,000 |
| Series 13 | Euros | Floating | 05/06/05 | 05/06/09 | 1,000,000,000 |
| Series 14 | Euros | Floating | 06/02/05 | 06/02/08 | 500,000,000 |
| Series 16 | Euros | Floating | 06/01/05 | 12/01/06 | 200,000,000 |
| Series 17 | Pounds sterling | Floating | 06/22/05 | 06/22/09 | 218,882,241 |
| Series 18 | Euros | Floating | 06/29/05 | 06/29/09 | 500,000,000 |
| Series 19 | Euros | Floating | 06/30/05 | 06/23/10 | 100,000,000 |
| Series 20 | Euros | Fixed | 09/05/05 | 09/05/35 | 20,000,000 |
| Series 21 | Euros | Floating | 09/20/05 | 09/20/10 | 500,000,000 |
| Series 22 | Canadian dollars | Floating | 09/20/05 | 09/20/07 | 218,579,235 |
| Series 23 | Pounds sterling | Floating | 10/11/05 | 10/11/10 | 510,725,230 |
| Series 24 | Euros | Floating | 10/21/05 | 10/21/09 | 1,000,000,000 |
| Series 25 | Euros | Floating | 12/22/05 | 12/22/10 | 1,000,000,000 |
| | | | | | 14,076,552,413 |

^(*) Debt securities listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

All these issues have the joint and seversl guarantee of Banco Santander Central Hispano, S A (Note 9). As of December 31, 2005, these issues had been subscribed and paid in full.

The main features of each series are as follows:

Series 1: 20,000 securities, represented by book entries, of €100,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100% Debenture holders are entitled to receive 3-month Euribor plus 0 05%, payable quarterly on March, June, September and December 14 of each year through their date of maturity.

Series 2: 500 securities, represented by book entries, of US\$ 100,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month U.S. dollar Libor, payable quarterly on March, June, September and December 15 of each year through the date of maturity.

Series 3: 25,000 securities, represented by book entries, of GBP 10,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99.937%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month pound sterling Libor, payable quarterly on March, June, September and December 17 of each year through the date of maturity.

Series 4: 1,500,000 securities, represented by book entries, of €10,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99.994%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.06%, payable quarterly on March, June, September and December 20 of each year through the date of maturity.

Series 5: 1,000,000 securities, represented by book entries, of €1,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99.856%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.075%, payable quarterly on January, April, July and October 25 of each year through the date of maturity.

Series 6: 1,000,000 securities, represented by book entries, of €1,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100.015%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.05%, payable quarterly on February, May, August and November 22 of each year through the date of maturity.

Series 7: 1,500,000 securities, represented by book entries, of €1,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99.912%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.05%, payable quarterly on March, June, September and December 18 of each year through the date of maturity.

Series 8: 550 securities, represented by book entries, of GBP 100,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Libor minus 0.0125%, payable quarterly on March, June, September and December 18 of each year through the date of maturity.

Series 9: 1,750 securities, represented by book entries, of €100,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 1-month Euribor plus 0.03%, payable monthly on the 21st of each month through the date of maturity.

Series 10: 1,000 securities, represented by book entries, of GBP 100,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99.97%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Libor plus 0.03%, payable quarterly on January, April, July and October 1 of each year through the date of maturity.

Series 11: 1,500 securities, represented by book entries, of €100,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.02%, payable quarterly on January, April, July and October 4 of each year through the date of maturity.

Series 12: 3,500 securities, represented by book entries, of €100,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.01%, payable quarterly on January, April, July and October 13 of each year through the date of maturity.

Series 13: 10,000 securities, represented by book entries, of €100,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100.083%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.10%, payable quarterly on February, May, August and November 6 of each year through the date of maturity.

Series 14: 500,000 securities, represented by book entries, of €1,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.07%, payable quarterly on March, June, September and December 2 of each year through the date of maturity.

Series 16: 2,000 securities, represented by book entries, of €100,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.01%, payable quarterly on March, June, September and December 1 of each year through the date of maturity.

Series 17: 1,500 securities, represented by book entries, of GBP 100,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Libor plus 0.04%, payable quarterly on March, June, September and December 22 of each year through the date of maturity.

Series 18: 5,000 securities, represented by book entries, of €100,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99.942%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.10%, payable quarterly on March, June, September and December 29 of each year through the date of maturity.

Series 19: 100 securities, represented by book entries, of €1,000,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99.952%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.07%, payable quarterly on March, June, September and December 23 of each year through the date of maturity.

Series 20: 200 securities, represented by book entries, of €100,000 par value each, with an issue value of 93.70%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 4.5%, payable annually on September 5 of each year through the date of maturity.

Series 21: 500,000 securities, represented by book entries, of €1,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99.976%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.11%, payable quarterly on March, June, September and December 20 of each year through the date of maturity.

Series 22: 3,000 securities, represented by book entries, of CAD 100,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 1-month Canadian Dollar Offered Rate (CDOR) plus 0.095%, payable monthly on the 20th of each month through the date of maturity.

Series 23: 7,000 securities, represented by book entries, of GBP 50,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Libor plus 0.05%, payable quarterly on January, April, July and October 11 of each year through the date of maturity.

Series 24: 1,000,000 securities, represented by book entries, of €1,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99.865%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.05%, payable quarterly on January, April, July and October 21 of each year through the date of maturity.

Series 25: 10,000 securities, represented by book entries, of €100,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99.905%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.10%, payable quarterly on March, June, September and December 22 of each year through the date of maturity.

The difference between the issue value and the redemption value of series issued below par is recorded under the "Deferred Charges" caption, net of the amount of interest accrued in 2005, which was recorded under the "Financial and Similar Expenses — Other Financial Expenses" caption in the accompanying abridged statement of operations (Note 7).

The difference between the issue value and the redemption value of series issued above par in connection with unearned interest revenue amounts to €801,632 and is recorded under the "Accrual Accounts" caption, in relation to the issues of series 6 and 13 which were issued at par.

In 2005 these ordinary or senior debt issues bore interest of €241,888,723, which is recorded under the "Financial and Similar Expenses — On Other Debts" caption in the accompanying abridged statement of operations €33,203,296 of this interest had not been paid as of December 31, 2005, and this amount was recorded under the "Accrual Accounts" caption on the liability side of the accompanying abridged balance sheet. The debt issue bore average annual interest of 2.53% in 2005. The balance of the "Financial and Similar Expenses — On Other Debts" caption in the accompanying abridged financial statements includes audit expenses for 2004 and 2005 amounting to €63,325, which have not yet been paid and are recorded under the "Accrual Accounts" caption.

11. Tax matters

The Company files consolidated tax returns as part of the Group headed by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (Note 9).

The Company has the years since inception open for review by the tax authorities for all the taxes applicable to it (Note 1).

The book income before taxes for 2005 was the same as the taxable income. The Company offset the tax loss of €26,239 incurred in the period from April 21 to December 31, 2004.

12. Outside services

The balance of the "Outside Services" caption in the accompanying abridged statement of operations includes €37,085 relating to the fees paid by the Company to its auditor for the audit of the Company's 2005 financial statements.

13. Other disclosures

Since the Company does not have any employees and is managed directly by its directors, it did not record any employee welfare expenses in 2005.

The Company's directors did not receive any compensation, salaries or attendance fees of any kind in 2005.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company had not granted any advances or loans to the former or current members of the Board, and it did not have any pension, life insurance or guarantee commitments to them.

Pursuant to Article 127 ter.4 of the Spanish Corporations Law, introduced by Law 26/2003, which amends Securities Market Law 24/1988, and the revised Spanish Corporations Law, in order to enhance the transparency of listed corporations, following is a detail of the ownership interests held by the members of the Board of Directors in companies engaging in an activity that is identical, similar or complementary to the activity that constitutes the Company's corporate purpose, and of the functions, if any, that they discharge thereat:

| Owner | Investee | Activity | Ownership Interest/ Number of Shares | Functions |
|----------------------|---------------------------------------|----------|-----------------------------------------------|-------------------------------|
| José Antonio Soler | Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. | Banking | 2,392 | Manager — |
| Ramos | | | | Financial Management |
| Iñigo Barrera Amann | Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. | Banking | 7,500 | Manager — Corporate Issues |
| Antonio Torío Martín | Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. | Banking | 572 | Manager — Corporate issues |

Also, as provided for by the aforementioned Law, set forth below are the activities performed by the directors, as independent professionals or as employees, that are identical, similar or complementary to the activity constituting the corporate purpose of Santander International Debt, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company):

| Name | Company through which the Activity is Performed | Positions or Functions at the Company Concerned |
|--------------------------|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| | Santander US Debt, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) | Chairman |
| | Santander Perpetual, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) | Chairman |
| | Santander Commercial Paper, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) | Chairman |
| José Antonio Soler Ramos | Santander Issuances, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) Santander Finance Capital, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) | Director and Chairman since February 9, 2005 Director and Chairman since February 9, 2005 |
| | Santander Finance Preferred, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) Santander de Titulización, Sociedad | Director and Chairman since February 9, 2005 |
| | Gestora de Fondos de Titulización, S.A. Santander US Debt, S.A. | Director |
| | (Sole-Shareholder Company) Santander Perpetual, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) | Director |
| Iñigo Barrera Amann | Santander Commercial Paper, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) | Director |
| migo darrera Amami | Santander Issuances, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) | Director |
| | Santander Finance Capital, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) | Director |
| | Santander Finance Preferred, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) | Director |
| | Santander US Debt, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) | Director |
| | Santander Perpetual, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) | Director |
| Autorio Torío Montín | Santander Commercial Paper, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) | Director |
| Antonio Torío Martín | Santander Issuances, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) | Director |
| | Santander Finance Capital, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) | Director |
| | Santander Finance Preferred, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) | Director |

14. Events subsequent to year-end

Subsequent to December 31, 2005, the Company launched new issues of senior debt, the main features of which are as follows:

Series 26: 600 securities, issued on January 9, 2006, and represented by book entries, of €50,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 6-month Euribor plus 1.21%, adjusted by a ratio that fluctuates in line with 3-month Libor, and payable half-yearly on January and July 9 of each year through the date of maturity (January 9, 2016).

Series 27: 1,000 securities, issued on January 30, 2006, and represented by book entries, of €50,000 par value each, with an issue value of 91.10%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of the par value of the issue adjusted by a variable ratio with a maximum value of 9%, payable on January 30, 2014, the date of maturity.

Series 28: 2,920 securities, issued on January 31, 2006, and represented by book entries, of €50,000 par value each, with an issue value of 91.46%. Holders are entitled to receive an annual return of 3.75% for the first three years, and a floating interest rate tied to the value of certain stock market indexes is applied as from the third year. This return is payable annually on January 31 of each year through the date of maturity (January 31, 2014).

Series 29: 940 securities, issued on February 28, 2006, and represented by book entries, of €50,000 par value each, with an issue value of 91.39%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of the par value of the issue adjusted by a variable ratio with a maximum value of 11%, payable on February 28, 2014, the date of maturity.

Series 30: 1,000,000 securities, issued on January 23, 2006, and represented by book entries, of €1,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99.956%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.075%, payable quarterly on January, April, July and October 23 of each year through the date of maturity (January 23, 2009).

Series 31: 100,000 securities, issued on January 26, 2006, and represented by book entries, of €1,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99.956%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0 075%, payable quarterly on January, April, July and October 26 of each year through the date of maturity (January 26, 2009).

Series 32: 500,000 securities, issued on January 26, 2006, and represented by book entries, of €1,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.02%, payable quarterly on January, April, July and October 26 of each year through the date of maturity (July 26, 2007).

Series 33: 1,000 securities, issued on January 25, 2006, and represented by book entries, of MXP 1,000,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 28-day Equilibrium Interbank Interest Rate (TIIE) minus 0.16%, payable every 28 days through the date of maturity (January 24, 2007).

Series 34: 10,000 securities, issued on January 27, 2006, and represented by book entries, of GBP 50,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99.955%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Libor plus 0.10%, payable quarterly on January, April, July and October 27 of each year through the date of maturity (January 27, 2011).

Series 35: 2,040 securities, issued on February 27, 2006, and represented by book entries, of €50,000 par value each, with an issue value of 91.38%. Holders are entitled to receive an annual return of 3.50% during the first two years, and a floating interest rate tied to the value of certain stock market indexes is applied as from the second year. This return is payable annually on February 27 of each year through the date of maturity (February 27, 2014).

Series 36: 220 securities, issued on February 8, 2006, and represented by book entries, of JPY 50,000,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Libor, payable quarterly on February, May, August and November 8 of each year through the date of maturity (February 8, 2008).

Series 37: 1,500 securities, issued on February 10, 2006, and represented by book entries, of €100,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.02%, payable quarterly on February, May, August and November 10 of each year through the date of maturity (August 10, 2007).

Series 38: 350 securities, issued on February 17, 2006, and represented by book entries, of SEK 2,000,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 6-month Pribor plus 0.03%, payable half-yearly on February and August 17 of each year through the date of maturity (February 17, 2010).

Series 39: 600 securities, issued on February 17, 2006, and represented by book entries, of €50,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 1.75%, adjusted by a ratio that fluctuates in line with 3-month Libor, and payable quarterly on February, May, August and November 17 of each year through the date of maturity (February 17, 2016).

Series 40: 1,000 securities, issued on February 17, 2006, and represented by book entries, of GBP 50,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Libor plus 0.02%, payable quarterly on February, May, August and November 17 of each year through the date of maturity (February 17, 2009).

Series 41: 800,000 securities, issued on February 17, 2006, and represented by book entries, of €1,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99.713%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3.375%, payable annually on February 17 of each year through the date of maturity (February 17, 2010).

Series 43: 200 securities, issued on February 27, 2006, and represented by book entries, of US\$ 100,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100% Holders are entitled to receive a return of 1.475%, adjusted by a ratio that fluctuates in line with the representative market rates, and payable annually on February 6 of each year through the date of maturity (February 6, 2011).

Series 44: 1,000,000 securities, issued on March 2, 2006, and represented by book entries, of €1,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100% Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.09%, payable quarterly on March, June, September and December 2 of each year through the date of maturity (March 2, 2009).

Series 45: 2,000 securities, issued on April 12, 2006, and represented by book entries, of €50,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.01%, payable quarterly on January, April, July and October 12 of each year through the date of maturity (October 12, 2007).

Series 46: 15,000 securities, issued on March 23, 2006, and represented by book entries, of €50,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99 925%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.10%, payable quarterly on March, June, September and December 23 of each year through the date of maturity (March 23, 2011).

Series 47: 750,000 securities, issued on April 5, 2006, and represented by book entries, of €1,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99 904% Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.125%, payable quarterly on January, April, July and October 5 of each year through the date of maturity (April 5, 2013).

Series 48: 150 securities, issued on March 29, 2006, and represented by book entries, of US\$100,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100% Holders are entitled to receive a return of 6.65%, adjusted by a ratio that fluctuates in line with the representative market rates, and payable annually on March 29 of each year through the date of maturity (March 29, 2011).

Series 49: 3,000 securities, issued on April 3, 2006, and represented by book entries, of €50,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100% Holders are entitled to receive a return of 1-month Euribor plus 0.01%, payable monthly on the 3rd of each month through the date of maturity (April 3, 2007).

Series 50: 1,380 securities, issued on April 28, 2006, and represented by book entries, of €50,000 par value each, with an issue value of 91.42% Holders are entitled to receive an annual return of 5% in the first year, and a floating interest rate tied to the value of certain stock market indexes is applied as from the second year. This return is payable annually on April 28 of each year through the date of maturity (April 28, 2014).

Series 51: 1,000,000 securities, issued on April 12, 2006, and represented by book entries, of €1,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100.029%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.10%, payable quarterly on January, April, July and October 14 of each year through the date of maturity (April 14, 2009).

15. Explanation added for translation to English

These abridged financial statements are presented on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in Spain. Certain accounting practices applied by the Company that conform with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain may not conform with generally accepted accounting principles in other countries.

SANTANDER INTERNATIONAL DEBT, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company)

Abridged Financial Statements for the Period from April 21, 2004 (the Date of Incorporation) to December 31, 2004, together with the Auditors' Report

Translation of a report originally issued in Spanish based on our work performed in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in Spain. In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails. The issuer confirms that the abridged financial statements have been correctly translated.

AUDITORS' REPORT ON ABRIDGED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Sole Shareholder of Santander International Debt, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company):

We have audited the abridged financial statements of SANTANDER INTERNATIONAL DEBT, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) — "the Company" — comprising the abridged balance sheet as of December 31, 2004, and the related abridged statement of operations and notes to abridged financial statements for the period from April 21, 2004 (the date of incorporation) to December 31, 2004. The preparation and content of these abridged financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's directors. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the abridged financial statements taken as a whole based on our audit work performed in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, which require examination, by means of selective tests, of the documentation supporting the abridged financial statements and evaluation of their presentation, of the accounting principles applied and of the estimates made.

As a result of the losses incurred in 2004, the Company is in a situation of mandatory dissolution, in accordance with Article 163 of the revised Spanish Corporations Law. Consequently, the Company's directors must adopt the appropriate measures to restore the Company's net worth, for which purpose it has the financial support of its Sole Shareholder.

In our opinion, the abridged financial statements for the period from April 21 to December 31, 2004, referred to above present, in all material respects, a true and fair view of the net worth and financial position of Santander International Debt, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) as of December 31, 2004, and of the results of its operations in the aforementioned period, and contain the required information, sufficient for their proper interpretation and comprehension, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and standards.

DELOITTE

Registered in ROAC under no. S0692

Germán de la Fuente

April 1, 2005

Deloitte S.L. are members of the Instituto de Censores Jurados de Cuentas de España.

89

SANTANDER INTERNATIONAL DEBT, S.A. (SOLE-SHAREHOLDER COMPABRIDGED BALANCE SHEET AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2004 (NOTES 1, 2, 3 at

(Euros)

| ASSETS | December 31, 2004 | SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY AND LI |
|--------------------------------|-------------------|----------------------------------------------------|
| NONCURRENT ASSETS: | | SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY: |
| Start-up expenses (Note 5) | 1,770 | Capital stock (Note 9) |
| Long-term investments (Note 6) | | Loss for the period |
| Total noncurrent assets | | Total shareholder's equity |
| DEFERRED CHARGES (Note 7) | | DEFERRED REVENUES |
| | | LONG-TERM DEBT: |
| | | Debt securities and other similar issues (Note 10) |
| | | Total long-term debt |
| CURRENT ASSETS: | | CURRENT LIABILITIES: |
| Cash (Note 8) | 262,722 | Taxes payable |
| Accrual accounts (Note 6) | | Accrual accounts (Notes 10 and 12) |
| Total current assets | | Total current liabilities |
| TOTAL ASSETS | 3,895,467,168 | TOTAL SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY A |

The accompanying Notes 1 to 15 are an integral part of the abridged balance sheet as of Decen

90

SANTANDER INTERNATIONAL DEBT, S.A. (SOLE-SHAREHOLDER COMP

ABRIDGED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS FOR THE PERIOD FROM APRIL 21, 2004 (THE DATE OF INCORPORATION TO DECEMBER 31, 2004 (NOTES 1, 2, 3 AND 4)

(Euros)

| DEBIT | Period from April 21 to December 31, 2004 | CREDIT |
|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------|
| EXPENSES: | | REVENUES: |
| Outside services (Note 12) Start-up expense amortization expense (Note 5) | 30,036 234 | |
| Operating income | _ | Operating loss |
| Financial and similar expenses — On other debts (Note 10) Other financial expenses (Note 7) | 4,094,957 | Financial revenues (Note 6) |
| Financial income | 4,031 | Financial loss |
| Income from ordinary activities | _ | Loss on ordinary activities |
| Extraordinary income | _ | Extraordinary loss |
| Income before taxes | _ | Loss before taxes |
| Corporate income tax (Note 11) | _ | |
| Income for the period | _ | Loss for the period |

The accompanying Notes 1 to 15 are an integral part of the abridged statement of operations for the period from

Translation of abridged financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (Note 15). In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails. The issuer confirms that the abridged financial statements have been correctly translated.

Santander International Debt, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company)

Notes to Abridged Financial Statements for the Period from April 21, 2004 (the Date of Incorporation) to December 31, 2004

1. Company description

Santander International Debt, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company) — "the Company" —, a corporation forming part of the Santander Group ("the Group", Note 9), was incorporated for an indefinite period of time on April 21, 2004.

The Company's registered office is located at Ciudad Grupo Santander, Avenida de Cantabria, s/n, Boadilla del Monte.

Its sole corporate purpose is to issue ordinary or senior debt secured by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (Note 9).

In view of the business activity carried on by the Company, it does not have any environmental liability, expenses, assets, provisions or contingencies that might be material with respect to its net worth, financial position or results. Therefore, no specific disclosures relating to environmental issues are included in these notes to abridged financial statements.

2. Basis of presentation of the abridged financial statements

a) True and fair view

The abridged financial statements for the period from April 21 to December 31, 2004, which were prepared by the Company's directors in accordance with the revised Corporations Law, are presented in the formats established by Royal Decree 1643/1990 approving the Spanish National Chart of Accounts and, accordingly, give a true and fair view of the Company's net worth, financial position and results of operations for the period.

The abridged financial statements have not yet been approved by the Sole Shareholder. However, the Company's Board of Directors considers that they will be approved without any changes.

b) Accounting policies and valuation standards

The abridged financial statements were prepared by applying the accounting principles and valuation standards described in Note 3. All obligatory accounting principles and valuation standards with a material effect on the abridged financial statements were applied in their preparation.

3. Accounting principles and valuation standards applied

The main accounting principles and valuation standards applied in preparing the abridged financial statements were as follows:

a) Incorporation and preopening expenses

Start-up expenses are recorded at cost, net of the related accumulated amortization. They are amortized on a straight-line basis over five years.

b) Debt securities and other similar issues

The subordinated debt issues launched by the Company, which are secured by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (Note 10), are recorded at their redemption value.

c) Deferred charges

Debt arrangement expenses are recorded at cost and are charged to income systematically through the date of maturity of the issues.

Deferred interest expenses are recorded for the difference between the redemption value and the amount received on issuing the related debt securities and are allocated to income by the interest method over a maximum period ending on the date on which the debt can be repaid in full.

d) Recognition of revenues and expenses

Revenues and expenses are generally recognized on an accrual basis, i.e. when the actual flow of the related goods and services occurs, regardless of when the resulting monetary or financial flow arises.

d) Corporate income tax

As permitted by current legislation, the Company files consolidated corporate income tax returns as part of Consolidated Group 17/89, the parent company of which is Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (Notes 9 and 11).

The expense for corporate income tax of the period is calculated on the basis of book income before taxes, increased or decreased, as appropriate, by the permanent differences from taxable income, which are taken to be the differences between taxable income and income per books before taxes which do not reverse in subsequent periods. This expense is recorded under the "Corporate Income Tax" caption in the abridged statement of operations.

e) Classification of receivables and payables

The various items in the accompanying abridged balance sheet are classified as current assets and current liabilities when they mature at less than twelve months from period-end. Receivables and payables maturing at over twelve months are recorded as long-term items.

f) Foreign currency transactions

Long-term investments whose acquisition cost was denominated in foreign currencies were translated to euros at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of each acquisition. This value is maintained for so long as it does not exceed the value that would result from applying the year-end exchange rates to the acquisition cost of the related investments denominated in foreign currencies.

Debts whose amount was denominated in foreign currencies were translated to euros at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of arrangement of the debt. At year-end they are adjusted to the exchange rate then ruling.

Negative differences arising from application of the aforementioned methods are charged to period income, while unrealized positive differences arising in each homogeneous group of currencies are recorded as "Deferred Revenues" on the liability side of the balance sheet and can be offset against the negative differences relating to the same group of currencies charged to income for the period. In the case of exchange rate hedging transactions, for translation purposes, only the unhedged portion of the risk will be considered.

4. Allocation of loss

The proposed allocation of the loss for the period from April 21 to December 31, 2004, that the Board of Directors will submit for approval by the Sole Shareholder is that the loss be allocated in full to "Accumulated Losses". The losses were due to certain expenses relating to issues of debt being incurred on issue and amortized against income later.

5. Start-up expenses

The detail of the balance of this caption in the accompanying abridged balance sheet and of the variation therein is as follows:

| | Euros | | |
|------------------------|------------------------|---------|------------|
| | Amortization Balance a | | |
| | Additions | Expense | Period-End |
| Incorporation expenses | 2,004 | 234 | 1,770 |

6. Long-term investments

The detail of the balance of this caption in the accompanying abridged balance sheet as of December 31, 2004, is as follows:

| | Interest Rate | Maturity Date | Amount (Euros) |
|-------------------------------------------|------------------|------------------|-------------------|
| Time deposits at: | | | |
| Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A.(*): | | | |
| Euros | Floating | 12/14/06 | 1,999,928,000 |
| U.S. dollars | Floating | 06/15/06 | 36,638,045 |
| Pounds sterling | Floating | 12/17/07 | 354,113,494 |
| Euros | Floating | 12/20/07 | 1,499,880,000 |
| | | | 3,890,559,539 |

(*) Note 9.

During the reporting period the Company arranged time deposits at Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (Note 9) in order to finance the payment of interest on the related ordinary or senior debt issue (Note 10).

The interest earned on these time deposits in the period from April 21 to December 31, 2004, which amounted to €4,106,219, is recorded under the "Financial Revenues" caption in the accompanying abridged statement of operations. As of December 31, 2004, this amount had not yet been collected and, accordingly, it is recorded under the "Accrual Accounts" caption on the asset side of the accompanying abridged balance sheet. The average annual interest earned during the period was 3.34%.

7. Deferred charges

The detail of the balance of this caption in the accompanying abridged balance sheet is as follows:

| | Euros |
|---------------------------------------------------------------|---------|
| Debt arrangement expenses | 221,169 |
| Deferred interest expenses on marketable securities (Note 10) | 315,749 |
| Total | 536,918 |

The financial expenses incurred in this connection in the period from April 21 to December 31, 2004, totaled €7,231, and this amount is recorded under the "Financial and Similar Expenses — Other Financial Expenses" caption in the accompanying abridged statement of operations.

8. Cash

The detail of the balance of this caption in the accompanying abridged balance sheet as of December 31, 2004, is as follows:

| | Amount (Euros) |
|------------------------------------------|----------------|
| Demand deposits at: | |
| Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A.(*) | |
| Euros | 122,135 |
| U.S. dollars | 70,606 |
| Pounds sterling | 69,981 |
| | 262,722 |

^(*) Note 9.

The balance of these deposits did not earn any interest in the period from April 21 to December 31, 2004.

9. Capital stock

The Company's capital stock as of December 31, 2004, consisted of 602 fully subscribed and paid common registered shares (of a single series) of €100 par value each. All of the shares are owned by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. and, consequently, in accordance with Law 2/1995, the Company is a sole-shareholder corporation.

10. Debt securities and other similar issues

The balance of this caption includes the various ordinary or senior debt issues launched by the Company and secured by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (Note 9), which for debt seniority purposes rank below general creditors, the detail being as follows:

| | Currency | Interest | Issue Date | Maturity Date | Amount (Euros) |
|------------------------------|-----------------|----------|---------------|------------------|-------------------|
| Ordinary or senior debt (*): | | | | | |
| Series 1 | Euros | Floating | 12/14/04 | 12/14/04 | 2,000,000,000 |
| Series 2 | U.S. dollars | Floating | 12/15/04 | 06/15/06 | 36,708,025 |
| Series 3 | Pounds sterling | Floating | 12/17/04 | 12/17/07 | 354,584,782 |
| Series 4 | Euros | Floating | 12/20/04 | 12/20/07 | 1,500,000,000 |
| | | | | | 3,891,292,807 |

^(*) Debt securities listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

All these issues have the joint and several guarantee of Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (Note 9). As of December 31, 2004, these issues had been subscribed and paid in full.

The main features of each series are as follows:

Series 1: 20,000 securities, represented by book entries, of €100,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.05%, payable quarterly on March, June, September and December 14 of each year through the date of maturity.

Series 2: 500 securities, represented by book entries, of US\$ 100,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month U.S. dollar Libor, payable quarterly on March, June, September and December 15 of each year through the date of maturity.

Series 3: 25,000 securities, represented by book entries, of GBP 10,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99.937%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month pound sterling Libor, payable quarterly on March, June, September and December 17 of each year through the date of maturity.

Series 4: 1,500,000 securities, represented by book entries, of €10,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99.994%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.06%, payable quarterly on March, June, September and December 20 of each year through the date of maturity.

The difference between the issue value and the redemption value of series 3 and 4 is recorded under the "Deferred Charges" caption, net of the amount of interest accrued in the period from April 21 to December 31, 2004, which was recorded under the "Financial and Similar Expenses — Other Financial Expenses" caption in the accompanying abridged statement of operations (Note 7).

In the period from April 21 to December 31, 2004, this ordinary or senior debt issue bore interest of €4,094,957, which is recorded under the "Financial and Similar Expenses — On Other Debts" caption in the accompanying abridged statement of operations. This interest, which had not been paid as of December 31, 2004, was recorded under the "Accrual Accounts" caption on the liability side of the accompanying abridged balance sheet. The debt issue bore average annual interest of 2.95% in the aforementioned period.

11. Tax matters

The Company files consolidated tax returns as part of the Group headed by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A.

As of December 31, 2004, the loss before taxes per books was the same as the tax base for corporate income tax purposes.

12. Outside services

The balance of the "Outside Services" caption in the accompanying abridged statement of operations includes €25,620 relating to the fees paid by the Company to its auditor for the audit of the Company's financial statements for the period from April 21 to December 31, 2004. In the aforementioned period the Company paid its auditor €12,000 for other services required under current legislation, and this amount is recorded under the "Start-Up Expenses" caption on the asset side of the accompanying abbreviated balance sheet.

13. Other disclosures

Since the Company does not have any employees and is managed directly by its directors, it did not record any employee welfare expenses in the period.

The Company's directors did not receive any compensation, salaries or attendance fees of any kind in the period from April 21 to December 31, 2004.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had not granted any advances or loans to the former or current members of the Board, and it did not have any pension, life insurance or guarantee commitments to them.

Pursuant to Article 127 ter.4 of the Spanish Corporations Law, introduced by Law 26/2003, which amends Securities Market Law 24/1988, and the revised Spanish Corporations Law, in order to reinforce the transparency of listed corporations, the members of the managing body hereby state that they do not own any equity interests in companies engaging in an activity that is identical, similar or complementary to the activity that constitutes the corporate purpose of Santander International Debt, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company).

Also, pursuant to the aforementioned Law, they hereby state that they do not perform, as independent professionals or as employees, any activities at non-Santander Group companies that are identical, similar or complementary to the activity that constitutes the corporate purpose of Santander International Debt, S.A. (Sole-Shareholder Company).

14. Events subsequent to year-end

Subsequent to December 31, 2004, the Company launched five new issues of ordinary or senior debt, the main features of which are as follows:

Series 5: 1,000,000 securities, issued on January 25, 2005, and represented by book entries, of €1,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99.785%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.075%, payable quarterly on January, April, July and October 25 of each year through the date of maturity (January 25, 2010).

Series 6: 1,000,000 securities, issued on February 22, 2005, and represented by book entries, of €1,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100.015%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.05%, payable quarterly on February, May, August and November 22 of each year through the date of maturity (February 22, 2008).

Series 7: 1,500,000 securities, issued on March 18, 2005, and represented by book entries, of €1,000 par value each, with an issue value of 99.912%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Euribor plus 0.05%, payable quarterly on March, June, September and December 18 of each year through the date of maturity (March 18, 2008).

Series 8: 550 securities, issued on March 18, 2005, and represented by book entries, of GBP 100,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 3-month Libor plus 0.0125%, payable quarterly on March, June, September and December 18 of each year through the date of maturity (September 18, 2006).

Series 9: 1,750 securities, issued on March 21, 2005, and represented by book entries, of €100,000 par value each, with an issue value of 100%. Holders are entitled to receive a return of 1-month Euribor plus 0.03%, payable monthly on the 21st day of each month through the date of maturity (September 21, 2006).

15. Explanation added for translation to English

These abridged financial statements are presented on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in Spain. Certain accounting practices applied by the Company that conform with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain may not conform with generally accepted accounting principles in other countries.

Deloitte.

Plaza Pablo Ruiz Picasso, 1 Torre Picasso 28020 Madrid España

Tel.: +34 915 14 50 00 Fax: +34 915 14 51 80 +34 915 56 74 30 www.deloitte.es

AUDITOR'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

To the Board of Directors of Santander International Debt, SA, Unipersonal (the "Company"):

- 1. We report on the accompanying cash flow statement for the year ended December 31, 2005 and the related notes that have been prepared for the purposes of inclusion in the Registration Document dated November, 2005. The cash-flow statement has been prepared in order to complement the Company's abridged financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005 to the extent necessary to meet the disclosure requirements of EU Regulation 2004-8009.
- It is Directors' responsibility to prepare the additional disclosures in accordance with the requirements of EU Regulation 2004-809 and CESR/05-054b.
 - The Spanish Corporations Law and the Royal Decree 1643/1990 approving the Spanish National Chart of Accounts, which are applicable to the elaboration of the Company's abridged financial statements, do not require a cash-flow statement; consequently, no accounting principles exist in Spain in order to regulate the elaboration of such statement. Consequently, as described in the related notes, following the contents of the paragraph 86 of the CESR/05-054b, the Directors of the Company have used the methodology of compilation and presentation described in the International Accounting Standard 7, applied over the financial information contained in the Company's abridged financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005, prepared in accordance with the accounting standards generally accepted in Spain.
- 3. It is our responsibility to provide the opinion required by Annex IV item 13.1 of EU Regulation 2004-809. We do not accept any responsibility for any information derived from financial statements previously reported on and used and used in the compilation of the additional disclosures beyond that owed to those whom any reports on those financial statements were addressed by us at the date of their issue.
- 4. Our work consisted primarily of considering the evidence supporting the additional disclosures and making inquires to the people responsible of financial and accounting matters. We planned and performed our work to obtain all the information and explanations we considered necessary to provide us with reasonable assurance that he cash-flow statement has been properly prepared in accordance with the contents of the related notes.
- 5. In our opinion, the attached cash flow statement has been properly prepared accordingly with the accompanying related notes.
- 6. This report has been issued by requirement of Santander International Debt, S.A., Unipersonal, in the context of the incorporation by reference to the Base Prospectus dated 18 November 2005 by virtue of a Supplement to such Prospectus for the Santander International Debt, S.A., Unipersonal and Santander Issuances, S.A. Unipersonal €25,000,000,000 Programme for the Issuance of Debt Instruments to be listed in the Luxembourg Stock Exchange or for its inclusion in any other Base Prospectus in relation to a Programme for the Issuance of Debt Instruments by the Issuers to be registered with the Luxembourg Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (the "CSSF") on or after 18 November 2005, and may not be relied on by you or used for any other purpose, not be referred to in any other document nor made available to any other party nor published in a document other than referred to above without our consent. We will not accept any responsibility from third parties other than the addressees.

DELOITTE, S.L.

Germán de la Fuente

September 29, 2006



CASH-FLOW STATEMENT OF SANTANDER INTERNATIONAL DEBT, S.A., (Unipersonal) FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

| | Euros |
|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------|
| | 31/12/2005 |
| Cash flows from operations: | |
| Net Income for the period | 43,552 |
| Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: | |
| Amortization of deferred cost of incorporation | 429 |
| Amortization and depreciation | 1.387.819 |
| Increase/ (Decrease) in taxes payable | 9.322 |
| Increase/ (decrease) in current liabilities | 30.144.645 |
| Exchange differences in translation | (11.144) |
| Net cash from/ (used in) operating activities | 31.574.623 |
| Cash flows from investing activities: | |
| Decrease/ (increase) in long-term investments | (10.177.010.282) |
| Decrease/ (increase) in inter-group long-term investments | (29.320.402) |
| Accrued Interest received | (165.883) |
| Net cash from/ (used in) financing activities | (10.206.496.567) |
| Cash flows from financial activities: | |
| Deferred cost of incorporation | (1.701) |
| Increase/ (decrease) in Capital Stock | 120.400 |
| Decrease/ (increase) in Issuance cost | (8.478.024) |
| Acquisition of preferred stock | 10.185.259.606 |
| Net cash from/ (used in) financing activities | 10.176.900.281 |
| Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents | 1.978.337 |
| Cash balance at the beginning of the year | 262.722 |
| Cash balance at the end of the period | 2.241.059 |

Santander International Debt, S.A., Unipersonal

Notes to the cash flow statement for the year ended December 31, 2005.

1) Basis of presentation of the cash flow statement

The cash flow statement of Santander International Debt, S.A., Unipersonal (the "Company") for the year ended December 31, 2005 and the related notes have been prepared for the purposes of its incorporation by reference to the Base Prospectus dated 18 November 2005 by virtue of a Supplement to such Prospectus, related to the Santander International Debt, S.A. Unipersonal and Santander Issuances, S.A., Unipersonal (together the "Issuers") guaranteed by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. €25,000,000,000 Programme for the Issuance of Debt Instruments to be listed in the Luxembourg Stock Exchange or for its inclusion in any other Base Prospectus in relation to a Programme for the Issuance of Debt Instruments by the Issuers to be registered with the Luxembourg Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (the "CSSF") on or after 18 November 2005.

The cash flow statement has been prepared in order to complement the Company's abridged financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005 to the extent necessary to meet the disclosure requirements of EU Regulation 2004-809.

The Spanish Corporations Law and the Royall Decree 1643/1990 approving the Spanish National Chart of Accounts, which are applicable to the elaboration of the Company's abridged financial statements, do not require a cash flow statement as an integral part of the abridged financial statement or as a separate financial statement; consequently, no accounting policies exist in Spain in order to regulate the elaboration of such statement.

Consequently, the Company's Directors, who are responsible for preparing the additional disclosures in accordance with the requirements of EU Regulation 2004-809 and CESR/05-054b, have elaborated the cash flow statement according with the following bases:

- a) The methodology of compilation and presentation described in the International Accounting Standard 7 has been used; consequently, the cash flow statement is presented accordingly with the aforementioned standard.
- b) The calculation has been performed using the figures and other financial information included in the Company's abridged financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005, prepared in accordance with the accounting standards generally accepted in Spain, which have not been modified or adjusted. Those abridged financial statements were approved by the sole-shareholder as of June 29, 2006.

2) Method of elaboration of the cash flow statement

- a) Cash and cash equivalent: comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. An investment normally qualifies as a cash equivalent only when it has a short maturity of less than three months.
- b) Operating activities: are the principal revenue-producing activities. The Directors have chosen to report cash flows from operating activities using the indirect method, whereby profit or loss is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals o accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expense associated with investing or financial cash flows.
- c) Investing activities: are the acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other investments.
- d) Financing activities: are activities that result in changes in the size and composition of the contributed equity and borrowings of the Company.

Deloitte.

Raimundo Fdez. Villaverde, 65 28003 Madrid España

Tel.: +34 915 14 50 00 Fax: +34 915 14 51 80 +34 915 56 74 30 www.deloitte.es

AUDITOR'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

To the Board of Directors of Santander International Debt, S.A., Unipersonal (the "Company"):

- We report on the accompanying cash flow statement for the period from April 21, 2004 (the date of incorporation) to December 31, 2004 and the related notes that have been prepared for the purposes of inclusion in the Base Prospectus dated November, 2005. The cash-flow statement has been prepared in order to complement the Company's abridged financial statements for the period from April 21, 2004 (the date of incorporation) to December 31, 2004 to the extent necessary to meet the disclosure requirements of EU Regulation 2004-809.
- It is Directors' responsibility to prepare the additional disclosures in accordance with the requirements of EU Regulation 2004-809 and CESR/05-054b.
 - The Spanish Corporations Law and the Royal Decree 1643/1990 approving the Spanish National Chart of Accounts, which are applicable to the elaboration of the Company's abridged financial statements, do not require a cash flow statement; consequently, no accounting principles exist in Spain in order to regulate the elaboration of such statement. Consequently, as described in the related notes, following the contents of the paragraph 86 of the CESR/05-054b, the Directors of the Company have used the methodology of compilation and presentation described in the International Accounting Standard 7, applied over the financial information contained in the Company's abridged financial statements for the period from April 21, 2004 (the date of incorporation) to December 31, 2004, prepared in accordance with the accounting standards generally accepted in Spain.
- 3. It is our responsibility to provide the opinion required by Annex IV item 13.1 of EU Regulation 2004-809. We do not accept any responsibility for any information derived from financial statements previously reported on and used in the compilation of the additional disclosures beyond that owed to those to whom any reports on those financial statements were addressed by us at the date of their issue.
- 4. Our work consisted primarily of considering the evidence supporting the additional disclosures and making inquires to the people responsible of financial and accounting matters. We planned and performed our work to obtain all the information and explanations we considered necessary to provide us with reasonable assurance that the cash flow statement has been properly prepared in accordance with the contents of the related notes.
- 5. In our opinion, the attached cash flow statement has been properly prepared accordingly with the accompanying related notes.
- 6. This report has been issued by requirement of Santander International Debt, S.A., Unipersonal, in the context of the elaboration of the Base Prospectus for the Santander International Debt, S.A., Unipersonal and Santander Issuances, S.A. Unipersonal €25,000,000,000 Programme for the Issuance of Debt Instruments and may not be relied on by you or used for any other purpose, nor be referred to in any other document nor made available to any other party nor published in a document other than the Base Prospectus referred to above without our consent. We will not accept any responsibility from third parties other than the addressees.

DELOITTE, S.L

Germán de la Fuente

November 11, 2005



CASH-FLOW STATEMENT OF SANTANDER INTERNATIONAL DEBT, S.A. (Unipersonal) FOR THE PERIOD FROM APRIL 21, 2004 (DATE OF INCORPORATION) TO DECEMBER 31, 2004 (NOTES 1 AND 2)

| | EUROS |
|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------|
| Cash flows from operations: | |
| Net Income for the period | (26,239) |
| Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: | |
| Amortization of deferred cost of incorporation | 234 |
| Amortization and depreciation | 7,230 |
| Increase/(Decrease) in taxes payable | |
| Increase/(decrease) in current liabilities | 4,129,184 |
| Exchange differences in translation | 11,217 |
| Net cash from/(used in) operating activities | 4,121,625 |
| Cash flows from investing activities: | |
| Decrease/(increase) in long-term investments | (3,890,559,539) |
| Decrease/(increase) in inter-group long-term investments | (4,106,219) |
| Accrued Interest received | |
| Net cash from/(used in) financing activities | (3,894,665,758) |
| Cash flows from financial activities: | |
| Deferred cost of incorporation | (2,004) |
| Increase/(decrease) in Capital Stock | 60,200 |
| Decrease/(increase) in Issuance cost | (544,148) |
| Acquisition of preferred stock | 3,891,292,807 |
| Net cash from/(used in) financing activities | 3,890,806,855 |
| Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents | 262,722 |
| Cash balance at the beginning of the year | _ |
| Cash balance at the end of the period | 262,722 |

The accompanying Notes 1 and 2 are an integral part of the cash flow statement for the period from April 21 to December 31, 2004.

Santander International Debt, S.A., Unipersonal

Notes to the cash flow statement for the period from April 21, 2004 (the date of incorporation) to December 31, 2004.

1. Basis of presentation of the cash flow statement

The cash flow statement of Santander International Debt, S.A., Unipersonal (the "Company") for the period from April 21, 2004 (the date of incorporation) to December 31, 2004 and the related notes have been prepared for the purposes of inclusion in the Base Prospectus dated November 2005, related to the Santander International Debt, S.A. Unipersonal and Santander Issuances, S.A., Unipersonal guaranteed by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. €25,000,000,000 Programme for the Issuance of Debt Instruments in the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

The cash-flow statement has been prepared in order to complement the Company's abridged financial statements for the period from April 21, 2004 (the date of incorporation) to December 31, 2004 to the extent necessary to meet the disclosure requirements of EU Regulation 2004-809.

The Spanish Corporations Law and the Royal Decree 1643/1990 approving the Spanish National Chart of Accounts, which are applicable to the elaboration of the Company's abridged financial statements, do not require a cash flow statement as an integral part of the abridged financial statements or as a separate financial statement; consequently, no accounting principles exist in Spain in order to regulate the elaboration of such statement.

Consequently, the Company's Directors, who are responsible for preparing the additional disclosures in accordance with the requirements of EU Regulation 2004-809 and CESR/05-054b, have elaborated the cash flow statement according with the following bases:

- a) The methodology of compilation and presentation described in the International Accounting Standard 7 has been used; consequently, the cash flow statement is presented accordingly with the aforementioned standard.
- b) The calculation has been performed using the figures and other financial information included in the Company's abridged financial statements for the period from April 21, 2004 (the date of incorporation) to December 31, 2004, prepared in accordance with the accounting standards generally accepted in Spain, which have not been modified or adjusted. Those abridged financial statements were approved by the sole-shareholder as of June 22, 2005.

2. Method of elaboration of the cash flow statement

- a) Cash and cash equivalent: comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. An investment normally qualifies as a cash equivalent only when it has a short maturity of less than three months.
- b) Operating activities: are the principal revenue-producing activities. The Directors have chosen to report cash flows from operating activities using the indirect method, whereby profit or loss is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals on accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows.
- c) Investing activities: are the acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other investments.
- d) Financing activities: are activities that result in changes in the size and composition of the contributed equity and borrowings of the Company.

13.2 Financial statements: If the issuer prepares both own and consolidated financial statements, include at least the consolidated financial statements in the base prospectus.

Each of the Issuers prepares only own financial statements.

13.3 Auditing of historical annual financial information

13.3.1 A statement that the historical financial information has been audited. If audit reports on the historical financial information have been refused by the statutory auditors or if they contain qualifications or disclaimers, such refusal or such qualifications or disclaimers must be reproduced in full and the reasons given.

The historical financial information included herein has been audited. The reports of the auditors do not contain any qualifications or disclaimers.

13.3.2 An indication of other information in the base prospectus which has been audited by the auditors.

There is no such other information.

13.3.3 Where financial data in the base prospectus is not extracted from the issuer's audited financial statements state the source of the data and state that the data is un-audited.

There is no such information.

13.4 Age of latest financial information

13.4.1 The last year of audited financial information may not be older than 18 months from the date of the base prospectus.

The last year of audited financial information relating to each of the Issuers is not older than 18 months from the date of this Base Prospectus.

13.5 Interim and other financial information

13.5.1 If the issuer has published quarterly or half yearly financial information since the date of its last audited financial statements, these must be included in the base prospectus. If the quarterly or half yearly financial information has been reviewed or audited the audit or review report must also be included. If the quarterly or half yearly financial information is un-audited or has not been reviewed state that fact.

The unaudited financial statements of each of the Issuers for the six months ended 30 June 2006 are set out below.

SANTANDER INTERNATIONAL DEBT, S.A.

AS AT 30 JUNE 2006

Amount in euros

| TOTAL ASSETS | | 21,906,761,478.39 | LIABILITIES | |
|--------------------------------|-------------------|-------------------|------------------------------|------|
| Tangible and intangible Assets | | 45,123,407.14 | Net Equity | |
| Undeveloped Land | | | Share Capital | |
| Buildings | | | Legal Reserve | |
| Assets under System of Leasing | | | Issue Premium | |
| Others | 45,123,407.14 | | Remaining Reserves | |
| Cumulative Depreciation | | | Neg. Result Prev. Fin. Year/ | |
| | | | Remainder | |
| | | | Current Result (Profit/loss) | |
| Financial Investments | | 21,772,961,169.53 | BSCH Participating Loan | |
| Variable Income Portfolio | | | Interim Dividend | |
| Fixed Income Portfolio | | | | |
| Credits (Group and Others) | 21,772,961,169.53 | | Miscellaneous Creditors | |
| | | | Long Term (Group and Others) | 21,7 |
| Miscellaneous Debtors (Tax | | | | |
| dept., end of period | | | Short Term (Tax dept./Soc. | |
| adjustments and others) | | 85,201,532.89 | Sec./Others) | 1 |
| | | | , | |
| Cash | | 3,475,368.83 | | |

SANTANDER INTERNATIONAL DEBT, S.A.

AS AT 30 JUNE 2006

Amount in euros

| | P | & L |
|--------------------------------|----------------|--------------------------------|
| EXPENSES | | INCOME |
| Staff Expenses | 0.00 | Sales and Income |
| External Services | 150,682.43 | Financial Income |
| Taxes | 0.00 | Extraordinary Positive Results |
| Financial Expenses | 292,744,267.64 | |
| Allocations | 370.50 | |
| Extraordinary Negative Results | 580.00 | |
| | | |
| RESULT | 19,880.73 | |

SANTANDER ISSUANCES, S.A.

AS AT 30 JUNE 2006

Amount in euros

| TOTAL ASSETS | | 3,835,938,164.28 | LIABILITIES | |
|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------|------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---|
| Tangible and Intangible Assets Undeveloped Land Buildings Assets under System of Leasing Others Cumulative Depreciation | 8,580,300.00 | 8,580,300.00 | Net Equity Share Capital Legal Reserve Issue Premium Remaining Reserves Neg. Result Prev. Fin. Year/ | |
| Financial Investments Variable Income Portfolio Fixed Income Portfolio Credits (Group and Others) | 3,801,296,086.26 | 3,801,296,086.26 | Remainder Current Result (Profit/loss) BSCH Participating Loan Interim Dividend Miscellaneous Creditors | |
| Miscellaneous Debtors (Tax dept., end of period adjustments and others) | | 24,523,330.59 | Long Term (Group and Others) Short Term (Tax dept./Soc. Sec./Others) | 3 |
| Cash | | 1,538,447.43 | | |

| P & L | | | | |
|---------------------------------------|---------------|--------------------------------|--|--|
| EXPENSES | | INCOME | | |
| Staff Expenses | 0.00 | Sales and Income | | |
| External Services | 149,002.85 | Financial Income | | |
| Taxes | 0.00 | Extraordinary Positive Results | | |
| Financial Expenses | 33,706,063.35 | | | |
| Allocations | 205.32 | | | |
| Extraordinary Negative Results | 3,607.20 | | | |
| | | | | |
| RESULT | -22,809.63 | | | |

13.5.2 If the base prospectus is dated more than nine months after the end of the last audited financial year, it must contain interim financial information, covering at least the first six months of the financial year. If the interim financial information is un-audited state that fact.

The interim financial information must include comparative statements for the same period in the prior financial year, except that the requirement for comparative balance sheet information may be satisfied by presenting the years end balance sheet.

See paragraph 13.5.1 above.

13.6 Legal and arbitration proceedings: Information on any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which the issuer is aware), during a period covering at least the previous 12 months which may have, or have had in the recent past, significant effects on the issuer and/or group's financial position or profitability, or provide an appropriate negative statement.

There are no governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which each Issuer is aware), during a period covering at least the previous 12 months which may have, or have had in the recent past, significant effects on any Issuer's financial position or profitability.

13.7 Significant change in the issuer's financial or trading position: A description of any significant change in the financial or trading position of the Issuers which has occurred since the end of the last financial period for which either audited financial information or interim financial information have been published, or an appropriate negative statement.

Since 30 June 2006, Santander International Debt, S.A. has made the following debt securities issues:

| Issue Date | Description |
|-------------------|-----------------------------------------------------------------|
| 04-07-2006 | Euro 50,000,000 Fixed Instrument due 2008, Series 53 |
| 23-10-2006 | Euro 1,000,000,000 Floating Rate Instrument due 2009, Series 62 |
| 10-11-2006 | USD 100,000,000 Floating Rate Notes due October 2009, Series 63 |
| 16-11-2006 | CAD 400,000,000 Floating Rate Instruments Due 2009 Series 68 |
| 05-10-2006 | Euro 500,000,000 Floating Rate Instrument due 2011, Series 60 |
| 05-07-2006 | USD 15,000,000 Index Linked Interest due 2011, Series 52 |
| 18-07-2006 | GBP 200,000,000 Floating Rate Instrument due 2011, Series 55 |
| 01-08-2006 | USD 10,000,000 Index Linked Interest due 2011, Series 56 |
| 24-08-2006 | Euro 625,000,000 Floating Rate Instrument due 2012, Series 58 |
| 09-08-2006 | Euro 250,000,000 Floating Rate Instrument due 2013, Series 57 |
| 14-07-2006 | NOK 500,000,000 Fixed Instrument due 2016, Series 54 |
| 13-09-2006 | Euro 110,000,000 Floating Rate Instrument due 2021, Series 59 |
| 31-10-2006 | Euro 100,000,000 Floating Rate Instrument due 2029, Series 61 |
| 30-10-2006 | Euro 500,000,000 Floating Rate Instrument due 2010, Series 65 |
| | |

Since 30 June 2006, Santander Issuances, S.A. Unipersonal has made the following debt securities issues:

| Issue Date | Description |
|-------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| 25-07-2006 | Euro 550,000,000 Floating Rate Instrument due 2017, Series 9 11NC6 |
| 25-07-2006 | GBP 300,000,000 Fixed / Floating Rate Instrument due 2017, Series 10 11NC6 |

14 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

14.1 Share Capital

14.1.1 The amount of the issued capital, the number and classes of the shares of which it is composed with details of their principal characteristics, the part of the issued capital still to be paid up, with an indication of the number, or total nominal value, and the type of the shares not yet fully paid up, broken down where applicable according to the extent to which they have been paid up.

The share capital of Santander International Debt, S.A.U. is €180,600 divided into 1,806 ordinary shares with a par value of €100 each and the share capital of Santander Issuances, S.A.U is €60,200 divided into 602 ordinary shares with a par value of €100 each. All of the shares are issued and fully paid-up and constitute a single class.

14.2 Memorandum and Articles of Association.

14.2.1 The register and the entry number therein, if applicable, and a description of the issuer's objects and purposes and where they can be found in the memorandum and articles of association.

The exclusive object of Santanter International Debt, S.A. Unipersonal is to issue ordinary or senior debt with the guarantee of Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A., as set out in Article 2 of the *Estatutos* of Santanter International Debt, S.A. Unipersonal.

The exclusive object of Santander Issuances, S.A. Unipersonal is to issue subordinated debt with the guarantee of Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A., as set out in Article 2 of the *Estatutos* of Santander Issuances, S.A. Unipersonal.

15 MATERIAL CONTRACTS

15.1 A brief summary of all material contracts that are not entered into in the ordinary course of the issuer's business, which could result in any group member being under an obligation or entitlement that is material to the issuer's ability to meet its obligation to security holders in respect of the securities being issued.

There are not such material contracts.

16 THIRD PARTY INFORMATION AND STATEMENT BY EXPERTS AND DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTEREST

16.1 Where a statement or report attributed to a person as an expert is included in the Base Prospectus, provide such person's name, business address, qualifications and material interest if any in the issuer. If the report has been produced at the issuer's request a statement to that effect that such statement or report is included, in the form and context in which it is included, with the consent of that person who has authorised the contents of that part of the Base Prospectus.

The report of Deloitte, S.L. contained herein is included, in the form and context in which it is included, with the consent of Deloitte, S.L. who has authorised the contents of that part of this Base Prospectus.

16.2 Where information has been sourced from a third party, provide a confirmation that this information has been accurately reproduced and that as far as the issuer is aware and is able to ascertain from information published by that third party, no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading. In addition, the issuer shall identify the source(s) of the information.

No such information is included.

17 DOCUMENTS ON DISPLAY

- 17.1 A statement that for the life of the base prospectus the following documents (or copies thereof), where applicable, may be inspected:
 - (a) the memorandum and articles of association of the issuer;
 - (b) all reports, letters, and other documents, historical financial information, valuations and statements prepared by any expert at the issuer's request any part of which is included or referred to in the base prospectus;
 - (c) the historical financial information of the issuer or, in the case of a group, the historical financial information of the issuer and its subsidiary undertakings for each of the two financial years preceding the publication of the base prospectus.

An indication of where the documents on display may be inspected, by physical or electronic means.

The following documents may be inspected at the registered office of each of the Issuers, at the offices of each of the Issue and Paying Agent and of the Paying Agent in Luxembourg specified at the end of the Base Prospectus:

- 1. the estatutos (by-laws) of each of the Issuers and of the Guarantor; and
- 2. the information incorporated by reference herein under "The Guarantor—Financial Information Concerning the Guarantor's Assets and Liabilities, Financial Position and Profits and Losses".

The above information and each of the Final Terms shall be published on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange website (www.bourse.lu).

THE GUARANTOR

INFORMATION TO BE DISCLOSED ABOUT THE GUARANTOR

The guarantor must disclose information about itself as if it were the issuer of that same type of security that is the subject of the guarantee.

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE

1.1. All persons responsible for the information given in this Base Prospectus relating to the Guarantor and, as the case may be, for certain parts of it, with, in the latter case, an indication of such parts. In the case of natural persons including members of the issuer's administrative, management or supervisory bodies indicate the name and function of the person; in case of legal persons indicate the name and registered office.

Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (The "Bank" or "Banco Santander") accepts responsibility for the information contained in this Base Prospectus relating to the Guarantor.

1.2. A declaration by those responsible for this Base Prospectus that, having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case, the information contained in this Base Prospectus relating to the Guarantor is, to the best of their knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import. As the case may be, declaration by those responsible for certain parts of this Base Prospectus that, having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case, the information contained in the part of this Base Prospectus for which they are responsible is, to the best of their knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import.

The Bank confirms that, having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case, the information contained in this Base Prospectus is, to the best of its knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import.

2 STATUTORY AUDITORS

2.1. Names and addresses of the Guarantor's auditors for the period covered by the historical financial information (together with their membership in a professional body).

The non-consolidated and consolidated annual financial statements and management reports of BANCO SANTANDER CENTRAL HISPANO, S.A. for the years ended 31 December 2004 and 2005 were audited by the external auditors, DELOITTE, S.L. (formerly DELOITTE & TOUCHE ESPAÑA, S.L.) of Plaza Pablo Ruiz Picasso, 1, Madrid, and registered under number S-0692 in the Official Register of Auditors (Registro Oficial de Auditores de Cuentas). Deloitte, S.L. are members of the Instituto de Censores Jurados de Cuentas de España.

2.2 If auditors have resigned, been removed or not been re-appointed during the period covered by the historical financial information, details if material.

The Bank's auditors have not resigned nor removed, and were last re-appointed by the Bank on 17 June 2006 to audit the annual financial statements for the financial year ending 31 December 2006.

3 RISK FACTORS

3.1. Prominent disclosure of risk factors that may affect the Guarantor's ability to fulfil its obligations under the securities to investors in a section headed "Risk Factors".

See "Risk Factors".

4 INFORMATION ABOUT THE GUARANTOR

4.1. History and development of the Guarantor.

4.1.1. Legal and trading name of the issuer

The name of the Bank is BANCO SANTANDER CENTRAL HISPANO, S.A. and it operates under the trading name "Santander" or "Grupo Santander".

4.1.2. The place of registration of the Guarantor and its registration number.

The Bank is registered in the Santander Commercial Registry in book 83, folio 1, sheet 9, entry 5519, and it adapted its Articles of Association to the current Companies Act by document executed in Santander on 8 June 1992 before the Public Notary Mr José María de Prada Díez, and numbered 1316 in his records, and registered in the Santander Commercial Registry in volume 448 of the Archive, folio 1, sheet number 1960, Adaptation entry one.

It is also registered in the Special Register of Banks and Bankers under code number 0049.

4.1.3. The date of incorporation and the length of life of the Guarantor, except where indefinite.

The Bank was founded in the city of Santander by notarised document executed on 3 March 1856 before court official Mr José Dou Martínez, ratified and partially amended by a further document dated 21 March 1857 before the court official of Santander Mr José María Olarán, and commenced trading on 20 August 1857.

The Bank commenced trading at the time of its formation and according to Article 3 of the Articles of Association it will remain in existence for an indefinite period.

4.1.4. The domicile and legal form of the Guarantor, the legislation under which the Guarantor operates, its country of incorporation, and the address and telephone number of its registered office (or principal place of business if different from its registered office).

The Bank is domiciled in Spain and has the legal form of a Joint Stock Company ("Sociedad Anónima") and its activities are subject to special Spanish legislation governing credit institutions in general and the supervision, control and regulation of BANK OF SPAIN in particular.

The Bank was incorporated in Spain and has its registered office at Paseo de Pereda, numbers 9 to 12, Santander. The principal operating headquarters of the Bank is located at Ciudad Grupo Santander, Avda. de Cantabria s/n, 28660 Boadilla del Monte, in the province of Madrid. The telephone number of the principal operating headquarters of the Bank is +34 91 259 6520.

4.1.5. Any recent events particular to the Guarantor which are to a material extent relevant to the evaluation of the Guarantor's solvency.

On 25 July 2004, the boards of directors of the Bank and Abbey approved the terms on which the board of directors of Abbey recommended to its shareholders the offer by the Bank to acquire the entire ordinary share capital of Abbey pursuant to a Scheme of Arrangement subject to the English Companies Law.

Following the holding of the corresponding general shareholders meetings of Abbey and the Bank in October 2004 and once the remaining conditions of the transaction were satisfied, on 12 November 2004 the acquisition was completed pursuant to the delivery of one new share of the Bank for each ordinary share of Abbey.

In 2004, the Bank opened its new corporate premises, the Ciudad Grupo Santander in the Madrid municipality of Boadilla del Monte, to which 6,500 employees were transferred from the Central Services of the Group. The cost of Ciudad Grupo Santander, being €550,000,000, is financed with the sale of the various office buildings which were occupied by the Central Services of the Group in Madrid.

On May 31, 2006, Banco Santander acquired shares of common stock equal to 19.8% of Sovereign Bancorp, Inc.'s ("Sovereign") outstanding shares after giving effect to such purchase once obtained all the required authorizations from the relevant authorities. In addition, and as contemplated in the Investment Agreement entered into with Sovereign Bancorp, Banco Santander has increased its stake to 24.99% of Sovereign's outstanding shares by its shares acquisition at the market.

5 BUSINESS OVERVIEW

5.1. Principal activities.

5.1.1. A brief description of the Guarantor's principal activities stating the main categories of products sold and/or services performed.

The Santander Group is one of the principal financial groups in Spain, the eleventh largest banking group in the world by market capitalization and the leading banking group in the Euro Zone with a stock exchange capitalisation at 31 December 2005 of €69,735 million and total assets of €809,107 million. At that date, the Santander Group operated through 5,389 offices in Continental Europe, 712 in the United Kingdom and 4,100 in Latin America with a total of 129,196 employees (45,207 in Continental Europe, 21,080 in the United Kingdom and 62,161 in Latin America and 748 employees in other geographic areas).

The Group generated consolidated net profits (before minority interests) of ϵ 6,750 million in 2005. Net profit attributed to the Group was ϵ 6,220 million.

As a result of the entry into force of the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) in 2005, the Bank has redefined its business areas for 2004 and 2005 for financial reporting purposes. These areas are defined by management and reflect, in the case of the secondary level (or business), the way business is conducted.

The new areas reflect the incorporation of Abbey, following the Bank's consolidation of its balance sheet at the end of 2004. In addition to applying the general accounting changes set out by the IFRS to the different business areas, some internal criteria have been changed, in accordance with IFRS principles, to better identify the risks and returns of each business. The main changes are as follows:

- Centralized costs. Although the Bank maintain the principle of applying to each unit the costs of central
 services incurred by it for support and control, corporate and institutional expenses related to the Group
 are excluded. These are now recorded in Financial Management and Equity Stakes. On the other hand,
 the non-corporate costs related to projects underway, primarily spending on IT systems, have been
 applied to the corresponding business.
- Provisions and allowances for country-risk. Both country-risk, as well as its provisions, are applied to the business area responsible for its management and where the net revenues of these operations are reflected. Only those intra-group operations which maintain the provisions, where risk disappears on an accounting basis, continue to be recorded, as before, in Financial Management and Equity Stakes.
- Pension provisions. Each business generally assumes the cost for pensions, including both the normal allocation as well as that of possible deficits. The only exception relates to amortization derived from the initial deficit that surpasses the "corridor" (see Note 2.v to the Bank's consolidated financial statements). In these cases, as the aforementioned amortization occurred because of a corporate decision by the Group, and provided it happens within five years and with the limit of the initial deficit, its cost will be assumed by Financial Management and Equity Stakes.
- Shareholders' equity. In line with the development in the Group of processes for calculating and managing economic capital, the adjustment for regulatory capital maintained has been eliminated. Each business maintains the shareholders' equity it manages. Use above this level will be penalized only in those cases where this figure is higher than the economic capital. Otherwise no payment will be made to the business.

In accordance with the criteria established by the IFRS, the structure of the operating business areas has been segmented into two levels:

Principal level (or geographic). The activity of the Bank's operating units is segmented by geographical areas. This coincides with the Bank's first level of management and reflects its positioning in the world's three main currency areas. The reported segments are:

- Continental Europe. This covers all retail banking business (including Banco Banif, S.A. ("Banif"), the
 Bank specialized private bank), asset management and insurance and wholesale banking conducted in
 Europe, with the exception of Abbey. This segment includes the following units: Santander Network,
 Banco Español de Crédito, S.A. ("Banesto"), Santander Consumer Finance and Portugal. In addition,
 small units outside the three geographic areas, whose relative importance to the Bank's total business is
 not significant and which are extensions of the main areas, are included in Continental Europe.
- *United Kingdom (Abbey)*. This covers only Abbey's business, mainly focused on retail banking and insurance in the UK.
- Latin America. This embraces all the financial activities conducted via the Bank's subsidiary banks and other subsidiaries. It also includes the specialized units in International Private Banking, as an independent globally managed unit.

Secondary level (or business). This segments the activity of the Bank's operating units by type of business. The reported segments are:

- Retail Banking. This covers all customer banking businesses (except those of Corporate Banking, which are managed globally throughout the world).
- Asset Management and Insurance. This includes the Bank's units that design and manage mutual and pension funds and insurance.
- Global Wholesale Banking. This business reflects the returns from Global Corporate Banking, Investment Banking and Markets worldwide, including all treasuries with global management, as well as the Bank's equities business.

In addition to these operating units, which cover everything by geographic area and business, the Bank continues to maintain a separate *Financial Management and Equity Stakes* area. This area incorporates the centralized activities relating to equity stakes in industrial and financial companies, financial management of the structural exchange rate position and of the parent Bank's structural interest rate risk, as well as management of liquidity and of shareholders' equity through issues and securitizations. As the Group's holding entity, it manages all capital and reserves and allocations of capital and liquidity.

Principal level (or geographic):

The summarized balance sheets and income statements of the various geographical segments are as follows:

| (Summarized) Balance Sheet | | | 2005 | | | | |
|--------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------|---------|---------------|-------------------------------------------------|-----------|-----------------------|---------|
| Millions of Euros | Continental Europe | Abbey | Latin America | Financial Management and Equity Stakes | Total | Continental Europe | Abbey |
| Loans and advances to customers | 212,455 | 171,796 | 50,762 | 816 | 435,829 | 177,772 | 156,790 |
| Financial assets held for trading (excluding loans and | | | | | | | |
| advances) | 26,996 | 64,014 | 25,163 | 1,276 | 117,449 | 14,657 | 51,060 |
| Available-for-sale financial | | | | | | | |
| assets | 13,306 | 18 | 15,607 | 45,014 | 73,945 | 12,008 | 14 |
| Loans and advances to credit | | | | | | | |
| institutions | 71,900 | 13,070 | 22,158 | 15,718 | 122,846 | 71,819 | 21,240 |
| Non-current assets | 4,229 | 5,197 | 1,382 | 1,396 | 12,204 | 3,932 | 5,164 |
| Other asset accounts | 15,770 | 47,420 | 17,132 | 94,343 | 174,665 | 22,105 | 39,903 |
| Total assets | 344,656 | 301,515 | 132,204 | 158,563 | 936,938 | 302,293 | 274,171 |
| Customer deposits | 127,975 | 110,776 | 65,087 | 1,927 | 305,765 | 122,635 | 113,353 |
| Debt securities | 27,593 | 62,462 | 5,631 | 53,154 | 148,840 | 21,595 | 52,333 |
| Subordinated liabilities | 2,241 | 11,428 | 1,130 | 13,965 | 28,764 | 2,120 | 10,622 |
| Liabilities under insurance | | | | | | | |
| contracts | 6,414 | 36,521 | 1,737 | _ | 44,672 | 4,844 | 36,446 |
| Deposits from credit institutions | 94,233 | 40,761 | 38,314 | 38,386 | 211,694 | 78,942 | 27,162 |
| Other liability accounts | 71,119 | 37,260 | 12,443 | 18,906 | 139,728 | 59,926 | 31,990 |
| Own funds | 15,081 | 2,307 | 7,862 | 32,225 | 57,475 | 12,231 | 2,265 |
| Off-balance- sheet customer | | | | | | | |
| funds | 97,141 | 5,999 | 49,705 | _ | 152,845 | 89,567 | 5,059 |
| Total funds under | | | | | | | |
| management | 441,797 | 307,514 | 181,909 | 158,563 | 1,089,783 | 391,860 | 279,230 |

| (Summarized) Income Statement | | | 2005 | • | | | |
|--------------------------------------------|-----------------------|---------|---------------|-------------------------------------------------|---------|-----------------------|-----------|
| Millions of Euros | Continental Europe | Abbey | Latin America | Financial Management and Equity Stakes | Total | Continental Europe | l Abbe |
| NET INTEREST INCOME | 5,398 | 1,891 | 3,946 | (742) | 10,493 | 4,770 | ' |
| Share of results of entities accounted for | | | | | | | ļ |
| using the equity method | 26 | 2 | 7 | 584 | 619 | 33 | ' |
| Net fee and commission income | 3,331 | 958 | 2,043 | (18) | 6,314 | 3,142 | — |
| Insurance activity income | 116 | 589 | 109 | 2 | 816 | 87 | — |
| Gains/losses on financial assets and | | | | | | | ļ |
| liabilities and Exchange differences | 512 | 347 | 755 | (49) | 1,565 | 404 | — |
| GROSS INCOME | 9,383 | 3,787 | 6,860 | (223) | 19,807 | 8,436 | — |
| Sales and income from the provision of | | | | | | | ļ |
| non- financial services (net) and Other | | | | | | | ļ |
| operating income/expense | 351 | 52 | (91) | 10 | 322 | 313 | — |
| Non-financial personnel expenses | (47) | (8) | , <u> </u> | (19) | (74) | (72) | _ |
| Non-financial general expenses | (24) | (8) | , <u> </u> | (16) | (48) | (34) | _ |
| General administrative expenses: | | | | | | | |
| Personnel expenses | (2,563) | (1,228) | (1,770) | (183) | (5,744) | (2,502) | _ |
| Other administrative expenses | (1,171) | (1,071) | (1,545) | (171) | (3,958) | (1,097) | _ |
| Depreciation and amortization | (499) | (117) | (330) | (74) | (1,020) | (514) | _ |
| NET OPERATING INCOME | 5,430 | 1,407 | 3,124 | (676) | 9,285 | 4,530 | _ |
| Net impairment losses | (973) | (318) | (442) | (74) | (1,807) | (1,265) | _ |
| Other gains/losses | (43) | 76 | (214) | 857 | 676 | (47) | _ |
| PROFIT BEFORE TAX | 4,414 | 1,165 | 2,468 | 107 | 8,154 | 3,218 | _ |
| PROFIT FROM | | | | | | | |
| CONTINUING OPERATIONS | 3,148 | 811 | 2,006 | 798 | 6,763 | 2,272 | _ |
| CONSOLIDATED PROFIT FOR THE | | | | | | | |
| YEAR | 3,135 | 811 | 2,006 | 798 | 6,750 | 2,272 | _ |
| Profit attributed to the Group | 2,983 | 811 | 1,776 | 650 | 6,220 | 2,159 | _ |

Continental Europe

This area covers the banking activities of the different networks and specialized units in Europe, principally with individual clients and small and medium sized companies ("SMEs"), as well as private and public institutions. During 2005 there were four units within this area: Santander Network, Banesto, Santander Consumer Finance and Portugal including retail banking, asset management, insurance and global wholesale banking.

Continental Europe is the largest business area of Grupo Santander. At the end of 2005, it accounted for 43% of total customer funds under management, 49% of total loans and credits and 54% of net attributable income of the Group's main business areas.

The area had 5,389 branches and 43,867 employees (direct and assigned) at the end of 2005.

The area experienced a 19.8% increase in net operating income, primarily due to increased revenue from commissions, contained costs, improved efficiency and growth in net interest income.

In 2005, the efficiency ratio improved by 3.1% to 42.9% (from 46.8% in 2004). Net attributable income increased 38.2% to €2,984.3 million. Return on equity, "ROE", in 2005 was 22.1%, a 3.8% increase from 2004.

Santander Network

The retail banking activity is carried out through the branch network of Santander, with support from an increasing number of automated cash dispensers, savings books updaters, telephone banking services, electronic and internet banking.

At the end of 2005, the Bank had 2,669 branches and a total of 19,092 employees (direct and assigned), of which 827 employees were temporary, dedicated to retail banking in Spain. Compared to 2004, there was a net increase of 98 branches and a net reduction of 88 employees.

In 2005, the Santander Network grew by approximately 17.1% in lending, 17.2% in net operating income and 44.1% in net attributable income. It also improved its efficiency ratio from 48.3% in 2004 to 44.0% in 2005 and continued high standards of quality in credit risk.

Gross income from the Santander Network was €3,826 million in 2005, an 8.3% increase from 2004.

In 2005, net attributable income from the Santander Network was €1,285 million, 44.1% higher than net attributable income in 2004, while the ROE reached 22.8% (as compared to 17.8% in 2004).

The 17.1% growth in lending in 2005 versus 2004 came from mortgages (16% increase as compared to 2004, mainly for individual customers) as well as other loans and credits (19% increase as compared to 2004), leasing and renting (14% increase as compared to 2004) and commercial bills (1% increase as compared to 2004).

Customer deposits increased by 2.7%, while mutual and pension funds increased by 13.8% and 5.9%, respectively.

Banesto

At the end of 2005, Banesto had 1,703 branches and 10,577 employees (direct and assigned), of which 514 employees were temporary (an increase of 20 branches and a reduction of 507 employees as compared to the end of 2004).

For purposes of its financial statements and this annual report on Form 20-F, the Bank has calculated Banesto's results of operations using the criteria described on page 21 of this annual report on Form 20-F. As a result, the data set forth herein may not coincide with the data published independently by Banesto.

In 2005, Banesto grew by approximately 26.7% in lending, 24.4% in customer deposits and 14.8% in off-balance sheet customer funds.

In 2005, gross income from Banesto was €1,794 million, an 8.4% increase from 2004. Net attributable income from Banesto was €498 million, a 24.0% increase from 2004, while the ROE reached 19.4% (as compared to 16.9% in 2004) and the efficiency ratio improved to 42.6% (as compared to 46.6% in 2004).

Santander Consumer Finance

The Bank's consumer financing activities are conducted through its subsidiary Santander Consumer Finance S.A. and its group of companies. Most of the activity is in the business of auto financing, personal loans, credit cards, insurance and customer deposits. These consumer financing activities are mainly focused on Spain, Portugal, Germany and Italy (through Santander Consumer Bank S.p.A.). The Bank also conducts this business in the UK, Austria, Hungary, the Czech Republic, the Netherlands, Norway, Poland and Sweden.

At the end of 2005, this unit had 267 branches (as compared to 256 at the end of 2004) and 5,118 employees (direct and assigned) (as compared to 5,245 employees at the end of 2004), of which 310 employees were temporary.

In 2005, this unit generated gross income of €1,604 million, a 25.9% increase from 2004. Net attributable income was €487 million, a 46.3% increase from 2004, while the ROE reached 46.1% (as compared to 47.6% in 2004) and the efficiency ratio improved to 33.9% (as compared to 37.6% in 2004).

At the end of 2005 total managed assets equaled €31,849 million. New lending increased 24% to €18,999 million (17% increase as compared to 2004, excluding the new incorporations of Bankia in Norway and Interbanco in Portugal). Of note was the 22% rise in auto finance, which outpaced the sale of cars in Europe producing a further gain in market share. The three large traditional markets, which account for 88% of total business, also registered strong growth: Spain and Portugal grew 15% as compared to 2004, Germany grew 9% as compared to 2004 and Italy grew 30% as compared to 2004.

Portugal

The Bank's main Portuguese operations are conducted by Banco Santander Totta, S.A., and its Portuguese investment banking operations are conducted by Banco Santander de Negocios Portugal, S.A.

At the end of 2005, Portugal operated 693 branches (as compared to 670 branches at the end of 2004) and had 6,308 employees (direct and assigned) (as compared to 6,478 employees at the end of 2004), of which 170 employees were temporary.

In 2005, gross income from the Bank's activities in Portugal was €995 million, a 7.2% increase from 2004. Net attributable income was €345 million, 35.7% higher than in 2004, while the ROE reached 20.8% (16.5% in 2004) and the efficiency ratio improved to 49.4% (from 52.4% in 2004).

Others

The rest of the Bank's businesses (Banif, Asset Management, Insurance and Global Wholesale Banking) generated attributable income of €368 million, 32.1% more than in 2004.

United Kingdom (Abbey)

Abbey became part of Grupo Santander on November 12, 2004 and only its balance sheet was consolidated with the Group as of December 31, 2004. Its results were consolidated with the Group's for the first time in 2005.

Abbey is a significant financial services provider in the United Kingdom, being the second largest residential mortgage lender, third largest savings brand, and operates across the full range of personal financial services serving approximately 18 million customers.

At the end of 2005, Abbey had 712 branches and a total of 21,121 employees (direct and assigned) of which 244 employees were temporary. Compared to 2004, there was a net decrease of 18 branches and a net reduction of 4,210 employees.

For purposes of its financial statements and this annual report on Form 20-F, the Bank has calculated Abbey's results of operations using the criteria described on page 21 of this annual report on Form 20-F. As a result, the data set forth herein may not coincide with the data published independently by Abbey.

In 2005, Abbey contributed net operating income of $\[\in \]$ 1,408 million and $\[\in \]$ 811 million of attributable income (14% of the Group's total operating areas). Loans and advances experienced growth of approximately 9.6% and customer funds under management increased by 4.3% during the same period. ROE was 35.7% and the efficiency ratio was 63.2%.

Gross income was €3,787 million for 2005.

Operating costs were €2,416 million, excluding restructuring costs of €219 million.

The 9.6% increase in loans and credits was accompanied by good credit risk quality. The non-performing loans ratio was 0.67% at the end of 2005, 0.03% less than in 2004. For mortgage loans, Abbey's credit quality indices (0.65% in arrears of more than three months) are better than the market's average.

Latin America

At December 31, 2005, the Bank had 4,100 offices and 62,746 employees (direct and assigned) in Latin America (as compared to 4,011 offices and 60,503 employees, respectively, at December 31, 2004), of which 1,267 were temporary employees.

Net attributable income from Latin America was €1,776 million, a 20.8% increase from 2004, while the ROE reached 23.1% (as compared to 24.0% in 2004) and the efficiency ratio improved to 52.2% (as compared to 54.9% in 2004). The Bank's Latin American banking business is principally conducted by the following banking subsidiaries:

| Percentage Held at December 31, 2005 | | Percentage Held at December 31, 2005 | |
|---------------------------------------------|-------|--------------------------------------|--------|
| Banco Río de la Plata, S.A. (Argentina) | 99.30 | Banco Santander Colombia, S.A | 97.64 |
| Banco Santa Cruz, S.A. (Bolivia) (*) | 96.33 | Banco Santander Serfin, S.A | 74.92 |
| Banco Santander Brasil, S.A. (Brazil) | 97.93 | Banco Santander Puerto Rico | 90.77 |
| Banco Santander Meridional, S.A. (Brazil) | 98.18 | Banco Santander, S.A. (Uruguay) | 100.00 |
| Banco do Estado de Sao Paulo, S.A. (Brazil) | | Banco de Venezuela, S.A. | |
| | 98.06 | Banco Universal | 98.42 |
| Banco Santander Chile | 83.94 | | |

^(*) As of April 18, 2006, the Bank sold its stake in Banco Santa Cruz, S.A. See "— A. History and development of the company — Recent events".

The Bank engages in a full range of retail banking activities in Latin America, although the range of its activities varies from country to country. The Bank engages to take advantage of whatever particular business opportunities local conditions present. The Bank engages in a wide array of deposit taking activities throughout Latin America, and other retail banking activities in Argentina, Brazil, Chile and Mexico. The Bank's primary

lending operations are in Chile, Mexico, Brazil and Puerto Rico. The Bank's principal mutual fund operations are in Brazil, Mexico, Chile and Puerto Rico, and its main pension fund operations are in Chile, Mexico, Argentina, Peru and Colombia.

The Bank's significant position in Latin America is attributable to its financial strength, high degree of diversification (by countries, businesses, products, etc.), and breadth and depth of its franchise.

Detailed below are the performance highlights of the main Latin American countries in which the Bank operates:

Brazil. Santander Banespa is one of the main financial franchises in Brazil. The Bank has 1,897 branches and 7.1 million individual customers.

Santander Banespa focused in 2005 on growing its retail businesses and on gaining market share. Lending rose 42%, in local currency, with strong growth to individual customers (credit cards, loans linked to payrolls, auto financing, etc.), SMEs and companies. The Bank's market share in total loans reached 5.8%. Deposits (excluding REPOs) and mutual funds increased 24% (market share of deposits and mutual funds equaled approximately 4.4%). The emphasis on growth in retail savings pushed up this segment's market share in mutual funds to 8.0%.

Net attributable income from Brazil in 2005 was €591 million (a 14% decrease in local currency). The efficiency ratio was 52.5%, ROE was 23.1%, the ratio of non-performing loans ("NPL") was 2.9% at the end of 2005 and the NPL coverage was 138.5%.

Mexico. Banco Santander Serfin, S.A. is one of the leading financial services companies in Mexico. It heads the third largest banking group in Mexico in terms of business volume, with a market share in total loans of 15.2%, 15.8% in deposits and mutual funds and 7.8% in pensions. The Group has a network of 1,005 branches and 6.3 million banking customers in Mexico.

Net attributable income from Mexico increased 16.0% to €376 million (an increase of 12.1% in local currency). The efficiency ratio was 54.1%, ROE was 20.4%, the ratio of non-performing loans was 0.9% at the end of 2005 and the NPL coverage was 273.4%.

Chile. Banco Santander Chile heads the largest financial group in the country with substantial business in loans, deposits and mutual funds and pension funds. The Group has 401 branches and 2.2 million banking customers.

In 2005, lending increased 19% (including a 25% increase to individuals), while deposits (without REPOs) and mutual funds grew 16% (in local currency).

Net attributable income from Chile increased 45.2% to €338 million (a 33.2% increase in local currency). The efficiency ratio stood at 45.4%, ROE was 25.0%, the ratio of non-performing loans was 2.3% and the NPL coverage was 165.6%.

Puerto Rico. Banco Santander Puerto Rico is one of the largest financial institutions in Puerto Rico. The Group has 73 branches and market shares of 10.9% in total loans, 12.9% in deposits and 21.3% in mutual funds.

In 2005, Santander Puerto Rico focused on growth in consumer loans and mortgages and loans to medium-sized companies. Lending increased 9% and deposits (excluding REPOs) and mutual funds rose 13%, representing a gain of 0.5 points in market share to 15.3%.

Net attributable income from Puerto Rico was €49 million, 2.5% higher than in 2004 (a 2.7% increase in local currency). The efficiency ratio was 65.8%, ROE was 12.5%, the ratio of non-performing loans stood at 1.8% and the NPL coverage was 168%.

Venezuela. Banco de Venezuela, S.A. Banco Universal is one of the country's largest banks with market shares of 13.6% in total loans and 11.6% in deposits. It has 252 branches and 2.2 million banking customers.

Management's main focus in 2005 was growth in the profitability of business and increasing recurrent revenues. Lending, after eliminating the exchange rate impact, increased 46% (including a 75% increase to individual customers) and the aggregate of deposits (excluding REPOs) and mutual funds rose 27%.

Net attributable income from Venezuela grew to €133 million (a 55.4% increase in local currency). The efficiency ratio was 48.4%, ROE stood at 42.2%, the ratio of non-performing loans was 1.5% and the NPL coverage was 400%.

Colombia. The Colombian economy grew by approximately 5% in 2005. The Bank concentrated on selective growth on business and efficient management of costs. Lending increased 11% and deposits (excluding REPOs) and mutual funds rose 22%.

Net attributable income from Colombia was €40 million, 60.90% higher than in 2004 in local currency.

Others

Argentina consolidated its economic recovery during 2005 and made a positive contribution to Group earnings (net attributable income was €78 million in 2005). Lending to the private sector rose 73% and was very focused on SMEs and individuals, while deposits (excluding REPOs) and mutual funds increased 33%.

Uruguay improved notably, generating net attributable income of €29 million in 2005, 28.2% higher than 2004 in local currency.

Peru, where the Bank focuses on pension funds, generated net attributable income of €16 million in 2005 (13.9% increase in local currency).

Net attributable income from Bolivia during 2005 grew to €10 million in 2005 (159% increase as compared to 2004). On April 18, 2006 the Bank sold its entire stake in the capital stock of its subsidiary in Bolivia, Banco Santa Cruz.

Santander Private Banking performed well with attributable income up 25% (in dollars) during 2005.

Secondary level (or business)

The summarized income statements and other significant data are as follows:

| (Summarized) Income Statement | | | 2005 | | | | |
|------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------|-----------------------------------------|--------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------|---------|-------------------|---------------------------------|
| Millions of Euros | Retail Banking | Asset Management and Insurance | Global Wholesale Banking | Financial Management and Equity Stakes | Total | Retail Banking | Asse Manage and Insura |
| NET INTEREST INCOME | 10,766 | (146) | 615 | (742) | 10,493 | 7,404 | 1 |
| Share of results of entities Accounted | | | | | | | |
| for using the equity method | 35 | _ | _ | 584 | 619 | 42 | (|
| Net fee and commission income | 5,191 | 668 | 473 | (18) | 6,314 | 3,937 | 45 |
| Insurance activity income | _ | 814 | _ | 2 | 816 | _ | 16 |
| Gains/losses on financial assets and | | | | | | | |
| liabilities and Exchange differences | 927 | 32 | 655 | (49) | 1,565 | 323 | 1 |
| GROSS INCOME | 16,919 | 1,368 | 1,743 | (223) | 19,807 | 11,706 | 64 |
| Sales and income from the provision o non-financial services (net) and Other | | | | | | | |
| operating income/expense | 335 | _ | (23) | 10 | 322 | 292 | |
| Non-financial personnel expenses | (55) | _ | | (19) | (74) | (73) |) — |
| Non-financial general Expenses | (32) | _ | _ | (16) | (48) | (38) |) — |
| General administrative expenses: | | | | | | | |
| Personnel expenses | (4,914) | (308) | (339) | (183) | (5,744) | (3,593) | (15 |
| Other administrative expenses | (3,228) | (355) | (204) | (171) | (3,958) | (2,067) |) (9 |
| Depreciation and amortization | (870) | (20) | (56) | (74) | (1,020) | (735) |) (1 |
| NET OPERATING INCOME | 8,155 | 685 | 1,121 | (676) | 9,285 | 5,492 | 37 |
| Net impairment losses | (1,669) | _ | (64) | (74) | (1,807) | (1,502) |) |
| Other gains/losses | (196) | 3 | 12 | 857 | 676 | (156) |) (|
| PROFIT BEFORE TAX | 6,290 | 688 | 1,069 | 107 | 8,154 | 3,834 | 37 |
| Other business aggregates: | | | | | | | |
| Total assets | 627,954 | 9,172 | 141,249 | 158,563 | 936,938 | 531,345 | 6,95 |
| Loans and advances to customer | 407,660 | 194 | 27,159 | 816 | 435,829 | 344,544 | 47 |
| Customer deposits | 269,146 | 21 | 34,671 | 1,927 | 305,765 | 244,397 | 3 |

Retail Banking

Retail Banking generated 84% of total gross income and 78% of income before taxes of the operating areas. This segment had 117,655 employees at the end of 2005.

Retail Banking in Continental Europe continued its growth in volume and earnings. Net interest income increased 14.3%, net operating income increased 21.3% and income before taxes increased 39.1%. All units (Santander Network, Banesto Retail, Santander Consumer Finance, Portugal Retail and Banif) grew at double digit rates in net operating income and income before taxes.

There were four main drivers of these results: business growth, better price management in a more stable interest rate environment, cost control and the lower needs for loan-loss provisions.

In its first year as part of Grupo Santander, Abbey's Retail Banking operations generated gross income of €3,232 million, net operating income of €1,228 million and income before taxes of €986 million.

The strong earnings from Retail Banking in Latin America was based on growth in customer business, the excellent results in net interest income and net fees and costs. These were reflected in a 22.9% rise in commercial revenue, 38.2% in net operating income and 36.2% in income before taxes.

Asset Management and Insurance

This segment comprises all of the Bank's companies whose activity is the management of mutual and pension funds and insurance.

In 2005, Asset Management and Insurance generated gross income of €1,367 million, 113.4% higher than in 2004. Income before taxes was €688 million, 85.6% higher than in 2004. This segment had 7,902 employees at the end of 2005.

This segment accounted for 7% of the Group's gross income in 2005 and 9% of income before taxes which, at €688 million, was 85.6% higher than in 2004 (37.2% increase excluding Abbey).

Total revenues from mutual and pension funds and insurance activity, including those recorded by the distribution networks, amounted to €3,696 million, 62.9% more than in 2004 (20.3% increase excluding Abbey). These revenues are of high quality and recurrence and represented 20% of the Bank's commercial revenue.

Managed assets in mutual and pension funds increased 16% to more than €138,000 million and the liabilities from insurance contracts totaled €45,000 million (5% increase from 2004).

Asset Management. The global business of mutual and pension funds integrated in Santander Asset Management generated total fees of €1,956 million, 23.5% higher than in 2004 (15.9% increase without Abbey). Income before taxes, after deducting the fees paid to the distribution networks and operating costs, was €349 million (29.0% increase from 2004).

In Spain, Santander Asset Management managed more than €75,000 million in funds and investment companies, making it the sector's leader (with a market share of 25% in mutual and real estate funds, according to Inverco).

In Portugal, mutual and pension funds managed by Asset Management increased 17% and 7%, respectively, to a total of €7,000 million.

In Latin America, Santander Asset Management had €22,500 million under management in its mutual funds, 24% more than in 2004 excluding the exchange rate effect. Mexico, Brazil and Chile, which account for more than 90% of assets, registered strong growth. Knowledge of the markets and of local needs combined with

exploiting the Group's global capacities in managing and developing high value-added products resulted in higher growth than the markets. Mexico's managed mutual funds increased 36% (excluding the exchange rate effect) to €6,700 million and increased its market share by almost 1% to 17%. Brazil, whose managed assets increased 21% (excluding the exchange rate impact) to €11,100 million, focused on the retail segment where its market share reached 8% (a 0.3% increase). Chile's managed assets rose 11% to €2,700 million (excluding the exchange rate impact) and market share increased by close to 1%.

Insurance. Total revenues generated by the Bank's insurance companies, including fees paid to branch networks, amounted to €1,740 million (increases of 153.8% and 30.4% excluding Abbey from 2004). Income before taxes rose three fold to €340 million due to the incorporation of Abbey, which contributed €179 million, and the good performance of other insurance activity (59.2% increase in income before taxes).

In Spain, Santander Seguros y Reaseguros, Compañía Aseguradora, S.A. consolidated its bancassurance business, developing new businesses and boosting its sales capacity (two new channels, Hispamer and Unión de Crédito Inmobiliario S.A. (UCI), joined Santander Branch Network). Their total contribution to the Group, including net fees and income before taxes, was €205 million, 25% more than in 2004. Premium income increased 28%.

In Portugal, the distribution of risk insurance, largely linked to credit operations and capitalization-savings products, was expanded to include new and unlinked life-risk products. Premium income increased 49% and the total contribution to the Group rose 36%.

In the rest of Continental Europe, the various units of Santander Consumer Finance, which mainly sells products linked to consumer lending, generated €263 million of fees, 30% more than in 2004.

In the United Kingdom, Abbey's insurance business continued to be strong. At the end of 2005, Abbey's insurance activity balance stood at €36,500 million, and its total contribution to the Group (fees plus income before taxes) was €437 million, following a significant reduction in the area's costs. On June 7, 2006, the Bank announced that Abbey had entered into an agreement with Resolution under which Abbey will sell its entire life insurance business to Resolution (see "— A. History and development of the company — Recent events").

In Latin America, the Group continued to develop its strategy of growth in the distribution of insurance via local banks. Further progress was made in selling bancassurance products through personalized offers (life, auto and household products).

Global Wholesale Banking

This area covers the Bank's corporate banking, treasury and investment banking activities throughout the world.

This segment contributed 9% of gross income and 13% of income before taxes. Income before taxes amounted to €1,069 million, a 21.9% increase from 2004. This segment had 2,177 employees at the end of 2005.

Gross operating revenue increased 9.2%. Revenue from value-added businesses (transactional banking, trade finance, custody, investment banking, equities and treasury for customers) rose 22%.

Operating costs grew 11.9%, due to business expansion and new project launches in Europe, such as Santander Global Connect (SGC) and Santander Global Markets (SGM).

In 2005, the Bank consolidated a new Global Wholesale Banking model based on a double vector (product-customer) system. In the customer vector, the Global Customer Relation Model, established in 2003 to foster global management by product and country, consists of global teams comprising an executive responsible at the global level, local executives in the markets where customers operate and product specialists. The model generated gross income of €501 million, after six straight quarters of sustained growth.

The product vector consists of three large areas:

- *Corporate products*. This covers transactional banking, trade finance, custody and basic financing. Their gross income increased 8.8% from 2004.
- *Investment Banking*. This embraces financing solutions and corporate finance. Gross income increased 16.0%, strongly backed by corporate finance. Project finance operations formalized in 2005 amounted to €1,074 million. In financing of acquisitions, operations amounted to €962 million. Syndicated loans amounted to €3,700 million.
- *Markets*. This integrates equities and treasuries. Gross income rose 6.3%, supported by customer related revenues and a lower contribution from own-account activity.

By businesses, the gross income from equities was 28.0% higher, consolidating leadership in brokerage in Spain (13% market share including Banesto Bolsa, S.A., S.V.B.) and in Portugal (9% market share).

Global Treasury performed well in 2005 with SGC and SGM driving growth in Spain. SGM develops the distribution capacities for corporate and institutional clients in target markets and supports the production and distribution of structured products in the main Latin American countries, while obtaining synergies in products, books and organization.

In Spain, sales revenues attributed to both projects — SGC for retail clients and SGM for wholesale clients — increased 34.7%. Portugal's growth was 33.3% following the extension of SGC and the good performance of the wholesale sector.

Treasury in New York consolidated its structure in order to help the Latin American treasuries sell structured derivatives and increase the range of value-added products on offer.

The Bank's treasury operations manage money, foreign exchange and fixed-income trading, using conventional instruments and derivatives, for its own account and for the accounts of its customers. The Bank also participating in fixed income capital market activities.

In Latin America, the Bank's treasury operations continued to be preeminent in the region. The increasing coordination of local treasuries with Madrid and New York is enabling more global solutions to be offered to clients and greater cross-selling of products. This is producing notable growth in revenues (+22.2%) and is enhancing the Bank presence in the professional markets.

Financial Management and Equity Stakes

This area is responsible for a series of centralized activities and acts as the Bank's holding entity, managing all capital and reserves and assigning capital and liquidity to the other businesses. It also incorporates centrally managed business, which can be divided into the following sub areas:

- Equity Stakes: this area centralizes the management of equity stakes in financial and industrial companies.
 - Net attributable income from industrial stakes was €1,739 million, up from €492 million in 2004. The much higher figure was mainly due to the larger capital gains and the greater contribution from companies accounted for by the equity method, principally Cepsa.
- **Financial management:** this area carries out the global functions of managing the Bank's structural exchange rate position, the structural interest rate risk of the parent Bank and the liquidity risk. The latter is conducted through securities issuances and securitizations. It also manages shareholders' equity.

The cost of hedging the capital of the Bank's non euro-denominated investments is another activity managed by this sub-area. The hedging policy is aimed at protecting the capital invested and the year's results through various instruments that are deemed to be the most appropriate for their management. The main units with exchange risk, except for Brazil, were hedged during 2005.

This sub-area also manages shareholders' equity, the allocation of capital to each business unit, and the cost of financing investments.

Gross income from Financial Management and Equity Stakes was €-222 million in 2005, compared with €112 million in 2004. Net attributable income was €650 million in 2005 compared with a net attributable loss of €24 million in 2004.

At the end of 2005, this area had 1,462 employees (direct and assigned) (1,433 employees at the end of 2004), of which 404 were temporary.

Equity Stakes

Alliances and Financial Investments

The Bank has financial investments in a number of banking companies, principally in Europe. The following summarizes the Bank's most important financial investments:

San Paolo IMI. At December 31, 2005, the Bank owned 8.5% of the capital stock of San Paolo IMI, one of the largest banking groups in Italy in terms of assets. San Paolo IMI controls Intereuropa Bank, a Hungarian bank in which the Bank owns a 10% stake.

Attijariwafa Bank. At December 31, 2005, the Bank had a 14.5% interest in Attijariwafa Bank, which engages mainly in trade finance and foreign investment activities. Together with Attijariwafa Bank the Bank has a 50% joint venture in Attijari International Bank Société Anonyme, which specializes in trade finance in Tangier's free trade zone.

Industrial Portfolio

The majority of the Bank's industrial holdings portfolio consists of investments in strategic sectors related to the growth of the Spanish economy. Through its investments in these areas, the Bank aims to contribute to the Group's consolidated results.

The following table summarizes the Bank's main industrial holdings at December 31, 2005:

| Company | Business | At December 31, 2005 |
|-------------------------------|------------------------|----------------------|
| Antena 3 de Televisión, S.A | Mass Media | 10.01 |
| Cepsa (*) | Oil and Petrochemicals | 32.27 |
| Grupo Corporativo ONO, S.A | Cable | 15.91 |
| Inmobiliaria Urbis, S.A. (**) | Real Estate | 45.34 |

Domoontogo Hold

In 2005, the Bank realized capital gains of more than €1,650 million with divestments in Unión Fenosa, S.A. (22.02%), Auna (27.07%), MRBS Capital Partners (31.03%), Técnicas Reunidas, S.A. (38.02%) and Probitas Pharma, S.A. (11.62%), among others.

As of December 31, 2005, the Bank's unrealized capital gains in listed industrial and financial stakes were approximately €2,500 million.

5.1.2. An indication of any significant new products and/or activities.

The Group is continuously incorporating new financial products in an attempt to satisfy its customers' needs and to maintain its competitive position within the financial services market.

^{(*) 12.35%} is held directly and 19.92% is held indirectly by the Group through Somaen Dos, S.L. The latter figure represents the Group's indirect economic participation in Cepsa since Santander only controls the percentage of shares of Somaen Dos, S.L. that it owns, which in turn corresponds to 19.92% of Cepsa's capital stock.

^(**) As of December 31, 2005, Santander held 51.11% of the voting rights.

In this regard, the Global Committee on New Group Products held 13 meetings in 2005 during which it analysed 126 products or product families. A total of 75 products were submitted for approval subject to the Financial Products Procedure Manual, 25 of which were analysed by the Global Committee and the remaining 50 of which were analysed by the Manual's Office.

Some of the more significant products from among those launched by the Bank in 2005 include: the "Hipoteca Super Revolución" mortgage, or the campaign for the direct deposit of payrolls to accounts with advantages for the payment of telephone, gas and electricity bills. This loan, designed to help young people have access to housing and is characterised by its long term and fixed rates together with a repayment holiday for the first five years. Also highlighted are the "Préstamos Super Fidelidad" and "Fondo Super Selección Acciones".

The Banesto products which performed the best during 2005 were high value products for companies and individuals like "Banesto Selección", a new service for managing portfolios and electronic invoices.

The Bank's products that were most successful outside of Spain this year include the "Crédito Habitação Super Tranquilo", the "Crédito Automóvil Super Tranquilo" and the "Cartáo Premium Travel" at Portugal's Santander Totta, the "Crédito Prestamista" loan and Tarjeta Platinum in Brazil, the credit cards "Titanio" and "Superexpress" in Chile and at Abbey, the "Flexible Plus Mortgage Deal for Life" which offers flexible payments, allowing increased or decreased payments and also allowing payment to be postponed and also the "No Fee Mortgage" which allows customers to change their mortgage to Abbey without paying fees and commissions involved in the change.

5.1.3. Principal markets: A brief description of the principal markets in which the Guarantor competes.

The Santander Group is one of the principal financial groups in the Spanish banking sector. At 31 December 2005 it was the leading Spanish banking group in terms of total assets, customer lending, on balance sheet customer funds, net worth and profits.

| (*) Millions of Euros | SANTANDER GROUP | Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria (BBVA) |
|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------|
| TOTAL ASSETS CUSTOMER LENDING (GROSS) ON BALANCE SHEET CUSTOMER FUNDS BOOK NET WORTH | 809,107 443,439 528,041 36,701 | 392,389 221,995 259,200 13,036 |
| PROFIT FOR YEAR - Net profit attributed to the Group | 6,750 6,220 | 4,071 3,806 |

| (**) | GRUPO SANTANDER | BBVA |
|----------------------------------|--------------------|--------|
| BANKING BRANCH NETWORK | 10,201 | 7,410 |
| AVERAGE WORKFORCE RATIOS (%): | 129,196 | 94,681 |
| - ROE | 19.86 | 37.0 |
| - Efficiency | 52.55 | 43.2 |
| - Non Performing Loans (NPL) (%) | 0.89 | 0.94 |
| - NPL Coverage (%) | 182.02 | 252.5 |

^(*) According to figures published by the institutions in their respectives annual reports.

(**) Unaudited.

6 ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

6.1 If the Guarantor is part of a group, a brief description of the group and of the Guarantor's position within it.

BANCO SANTANDER CENTRAL HISPANO, S.A. is the parent company of the Santander Group. At 31 December 2005 the Group was made up of 664 companies which were consolidated by the global integration methods, and 99 companies that are accounted for by the equity method.

6.2 If the Guarantor is dependent upon other entities within the group, this must be clearly stated together with an explanation of this dependence.

Not Applicable.

7 TREND INFORMATION

7.1. Include a statement that there has been no material adverse change in the prospects of the Guarantor since the date of its last published audited financial statements. In the event that the Guarantor is unable to make such a statement, provide details of this material adverse change.

There has been no material adverse change in the prospects of the Guarantor since 31 December 2005.

7.2. Information on any known trends, uncertainties, demands, commitments or events that are reasonably likely to have a material effect on the Guarantor's prospects for at least the current financial year.

There is no known trend which could currently affect the Group. Nevertheless, the following is a description of certain factors which, if produced, could affect the prospects of the Group.

The European financial services sector is likely to remain competitive with an increasing number of financial service providers and alternative distribution channels. Further, consolidation in the sector (through mergers, acquisitions or alliances) is likely to occur as the other major banks look to increase their market share or combine with complementary businesses. It is foreseeable that regulatory changes will take place in the future that will diminish barriers in the markets.

The following are the most important trends, uncertainties and events that are reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the Bank or that would cause the disclosed financial information not to be indicative of the Bank's future operating results or its financial condition:

- a downturn in real estate markets, and a corresponding increase in mortgage defaults;
- the recent interest rate hikes in the United States;
- uncertainties relating to economic growth expectations and interest rates cycles, especially in the United States, Spain, the United Kingdom, other European countries and Latin America, and the impact they may have over the yield curve and exchange rates;
- the effect that an economic slowdown may have over Latin America and fluctuations in local interest and exchange rates;
- the chance that changes in the macroeconomic environment will deteriorate the quality of the Bank's customers' credit
- a possible downturn in capital markets;
- a drop in the value of the euro relative to the US dollar, the Sterling pound or Latin American currencies;
- inflationary pressures, because of the effect they may have in relation to increases of interest rates and decreases of growth;
- increased consolidation of the European financial services sector; and
- although it is foreseeable that entry barriers to domestic markets in Europe will be lowered, the Bank's
 possible plans of expansion into other markets could be affected by regulatory requirements of the
 national authorities of these countries.

8 PROFIT FORECASTS OR ESTIMATES

If a Guarantor chooses to include a profit forecast or a profit estimate this Base Prospectus must contain the information items 8.1 and 8.2.

The Guarantor has not included a profit forecast or profit estimate in this Base Prospectus.

8.1. A statement setting out the principal assumptions upon which the Guarantor has based its forecast, or estimate. There must be a clear distinction between assumptions about factors which the members of the administrative, management or supervisory bodies can influence and assumptions about factors which are exclusively outside the influence of the members of the administrative, management or supervisory bodies; be readily understandable by investors; be specific and precise; and not relate to the general accuracy of the estimates underlying the forecast.

Not applicable.

8.2. A report prepared by independent accountants or auditors stating that in the opinion of the independent accountants or auditors the forecast or estimate has been properly compiled on the basis stated and that the basis of accounting used for the profit forecast or estimate is consistent with the accounting policies of the Guarantor.

Not applicable.

8.3. The profit forecast or estimate must be prepared on a basis comparable with the historical financial information.

Not applicable.

9 ADMINISTRATIVE, MANAGEMENT, AND SUPERVISORY BODIES

- 9.1. Names, business addresses and functions in the Guarantor of the following persons, and an indication of the principal activities performed by them outside the Guarantor where these are significant with respect to the Guarantor:
 - (a) members of the administrative, management or supervisory bodies;
 - (b) partners with unlimited liability, in the case of a limited partnership with a share capital.

The Articles of Association of the Bank (Article 30) provide that the maximum number of Directors is 22 and the minimum number 14. The Board of the Bank is presently made up of 19 directors.

The following table displays the composition, position and structure of the Board and its Committees.

The business address of each of the persons listed below is: Ciudad Grupo Santander, Avenida de Cantabria s/n, 28660 Boadilla del Monte, Madrid.

| Board of Directors | Executive Committee | Risk Committee | Audit and Compliance Committee | Appointments and Remuneration Committee | International Committee | Technology, Productivity and Quality Committee | Executive | External |
|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------|----------------|-----------------------------------|--------------------------------------------|-------------------------|------------------------------------------------|-----------|----------|
| Chairman Mr. Emilio Botín-Sanz de Sautuola y García de los Ríos | C | | | | C | C | | |
| First Deputy Chairman Mr. Fernando de Asúa Álvarez | | V | | С | | | | I |
| Second Deputy Chairman and Managing Director Mr. Alfredo Sáenz Abad | | | | | | | | |
| Third Deputy Chairman Mr. Matías Rodríguez Inciarte | | C | | | | | | |
| Fourth Deputy Chairman Mr. Manuel Soto Serrano | | | | | | | | I |
| Members | | | | | | | | |
| Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A. (represented by Mr. Antoine Bernheim) | | | | | | | | Р |
| Mr. Antonio Basagoiti García-Tuñón | | | | | | | | |
| Ms. Ana Patricia Botín-Sanz de Sautuola y O'Shea | | | | | | | | |
| Mr. Javier Botín-Sanz de Sautuola y O'Shea (1) | | | | | | | | P |
| Lord Burns (Terence) | | | | | | | | |
| Mr. Guillermo de la Dehesa Romero | | | | | | | | Ι |
| Mr. Rodrigo Echenique Gordillo | | | | | | | | |
| Mr. Antonio Escámez Torres | | | | | | | | |
| Mr. Francisco Luzón López | | | | | | | | |
| Mr. Abel Matutes Juan | | | | | | | | Ι |
| Mutua Madrileña Automovilista (represented by Mr. Luis Rodríguez Durón) | | | | | | | | P |
| Mr. Luis Ángel Rojo Duque | | | C | | | | | Ι |
| Mr. Luis Alberto Salazar-Simpson Bos | | | | | | | | I |
| Mr. Jay S. Sidhu | | | | | | | | |
| General Secretary and Board Secretary Mr. Ignacio Benjumea Cabeza de Vaca (2) | | | | | | | | |
| Deputy General Secretary and Board Secretary Mr. Juan Guitard Marín (2) | | | | | | | | |

C: Chairman, V: Vice Chairman, P: Proprietary, I: Independent

- (1) External Proprietary director representing own shareholding and that of Fundación Marcelino Botín of Mr. Emilio Botín-Sanz de Sautuola y García de los Ríos, of Ms. Ana Patricia Botín-Sanz de Sautuola y O'Shea, of Mr. Emilio Botín-Sanz de Sautuola y O'Shea, of Mr. Jaime Botín-Sanz de Sautuola y García de los Ríos and of Ms. Paloma O'Shea Artiñano.
- (2) Not directors.

Principal Activities outside the Guarantor

The current directors of the Bank at the date hereof carry out the following functions in other companies:

| | Company Name | Functions |
|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------------------|------------------------------------|
| Mr. Emilio Botín-Sanz de Sautuola y | SHINSEI BANK LIMITED | Director |
| García de los Ríos | SOVEREIGN BANCORP, INC. | Director |
| Mr. Fernando de Asúa Álvarez | IBM ESPAÑA, S.A. | Honorary Chairman |
| | Compañía Española de Petróleos, S.A. (CEPSA) | Director |
| | AIR LIQUIDE ESPAÑA, S.A. | Director |
| | TÉCNICAS REUNIDAS, S.A. | Director |
| | Constructora Inmobiliaria Urbanizadora Vasco-Aragonesa | |
| | S.A. | , Director |
| Mr. Alfredo Sáenz Abad | Compañía Española de Petróleos, S.A. (CEPSA) | Vice Chairman |
| | SAN PAOLO IMI SPA | Director |
| | France Telecom España, S.A. | Director |
| Mr. Matías Rodríguez Inciarte | BANCO ESPAÑOL DE CRÉDITO, S.A. | Director |
| 2 | Financiera Ponferrada, S.A. | Director |
| | Grupo Corporativo Ono, S.A. | Second Vice Chairman |
| | Operador Del Mercado Iberico de Energia Polo Español, S.A | |
| | UNIÓN DE CRÉDITOS INMOBILIARIOS, S.A. | Chairman |
| Mr. Manuel Soto Serrano | Indra Sistemas, S.A. | Vice Chairman |
| | Inversiones Inmobiliarias Lar, S.A. | Director |
| | CORPORACIÓN FINANCIERA ALBA, S.A. | Director |
| | MERCAPITAL, S.L. | Chairman of the Advisory Committe |
| | OCCIDENTAL HOTELES MANAGEMENT, S.A. | Member of the Consultive Committee |
| Mr. Antoine Bernheim (1) | ASSICURAZIONI GENERALI, S.P.A. | Chairman |
| | BANCA INTESA, S.P.A. | Director |
| | Mediobanca-Banca Di Credito Finanziario S.p.A. | Director |
| | BSI S.A. | Director |
| Mr. Antonio Basagoiti García-Tuñón | Faes Farma, S.A. | Vice Chairman |
| , and the second | PESCANOVA, S.A. | Director |
| Ms. Ana Patricia Botín-Sanz de | Banco Español de Crédito, S.A. | Chairwoman |
| Sautuola y O'Shea | Inmobiliaria Urbis, S.A. | Director |
| • | Assicurazioni Generali, S.p.A. | Director |
| Mr. Javier Botín-Sanz de Sautuola y O'Shea | M&B CAPITAL ADVISERS, SOCIEDAD DE VALORES, S.A. | Executive Director |
| Lord Burns (Terence) | ABBEY NATIONAL PLC | Chairman |
| , , | GLAS CYMRU (WELSH WATER) | Chairman |
| | PEARSON GROUP PLC | Director |
| | MARKS AND SPENCER GROUP PLC | Chairman |
| Mr. Guillermo de la Dehesa Romero | Campofrío Alimentación, S.A. | Director |
| | Unión-Fenosa, S.A. | Director |
| | TelePizza, S.A. | Director |
| | AVIVA VIDA Y PENSIONES, S.A. DE SEGUROS Y REASEGUROS | Chairman |
| | GOLDMAN SACHS EUROPE LTD | Director |
| | AVIVA PLC | Director |
| | CENTRE FOR ECONOMIC POLICY RESEARCH IN LONDON | Chairman |
| | GROUP OF THIRTY OF WASHINGTON | Member Chairman |
| | | |
| | Consejo Rector Del Instituto de Empresa | Chairman |

| | Company Name | Functions |
|--------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------|
| Mr. Rodrigo Echenique Gordillo | RECOLETOS GRUPO DE COMMUNICATION, S.A. | Director |
| | CONSEJO ECONÓMICO SOCIAL DE LA UNIVERSIDAD CARLOS III | Chairman |
| | Inversiones Inmobiliarias Lar, S.A. | Director |
| Mr. Antonio Escámez Torres | Arena Media Communications España, S.A. | Chairman |
| | SANTANDER CONSUMER FINANCE, S.A. | Chairman |
| | OPEN BANK SANTANDER CONSUMER, S.A. | Chairman |
| | Attijariwafa Bank | Vice Chairman |
| Mr. Francisco Luzón López | INDUSTRIA DE DISEÑO TEXTIL, S.A. (Inditex) | Director |
| | Consejo Social de la Universidad Castilla-La Mancha | Chairman |
| Mr. Abel Matutes Juan | FCC CONSTRUCCIÓN, S.A. | Director |
| | Eurizon Financial Group | Director |
| | FIESTA HOTELS & RESORTS, S.L. | Chairman |
| Mr. Luis Rodriguez Durón (2) | Ibérica De Maderas y Aglomerados S.A. | Chairman |
| | MUTUACTIVOS SA, SGIIC | Chairman |
| | Mutua Madrileña Automovilistica Sociedad De Seguros a Prima Fija | First Vice President |
| | Aresa Seguros Generales, S.A. | Vice Chairman |
| Mr. Luis Ángel Rojo Duque | Universidad Complutense de Madrid | Professor Emeritus |
| | GROUP OF WISE MEN (ECOFIN) (3) | Member |
| | REAL ACADEMIA DE LAS CIENCIAS MORALES Y POLITICAS | Full Member |
| | Real Academia de La Lengua Española | Full Member |
| | CORPORACIÓN FINANCIERA ALBA, S.A. | Director |
| Mr. Luis Alberto Salazar-Simpson Bos | France Telecom España, S.A. | Chairman |
| | Constructora Inmobiliaria Urbanizadora Vasco- Aragonesa, S.A. | Chairman |
| | SAINT GOBAIN CRISTALERÍA, S.A. | Director |
| | Mutua Madrileña Automovilística, Sociedad de Seguros a Prima Fija | Director |

- (1) Representative of the Company Director Assicurazioni Generali, SpA.
- (2) Representative of the Company Director Mutua Madrileña Autonomovilistica, Sociedad De Seguros A Prima Fija.
- (3) Mr. Luis Ángel Rojo Duque was appointed a member of the Group of Wise Men by the ECOFIN Board in order to study the integration of European financial markets.
- 9.2. Administrative, Management, and Supervisory bodies conflicts of interests. Potential conflicts of interests between any duties to the issuing entity of the persons referred to in item 9.1 and their private interests and or other duties must be clearly stated. In the event that there are no such conflicts, make a statement to that effect.

During the 2005 financial year there were 35 cases in which Directors abstained from taking part in voting in deliberations or meetings of the Board of Directors or its Committees.

In the specific case of Directors of the Bank, conflict of interest situations are regulated by Section 28 of the Board Regulations. This section lays down an obligation for Directors to notify the Board of Directors of any situation of conflict, whether direct or indirect, which they have with the interests of the Bank. If the conflict relates to an operation, the Director may not carry out the same without the approval of the Board on prior report from the Appointments and Remuneration Committee. The Director concerned must abstain from deliberating and voting on the operation to which the conflict relates.

10 MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS

10.1. To the extent known to the Guarantor, state whether the Guarantor is directly or indirectly owned or controlled and by whom, and describe the nature of such control, and describe the measures in place to ensure that such control is not abused.

The Bank is not aware of any person which exerts or may exert control over the Bank within the terms of Article 4 of *Ley 24/1988*, *de 28 de julio*, *del Mercado de Valores* (Law 24/1988 of 28 July of the Securities Market).

10.2. A description of any arrangements, known to the Guarantor, the operation of which may at a subsequent date result in a change in control of the Guarantor.

The Bank is not aware of any arrangements the operation of which may at a date subsequent to that of the date hereof result in a change in control of the Guarantor.

11 FINANCIAL INFORMATION CONCERNING THE GUARANTOR'S ASSETS AND LIABILITIES, FINANCIAL POSITION AND PROFITS AND LOSSES

11.1. Historical Financial Information: Audited historical financial information covering the latest 2 financial years (or such shorter period that the Guarantor has been in operation), and the audit report in respect of each year. Such financial information must be prepared according to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002, or if not applicable to a Member State national accounting standards for issuers from the Community. For third country issuers, such financial information must be prepared according to the international accounting standards adopted pursuant to the procedure of Article 3 of Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 or to a third country's national accounting standards equivalent to these standards. If such financial information is not equivalent to these standards, it must be presented in the form of restated financial statements.

The most recent year's audited historical financial information must be presented and prepared in a form consistent with that which will be adopted in the Guarantor's next published annual financial statements having regard to accounting standards and policies and legislation applicable to such annual financial statements.

If the Guarantor has been operating in its current sphere of economic activity for less than one year, the audited historical financial information covering that period must be prepared in accordance with the standards applicable to annual financial statements under Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002, or if not applicable to a Member State national accounting standards where the Guarantor is an Guarantor from the Community. For third country Guarantors, the historical financial information must be prepared according to the international accounting standards adopted pursuant to the procedure of Article 3 of Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 or to a third country's national accounting standards equivalent to these standards. This historical financial information must be audited. If the audited financial information is prepared according to national accounting standards, the financial information required under this heading must include at least the following:

- (a) the balance sheet;
- (b) the income statement;
- (c) in the case of an admission of securities to trading on a regulated market only, a cash flow statement;
- (d) the accounting policies and explanatory notes.

The historical annual financial information must be independently audited or reported on as to whether or not, for the purposes of this Base Prospectus, it gives a true and fair view, in accordance with auditing standards applicable in a Member State or an equivalent standard.

The information contained in the following tables is hereby incorporated by reference. The tables below set out the relevant page references in the annual reports of the Guarantor for the years ended 31 December 2005 and 31 December 2004 (the "2005 Annual Report and the 2004 Annual Report", respectively) where the following information incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus can be found:

| the following information incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus can be found: | |
|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------|
| Information Incorporated by Reference in this Base Prospectus | 2005 Annual Report Page Reference |
| 1. Auditor's report | 163 |
| 2. Audited Consolidated Balance Sheets for the year ended 31 December 2005 and the comparative consolidated financial information of the Guarantor for the year ended | 161.16 |
| 31 December 2004 | 164-165 |
| comparative consolidated financial information of the Guarantor for the year ended | |
| 31 December 2004 | 166 |
| 4. Audited Consolidated Cash Flow Statements for the year ended 31 December 2005 and the comparative consolidated cash flow statement of the Guarantor for the year ended | |
| 31 December 2004 | 168-169 |
| 5. Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements | 170-281 |
| Information Incorporated by Reference in this Base Prospectus | 2004 Annual Report Page Reference |
| 1. Auditor's report | 163 |
| 2. Audited Consolidated Balance Sheets for the year ended 31 December 2004 and the comparative consolidated financial information of the Guarantor for the year ended | 164 165 |
| 31 December 2003 | 164-165 |
| 31 December 2003 | 166 167-239 |
| The tables below set out the relevant page references in Form 20-F of the Guarantor for the year December 2005 ("2005 Form 20-F") and Form 20-F of the Guarantor for the year ended 31 2004 ("2004 Form 20-F") where the following information incorporated by reference in Prospectus can be found: | December |
| | 2005 Form |

| Information Incorporated by Reference in this Base Prospectus | 2005 Form 20-F Page Reference |
|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------|
| Report of Deloitte, S.L. | F-1 |
| Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 | F-2 |
| Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 Consolidated Statements Of Changes In Shareholders' Equity for the Years Ended | F-3 |
| December 31, 2005 and 2004 | F-4 |
| Consolidated Cash Flow Statements for the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 | F-5 - F-6 |
| Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements | F-7 - F-232 |
| | |
| Information Incorporated by Reference in this Base Prospectus | 2004 Form 20-F Page Reference |
| Information Incorporated by Reference in this Base Prospectus 1. Audit (Deloitte) Report | 20-F Page |
| | 20-F Page Reference |
| 1. Audit (Deloitte) Report | 20-F Page Reference F-1 |
| 1. Audit (Deloitte) Report | 20-F Page Reference F-1 F-2 - F-3 |

The above information may be inspected as described in "Documents on Display" above. Any information not listed in the above cross-reference tables but which is included in the documents incorporated by reference herein is given for information purposes only.

11.2. Financial statements: If the Guarantor prepares both own and consolidated financial statements, include at least the consolidated financial statements in this Base Prospectus.

The Guarantor prepares audited consolidated annual financial statements and audited annual non-consolidated financial statements. Only the consolidated financial statements are incorporated by reference under paragraph 11.1 above.

The Guarantor does not prepare non-consolidated interim financial statements.

11.3 Auditing of historical annual financial information.

11.3.1. A statement that the historical financial information has been audited. If audit reports on the historical financial information have been refused by the statutory auditors or if they contain qualifications or disclaimers, such refusal or such qualifications or disclaimers must be reproduced in full and the reasons given.

The individual and consolidated annual financial statements and management reports of BANCO SANTANDER CENTRAL HISPANO, S.A. for the 2004 and 2005 financial years were audited by the external audit firm DELOITTE, S.L. (formerly DELOITTE & TOUCHE ESPAÑA, S.L.).

The report of Deloitte, S.L. in relation to the financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2004 contains a reservation to the following effect: in 2003 and 2002, the Bank and other Group entities entered into early retirement agreements with certain employees and recorded these commitments, after receiving the related authorizations from the Bank of Spain pursuant to Rule 13 of Bank of Spain Circular 4/1991, with a charge to unrestricted reserves and simultaneously recorded the related deferred tax asset (€336 million and €181 million, respectively, in 2003, and €856 million and €461 million respectively, in 2002). In 2004, the Bank of Spain did not grant such authorization to credit institutions and, accordingly, also in accordance with rule 13 of Bank of Spain Circular 4/1991, the Bank and other Group entities recorded net provisions of €527 million with a charge to the consolidated statement of income to meet their commitments to the employees who took early retirement in that year (€810 million were charged to the "Extraordinary Loss" caption in the 2004 consolidated statement of income referred to above, and simultaneously the related deferred tax asset was recorded for €283 million).

There are no other reservations or qualifications of the auditors in relation to the 2004 and 2005 financial statements referred to above.

11.3.2. An indication of other information relating to the guarantor in this Base Prospectus which has been audited by the auditors.

No other information relating to the Guarantor in this Base Prospectus has been audited by Deloitte, S.L., save for the summarized balance sheets and income statements of the various geographical segments (principal level) and the summarized income statements and other significant data, contained in paragraph 5.1.1.

11.3.3. Where financial data in this Base Prospectus is not extracted from the Guarantor's audited financial statements state the source of the data and state that the data is unaudited.

The information regarding business areas contained in paragraph 5.1.1 is not audited and was obtained from the internal accounting records of the Bank save for the balance sheets and income statement referred in paragraph 11.3.2.

The information relating to Santander Group contained in the second table in paragraph 5.1.3 is not audited and was obtained from the Bank's annual report.

In addition, the unaudited financial statements incorporated by reference in paragraph 11.5.1 are not audited and have been extracted from the Bank's internal accounting records.

- 11.4. Age of latest financial information.
- 11.4.1. The last year of audited financial information may not be older than 18 months from the date of this Base Prospectus.

The date of the most recent audited financial information of the Bank is 31 December 2005.

- 11.5. Interim and other financial information.
- 11.5.1. If the Guarantor has published quarterly or half yearly financial information since the date of its last audited financial statements, these must be included in this Base Prospectus. If the quarterly or half yearly financial information has been reviewed or audited the audit or review report must also be included. If the quarterly or half yearly financial information is unaudited or has not been reviewed state that fact.

The table below sets out the relevant page references of the Unaudited Financial Report 2006 of the Guarantor (January-September) (the "Financial Report 2006") where the following information incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus can be found:

Financial

| Information Incorporated by Reference in this Base Prospectus | Report 2006 Page Reference |
|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------|
| 1. Unaudited Consolidated Income Statement for the period 1 January 2006 - 30 September | |
| 2006 | 12 |
| 2. Unaudited Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 30 September 2006 | 15 |

Any information not listed in the above cross-reference tables but which is included in the documents incorporated by reference herein is given for information purposes only.

11.5.2. If this Base Prospectus is dated more than nine months after the end of the last audited financial year, it must contain interim financial information, covering at least the first six months of the financial year. If the interim financial information is unaudited state that fact.

The interim financial information must include comparative statements for the same period in the prior financial year, except that the requirement for comparative balance sheet information may be satisfied by presenting the years end balance sheet.

See paragraph 11.5.1 above.

- 11.6. Legal and arbitration proceedings: Information on any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which the Guarantor is aware), during a period covering at least the previous 12 months which may have, or have had in the recent past, significant effects on the Guarantor and/or group's financial position or profitability, or provide an appropriate negative statement.
 - 1) Since fiscal year 1992, the Madrid Central Pre-Trial Investigation Court No 3 has maintained pretrial investigative proceedings now Summary Proceedings in order to determine liabilities of the Bank, its Chairman and three of its Officers with respect to certain credit assignment transactions (operaciones de cesión de crédito) carried out by Banco Santander, S.A. between fiscal years 1987 and 1989. In the opinion of the Bank and its internal and external advisors, the final result of this litigation will be favourable to the Bank, its Chairman and three of its Officers, and does not require a specific additional reserve. On July 16, 1996, the Madrid Central Pre-Trial Investigation Court No. 3, pursuant to a request made to such effect by the Attorney General after having consulted the Spanish Tax Authority, dismissed certain but not all the claims against the Bank, its Chairman and three of its Officers. Thereafter, the Attorney General representative of the Tax Authority and

the Office of the Public Prosecutor repeatedly requested the dismissal of the remaining claims and the removal of the case from the docket. However, on June 27, 2002, the court changed the cited proceedings into a Summary Proceeding. Such decision was appealed by the Office of the Public Prosecutor, the Bank, its Chairman and three of its Officers. On June 23, 2003, the Panel Two of the Criminal Division of the National Criminal and Administrative Court (Audiencia Nacional) admitted partially such appeals, explicitly acknowledging that the marketing of the credit assignment transactions with clients had been legal, and reducing the number of transactions under scrutiny and with respect to which the Bank's possible involvement is still being alleged — from 138 to 38, with respect to the remaining 38 transactions under scrutiny, the Attorney General and the Office of the Public Prosecutor have generally requested the dismissal of claims and their removal from the docket on the grounds that no crime had been committed. Following the conclusion of the indictment proceedings — with repeated requests by the Office of the Public Prosecutor and the Attorney General for the dismissal of the proceedings and their removal from the docket, — and based on the complaint filed by the citizen complainant, Asociación para la Defensa de Inversores y Clientes (Investor and Customer Defense Association), the Court, in an order dated October 6, 2004, decreed the commencement of oral evidentiary proceedings against the Chairman of the Bank and three of its Officers for one continuing crime of falsification of an official document, three continuing crimes of falsification of a commercial document, and thirty crimes against the public finance, ordering that a bond be jointly posted for €67.8 million, which amount was later reduced to €40.1 million, as a fine and for costs. The order designated Panel One of the Criminal Division of the National Criminal and Administrative Court as the competent court to hear the oral evidentiary proceedings. Relevant documentation has already been sent to the Court.

- 2) In December 1995, the Spanish tax authorities issued an "Acta" (writ) requiring Banco Santander, S.A. to pay €26.2 million in back withholding taxes, interest and penalties relating to the Bank's alleged failure to comply with a purported obligation to withhold income tax on payments to clients with respect to certain credit assignment transactions held by such clients. The Bank's appeal against this writ was rejected. The Bank filed a second appeal which was partially admitted by the court on October 30, 2003. Both the Bank and the Attorney General have appealed such decision before the Supreme Court and are awaiting the Court's decision with respect to the appeals.
- 3) Inversión Hogar, S.A. filed in 2001 a suit against the Bank, carried out before the Court of 1st Instance number 19 of Madrid, seeking the termination of a transactional agreement dated December 11, 1992 between the Bank and the plaintiff. On May 19, 2006, a judgment was rendered whereby the agreement is deemed terminated and the Bank is ordered: (i) to pay EUR1.8 million plus legal interests accrued since February 1997; (ii) to return a property which had been assigned to the Bank pursuant to the agreement; (iii) to pay an additional amount of EUR72.9 million as restoration of goods which had been sold by the Bank after foreclosure; and (iv) to bear the legal costs of the proceeding. The Bank has filed an appeal against such judgment.
- 4) In May 2004, Chadia Limited, S.A. filed a suit against the Bank, carried out before the Court of 1st Instance number 48 of Madrid, proceeding number 420/2004, alleging that the Bank breached an alleged agreement for the sale to the plaintiff of certain buildings and seeking damages in the amount of €133 million. The Court rejected the claim, Chadia Limited, S.A. appealed, and the Court rejected such appeal. Subsequently, Chadia Limited, S.L. has appealed to the Supreme Court.
- The Bank is presently subject to a claim made by the Instituto Nacional de Vías de Colombia (INVIAS) in connection with the execution of an order declaring the expiration of a concession to build and operate a toll motorway in Colombia. The Bank formed part of the consortium (COMMSA) who was awarded that concession. Apart from certain injunctive measures, INVIAS is requesting from COMMSA and its shareholders (jointly and severally) the payment of USD 137.1 million. There is an undertaking by some of the shareholders of COMMSA to indemnify the Bank in full in connection with losses it may incur as a result of the claim.

- On September 20, 2006, COMMSA and INVIAS in the presence of representatives of the Colombian and Spanish governments entered into an agreement in principle to settle the dispute, pursuant to which the parties will desist from the litigation in consideration for a cash indemnity. The amount of the cash indemnity is pending determination.
- 6) For informational purposes, it is also mentioned that several persons, who allegedly have funds deposited in Banco Río de la Plata, S.A., filed an application for conciliation before the courts of the city of Madrid against the Bank, the persons who were members of the Board during 2001 and 2002 and others. According to Spanish Law, this application did not start proper judicial proceedings against the Bank. The claimants only intended that the defendants acknowledge the facts alleged in their application, regarding the Bank and its Directors' claimed obligation to reimburse the funds deposited by the claimants in Banco Rio de la Plata, S.A. The conciliation hearing was held on July 16, 2002. The Bank and the members of the Board refused to accept the facts and allegations of the application. This meant the termination of the conciliation. In January 2004, there was a preliminary hearing in connection with a similar case, in which a person who allegedly deposited funds in Banco Río de la Plata, S.A. is claiming \$8,365.71. The Court has not determined the date for the next hearing yet.

Abbey National Treasury Services PLC

Abbey National Treasury Services plc received a demand from a foreign Tax Authority relating to the repayment of certain tax credits and related charges. Following certain modifications to the demand its nominal amount now stands at 57 million Pounds sterling. As of December 31, 2005, additional interest in relation to the demand could amount to 17 million Pounds sterling. Abbey National Treasury Services plc has received legal advice that it has strong grounds to challenge the validity of the demand.

Banco do Estado de Sao Paulo (Banespa)

1) Pursuant to the Brazilian labour regulations applicable to Banespa, this bank had recorded as of December 31, 2000, the pension allowances arising from the commitments to certain employees, which amounted to approximately 4,000 million Brazilian reais. Since 1987, the Directors of Banespa, as advised by their tax advisers, treated these expenses as deductible expenses in calculating the Brazilian corporate income tax. However, in September 1999, the "Secretaria de Receita Federal" issued a decision according to which these expenses, in an amount of approximately Brazilian reais 2,867 million would not be tax deductible. In October 1999, the Board of Directors of Banespa filed an appeal challenging this decision together with an "acción cautelar" regarding fiscal years 1999 and 2000, posted a deposit of Brazilian reais 1,297 million and recorded a provision of Brazilian reais 2,600 million for this contingency. Such provision was recorded in 1999 with a charge to income, after recording the related deferred tax asset of Brazilian reais 1,200 million.

In this respect, the Board of Directors of Banespa has decided to accept the Medida Provisória nº 66 of the Secretaria da Receita Federal dated August 29, 2002 and to pay Brazilian reais 2,110 million in order to settle the proceedings. The company disputes any liability with respect to an additional amount of Brazilian reais 103 million relating to costs and surcharges imposed in connection with the dispute relating to the principal amount. The company has asked for a cautionary judicial action posting a deposit which at December 31, 2005 amounts to reais 164 million.

2) Several lawsuits are underway in Brazil with respect to the acquisition of Banco Noroeste and its subsequent amalgamation by Banco Santander Brazil. No adverse resolutions are envisaged that are not covered by existing provisions.

Lawsuits relating to the acquisition of Banco Noroeste

- a. Actions requesting the invalidity of the general Shareholders' Meeting that approved the capital increase through which the initial stake in Banco de Noroeste was acquired, and one of such actions, compensation for damages.
 - These two actions are based on a series of alleged defects in the holding of the aforementioned general Shareholders' Meeting. In both cases, sentence has been passed against the Bank in the first instance, but an appeal has been lodged, with a stay of execution.
- b. Action requesting compensation for not having received sufficient refund following to fraudulent diversion of funds from the Caiman Islands.

Prior to the acquisition of Banco Noroeste by Grupo Santander, a diversion of funds occurred from Noroeste's branch in the Caiman Islands. Santander sought and obtained from the previous majority shareholders the refund of the diverted funds to Noroeste's net worth, together with interest calculated at the rate applicable to assets in dollars, since such funds had been invested for a long time in assets denominated in that currency. The action demanded application of the rate applicable to Brazilian financial assets. After a first sentence against the Bank, the appeal was won, followed by a second sentence against the Bank, an appeal having been lodged with stay of execution. The sentence demands payment of the difference between both rates (established at 743 million reais at source, 2,100 million reais with monetary correction to date). However, the recipient of the compensation and the payer are the same legal entity; therefore, if the payment obligation materialises, both amounts would be offset. However, sentence has also been passed demanding 20% as fees and 5% as a "reward" for defending corporate interests, in both cases on the aforementioned amount of 2,100 million reais.

Legal proceedings relating to the takeover of Banco Noroeste by Banco Santander Brasil

There are three actions requesting annulment of the general Shareholders' Meeting that approved the merger or compensation for damages. In the three cases, sentence has been passed in the first instance, two against the Bank and one in its favour, appeal having been filed (by the bank or by the counterparty), with stay of execution in all cases.

Santander Distribuidora de Títulos e Valores Mobiliarios, Ltda. (formerly known as Santander Brasil DTVM, Ltda.) and Banco Santander Brasil, S.A.

- 1) On May 19, 2003, the Secretaria de Receita Federal issued an "Auto de Infração" requiring from our Brazilian affiliate Santander Distribuidora de Títulos e Valores Mobiliarios, Ltda. the payment of Brazilian reais 290 million in taxes allegedly incurred in connection with certain cash management services rendered by such company to its clients which the company had treated during 2000, 2001 and the two first months of 2002 as exempt from the Tax on Financial Transactions, following the advice of its tax advisers. The Board of Directors of Santander Distribuidora de Títulos e Valores Mobiliarios, Ltda. appealed this decision in June 2003. The Tax Authorities confirmed the "Auto de Infrançao" and the Board of Directors appealed to "Conselho de Contribuintes" (final administrative court). The Court decision is pending. On December 31, 2005, the amount involved in the action was equivalent to reais 352 million.
- 2) Also on May 29, 2003, the Secretaria de Receita Federal issued another "Auto de Infração" requiring from our Brazilian affiliate Banco Santander Brasil, S.A. the payment of Brazilian reais 290 million in taxes allegedly incurred in connection with certain clearing services rendered by such company to Santander Distribuidora de Títulos e Valores Mobiliarios, Ltda. pursuant to an agreement between these two companies. Following the advice of its tax advisers, Banco Santander Brasil, S.A. had treated during 2000, 2001 and the two first months of 2002 such services as exempt from the Tax on Financial Transactions. The Board of Directors of Banco Santander Brasil, S.A. appealed this decision in June 2003. The Tax Authorities confirmed the "Auto de Infranção" and the Board of

Directors appealed to "Conselho de Contribuintes" (final administrative court). The Court decision is pending. On December 31, 2005, the amount involved in the action was equivalent to reais 352 million.

Casa de Bolsa Santander Serfín, S.A. de C.V. ("Casa de Bolsa") (Grupo Financiero Santander Serfín)

In 1997 Casa de Bolsa was sued for an alleged breach of various stock brokerage contracts. On July 6, 1999, Civil Court number thirty-one of the Federal District handed down a judgment ordering Casa de Bolsa to return to the plaintiff 2,401,588 shares of the investment vehicle México 1 and 11,219,730 shares of the investment vehicle México 4 at their market value and to pay MXP 15 million, plus interest calculated at the average percentage cost of deposit-taking (C.P.P.) multiplied by four.

After several appeals had been filed, this judgment was declared final on June 21, 2004. On November 5, 2004, a writ of execution was issued in which the interest was quantified at MXP 37,646 million and Casa de Bolsa was ordered to deliver the claimed shares.

Successive appeals were filed against this writ of execution. On February 14, 2006, Civil Chamber number two of the High Court of Justice of Mexico City handed down a decision on the latest appeal, setting aside the writ of execution since the payment of the MXP 37,646 million was deemed to be unjustified and the procedure to calculate the interest had been incorrect. An appeal for protection of constitutional rights was filed against this decision. On June 20, 2006 the Court confirmed that the decision of the Civil Chamber number two dated February 14, 2006 regarding the way in which the interest should be calculated does not violate constitutional rights. An appeal for judicial review was filed against the decision handed down on June 20, 2006. The Court resolved that Casa de Bolsa has to deliver the claimed shares, but that the interest amount had been improperly calculated.

Shareholder Litigation

- A small group of shareholders (owning 1,537 shares among them, less than 0.000025% of the Bank's share capital) that has consistently maintained a position against the Bank and its Chairman for several years, has been contesting certain corporate resolutions adopted at the eight General Shareholders' Meetings of Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. held on: (i) 18th January 2000; (ii) 4th March 2000; (iii) 10th March 2001; (iv) 9th February 2002; (v) 24th June 2002; (vi) 21st June 2003; (vii) 19th June 2004; and (viii) 18th June 2005. In all cases, the objections were dismissed in the first instance and upon appeal (except those relating to the 2003 General Meetings, where the proceedings have been suspended on a first penal ruling procedure; 2004, which were dismissed in the first instance and are being appealed; and 2005, still pending sentence in the first instance), with costs being imposed in the majority of cases. In most cases the plaintiffs have filed appeals to the Supreme Court, which, except for the cases where such appeals were not admitted, are being processed. The same occurred with the General Shareholders' Meerings of Banesto held on 26th March 1994 (resolutions contested by Rafael Pérez Escolar, Mr. Mario Conde Conde and others and Mr. Ramiro Núñez-Villaveirán y Ovilo) and 15th February 1995 (resolutions contested by Mr. Rafael Pérez Escolar and Mr. Ramiro Núñez-Villaveirán y Ovilo), which were dismissed in the first instance and upon appeal, with imposition of costs and with respect to which appeals have been filed before the Supreme Court.
- 2) The Bank is involved in Preliminary proceedings 2973/2006 carried forward by the Madrid Pre-Trial Investigation Court No. 11 in connection with a complaint filed by one shareholder of the Bank against the Chairman of the Bank and others, and against the Bank and its affiliated companies Santusa Holding, S.L. and Santander Holding Gestión, S.L. regarding alleged misappropriation, deceitful accounting and disloyal management.

On May 23, 2006, the Court admitted the filing of the complaint, although such admission was only partial. The Bank has challenged the complaint.

Other Litigation

In addition to the above described matters, the Bank and its subsidiaries are from time to time subject to certain claims and parties to certain legal proceedings incidental to the normal course of our business, including in connection with the Group's lending activities, relationships with the Group's employees and other commercial or tax matters. In view of the inherent difficulty of predicting the outcome of legal matters, particularly where the claimants seek very large or indeterminate damages, or where the cases present novel legal theories, involve a large number of parties or are in early stages of discovery, the Bank cannot state with confidence what the eventual outcome of these pending matters will be, what the timing of the ultimate resolution of these matters will be or what the eventual loss, fines or penalties related to each pending matter may be. The Bank believes that it has made adequate reserves related to the costs anticipated to be incurred in connection with these various claims and legal proceedings and believes that liabilities related to such claims and proceedings should not have, in the aggregate, a material adverse effect on the Group's business, financial condition, or results of operations. However, in light of the uncertainties involved in such claims and proceedings, there is no assurance that the ultimate resolution of these matters will not significantly exceed the reserves currently accrued by the Bank; as a result, the outcome of a particular matter may be material to the Bank's operating results for a particular period, depending upon, among other factors, the size of the loss or liability imposed and the level of the Bank's income for that period.

11.7. Significant change in the Guarantor's financial position: A description of any significant change in the financial position of the group which has occurred since the end of the last financial period for which either audited financial information or interim financial information have been published, or an appropriate negative statement.

There has been no significant change in the financial position of the Group since 30 September 2006, being the date of the most recent published unaudited consolidated interim financial statements of the Bank.

12 MATERIAL CONTRACTS

12.1 A brief summary of all material contracts that are not entered into in the ordinary course of the Guarantor's business, which could result in any group member being under an obligation or entitlement that is material to the Guarantor's ability to meet its obligation to security holders in respect of the securities being issued.

Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. ("Sovereign"). On May 31, 2006, Santander acquired shares of common stock of Sovereign equal to 19.8% of Sovereign's outstanding shares after giving effect to such purchase. The purchase price was \$27 per share, for an aggregate purchase price of \$2.4 billion. The proceeds of the sale were used by Sovereign to finance a portion of the \$3.6 billion cash purchase price that Sovereign paid to acquire Independence Community Bank Corp. ("Independence").

Sovereign's board of directors has elected two Santander designees to its board of directors, and Santander's Annual General Meeting of Shareholders held on June 17, 2006 elected the chief executive officer of Sovereign to Santander's Board of Directors. Sovereign and Independence together constitute the 18th largest bank in the United States as measured by assets and deposits with a significant presence in the Northeastern United States.

Under the Investment Agreement dated October 24, 2005 between Santander and Sovereign, as amended (the "Investment Agreement"), Santander has the right to increase its stake to 24.99% of Sovereign's outstanding shares at market prices. Unless otherwise approved by Sovereign's shareholders, shares so purchased will be held in a voting trust and voted in direct proportion to the votes of Sovereign's shareholders other than Santander and its affiliates. In addition, following the second anniversary of the closing and until the end of the fifth year after the closing, Santander will have the option to make an offer to acquire all of Sovereign, subject to certain conditions and limitations agreed between the parties. If such

an offer is made by Santander and the offer is either the highest offer resulting from an auction of Sovereign or at least equal to a full and fair price for Sovereign as determined pursuant to a competitive valuation procedure agreed to by the parties, the Sovereign board must accept the offer; provided that, during the third year after the closing, any offer made by Santander must be at a price of at least \$40 per share. Even if the Sovereign board accepts the offer, Santander will not be permitted to complete an acquisition of Sovereign unless a majority of the shareholders other than Santander and its affiliates who vote at the relevant Sovereign shareholder meeting approve the acquisition. In addition, for five years following the closing, Santander will have a right of first negotiation and a matching right with respect to third party offers to acquire Sovereign. Finally, with certain exceptions, Santander has agreed that, during this five year period, it will not sell or otherwise dispose of its Sovereign shares.

Santander has several options with respect to its investment. Santander can hold its investment in Sovereign indefinitely, after two years seek to acquire 100% of Sovereign or, subject to the terms of the Investment Agreement, sell or otherwise dispose of its investment. Santander currently holds 24.9% of Sovereign's outstanding shares.

13 THIRD PARTY INFORMATION AND STATEMENT BY EXPERTS AND DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTEREST

13.1. Where a statement or report attributed to a person as an expert is included in this Base Prospectus, provide such person's name, business address, qualifications and material interest if any in the Guarantor. If the report has been produced at the Guarantor's request a statement to that effect that such statement or report is included, in the form and context in which it is included, with the consent of that person who has authorised the contents of that part of this Base Prospectus.

Not Applicable.

13.2. Where information has been sourced from a third party, provide a confirmation that this information has been accurately reproduced and that as far as the Guarantor is aware and is able to ascertain from information published by that third party, no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading In addition, the Guarantor shall identify the source(s) of the information.

Not Applicable.

THE INSTRUMENTS

1 PERSONS RESPONSIBLE

1.1 All persons responsible for the information given in the prospectus and, as the case may be, for certain parts of it, with, in the latter case, an indication of such parts. In the case of natural persons including members of the issuer's administrative, management or supervisory bodies indicate the name and function of the person; in case of legal persons indicate the name and registered office.

Each of Santander International Debt, S.A. Unipersonal ("Santander International") and Santander Issuances, S.A. Unipersonal ("Santander Issuances") (each an "Issuer" and together, the "Issuers") and Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (the "Guarantor" or the "Bank") accepts responsibility for the information contained in the sections headed "The Instruments" and "The Guarantee".

1.2 A declaration by those responsible for the prospectus that, having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case, the information contained in the prospectus is, to the best of their knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import. As the case may be, declaration by those responsible for certain parts of the prospectus that the information contained in the part of the prospectus for which they are responsible is, to the best of their knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import.

The Issuers and the Guarantor confirm that, having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case, the information contained in the sections headed "The Instruments" and "The Guarantee" is, to the best of their knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import.

2 RISK FACTORS

2.1 Prominent disclosure of risk factors that are material to the securities being offered and/or admitted to trading in order to assess the market risk associated with these securities in a section headed "Risk Factors".

See "Risk Factors".

3 KEY INFORMATION

3.1 Interest of natural and legal persons involved in the issue/offer

A description of any interest, including conflicting ones, that is material to the issue/offer, detailing the persons involved and the nature of the interest.

Save as described in paragraph 5.4.3, so far as the Issuers are aware, no person involved in the offer of the Instruments has an interest material to the offer.

3.2 Reasons for the offer and use of proceeds

Reasons for the offer if different from making profit and/or hedging certain risks. Where applicable, disclosure of the estimated total expenses of the issue/offer and the estimated net amount of the proceeds. These expenses and proceeds shall be broken into each principal intended use and presented by order of priority of such uses. If the issuer is aware that the anticipated proceeds will not be sufficient to fund all the proposed uses, state the amount and sources of other funds needed.

The net proceeds of the issue of each Tranche of Instruments will be used for the general funding purposes of the Group.

4 INFORMATION CONCERNING THE SECURITIES TO BE OFFERED/ADMITTED TO TRADING

4.1 A description of the type and the class of the securities being offered and/or admitted to trading, including the ISIN (International Security Identification Number) or other such security identification code.

See "Terms and Conditions of the Instruments — Introduction".

The maximum aggregate principal amount of Instruments which may be outstanding at any one time is €32,000,000,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies).

No Instruments may be issued under the Programme which have a minimum denomination of less than €1,000 (or equivalent in another currency).

The ISIN and common codes will be included in the Final Terms.

4.2 Legislation under which the securities have been created

The issue of the Instruments, including their legal nature (*obligaciones*) the status of the Instruments and the status of the guarantee in respect of them, the capacity of the Issuers, the relevant corporate resolutions, the appointment of the Commissioner and the constitution of the Syndicates of Holders of the Instruments will be governed by Spanish law. The terms and conditions of the Instruments and all related contractual documentation will be governed by, and construed in accordance with, English law.

4.3 An indication of whether the securities are in registered form or bearer form and whether the securities are in certificated form or book-entry form. In the latter case, name and address of the entity in charge of keeping the records

Instruments may be issued in registered form, without interest coupons ("Registered Instruments"), or in bearer form, with or without interest coupons ("Bearer Instruments"). Bearer Instruments will, unless otherwise specified, only be sold outside the United States to non-U.S. persons in reliance on Regulation S and will, unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms, initially be represented by a Temporary Global Instruments without interest coupons attached, deposited: (a) in the case of a global note which is not intended to be issued in new global note form (a "Classic Global Note" or "CGN"), as specified in the relevant Final Terms, with or on behalf of a Common Depositary located outside the United States for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg; or (b) in the case of a global note which is intended to be issued in new global note form (a "New Global Note" or "NGN"), as specified in the relevant Final Terms, with a common safekeeper for Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg. Interests in a Temporary Global Instrument will be exchangeable (i) for interests in a permanent global Instrument in bearer form, without coupons (a "Permanent Global Instrument"), or (ii) in whole but not in part for definitive Instruments in bearer form (each, a "Definitive Instrument"), following certification of non-U.S. beneficial ownership as required by U.S. Treasury regulations. Bearer Instruments may be exchangeable for Registered Instruments. Registered Instruments will not be exchangeable for Bearer Instruments.

4.4 Currency of the securities issue

Instruments may be denominated in any currency or currencies subject to compliance with all applicable legal and/or regulatory requirements and/or central bank requirements. Payments in respect of Instruments may, subject to such compliance, be made in and/or linked to, any currency or currencies other than the currency in which such Instruments are denominated.

4.5 Ranking of the securities being offered and/or admitted to trading, including summaries of any clauses that are intended to affect ranking or subordinate the security to any present or future liabilities of the issuer

Senior Instruments and the guarantee in respect of them will constitute unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of Santander International and the Guarantor, respectively, and Subordinated Instruments and

the guarantee in respect of them will constitute subordinated and unsecured obligations of Santander Issuances and the Guarantor, respectively, all as described in "Terms and Conditions of the Instruments — Status of the Instruments and the Guarantee".

Law 22/2003 (*Ley Concursal*) dated 9 July 2003 ("**Law 22/2003**") regulating all insolvency procedures in Spain, which came into force on 1 September 2004, supersedes all Spanish prior provisions which regulated bankruptcy, insolvency (including suspension of payments) and processes affecting creditors' rights generally, including the ranking of credits.

From the entry into force of Law 22/2003, and in accordance with the insolvency procedures regulated therein, creditors whose rights arise from a Spanish Public Document (as defined below), including Holders of the Instruments, do not have a preference to enforce their rights and do not rank ahead of other creditors whose rights may be recognised by virtue of a document not so witnessed.

In the event of insolvency (concurso) of the Issuer, under Law 22/2003, claims relating to the Subordinated Instruments will fall within the category of "subordinated debts" (as defined in Law 22/2003). The obligations of the Issuer under the Subordinated Instruments, whether on account of principal, interest or otherwise, are subordinated to all other unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer. After payment in full of unsubordinated debts but before distributions to shareholders and creditors of the Issuer which are characterised as holders of equity (Otros Acreedores a Título Asimilable al de Aportación de Capital), under article 92 of Law 22/2003, the Issuer will meet such subordinated debts in the following order and pro rata within each class: (i) claims lodged belatedly or inaccurately in the context of insolvency proceedings; (ii) contractually subordinated debt (such as the Subordinated Instruments); (iii) interest (such as interest due on the Subordinated Instruments accrued and unpaid until the commencement of the insolvency proceedings (concurso)); (iv) fines; (v) claims of creditors which are related to the Issuer; and (vi) debt arising from transactions set aside by Spanish courts in the context of insolvency proceedings (rescisión concursal) and in respect of which the court has determined that the relevant creditor has acted in bad faith.

Subordinated Instruments may be computed by the Guarantor as regulatory capital (*recursos propios*) of the Guarantor pursuant to the relevant provisions in current Spanish law relating to equity and consolidated groups of financial institutions: Law 13/1985 of 25 May, Law 13/1992 of 1 June, Royal Decree 1343/1992 of 6 November and *Banco de España* Circular 5/1993 of 26 March, all the above as amended and restated (or such provisions as may replace, supplement or implement the foregoing in the future).

4.6 A description of the rights attached to the securities, including any limitations of those rights, and procedure for the exercise of those rights

Each Tranche will be the subject of Final Terms which, for the purposes of that Tranche only, supplements the Terms and Conditions of the Instruments as set out in "Terms and Conditions of the Instruments" and must be read in conjunction with the Base Prospectus. The Terms and Conditions applicable to any particular Tranche of Notes are the Terms and Conditions of the Instruments as amended and/or replaced by the relevant Final Terms. See "Pro Forma Final Terms". Senior Instruments will have the benefit of a Negative Pledge as described in Condition 4 (Negative Pledge) and Events of Default, including a cross-default as described in Condition 7 (Events of Default).

4.7 The nominal interest rate and provisions relating to interest payable.

Instruments may be interest bearing or non-interest bearing. Interest (if any) may accrue at a fixed rate or a floating rate or other variable rate or be index linked. See Condition 5 (*Interest*).

- The date from which interest becomes payable and the due dates for interest.

Unless specified otherwise in the Final Terms, interest will accrue from the relevant Issue Date.

- The time limit on the validity of claims to interest and repayment of principal

Claims for payment of principal will be prescribed and become void unless made, in the case of principal, within ten years or, in the case of interest, five years. See Condition 11 (*Prescription*).

Where the rate is not fixed, description of the underlying on which it is based and of the method used to relate the two and an indication where information about the past and the further performance of the underlying and its volatility can be obtained.

In the case of Floating Rate Instruments and Index Linked Instruments, the relevant rates will be determined by The Bank of New York in its capacity as Determination Agent by reference to a page on an information vending service (if Screen Rate Determination is specified in the Final Terms) in accordance with Condition 5B.03 (*Screen Rate Determination*), or if ISDA Determination is specified in the Final Terms, in accordance with Condition 5B.04 (*ISDA Determination*). If Index Linked Interest is specified as being applicable in the Final Terms, the relevant provisions for determining the rate of interest shall be specified in the relevant Final Terms. See Condition 5 (*Interest*).

- A description of any market disruption or settlement disruption events that affect the underlying-Adjustment rules with relation to events concerning the underlying

Any such events shall be specified in the Final Terms, if applicable.

- Name of the calculation agent

The Bank of New York or such other calculation agent as may be specified in the relevant Final Terms.

If the security has a derivative component in the interest payment, provide a clear and comprehensive explanation to help investors understand how the value of their investment is affected by the value of the underlying instrument (s), especially under the circumstances when the risks are most evident.

Any such explanation shall be included in the Final Terms, if applicable.

4.8 Maturity date and arrangements for the amortization of the loan, including the repayment procedures. Where advance amortization is contemplated, on the initiative of the issuer or of the holder, it shall be described, stipulating amortization terms and conditions

Instruments may be redeemable at par or at such other redemption amount (detailed in a formula or otherwise) as may be specified in the relevant Final Terms subject to compliance with all applicable legal and/or regulatory requirements. See Condition 6 (*Redemption and Purchase*) and Condition 9 (*Payments*).

Where Instruments have a maturity of less than one year and either (a) the issue proceeds are received by the Issuer in the United Kingdom or (b) the activity of issuing the Instruments is carried on from an establishment maintained by the relevant Issuer in the United Kingdom, such Instruments must: (i) have a minimum redemption value of £100,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies) and be issued only to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses or who it is reasonable to expect will acquire, hold, manage or dispose of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses; or (ii) be issued in other circumstances which do not constitute a contravention of section 19 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 by the relevant Issuer.

Under Luxembourg Law on Prospectuses for Securities which implements the Prospectus Directive, prospectuses relating to money market instruments having a maturity at issue of less than 12 months and complying also with the definition of securities are not subject to the approval provisions of Part II of such law.

4.9 An indication of yield. Describe the method whereby that yield is calculated in summary form

The yield and method of calculation will be specified in the relevant Final Terms.

4.10 Representation of debt security holders including an identification of the organisation representing the investors and provisions applying to such representation. Indication of where the public may have access to the contracts relating to these forms of representation

The Holders of the Instruments of the relevant Series shall meet in accordance with the regulations governing the relevant Syndicate of Holders of the Instruments (the "**Regulations**"). The Regulations shall

contain the rules governing the functioning of each Syndicate and the rules governing its relationship with the relevant Issuer and shall be attached to the relevant Public Deed of Issuance. A set of pro forma Regulations is included in the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement.

A temporary Commissioner will be appointed for each Syndicate. Upon the subscription of the Instruments, the Commissioner will call a general meeting to ratify or oppose the acts of the temporary Commissioner, confirm his appointment or appoint a substitute and to ratify the Regulations.

Provisions for meetings of the Syndicate of Holders of the Instruments will be contained in the Regulations and the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement. Such provisions shall have effect as if incorporated herein.

The relevant Issuer may, with the consent of the Issue and Paying Agent and the relevant Commissioner, but without the consent of the Holders of the Instruments of any Series or Coupons, amend the Terms and Conditions of the Instruments and the Deed of Covenant insofar as they may apply to such Instruments to correct a manifest error. Subject as aforesaid, no other modification may be made to the Terms and Conditions of the Instruments or the Deed of Covenant except with the sanction of a resolution of the relevant Syndicate of Holders of Instruments. See Condition 13 (*Syndicate of Holders of the Instruments and Modification*).

The Issue and Paying Agency Agreement, together with the Dealership Agreement, the Deed of Covenant, the Deed of Senior Guarantee and any Deed of Subordinated Guarantee may be inspected at the registered office of the Guarantor and at the offices of the Listing Agent, in each case at the address specified at the end of this Base Prospectus.

4.11 In the case of new issues, a statement of the resolutions, authorisations and approvals by virtue of which the securities have been or will be created and/or issued.

The New Programme was authorised by resolutions of the shareholders of Santander Issuances, S.A. Unipersonal on 27 October 2006, the Board of Directors of Santander Issuances, S.A. Unipersonal on 27 October 2006, the Shareholders of Santander International Debt, S.A. on 27 October 2006, the Board of Directors of Santander International Debt, S.A. on 27 October 2006, and the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors of the Guarantor on 30 October 2006.

4.12 In the case of new issues, the expected issue date of the securities.

The relevant Issue Date shall be specified in the relevant Final Terms.

4.13 A description of any restrictions on the free transferability of the securities

Transfer restrictions relating to registered Instruments which are offered and sold in the United States in reliance on Rule 144A shall be specified in the Final Terms. See also Section 5.2 "Plan of Distribution and Allotment".

4.14 In respect of the country of registered office of the issuer and the country(ies) where the offer being made or admission to trading is being sought:

- Information on taxes on the income from the securities withheld at source;

TAXATION AND DISCLOSURE OF HOLDER INFORMATION IN CONNECTION WITH INTEREST PAYMENTS

The following is a general description of certain Spanish tax considerations relating to the Instruments. It does not purport to be a complete analysis of all tax considerations relating to the Instruments. Prospective purchasers of Instruments should consult their own tax advisers as to the consequences under the tax laws of the country of which they are resident for tax purposes and the tax laws of Spain of acquiring, holding and disposing of Instruments and receiving any payments under the Instruments. This summary is based upon the law as in effect on the date of this document and is subject to any change in law that may take effect after such date.

In the event of an issue of unlisted Instruments, the applicable tax regime will be set out in the relevant Final Terms.

Taxation in Spain

Introduction

This information has been prepared in accordance with the following Spanish tax legislation in force at the date of this document:

- (a) of general application, Additional Provision two of Law 13/1985, of 25th May on investment ratios, own funds and information obligations of financial intermediaries, as promulgated by Law 19/2003, of 4th July on legal rules governing foreign financial transactions and capital movements and various money laundering prevention measures, as well as Royal Decree 1778/2004, of 30th July establishing information obligations in relation to preferential holdings and other debt instruments and certain income obtained by individuals resident in the European Union and other tax rules;
- (b) for individuals with tax residency in Spain which are Individual Income Tax (IRPF) taxpayers, Royal Legislative Decree 3/2004, of 5th March promulgating the Consolidated Text of the Individual Income Tax Law, and Royal Decree 1775/2004, of 30th July promulgating the Individual Income Tax Regulations, along with Law 19/1991, of 6th June on Wealth Tax and Law 29/1987, of 18th December on Inheritance and Gift Tax;
- (c) for legal entities resident for tax purposes in Spain which are Corporation Tax taxpayers, Royal Legislative Decree 4/2004, of 5th March promulgating the Consolidated Text of the Corporation Tax Law, and Royal Decree 1777/2004, of 30th July promulgating the Corporation Tax Regulations; and
- (d) for individuals and entities who are not resident for tax purposes in Spain which are non-resident income tax taxpayers, Royal Legislative Decree 5/2004, of 5th March promulgating the Consolidated Text of the Non-Resident Income Tax Law, and Royal Decree 1776/2004, of 30th July promulgating the Non-Resident Income Tax Regulations, along with Law 19/1991, of 6th June on Wealth Tax and Law 29/1987, of 18th December on Inheritance and Gift Tax.

Whatever the nature and residence of the holder, the acquisition and transfer of the Instruments will be exempt from indirect taxes in Spain, i.e. exempt from Capital Transfer Tax and Stamp Duty, in accordance with the Consolidated Text of such tax promulgated by Royal Legislative Decree 1/1993, of 24th September and exempt from Value Added Tax, in accordance with Law 37/1992, of 28th December regulating such tax.

1. Individuals with Tax Residency in Spain

1.1 Individual income tax (impuesto sobre la renta de las personas físicas)

Both interest periodically received and income deriving from the transfer, redemption or repayment of the Instruments constitute a return on investment obtained from the transfer of own capital to third parties in accordance with the provisions of Section 23.2 of the Individual Income Tax Law, and must be included in the general portion of the investor's taxable income.

Both types of income are subject to a withholding on account at the rate of 15%, expected to rise to 18% on 1 January 2007.

If the period during which such income is generated exceeds two years a reduction of 40% will be applied, for the effect of both withholdings and inclusion in taxable income.

1.2 Wealth tax (impuesto sobre el patrimonio)

Individuals with tax residency in Spain under an obligation to pay Wealth Tax must take into account the amount of the Instruments which they hold as at 31st December in each year, when calculating their wealth tax liabilities.

1.3 Inheritance and gift tax (impuesto sobre sucesiones y donaciones)

Individuals with tax residency in Spain who acquire ownership or other rights over any Instruments by inheritance, gift or legacy will be subject to inheritance and gift tax in accordance with the applicable regional or State rules.

2. Legal Entities with Tax Residency in Spain

2.1 Corporation tax (impuesto sobre sociedades)

Both interest periodically received and income deriving from the transfer, redemption or repayment of the Instruments constitute a return on investments for tax purposes obtained from the transfer to third parties of own capital and must be included in the profit and taxable income of legal entities with tax residency in Spain for corporation tax purposes in accordance with the rules for this tax.

In accordance with Section 59.s) of the Corporation Tax Regulations there is no obligation to make a withholding on income obtained by Spanish Corporation Tax taxpayers (which for the sake of clarity, include Spanish tax resident investment funds and Spanish tax resident pension funds) from financial assets traded on organised markets in OECD countries. The Issuers intend to make an application for the Instruments to be traded on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and, upon admission to trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, they will therefore fulfil the requirements laid down by the legislation for exemption from withholding. The Directorate General for Taxation (Dirección General de Tributos — "DGT"), on 27th July 2004, issued a reply to a consultation indicating that in the case of issues made by entities resident in Spain, as in the case of the Issuer, application of the exemption requires that the Instruments be placed outside Spain in another OECD country. The Issuer considers that the issue of the Instruments will fall within this exemption as the Instruments are to be sold outside Spain and in the international capital markets and none of the entities initially placing the Instruments is resident in Spain. Consequently, the Issuer will not make any withholding on interest payments to Spanish Corporation Tax taxpayers that provide relevant information to qualify as such. If the Spanish tax authorities maintain a different opinion on this matter however, the Issuer will be bound by that opinion and with immediate effect, make the appropriate withholding and the Issuer will not, as a result, be under any obligation to pay additional amounts.

In order to implement the exemption from withholding, the procedures laid down in the Order of 22nd December 1999 will be followed. No reduction percentage will be applied. (Please see "Disclosure of Holder Information in connection with interest payments" below).

2.2 Wealth tax (impuesto sobre el patrimonio)

Legal entities are not subject to wealth tax.

2.3 Inheritance and gift tax (impuesto sobre sucesiones y donaciones)

Legal entities with tax residency in Spain which acquire ownership or other rights over the Instruments by inheritance, gift or legacy are not subject to inheritance and gift tax and must include the market value of the Instruments in their taxable income for Spanish corporation tax purposes.

3. Individuals and Legal Entities with no tax residency in Spain

3.1 Non-resident income tax (impuesto sobre la renta de no residentes)

(a) With permanent establishment in Spain

Ownership of the Instruments by investors who are not resident for tax purposes in Spain will not in itself create the existence of a permanent establishment in Spain.

If the Instruments form part of the assets of a permanent establishment in Spain of a person or legal entity who is not resident in Spain for tax purposes, the legal rules applicable to income deriving from such Instruments are the same as those previously set out for Spanish Corporation Tax taxpayers.

(b) With no permanent establishment in Spain

Both interest payments periodically received and income deriving from the transfer, redemption or repayment of the Instruments, obtained by individuals or entities who have no tax residency in Spain, being Non-Resident Income Tax taxpayers with no permanent establishment in Spain, are exempt from such Non-Resident Income Tax on the same terms laid down for income from Public Debt. This exemption is not applicable if such income is obtained through countries or territories classified as tax havens (being those included in Royal Decree 1080/1991, of 5th July), in which case such income will be subject to Non-Resident Income Tax in Spain at the rate of 15%, expected to rise to 18% on 1 January 2007, which the Issuer will withhold.

For these purposes it is necessary to comply with certain information obligations relating to the identity of the holders, in the manner detailed under "Disclosure of Holder information in connection with interest payments" as laid down in section 12 of Royal Decree 2281/1998, as promulgated by Royal Decree 1778/2004. If these information obligations are not complied with in the manner indicated the Issuer will apply a withholding of 15% expected to rise to 18% on 1 January 2007 and the Issuer will not, as a result, be under any obligations to pay additional amounts.

3.2 Wealth tax (impuesto sobre el patrimonio)

To the extent that income deriving from the Instruments is exempt from Non-Resident Income Tax, individuals who do not have tax residency in Spain who hold such Instruments will be exempt from wealth tax.

Furthermore, individuals resident in a country with which Spain has entered into a double tax treaty in relation to Wealth Tax will generally not be subject to wealth tax.

If the provisions of the foregoing two paragraphs do not apply, individuals who are not tax residents in Spain will be subject to wealth tax to the extent that rights deriving from the Instruments can be exercised in Spanish territory.

Non-resident legal entities are not subject to wealth tax.

3.3 Inheritance and gift tax (impuesto sobre sucesiones y donaciones)

Individuals who do not have tax residency in Spain who acquire ownership or other rights over the Instruments by inheritance, gift or legacy, and who reside in a country with which Spain has entered into a double tax treaty in relation to inheritance tax will be subject to the relevant double tax treaty.

If the provisions of the foregoing paragraph do not apply, such individuals will be subject to inheritance and gift tax in accordance with the applicable regional and state legislation.

Non-resident entities which acquire ownership or other rights over the Instruments by inheritance, gift or legacy are not subject to inheritance and gift tax. They will be subject to Non-Resident Income Tax. If the entity is resident in a country with which Spain has entered into a double tax treaty, the provisions of the treaty will apply. In general, treaties provide for the taxation of this type of income in the country of residence of the beneficiary.

4. Tax Rules for payments made by the Guarantor

Payments which may be made by the Guarantor to holders, if the Guarantee is enforced, will be subject to the same tax rules previously set out for payments made by the Issuer.

5. Tax havens

Pursuant to Royal Decree 1080/1991, of 5th July the following are each considered to be a tax haven:

Principality of Andorra, Netherlands Antilles,

Aruba,

Kingdom of Bahrain, Sultanate of Brunei, Republic of Cyprus, United Arab Emirates,

Gibraltar, Hong-Kong,

The Island of Anguila,

Islands of Antigua and Barbuda,

The Bahamas,

The Island of Barbados, The Bermuda Islands, Cayman Islands, The Cook Islands,

The Republic of Dominica,

Grenada, Fiji Islands, Channel Islands (Jersey and

Guernsey), Jamaica,

Falkland Islands, Isle of Man, Marianas Islands,

Mauritius, Montserrat,

Republic of Nauru, Solomon Islands,

Saint Vincent & the Grenadines,

Saint Lucia,

Republic of Trinidad and

Tobago,

Turks and Caicos Islands, Republic of Vanuatu, British Virgin Islands,

Virgin Islands (of the United

States),

Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan,

Republic of Lebanon, Republic of Liberia,

Principality of Liechtenstein,

Grand Duchy of Luxembourg Area (as regards the income received by the Companies referred to in paragraph 1 of Protocol annexed Avoidance of Double Taxation Treaty, dated 3 June 1986),

Macao,

Principality of Monaco. Sultanate of Oman, Republic of Panama, Republic of San Marino, Republic of Seychelles, Republic of Singapore.

6. EU Savings Tax Directive

Under EC Council Directive 2003/48/EC on the taxation of savings income, each Member State is required from 1 July 2005, to provide to the tax authorities of another Member State details of payments of interest or other similar income paid by a person within its jurisdiction to, or collected by such a person for, an individual resident in that other Member State; however, for a transitional period, Austria, Belgium and Luxembourg may instead apply a withholding system in relation to such payments, deducting tax at rates rising over time to 35%. The transitional period is to terminate at the end of the first full fiscal year following agreement by certain non-EU countries to the exchange of information relating to such payments.

Also with effect from 1 July 2005, a number of non-EU countries, and certain dependent or associated territories of certain Member States, have agreed to adopt similar measures (either provision of information or transitional withholding) in relation to payments made by a person within its jurisdiction to, or collected by such a person for, an individual resident in a Member State. In addition, the Member States have entered into reciprocal provision of information or transitional withholding arrangements with certain of those dependent or associated territories in relation to payments made by a person in a Member State to, or collected by such a person for, an individual resident in one of those territories.

7. Disclosure of Holder information in connection with interest payments

The Clearing Systems are currently in discussions to harmonise the procedure for the provision of information as required by Spanish laws and regulations. The following is a summary only and is subject to the Clearing Systems' discussions as well as to further clarification from the Spanish tax authorities regarding such laws and regulations. Holders must seek their own advice to ensure that they comply with all procedures to ensure correct tax treatment of their Instruments. None of the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Arrangers, the Dealers, the Agents or the Clearing Systems assume

any responsibility therefor. In relation to listed Instruments which are not initially issued in global form, the procedures will be specified in the relevant Final Terms. In particular, procedures relating to listed Registered Instruments (which are not in global form) will need to reflect the fact that payments of Interest are made to holders of Instruments as of the Record Date (as defined in the Conditions). Unlisted Instruments will not be subject to the tax regime or reporting requirements established pursuant to the above legislation and their specific withholding tax regime will be specified in the relevant Final Terms.

7.1 Legal Entities with tax residency in Spain subject to Spanish Corporation tax

In accordance with procedures established in the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement, the Agent must receive a list of those holders that are Spanish Corporation Tax taxpayers specifying the name, address, Tax Identification Number, ISIN code of the Instruments, number of Instruments held at each interest payment date, gross income and amount withheld, substantially in the form set out below (See Annex III below).

7.2 Individuals and Legal Entities with no tax residency in Spain

The information obligations to be complied with in order to apply the exemption are those laid down in Section 12 of Royal Decree 2281/1998 ("Section 12"), as promulgated by Royal Decree 1778/2004, being the following:

In accordance with sub-section 1 of such Section 12, a return must be made to the Spanish tax authorities specifying the following information with respect to the Instruments:

- (a) the identity and country of residence of the recipient of the income. When the income is received on behalf of a third party, the identity and country of residence of that third party;
- (b) the amount of income received; and
- (c) details identifying the Instruments.

In accordance with sub-section 3 of such Section 12, for the purpose of preparing the return referred to in sub-section 1 of Section 12, the following documentation must be obtained on each payment of income evidencing the identity and residency of each holder:

- (a) if the non-resident holder acts on its own account and is a central bank, other public institution or international organisation, a bank or credit institution or a financial entity, including collective investment institutions, pension funds and insurance entities, resident in an OECD country or in a country with which Spain has entered into a double tax treaty subject to a specific administrative registration or supervision scheme, the entity in question must certify its name and tax residency in the manner laid down in Annex I of the Order of 16th September 1991, promulgated pursuant to Royal Decree 1285/1991 (See Annex I below), of 2nd August establishing the procedure for the payment of interest on Book Entry State Debt (as defined therein) to non-residents who invest in Spain without the intervention of a permanent establishment;
- (b) in the case of transactions in which any of the entities indicated in the foregoing paragraph (a) acts as intermediary, the entity in question must, in accordance with the information contained in its own records, certify the name and tax residency of each holder in the manner laid down in Annex II of the Order of 16th September 1991 (See Annex II below);
- (c) in the case of transactions which are channelled through a securities clearing and deposit entity recognised for these purposes by Spanish law or by that of another OECD member country, the entity in question must, in accordance with the information contained in its own records, certify the name and tax residency of each holder of the Instruments in the manner laid down in Annex II of the Order of 16th September 1991 (See Annex II below);

(d) in other cases, residency must be evidenced by submission of the residency certificate issued by the tax authorities of the State of residency of the holder. These certificates will be valid for one year as from the date of issue.

In accordance with sub-section 4 of Section 12, for the purpose of implementing the exemption provided for, the following procedure must be followed: on the due date of each coupon the Issuer must transfer the net amount to the entities referred to in paragraph a), b) and c) resulting from applying the general withholding rate (currently 15%, expected to rise to 18% on 1 January 2007) to the whole of the interest. If the certificates referred to are received prior to expiry of the payment period, the Issuer will pay the amounts withheld to the extent that they correspond with the information provided.

In the case of both paragraph 7.1 and paragraph 7.2 above, in order for a beneficial owner to benefit from an exemption from withholding, the above documentation should be received by the Agent in accordance with the procedures established in the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement, which may be inspected during normal business hours at the specified office of the Issue and Paying Agent.

If the Issue and Paying Agent does not receive complete documentation in respect of an eligible holder by the specified deadline, such holder may obtain a quick refund of the full amount of withholding tax so withheld by ensuring that the documentation described above is received by the Issue and Paying Agent no later than 10.00 a.m. (CET) on the 10th calendar day of the month following the relevant interest payment date (or if such date is not a Business Day, the Business Day immediately preceding such date) (the "Quick Refund Deadline").

Holders entitled to a refund but in respect of whom relevant documentation is not received by the Issue and Paying Agent on or before a Quick Refund Deadline may seek a full refund of withholding tax directly with the Spanish tax authorities.

Set out below are Annexes I, II and III. Sections in English have been translated from the original Spanish. In the event of any discrepancy, the Spanish version shall prevail.

Annex I

The translation into English of this certificate is for information only and, in the case of discrepancy with the Spanish language version, such Spanish version will prevail

Modelo de certificación en inversiones por cuenta propia

Form of Certificate for Own Account Investments

| (Nor | nbre) | | | | |
|-------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------|------------------------------------|----------------------------------------|--|
| (Doı | nicilio) | | | | |
| (Add | dress) | | | | |
| (NII | | | | | |
| (Fisc | cal ID number) | | | | |
| en i | calidad de) nombre y representación de la F ificado por el Real Decreto 1778/ | - | ctos previstos en el artículo 12 | .3.a) del Real Decreto 2281/1998, | |
| (fund | ction) | | | | |
| | ne name and on behalf of the Entity 1/1998, as amended by Royal Decre | | of article 12.3.a) of Royal Decree | è | |
| Cert | tifico: | | | | |
| I cer | tify: | | | | |
| 1. | _ | de la Entidad que represento es: present is: | | | |
| 2. | Que su residencia fiscal es la s that its residence for tax purpos | siguiente: es is: | | | |
| 3. | Que la Entidad que represent that the institution I represent is | o está inscrita en el Registro recorded in the | deRegister of _ | | |
| | (país estado, ciudad), con el nú (country, state, city), under nun | úmero nber | | | |
| 4. | | to está sometida a la supervisión supervised by | | (Organo supervisor) (Supervisory body) | |
| | en virtud de | (normativa que lo regula). | | | |
| | under | (gov | verning rules). | | |
| | o ello en relación con: he above in relation to: | | | | |
| | ntificación de los valores poseídos tification of securities held for own | | | | |
| | orte de los rendimientos ount of income | | | | |
| Lon | ue certifico en | a | de | de 20 | |
| | tify the above in | on the | of | of 20 | |

Annex II

The translation into English of this certificate is for information only and, in the case of discrepancy with the Spanish language version, such Spanish version will prevail

Modelo de Certificación en inversiones por cuenta ajena

Form of certificate for third party investments

| (Non (Nan | nbre) | | | | | |
|---------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------|------------------------------------------------|--|--|
| | nicilio) | | | | | |
| (NIF (Fisc |) al ID | | | | | |
| en n | alidad de) ombre y representación de l ficado por el Real Decreto l | a Entidad abajo señalada a los efectos p 778/2004, | orevistos en el artículo 12.3.b | y c) del Real Decreto 2281/1998, | | |
| in th | tion) e name and on behalf of the I l Decree 1778/2004, | Entity indicated below, for the purposes of | article 12.3.b) and c) of Royal | Decree 2281/1998, as amended by | | |
| Cert | ifico: | | | | | |
| I cert | ify: | | | | | |
| 1. | - | cial de la Entidad que represento es: I represent is: | | | | |
| 2. | Que su residencia fiscal e that its residence for tax pu | s la siguiente: rposes is: | | | | |
| 3 | Que la Entidad que representat the institution I representation | esento está inscrita en el Registro ent is recorded in the | de Register of | | | |
| | (país estado, ciudad), con (country, state, city), under | el número number | | | | |
| 4 | | esento está sometida a la supervision de ent is supervised by | | (Organo supervisor) (Supervisory body) | | |
| | en virtud de under | | | (normativa que lo regula). (governing rules). | | |
| 5. | Que, de acuerdo con los Registros de la Entidad que represento, la relación de titulares adjunta a la presente certificación, comprensiva del nombre de cada uno de los titulares no residentes, su país de residencia y el importe de los correspondientes rendimientos, es exacta, y no incluye personas o Entidades residentes en España o en los países o territorios que tienen en España la consideración de paraísos fiscal de acuerdo con las normas reglamentarias en vigor. | | | | | |
| | That, according to the records of the Entity I represent, the list of beneficial owners hereby attached, including the names of all the non-resident holders, their country of residence and the amount of the relevant income is accurate, and does not include person(s) or institution(s) resident either in Spain or, in tax haven countries or territories as defined under Spanish applicable regulations. | | | | | |
| • | ue certifico en ify the above in | a on the | de of | de 20 of 20 | | |
| | ACIÓN ADJUNTA A CUM BE ATTACHED: | IPLIMENTAR: | | | | |
| | tificación de los valores: ification of the securities | | | | | |
| | do de titulares: of beneficial owners: | | | | | |
| | bre / País de residencia / Im e / Country of residence / Am | • | | | | |

Annex III

The translation into English of this certificate is for information only and, in the case of discrepancy with the Spanish language version, such Spanish version will prevail

Modelo de certification para hacer efectiva la exclusion de retencion a los sujetos pasivos del impuesto sobre sociedades y a los establecimientos permanentes sujetos pasivos del impuesto sobre la renta de no residents (a emitir por las entidades citadas en el art. 12.3.a residentes en España o en otros paises de la OCDE) del Real Decreto 2281/1998, modificado por el Real Decreto 1778/2004)

Certificate for application of the exemption on withholding to Spanish corporation tax taxpayers and to permanent establishments of nonresident income tax taxpayers (to be issued by entities mentioned under article 12.3.a, being residents of Spain or of another OECD country) of Royal Decree 2281/1998, as amended by Royal Decree 1778/2004)

| | ne) | | | | | |
|-----------------|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------|-------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------|--|--|
| | nicilio) ress) | | | | | |
| (NIF (Fisc | al ID number) | | | | | |
| | alidad de) ombre y representación de la E | ntidad abajo señalada a lo | s efectos previstos en el artículo 59.5 (| del Real Decreto 1777/2004, | | |
| (func | tion) | | | | | |
| in th, | e name and on behalf of the Entit | y indicated below, for the pu | urposes of article 59.5 of Royal Decree | 1777/2004, | | |
| Cert I cert | | | | | | |
| 1. | Que el nombre o razón social de la Entidad que represento es: that the name of the Entity I represent is: | | | | | |
| 2. | Que su residencia fiscal es la siguiente: that its residence for tax purposes is: | | | | | |
| 3. | Que la Entidad que represento está inscrita en el Registro de that the institution I represent is recorded in the | | | | | |
| | (país estado, ciudad), con el n (country, state, city), under nu | | | | | |
| 4. | Que la Entidad que represent that the institution I represent | | vision de | (Organo supervisor) (Supervisory body) | | |
| | en virtud de | | (normativa que lo regula). | | | |
| | under | | (governing rules). | | | |
| 5. | Que, a través de la Entidad que represento, los titulares incluídos en la relación adjunta, sujetos pasivos del Impuesto sobre Sociedades y establecimientos permanentes en España sujetos pasivos del Impuesto sobre la Renta de no Residentes, son perceptores de los rendimientos indicados. That, through the Entity I represent, the list of holders hereby attached, are Spanish Corporations Tax taxpayers and permanent establishment in Spain of Non-Resident Income Tax taxpayers, and are recipients of the referred income. | | | | | |
| 6. | Que la Entidad que represento conserva, a disposición del emisor, fotocopia de la tarjeta acreditativa del número de identificación fiscal de los titulares incluídos en la relación. That the Entity I represent keeps, at the disposal of the Issuer, a photocopy of the card evidencing the Fiscal Identification Number of the holders included in the attached list. | | | | | |
| Lo qu I cert | ne certifico en ify the above in | a on the | de of | de 20 of 20 | | |
| REL | ACIÓN ADJUNTA | | | | | |

TO BE ATTACHED

(Nombre)

Identificación de los valores:

Identification of the securities

Razón social / Domicilio / Número de identificación fiscal / Número de valores / Rendimientos brutos / Retención al 15%

Name / Domicile / Fiscal Identification Number / Number of securities / Gross income / Amount withheld at 15%.

- Indication as to whether the issuer assumes responsibility for the withholding of taxes at the source.

Save as described below, all amounts payable (whether in respect of principal, redemption amount, interest or otherwise) in respect of the Instruments, the Receipts and the Coupons, the Senior Guarantee and the Subordinated Guarantee by an Issuer or the Guarantor (as the case may be) will be made free and clear of and without withholding or deduction for or on account of any present or future taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature imposed or levied by or on behalf of Spain or any political subdivision thereof or any authority or agency therein or thereof having power to tax, unless the withholding or deduction of such taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges is required by law. In that event, the relevant Issuer or (as the case may be) the Guarantor shall pay such additional amounts as will result in receipt by the Holder of any Instrument or Coupon of such amounts as would have been received by them had no such withholding or deduction been required.

Neither the relevant Issuer nor the Guarantor shall be required to pay any such additional amounts as referred to above in relation to any payment in respect of any Instrument or Coupon in the circumstances described in Condition 8.02. In particular, prospective Holders should note that no such additional amounts are payable to Holders in respect of whom the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor does not receive such information (which may include a tax residence certificate) concerning such Holder's identity and tax residence as it may require in order to comply with Law 19/2003 of 4 July and any implementing legislation (see Condition 8.02(ii)) or to, or to the third party on behalf of, individuals resident for tax purposes in the Kingdom of Spain or a resident in a tax haven (see Condition 8.02(vi)).

Taxation in Luxembourg

Luxembourg taxation

The following is a general description of certain Luxembourg tax considerations relating to the Instruments. It does not purport to be a complete analysis of all tax considerations relating to the Instruments, whether in Luxembourg or elsewhere. Prospective purchasers of the Instruments should consult their own tax advisers as to which countries' tax laws could be relevant to acquiring, holding and disposing of the Instruments and receiving payments of interest, principal and/or other amounts under the Instruments and the consequences of such actions under the tax laws of Luxembourg. This summary is based upon the law as in effect on the date of this Base Prospectus. The information contained within this section is limited to taxation issues, and prospective investors should not apply any information set out below to other areas, including (but not limited to) the legality of transactions involving the Instruments.

(A) Withholding Tax

All payments of interest and principal under the Instruments can be made free and clear of any withholding or deduction for or on account of any taxes of whatsoever nature imposed, levied, withheld, or assessed by Luxembourg or any political subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein, in accordance with applicable Luxembourg law, subject however to the application of the Luxembourg law of June 21, 2005 implementing the European Union Savings Directive (see, paragraph (G)"EU Savings Directive" below, which may be applicable in the event of the Issuers appointing a paying agent in Luxembourg within the meaning of the above-mentioned directive");

(B) Taxes on Income and Capital Gains

A holder of a Note who derives income from such Note or who realizes a gain on the disposal or redemption thereof will not be subject to Luxembourg taxation on such income or capital gains unless:

(i) such holder is, or is deemed to be, resident in Luxembourg for Luxembourg tax purposes (or for the purposes of the relevant provisions); or

(ii) such income or gain is attributable to an enterprise or part thereof which is carried on through a permanent establishment, a permanent representative or a fixed base of business in Luxembourg;

(C) Net Wealth Tax

Luxembourg net wealth tax will not be levied on a holder of a Note unless:

- such holder is, or is deemed to be, resident in Luxembourg for the purpose of the relevant provisions;
 or
- (ii) such Note is attributable to an enterprise or part thereof which is carried on through a permanent establishment, a permanent representative or a fixed base of business in Luxembourg;

(D) Inheritance and Gift Tax

Where the Instruments are transferred for no consideration, note in particular:

- No Luxembourg inheritance tax is levied on the transfer of the Instruments upon death of a holder of a Note in cases where the deceased holder was not a resident of Luxembourg for inheritance tax purposes;
- (ii) Luxembourg gift tax will be levied in the event that the gift is made pursuant to a notarial deed signed before a Luxembourg notary;

(E) Other Taxes and Duties

It is not compulsory that the Instruments be filed, recorded or enrolled with any court or other authority in Luxembourg or that registration tax, transfer tax, capital tax, stamp duty or any other similar tax or duty (other than court fees and contributions for the registration with the Chamber of Commerce) be paid in respect of or in connection with the execution, delivery and/or enforcement by legal proceedings (including any foreign judgment in the courts of Luxembourg) of the Instruments in accordance therewith, except that in case of court proceedings in a Luxembourg court (including but not limited to a Luxembourg insolvency proceeding), registration of the Instruments may be ordered by the court, in which case the Instruments will be subject to a fixed or *ad valorem* duty depending on the exact nature of the Instruments. Registration would in principle further be ordered, and the same registration duties could be due, when the Instruments are produced, either directly or by way of reference, before an official authority ("autorité constituée") in Luxembourg.

(F) Residence

A holder of a Note will not become resident, or deemed to be resident, in Luxembourg by reason only of the holding of such Note or the execution, performance, delivery and/or enforcement of that or any other Note;

(G) EU Savings Directive

On June 3, 2003, the EU Council of Economic and Finance Ministers adopted a new directive regarding the taxation of savings income. The directive is, in principle, applied by Member States as from July 1, 2005 and has been implemented in Luxembourg by the Law of June 21, 2005. Under the directive, each Member State is required to provide to the tax authorities of another Member State details of payments of interest or other similar income paid by a paying agent within the meaning of the EU Savings Directive to an individual (or certain types of entities called "residual entities") resident in that other Member State. For a transitional period, however, Austria, Belgium and Luxembourg are permitted to apply an optional information reporting system whereby if a beneficial owner does not comply with one of two procedures for information reporting, the Member State will levy a withholding tax on payments to such beneficial owner, at rates rising over the course of the transitional period to 35%. The transitional period is to commence on the date from which the directive is to be applied by Member States and to terminate at the

end of the first fiscal year following agreement by certain non-EU countries to the exchange of information relating to such payments. See "European Union Directive on the Taxation of Savings Income in the Form of Interest Payments (Council Directive 2003/48/EC).

5 TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE OFFER

- 5.1 Conditions, offer statistics, expected timetable and action required to apply for the offer
 - 5.1.1 Conditions to which the offer is subject.

To be specified in the Final Terms.

5.1.2 Total amount of the issue/offer; if the amount is not fixed, description of the arrangements and time for announcing to the public the definitive amount of the offer.

To be specified in the Final Terms.

5.1.3 The time period, including any possible amendments, during which the offer will be open and description of the application process

To be specified in the Final Terms.

5.1.4 A description of the possibility to reduce subscriptions and the manner for refunding excess amount paid by applicants.

To be specified in the Final Terms.

5.1.5 Details of the minimum and/or maximum amount of application, (whether in number of securities or aggregate amount to invest).

To be specified in the Final Terms.

5.1.6 Method and time limits for paying up the securities and for delivery of the securities

To be specified in the Final Terms.

5.1.7 A full description of the manner and date in which results of the offer are to be made public.

To be specified in the Final Terms.

5.1.8 The procedure for the exercise of any right of pre-emption, the negotiability of subscription rights and the treatment of subscription rights not exercised.

To be specified in the Final Terms.

- 5.2 Plan of distribution and allotment
 - 5.2.1 The various categories of potential investors to which the securities are offered. If the offer is being made simultaneously in the markets of two or more countries and if a tranche has been or is being reserved for certain of these, indicate any such tranche.

European Economic Area

In relation to each Member State of the European Economic Area which has implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a **Relevant Member State**), each Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree, that with effect from and including the date on which the Prospectus Directive is implemented in that Relevant Member State (the **Relevant Implementation Date**) it has not made and will not make an

offer of Instruments to the public in that Relevant Member State except that it may, with effect from and including the Relevant Implementation Date, make an offer of Instruments to the public in that Relevant Member State:

- (a) in (or in Germany, where the offer starts within) the period beginning on the date of publication of a base prospectus in relation to those Instruments which has been approved by the competent authority in that Relevant Member State or, where appropriate, approved in another Relevant Member State and notified to the competent authority in that Relevant Member State, all in accordance with the Prospectus Directive and ending on the date which is 12 months after the date of such publication;
- (b) at any time to legal entities which are authorised or regulated to operate in the financial markets or, if not so authorised or regulated, whose corporate purpose is solely to invest in securities;
- (c) at any time to any legal entity which has two or more of (1) an average of at least 250 employees during the last financial year; (2) a total balance sheet of more than €43,000,000 and (3) an annual net turnover of more than €50,000,000, as shown in its last annual or consolidated accounts; or
- (d) at any time in any other circumstances which do not require the publication by the Issuer of a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive.

For the purposes of this provision, the expression an "offer of Instruments to the public" in relation to any Instruments in any Relevant Member State means the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the Instruments to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe the Instruments, as the same may be varied in that Member State by any measure implementing the **Prospectus Directive** in that Member State and the expression Prospectus Directive means Directive 2003/71/EC and includes any relevant implementing measure in each Relevant Member State.

United States of America

Regulation S Category 2; TEFRA D; Rule 144A eligible if so specified in the relevant Final Terms.

Instruments have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933 (the "Securities Act") and may not be offered or sold within the United States or to or for the account or benefit of U.S. persons except in certain transactions exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act. Terms used in the preceding sentence have the meanings given to them by Regulation S under the Securities Act.

Instruments in bearer form are subject to U.S. tax law requirements and may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or its possessions or to United States persons, except in certain transactions permitted by U.S. tax regulations. Terms used in the preceding sentence have the meanings given to them by the United States Internal Revenue Code and regulations thereunder.

Each Dealer has agreed that, except as permitted by the Dealership Agreement, it will not offer, sell or deliver Instruments, (i) as part of their distribution at any time or (ii) otherwise until forty days after the completion of the distribution of the Instruments comprising the relevant Tranche, as certified to the Issue and Paying Agent or the Issuer by such Dealer (or, in the case of a sale of a Tranche of Instruments to or through more than one Dealer, by each of such Dealers as to Instruments of such Tranche purchased by or through it, in which case the Issue and Paying Agent or the Issuer shall notify each such Dealer when all such Dealers have so certified) within the United States or to or for the account or benefit of U.S. persons, and such Dealer will have sent to each dealer to which it sells Instruments during the distribution compliance period relating thereto a confirmation or other notice setting forth the restrictions on offers and sales of the Instruments within the United States or to or for the account or benefit of U.S. persons. In addition, until forty days after the commencement of the offering of Instruments comprising any Tranche, any offer or

sale of Instruments within the United States by a dealer that is not participating in the offering may violate the registration requirements of the Securities Act if such offer or sale is made otherwise than in accordance with Rule 144A under the Securities Act.

Each Tranche of Instruments will also be subject to such further United States selling restrictions as the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) may agree and as indicated in the relevant Final Terms.

United Kingdom

Each Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree, that:

- (a) *No deposit-taking*: in relation to any Instruments which have a maturity of less than one year, (i) it is a person whose ordinary activities involve it in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of its business and (ii) it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell any Instruments other than to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments (as principal or as agent) for the purposes of their businesses or who it is reasonable to expect will acquire, hold, manage or dispose of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses where the issue of the Instruments would otherwise constitute a contravention of Section 19 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 ("FSMA") by the relevant Issuer;
- (b) *Financial promotion*: it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to be communicated an invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of Section 21 of the FSMA) received by it in connection with the issue or sale of any Instruments in circumstances in which Section 21(1) of the FSMA does not apply to the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor; and
- (c) *General compliance*: it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to anything done by it in relation to any Instruments in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.

Spain

The Instruments may not be offered, sold or distributed, nor may any subsequent resale of Instruments be carried out in Spain, except in circumstances which do not constitute a public offer of securities in Spain within the meaning of the Spanish Securities Market Law (*Ley 24/1988*, *de 28 de Julio, del Mercado de Valores*), as amended and restated, or without complying with all legal and regulatory requirements under Spanish securities laws. No publicity or marketing of any kind shall be made in Spain in relation to the Instruments.

Neither the Instruments nor the Base Prospectus have been registered with the Spanish Securities Market Commission (*Comisión Nacional del Mercado de Valores*) and therefore the Base Prospectus is not intended for any public offer of the Instruments in Spain.

Japan

The Instruments have not been and will not be registered under the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan and, accordingly, each Dealer has undertaken that it will not offer or sell any Instruments directly or indirectly, in Japan or to, or for the benefit of, any Japanese Person or to others for re-offering or re-sale, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to any Japanese Person except under circumstances which will result in compliance with all applicable laws, regulations and guidelines promulgated by the relevant Japanese governmental and regulatory authorities and in effect at the relevant time. For the purposes of this paragraph, "Japanese Person" shall mean any person resident in Japan, including any corporation or other entity organised under the laws of Japan.

Switzerland

Each Dealer has agreed that any issue of Instruments denominated in Swiss Francs will be in compliance with the guidelines of the Swiss National Bank regarding issues of Swiss Franc denominated debt securities.

5.2.2 Process for notification to applicants of the amount allotted and indication whether dealing may begin before notification is made

To be specified in the Final Terms.

5.3 Pricing

5.3.1 An indication of the expected price at which the securities will be offered or the method of determining the price and the process for its disclosure. Indicate the amount of any expenses and taxes specifically charged to the subscriber or purchaser.

To be specified in the Final Terms.

5.4 Placing and Underwriting

5.4.1 Name and address of the co-ordinator(s) of the global offer and of single parts of the offer and, to the extend known to the issuer or to the offeror, of the placers in the various countries where the offer takes place.

See paragraph 5.4.3.

5.4.2 Name and address of any paying agents and depository agents in each country

The names and addresses of each of the Paying Agents and of the Registrar is specified at the end of this Base Prospectus.

5.4.3 Name and address of the entities agreeing to underwrite the issue on a firm commitment basis, and name and address of the entities agreeing to place the issue without a firm commitment or under "best efforts" arrangements. Indication of the material features of the agreements, including the quotas. Where not all of the issue is underwritten, a statement of the portion not covered. Indication of the overall amount of the underwriting commission and of the placing commission.

Instruments may be sold from time to time by the relevant Issuer to any one or more of ABN AMRO Bank N.V., Banco Santander de Negócios Portugal, S.A., Barclays Bank PLC, Citigroup Global Markets Limited, Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft, Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited, Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch, Goldman Sachs International, HSBC Bank plc, J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd., Lehman Brothers International (Europe), Merrill Lynch International, Morgan Stanley & Co. International Limited, Société Générale, The Royal Bank of Scotland plc and UBS Limited (the "Dealers"). Instruments may also be sold by the Issuer direct to institutions who are not Dealers. The arrangements under which Instruments may from time to time be agreed to be sold by the relevant Issuer to, and purchased by, Dealers are set out in a dealership agreement dated 16 November 2006 (as amended or supplemented from time to time, the "Dealership Agreement") and made between the Issuers, the Guarantor and the Dealers. Any such agreement will, inter alia, make provision for the form and terms and conditions of the relevant Instruments, the price at which such Instruments will be purchased by the Dealers and the commissions or other agreed deductibles (if any) payable or allowable by the relevant Issuer in respect of such purchase. The Dealership Agreement makes provision for the resignation or termination of appointment of existing Dealers and for the appointment of additional or other Dealers either generally in respect of the Programme or in relation to a particular Tranche of Instruments. The addresses of each of the Dealers is specified at the end of this Base Prospectus. The names and addresses of the Manager(s) of any particular issue of Instruments shall be specified in the relevant Final Terms.

5.4.4 When the underwriting agreement has been or will be reached.

To be specified in the Final Terms.

- 5.5 Additional Disclosure Requirements for Derivative Securities (Annex XII)
 - 5.5.1 A clear and comprehensive explanation to help investors understand how the value of their investment is affected by the value of the underlying instrument(s), especially under the circumstances when the risks are most evident unless the securities have a denomination per unit of at least EUR 50,000 or can only be acquired for at least EUR 50,000 per security.

To be specified in Final Terms.

5.5.2 The exercise price or the final reference price of the underlying

To be specified in Final Terms.

- 5.5.3 A statement setting out the type of the underlying and details of where information on the underlying can be obtained:
 - an indication where information about the past and the further performance of the underlying and its volatility can be obtained.
 - where the underlying is a security.
 - the name of the issuer of the security.
 - where the underlying is an index.
 - the name of the index and a description of the index if it is composed by the issuer. If the index is not composed by the issuer, where information about the index can be obtained.
 - where the underlying is an interest rate.
 - a description of the interest rate.
 - others:
 - where the underlying does not fall within the categories specified above the securities note shall contain equivalent information.
 - where the underlying is a basket of underlyings.
 - disclosure of the relevant weightings of each underlying in the basket.

To be specified in Final Terms.

5.5.4 A description of any market disruption or settlement disruption events that affect the underlying.

To be specified in Final Terms.

5.5.5 Adjustment rules with relation to events concerning the underlying.

To be specified in Final Terms.

5.5.6 Name and address of a calculation agent.

To be specified in Final Terms.

5.5.7 An indication in the prospectus whether or not the issuer intends to provide post-issuance information. Where the issue has indicated that it intends to report such information, the issuer shall specify in the prospectus what information will be reported and where such information can be obtained.

To be specified in Final Terms.

6 ADMISSION TO TRADING AND DEALING ARRANGEMENTS

6.1 An indication as to whether the securities offered are or will be the object of an application for admission to trading, with a view to their distribution in a regulated market or other equivalent markets with indication of the markets in question. This circumstance must be mentioned, without creating the impression that the admission to trading will necessarily be approved. If known, give the earliest dates on which the securities will be admitted to trading

To be specified in the Final Terms.

6.2 All the regulated markets or equivalent markets on which, to the knowledge of the issuer, securities of the same class of the securities to be offered or admitted to trading are already admitted to trading.

To be specified in the Final Terms.

6.3 Name and address of the entities which have a firm commitment to act as intermediaries in secondary trading, providing liquidity through bid and offer rates and description of the main terms of their commitment

To be specified in the Final Terms.

7 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

7.1 If advisors connected with an issue are mentioned in the Base Prospectus, a statement of the capacity in which the advisors have acted.

The legal advisers and capacity in which they act are specified at the end of this Base Prospectus.

7.2 An indication of other information in the Base Prospectus which has been audited or reviewed by statutory auditors and where auditors have produced a report. Reproduction of the report or, with permission of the competent authority, a summary of the report.

No such information is included.

7.3 Where a statement or report attributed to a person as an expert is included in the Base Prospectus, provide such persons' name, business address, qualifications and material interest if any in the issuer. If the report has been produced at the issuer's request a statement to that effect that such statement or report is included, in the form and context in which it is included, with the consent of that person who has authorised the contents of that part of the Base Prospectus.

No such statement or report is included.

7.4 Where information has been sourced from a third party, provide a confirmation that this information has been accurately reproduced and that as far as the issuer is aware and is able to ascertain from information published by that third party, no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading. In addition, identify the source(s) of the information.

No such information is included.

7.5 Credit ratings assigned to an issuer or its debt securities at the request or with the cooperation of the issuer in the rating process. A brief explanation of the meaning of the ratings if this has previously been published by the rating provider.

Tranches of Instruments may be rated or unrated and, if rated, such ratings will be specified in the relevant Final Terms. A rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold Instruments and may subject to suspension, reduction or withdrawal at any time by the assigning Rating Agency.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE INSTRUMENTS

Introduction

The Instruments of each Tranche will be constituted by virtue of a public deed of issuance (the "Public Deed of Issuance") to be executed before a Spanish notary public and to be registered with the Mercantile Registry of Madrid on or prior to the issue date, and which shall contain, among other information, the terms and conditions of the Instruments. The Instruments will be issued in accordance with an issue and paying agency agreement (the "Issue and Paying Agency Agreement", which expression shall include any amendments or supplements thereto) dated 16 November 2006 and made between Santander International Debt, S.A. Unipersonal ("Santander International") and Santander Issuances, S.A. Unipersonal ("Santander Issuances") (each an "Issuer" and together, the "Issuers"), Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (the "Guarantor"), The Bank of New York in its capacities as issue and paying agent and principal registrar (the "Issue and Paying Agent" which expressions shall include any successor to The Bank of New York in its capacities as such), The Bank of New York (Luxembourg) S.A. in its capacity as alternative registrar (the "Alternative Registrar", which expression shall include any successor to The Bank of New York (Luxembourg) S.A. in its capacity as such) and the paying agents named therein (the "Paying Agents", which expression shall include the Issue and Paying Agent and any substitute or additional paying agents appointed in accordance with the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement). For the purposes of making determinations or calculations of interest rates, interest amounts, redemption amounts or any other matters requiring determination or calculation in accordance with the Conditions of any Series of Instruments (as defined below), the Issuer may appoint a Determination Agent (as defined under Condition 5D.04) for the purposes of such Instruments, in accordance with the provisions of the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement, and such Determination Agent shall be specified in the applicable Final Terms. The Issuers have executed and delivered a deed of covenant dated 16 November 2006 (the "Deed of Covenant"). The Guarantor has, for the benefit of the Holders of the Senior Instruments from time to time, executed and delivered a deed of guarantee (the "Senior Guarantee") dated [*] November 2006 under which it has guaranteed the due and punctual payments of all amounts due by Santander International under the Senior Instruments issued in or after the date thereof as and when the same shall become due and payable. The Guarantor shall, on an issue by issue basis, on or before the issue date of any Subordinated Instruments, for the benefit of Holders of Subordinated Instruments from time to time, execute and deliver a deed of guarantee (the "Subordinated Guarantee"), under which it shall guarantee the due and punctual payment of all amounts due by Santander Issuances under the relevant Subordinated Instruments as and when the same shall become due and payable. Copies of the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement, the Deed of Covenant, the Senior Guarantee and the relevant Subordinated Guarantee are, or will be, available for inspection during normal business hours at the specified office of each of the Paying Agents, the Principal Registrar and the Alternative Registrar. All persons from time to time entitled to the benefit of obligations under any Instruments shall be deemed to have notice of, and shall be bound by, all of the provisions of the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement and the Deed of Covenant insofar as they relate to the relevant Instruments.

The Instruments are issued in series (each, a "Series"), and each Series may comprise one or more tranches ("Tranches" and each, a "Tranche") of Instruments. Each Tranche will be the subject of a Final Terms (each, a "Final Terms"), a copy of which will be available for inspection during normal business hours at the specified office of the Issue and Paying Agent and/or the Registrar (as defined in Condition 2.02), as the case may be, and, in the case of a Tranche of Instruments listed on the regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and if the rules of such market so require, shall be obtainable at the specified office of the Paying Agent in Luxembourg. In the case of a Tranche of Instruments in relation to which application has not been made for admission for listing on any listing authority, stock exchange and/or quotation system, copies of the Final Terms will only be available for inspection by a Holder of or, as the case may be, an Accountholder (as defined in the Deed of Covenant) in respect of, such Instruments.

References in these Terms and Conditions to "Instruments" are to Instruments of the relevant Series and any references to "Coupons" (as defined in Condition 1.05) and "Receipts" (as defined in Condition 1.06) are to Coupons and Receipts relating to Instruments of the relevant Series.

References in these Terms and Conditions to the "Final Terms" are to the Final Terms or Final Terms(s) prepared in relation to the Instruments of the relevant Tranche or Series.

In respect of any Instruments, references herein to these "Terms and Conditions" are to these terms and conditions as modified or (to the extent thereof) replaced by the Final Terms.

1. Form and Denomination

1.01 Instruments are issued in bearer form ("Bearer Instruments") or in registered form ("Registered Instruments"), as specified in the Final Terms and are serially numbered. Registered Instruments are not exchangeable for Bearer Instruments.

Form of Bearer Instruments

- **1.02** Each Tranche of Bearer Instruments will be represented upon issue by a temporary global instrument (a "**Temporary Global Instrument**") in substantially the form (subject to amendment and completion) scheduled to the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement. In the case of an exchange for Registered Instruments at any time and without any requirement for certification, but otherwise on or after the date (the "**Exchange Date**") which is forty days after the completion of the distribution of the Instruments of the relevant Tranche and provided certification as to the beneficial ownership thereof as required by U.S. Treasury regulations (in substantially the form set out in the Temporary Global Instrument or in such other form as is customarily issued in such circumstances by the relevant clearing systems) has been received, interests in the Temporary Global Instrument may be exchanged for:
 - (i) interests in a permanent global instrument (a "**Permanent Global Instrument**") representing the Instruments of that Tranche and in substantially the form (subject to amendment and completion) scheduled to the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement; or
 - (ii) if so specified in the relevant Final Terms, serially numbered definitive instruments ("Definitive Instruments") and/or (in the case of a Series comprising both Bearer Instruments and Registered Instruments and if so specified in the relevant Final Terms) Registered Instruments in substantially the form (subject to amendment and completion) scheduled to the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement.
- 1.03 If any date on which a payment of interest is due on the Instruments of a Tranche occurs whilst any of the Instruments of that Tranche are represented by a Temporary Global Instrument, the related interest payment will be made on the Temporary Global Instrument only to the extent that certification as to the beneficial ownership thereof as required by U.S. Treasury regulations (in substantially the form set out in the Temporary Global Instrument or in such other form as is customarily issued in such circumstances by the relevant clearing systems) has been received by Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. as operator of the Euroclear System ("Euroclear") or Clearstream Banking, société anonyme ("Clearstream, Luxembourg") or any other relevant clearing system. Payments of amounts due in respect of a Permanent Global Instrument will be made through Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or any other relevant clearing system without any requirement for certification.
- 1.04 Interests in a Permanent Global Instrument will be exchanged by the Issuer in whole (but not in part only), at the option of the Holder of such Permanent Global Instrument, for serially numbered Definitive Instruments and/or (in the case of a Series comprising both Bearer and Registered Instruments and if so specified in the relevant Final Terms) Registered Instruments, (a) if any Instrument of the relevant Series becomes due and repayable following an Event of Default (as defined herein); or (b) if either Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or any other relevant clearing system is closed for business for a continuous period of fourteen days (other than by reason of public holidays) or announces an intention to cease business permanently or in fact does so or announces its intention to withdraw its acceptance of the Instruments for clearance and settlement through its system or in fact does so; or (c) if so specified in the Final Terms, at the option of the Holder of such Permanent Global Instrument upon such Holder's request, in all cases at the cost and expense of the Issuer,

unless otherwise specified in the relevant Final Terms. In order to exercise the option contained in paragraph (c) of the preceding sentence, the Holder must, not less than forty-five days before the date upon which the delivery of such Definitive Instruments and/or Registered Instruments is required, deposit the relevant Permanent Global Instrument with the Issue and Paying Agent at its specified office with the form of exchange notice endorsed thereon duly completed. If default is made by the Issuer in the required delivery of Definitive Instruments and/or Registered Instruments and such default is continuing at 6.00 p.m. (Luxembourg time) on the thirtieth day after the day on which the relevant notice period expires or, as the case may be, such Permanent Global Instrument becomes so exchangeable, such Permanent Global Instrument will become void in accordance with its terms but without prejudice to the rights of the accountholders with Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or any other relevant clearing system in relation thereto under the Deed of Covenant.

- **1.05** Interest-bearing Definitive Instruments will, if so specified in the relevant Final Terms, have attached thereto at the time of their initial delivery coupons ("**Coupons**"), presentation of which will be a prerequisite to the payment of interest in certain circumstances specified below. Interest-bearing Definitive Instruments will also, if so specified in the relevant Final Terms, have attached thereto at the time of their initial delivery, a talon ("**Talon**") for further coupons and the expression "Coupons" shall, where the context so requires, include Talons.
- **1.06** Bearer Instruments, the principal amount of which is repayable by instalments ("**Instalment Instruments**") have attached thereto at the time of their initial delivery, payment receipts ("**Receipts**") in respect of the instalments of principal.

Form of Registered Instruments

1.07 All Registered Instruments will be in individual form. There will be no global Registered Instruments. Registered Instruments will be in substantially the form (subject to amendment and completion) scheduled to the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement. Registered Instruments will not be exchangeable for Bearer Instruments.

Denomination of Bearer Instruments

1.08 Bearer Instruments are in the denomination or denominations (each of which denomination is integrally divisible by each smaller denomination) specified in the Final Terms. Bearer Instruments of one denomination will not be exchangeable, after their initial delivery, for Bearer Instruments of any other denominations. No Instruments may be issued under the Programme which have a minimum denomination of less than €1,000 (or equivalent in another currency).

Denomination of Registered Instruments

1.09 Registered Instruments will be in the minimum denomination specified in the relevant Final Terms or integral multiples thereof. No Instruments may be issued under the Programme which have a minimum denomination of less than €1,000 (or equivalent in another currency).

Currency of Instruments

- **1.10** Instruments may be denominated in any currency, subject to compliance with all applicable legal and/or regulatory and/or central bank requirements.
- **1.11** For the purposes of these Terms and Conditions, references to Instruments shall, as the context may require, be deemed to be to Temporary Global Instruments, Permanent Global Instruments, Definitive Instruments or, as the case may be, Registered Instruments.

2. Title

2.01 Title to Bearer Instruments and Coupons passes by delivery. References herein to the "**Holders**" of Bearer Instruments or of Coupons are to the bearers of such Bearer Instruments or such Coupons.

- **2.02** Title to Registered Instruments passes by registration in the register which is kept by the Principal Registrar or, as the case may be, the Alternative Registrar, as specified in the relevant Final Terms. For the purposes of these Terms and Conditions, "**Registrar**" means, in relation to any Series comprising Registered Instruments, the Principal Registrar or, as the case may be, the Alternative Registrar, provided always that where such Series is to be listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and if the rules of such stock exchange so require, "Alternative Registrar" shall mean the Alternative Registrar (The Bank of New York (Luxembourg) S.A.). References herein to the "**Holders**" of Registered Instruments are to the persons in whose names such Registered Instruments are so registered in the relevant register.
- **2.03** The Holder of any Bearer Instrument, Coupon or Registered Instrument will (except as otherwise required by applicable law or regulatory requirement) be treated as its absolute owner for all purposes (whether or not it is overdue and regardless of any notice of ownership, trust or any interest thereof or therein, any writing thereon, or any theft or loss thereof) and no person shall be liable for so treating such Holder.

Transfer of Registered Instruments and exchange of Bearer Instruments for Registered Instruments

- **2.04** A Registered Instrument may, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement, be transferred in whole or in part only (provided that such part is, or is an integral multiple of, the minimum denomination specified in the relevant Final Terms) upon the surrender of the Registered Instrument to be transferred, together with the form of transfer endorsed on it duly completed and executed, at the specified office of the Registerar. A new Registered Instrument will be issued to the transferee and, in the case of a transfer of part only of a Registered Instrument, a new Registered Instrument in respect of the balance not transferred will be issued to the transferor.
- 2.05 If so specified in the relevant Final Terms, the Holder of Bearer Instruments may exchange the same for the same aggregate principal amount of Registered Instruments upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement. In order to exchange a Bearer Instrument for a Registered Instrument, the Holder thereof shall surrender such Bearer Instrument at the specified office outside the United States of the Issue and Paying Agent or of the Registrar together with a written request for the exchange. Each Bearer Instrument so surrendered must be accompanied by all unmatured Coupons appertaining thereto other than the Coupon in respect of the next payment of interest falling due after the exchange date (as defined in Condition 2.06) where the exchange date would, but for the provisions of Condition 2.06, occur between the Record Date (as defined in Condition 9B.03) for such payment of interest and the date on which such payment of interest falls due.
- 2.06 Each new Registered Instrument to be issued upon the transfer of a Registered Instrument or the exchange of a Bearer Instrument for a Registered Instrument will be available, within three Relevant Banking Days of the transfer date or the exchange date, as the case may be, for collection by each relevant Holder at the specified office of the Registrar or, at the option of the Holder requesting such exchange or transfer, be mailed (by uninsured post at the risk of the Holder(s) entitled thereto) to such address(es) as may be specified by such Holder. For these purposes, a form of transfer or request for exchange received by the Registrar or the Issue and Paying Agent after the Record Date in respect of any payment due in respect of Registered Instruments shall be deemed not to be effectively received by the Registrar or the Issue and Paying Agent until the day following the due date for such payment.

For the purposes of these Terms and Conditions,

(i) "Relevant Banking Day" means a day on which commercial banks are open for business (including dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the place where the specified office of the Registrar is located and, in the case only of an exchange of a Bearer Instrument for a Registered Instrument, where such request for exchange is made to the Issue and Paying Agent, in the place where the specified office of the Issue and Paying Agent is located;

- (ii) the "exchange date" shall be the Relevant Banking Day following the day on which the relevant Bearer Instrument shall have been surrendered for exchange in accordance with Condition 2.05; and
- (iii) the "**transfer date**" shall be the Relevant Banking Day following the day on which the relevant Registered Instrument shall have been surrendered for transfer in accordance with Condition 2.04 and all reasonable requirements of the Issuer and the Registrar shall have been satisfied in respect of such transfer.
- **2.07** The issue of new Registered Instruments on transfer or on the exchange of Bearer Instruments for Registered Instruments will be effected without charge by or on behalf of the relevant Issuer, the Issue and Paying Agent or the Registrar, but upon payment by the applicant of (or the giving by the applicant of such indemnity as the relevant Issuer, the Issue and Paying Agent or the Registrar may require in respect of) any tax, duty or other governmental charges which may be imposed in relation thereto.
- 2.08 Upon the transfer, exchange or replacement of Registered Instruments bearing the private placement legend (the "Private Placement Legend") set forth in the form of Registered Instrument scheduled to the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement, the Registrar shall deliver only Registered Instruments that also bear such legend unless either (i) such transfer, exchange or replacement occurs three or more years after the later of (1) the original issue date of such Instruments or (2) the last date on which the relevant Issuer or any affiliates (as defined below) of the relevant Issuer as notified to the Registrar by the relevant Issuer as provided in the following sentence, was the beneficial owner of such Instrument (or any predecessor of such Instrument) or (ii) there is delivered to the Registrar an opinion reasonably satisfactory to the relevant Issuer of counsel experienced in giving opinions with respect to questions arising under the securities laws of the United States to the effect that neither such legend nor the restrictions on transfer set forth therein are required in order to maintain compliance with the provisions of such laws. The relevant Issuer covenants and agrees that it will not acquire any beneficial interest, and will cause its "affiliates" (as defined in paragraph (a)(1) of Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act")) not to acquire any beneficial interest, in any Registered Instrument bearing the Private Placement Legend unless it notifies the Registrar of such acquisition. The Registrar and all Holders of Instruments shall be entitled to rely without further investigation on any such notification (or lack thereof).
- **2.09** For so long as any of the Registered Instruments bearing the Private Placement Legend remain outstanding and are "restricted securities" within the meaning of Rule 144(a)(3) under the Securities Act, the relevant Issuer covenants and agrees that it shall, during any period in which it is not subject to Section 13 or 15(d) under the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934 nor exempt from reporting pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) under such Act, make available to any Holder of such Instruments in connection with any sale thereof and any prospective purchaser of such Instruments from such Holder, in each case upon request, the information specified in, and meeting the requirements of, Rule 144(d)(4) under the Securities Act.

3. Status of the Instruments and the Guarantee

Status of Senior Instruments

This Condition 3.01 is applicable to Instruments issued by Santander International only

3.01 The Senior Instruments (being those Instruments which specify their status as Senior) and the Receipts and Coupons relating to them constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and (without prejudice to the provisions of Condition 4) unsecured obligations of Santander International and rank *pari passu* and rateably without any preference among themselves and (unless they qualify by law as subordinated debts under article 92 of the Insolvency Law and subject to any applicable statutory exceptions and without prejudice as aforesaid) the payment obligations of Santander International under the Senior Instruments, Receipts and Coupons relating to them rank at least *pari passu* with all other unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness, present and future.

Senior Guarantee

This Condition 3.02 is applicable to Instruments issued by Santander International only

3.02 The Guarantor has unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed the due payment of all sums expressed to be payable by Santander International under the Senior Instruments, Receipts and Coupons on an unsubordinated basis. The obligations of the Guarantor in respect of Senior Instruments constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and (without prejudice to Condition 4) unsecured obligations of the Guarantor and rank *pari passu* and rateably without any preference among such obligations of the Guarantor in respect of the Senior Instruments of the same Series and (unless they qualify by law as subordinated debts under article 92 of the Insolvency Law and subject to any applicable statutory exceptions and without prejudice as aforesaid) at least *pari passu* with all other unsubordinated and unsecured indebtedness and monetary obligations involving or otherwise related to borrowed money of the Guarantor, present and future. Its obligations in that respect are contained in the Senior Guarantee.

Status of Subordinated Instruments

This Condition 3.03 is applicable to Instruments issued by Santander Issuances only

3.03 Status of Dated Subordinated Instruments: The Subordinated Instruments (being Instruments which specify their status as Subordinated) are direct, unconditional, subordinated and unsecured obligations of Santander Issuances ranking without preference or priority among themselves together with all other subordinated obligations of Santander Issuances other than subordinated obligations prescribed by law and subordinated obligations which are expressed to rank junior to the Subordinated Instruments.

Subordinated Guarantee

This Condition 3.04 is applicable to Instruments issued by Santander Issuances only

3.04 The Guarantor shall, on or before the date of issue (as specified in the relevant Final Terms) of any Subordinated Instruments, execute a guarantee in the form scheduled to the Base Prospectus dated [*] November 2006

The Guarantor has unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed, on a subordinated basis, the due and punctual payment of all the sums expressed to be payable by Santander Issuances under the Subordinated Instruments. The obligations of the Guarantor in respect of the Subordinated Instruments constitute direct, unconditional, subordinated and unsecured obligations of the Guarantor which will at all times rank pari passu with all other present and future subordinated obligations of the Guarantor except for certain subordinated obligations prescribed by law and subordinated obligations which are expressed to rank junior to the Guarantor's obligations under the Guarantee. In the event of insolvency (concurso) of the Guarantor, under Law 22/2003, claims relating to the Guarantee will fall within the category of "subordinated debts" (as defined in Law 22/2003). After payment in full of unsubordinated debts but before distributions to shareholders and creditors of the Guarantor which are characterised as holders of equity (Otros Acreedores a Título Asimilable al de Aportación de Capital), under article 92 of Law 22/2003, the Guarantor will meet such subordinated debts in the following order and pro rata within each class: (i) claims lodged belatedly or inaccurately in the context of insolvency proceedings; (ii) contractually subordinated debt (such as the claims under the Guarantee); (iii) interest; (iv) fines; (v) claims of creditors which are related to the Guarantor; and (vi) debt arising from transactions set aside by Spanish courts in the context of insolvency proceedings (rescisión concursal) and in respect of which the court has determined that the relevant creditor has acted in bad faith.

4. Negative Pledge

(a) So long as any of the Senior Instruments, Receipts or Coupons remain outstanding (as defined in the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement) or any amount remains payable under the Senior Guarantee neither the Issuer nor the Guarantor will create or permit to subsist any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien or other form of encumbrance or security interest upon the whole or any part of its present or future assets, undertakings or

revenues as security for any Relevant Debt or any guarantee of or indemnity in respect of any Relevant Debt unless, at the same time or prior thereto, Santander International's obligations under the Senior Instruments, Receipts and Coupons or, as the case may be, the Guarantor's obligations under the Senior Guarantee (i) are secured equally and rateably therewith or benefit from a guarantee or indemnity in substantially identical terms thereto, as the case may be, or (ii) have the benefit of such other security, guarantee, indemnity or other arrangement as shall be approved by a resolution of the relevant Syndicate of Holders of the Senior Instruments.

- (b) For the purposes of this Condition, "Relevant Debt" means any present or future indebtedness in the form of, or represented by, bonds, notes, debentures, loan stock or other securities which are for the time being, or are capable of being, quoted, listed or ordinarily dealt in any listing authority, stock exchange, quotation system, over-the-counter or other securities market, having an original maturity of more than one year from its date of issue.
- (c) Nothing in this Condition 4 shall prevent Santander International or the Guarantor from creating or having outstanding any mortgage, lien (other than a lien arising by operation of law), pledge, charge or other security interest (for purposes of this Condition, each a "Security") upon, or with respect to, any of its present or future assets or revenues or any part thereof which is created pursuant to any securitisation, asset-backed financing or like arrangement in accordance with normal market practice in Spain (where applicable) and whereby the Relevant Debt (or any guarantee or other obligation in respect of any Relevant Debt) secured by such Security or having the benefit of such secured guarantee or other obligation is limited to the value of such assets or revenues.

5. Interest

Instruments may be interest-bearing or non interest-bearing, as specified in the relevant Final Terms. In the case of non interest-bearing Instruments, an Issue Price and Amortisation Yield will, unless otherwise agreed, be specified in the relevant Final Terms. The Final Terms in relation to each Tranche of interest-bearing Instruments shall specify which of Condition 5A, 5B and/or 5C shall be applicable and Condition 5D will be applicable to each Tranche of interest-bearing Instruments as specified therein save, in each case, to the extent inconsistent with the relevant Final Terms. In relation to any Tranche of interest-bearing Instruments, the relevant Final Terms may specify actual amounts of interest payable rather than, or in addition to, a rate or rates at which interest accrues.

5A Interest — Fixed Rate

Instruments in relation to which this Condition 5A is specified in the relevant Final Terms as being applicable shall bear interest from their date of issue (as specified in the relevant Final Terms) or from such other date as may be specified in the relevant Final Terms at the rate or rates per annum (or otherwise, as specified in the relevant Final Terms. Such interest will be payable in arrear on such dates as are specified in the relevant Final Terms and on the date of final maturity thereof. Interest in respect of a period of less than one year will be calculated on such basis as may be specified in the relevant Final Terms.

5B Interest — Floating Rate Instruments and Index-Linked Interest Instrument Provisions

5B.01 Instruments in relation to which this Condition 5B is specified in the relevant Final Terms as being applicable, shall bear interest at the rate or rates per annum (or otherwise, as specified in the relevant Final Terms) determined in accordance with this Condition 5B. Condition 5D.02 shall apply to Instruments to which this Condition 5B applies.

5B.02 Such Instruments shall bear interest from their date of issue (as specified in the relevant Final Terms) or from such other date as may be specified in the relevant Final Terms. Such interest will be payable in arrear on each Interest Payment Date (as defined in Condition 5D.02) and on the maturity date.

5B.03 Screen Rate Determination

If "Screen Rate Determination" is specified in the relevant Final Terms it shall also specify which page (the "Relevant Screen Page") on the Reuters Screen or Moneyline Telerate or any other information vending service shall be applicable. For these purposes, "Reuters Screen" means the Reuter Money 3000 Services and "Telerate" means the Moneyline Telerate Service (or such other services or service as may be nominated as the information vendor for the purpose of displaying comparable rates in succession thereto). The rate of interest (the "Rate of Interest") applicable to such Instruments for each Interest Period shall be determined by the Determination Agent (as defined in Condition 5D.04) on the following basis:

- (i) the Determination Agent will determine the offered rate for deposits (or, as the case may require, the arithmetic mean (rounded, if necessary, to the nearest ten thousandth of a percentage point, 0.00005 being rounded upwards) of the rates for deposits) in the relevant currency for a period of the duration of the relevant Interest Period (as defined in Condition 5D.02) on the Relevant Screen Page as of 11.00 a.m. (London time, in the case of LIBOR, or Brussels time, in the case of EURIBOR) on the second London Banking Day or, in the case of Instruments denominated in Euro, on the second TARGET Business Day, before (or, in the case of Instruments in another currency if so specified in the relevant Final Terms, on) the first day of the relevant Interest Period (the "Interest Determination Date");
- (ii) if, on any Interest Determination Date, no such rate for deposits so appears (or, as the case may be, if fewer than two such rates for deposits so appear) or if the Relevant Screen Page is unavailable, the Determination Agent will request appropriate quotations and will determine the arithmetic mean (rounded as aforesaid) of the rates at which deposits in the relevant currency are offered by four major banks in the London interbank market or, where the basis for calculating the Rate of Interest is EURIBOR, in the Euro-zone interbank market, selected by the Determination Agent, at approximately 11.00 a.m. (London time, in the case of Libor, or Brussels time, in the case of Euribor) on the Interest Determination Date to prime banks in the London interbank market or, where the basis for calculating the Rate of Interest is EURIBOR, in the Euro-zone interbank market for a period of the duration of the relevant Interest Period and in an amount that is representative for a single transaction in the relevant market at the relevant time;
- (iii) if, on any Interest Determination Date, only two or three rates are so quoted, the Determination Agent will determine the arithmetic mean (rounded as aforesaid) of the rates so quoted; or
- (iv) if fewer than two rates are so quoted, the Determination Agent will determine the arithmetic mean (rounded as aforesaid) of the rates quoted by four major banks in the Relevant Financial Centre (as defined in Condition 9C.03) (or, in the case of Instruments denominated in Euro, in such financial centre or centres as the Determination Agent may select) selected by the Determination Agent, at approximately 11.00 a.m. (Relevant Financial Centre time (or local time at such other financial centre or centres as aforesaid)) on the first day of the relevant Interest Period for loans in the relevant currency to leading European banks for a period of the duration of the relevant Interest Period and in an amount that is representative for a single transaction in the relevant market at the relevant time,

and the Rate of Interest applicable to such Instruments during each Interest Period will be the sum of the relevant margin (the "Relevant Margin") specified in the Final Terms and the rate (or, as the case may be, the arithmetic mean (rounded as aforesaid) of rates) so determined; provided, however, that, if the Determination Agent is unable to determine a rate (or, as the case may be, an arithmetic mean (rounded as aforesaid) of rates) in accordance with the above provisions in relation to any Interest Period, the Rate of Interest applicable to such Instruments during such Interest Period will be the sum of the Relevant Margin and the rate (or, as the case may be, the arithmetic mean (rounded as aforesaid) of rates) determined in relation to such Instruments in respect of the last preceding Interest Period; provided always that if there is specified in the relevant Final Terms a minimum interest rate or a maximum interest rate then the Rate of Interest shall in no event be less than or, as the case may be, exceed it. For the purposes of these Terms and Conditions "London Banking Day" means a day on which commercial banks are open for business (including dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in London.

5B.04 *ISDA Determination:* If ISDA Determination is specified in the relevant Final Terms as the manner in which the Rate(s) of Interest is/are to be determined, the Rate of interest applicable to the Instruments for each Interest Period will be the sum of the Margin and the relevant ISDA Rate where "ISDA Rate" in relation to any Interest Period means a rate equal to the Floating Rate (as defined in the 2000 Definitions of the International Swaps and Derivatives Association (the "ISDA Definitions") (as amended and updated as at the date specified in the relevant Final Terms) that would be determined by the Determination Agent under an interest rate swap transaction if the Determination Agent were acting as Determination Agent for that interest rate swap transaction under the terms of an agreement incorporating the ISDA Definitions and under which:

- (i) the Floating Rate Option (as defined in the ISDA Definitions) is as specified in the relevant Final Terms;
- (ii) the Designated Maturity (as defined in the ISDA Definitions) is a period specified in the relevant Final Terms; and
- (iii) the relevant Reset Date (as defined in the ISDA Definitions) is either (A) if the relevant Floating Rate Option is based on the London inter-bank offered rate (LIBOR) for a currency, the first day of that Interest Period or (B) in any other case, as specified in the relevant Final Terms.

5B.05 *Index-Linked Interest:* If the Index-Linked Interest Instruments Provisions are specified in the relevant Final Terms as being applicable, the Rate(s) of Interest applicable to the Instruments for each Interest Period will be determined in the manner specified in the relevant Final Terms.

5B.06 The Determination Agent will, as soon as practicable after determining the Rate of Interest in relation to each Interest Period, calculate the amount of interest (the "Interest Amount") payable in respect of the principal amount of the smallest or minimum denomination of such Instruments specified in the relevant Final Terms for the relevant Interest Period. The Interest Amount will be calculated by applying the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period to such principal amount, multiplying the product by a fraction (day count fraction) the numerator of which is the actual number of days in the Interest Period concerned and the denominator for which is 360 (or, in the case of Instruments denominated in Pounds Sterling, 365 or, when all or part of an Interest Period falls in a leap year, 366 for that proportion of the Interest Period so falling) or by such other day count fraction as may be specified in the relevant Final Terms and rounding the resulting figure to the nearest sub-unit of the currency in which such Instruments are denominated or, as the case may be, in which such interest is payable (one half of any such sub-unit being rounded upwards).

5C Interest — Other Rates

Instruments in relation to which this Condition 5C is specified in the relevant Final Terms as being applicable shall bear interest at the rate or rates calculated on the basis specified in, and be payable in the amounts and in the manner determined in accordance with, the relevant Final Terms.

5D Interest — Supplemental Provision

5D.01 Conditions 5D.02, 5D.03, 5D.04 and 5D.05 shall be applicable (as appropriate) in relation to all Instruments which are interest-bearing.

Interest Payment Date Conventions and other Calculations

5D.02 (a) **Business Day Convention:** The Final Terms in relation to each Series of Instruments in relation to which this Condition 5D.02 is specified as being applicable shall specify which of the following conventions shall be applicable, namely:

the "FRN Convention", in which case interest shall be payable in arrear on each date (each an "Interest Payment Date") which numerically corresponds to their date of issue or such other date as may be specified in the relevant Final Terms or, as the case may be, the preceding Interest Payment Date in the calendar month which is the number of months specified in the relevant Final Terms after

the calendar month in which such date of issue or such other date as aforesaid or, as the case may be, the preceding Interest Payment Date occurred provided that:

- (a) if there is no such numerically corresponding day in the calendar month in which an Interest Payment Date should occur, then the relevant Interest Payment Date will be the last day which is a Business Day (as defined in Condition 9C.03) in that calendar month;
- (b) if an Interest Payment Date would otherwise fall on a day which is not a Business Day, then the relevant Interest Payment Date will be the first following day which is a Business Day unless that day falls in the next calendar month, in which case it will be the first preceding day which is a Business Day; and
- (c) if such date of issue or such other date as aforesaid or the preceding Interest Payment Date occurred on the last day in a calendar month which was a Business Day, then all subsequent Interest Payment Dates will be the last day which is a Business Day in the calendar month which is the specified number of months after the calendar month in which such date of issue or such other date as aforesaid or, as the case may be, the preceding Interest Payment Date occurred;
- (ii) the "Modified Following Business Day Convention", in which case interest shall be payable in arrear on such dates (each an "Interest Payment Date") as are specified in the relevant Final Terms Provided that, if any Interest Payment Date would otherwise fall on a date which is not a Business Day, the relevant Interest Payment Date will be the first following day which is a Business Day unless that day falls in the next calendar month, in which case the relevant Interest Payment Date will be the first preceding day which is a Business Day; or
- (iii) the "Following Business Day Convention" in which case interest shall be payable in arrrear on such dates (each an "Interest Payment Date") as are specified in the relevant Final Terms Provided that, if any Interest Payment Date would otherwise fall on a date which is not a Business Day, the relevant Interest Payment Date will be the first following day which is a Business Day.
- (iv) "No Adjustment" in which case the relevant date shall not be adjusted in accordance with any Business Day Convention.
- (v) such other convention as may be specified in the relevant Final Terms.
- **(b)** "**Day Count Fraction**" means, in respect of the calculation of an amount for any period of time ("**Calculation Period**"), such day count fraction as may be specified in the Final Terms and:
 - (i) if "Actual/365" or "Actual/Actual" is so specified, means the actual number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 365 (or, if any portion of the Calculation Period falls in a leap year, the sum of (A) the actual number of days in that portion of the Calculation Period falling in a leap year divided by 366 and (B) the actual number of days in that portion of the Calculation Period falling in a non-leap year divided by 365);
 - (ii) if "Actual/365 (Fixed)" is so specified, means the actual number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 365;
 - (iii) if "Actual/Actual (ICMA)" is so specified, means:
 - (a) where the Calculation Period is equal to or shorter than the Regular Period during which it falls, the actual number of days in the Calculation Period divided by the product of (1) the actual number of days in such Regular Period and (2) the number of Regular Periods in any year; and
 - (b) where the Calculation Period is longer than one Regular Period, the sum of:
 - (A) the actual number of days in such Calculation Period falling in the Regular Period in which it begins divided by the product of (1) the actual number of days in such Regular Period and (2) the number of Regular Periods in any year; and

- (B) the actual number of days in such Calculation Period falling in the next Regular Period divided by the product of (a) the actual number of days in such Regular Period and (2) the number of Regular Periods in any year;
- (iv) if "Actual/360" is so specified, means the actual number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360;
- (v) if "30/360" is so specified, means the number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360 (the number of days to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with 12 30-day months (unless (i) the last day of the Calculation Period is the 31st Day of a month but the first day of the Calculation Period is a day other than the 30th or 31st day of a month, in which case the month that includes that last day shall not be considered to be shortened to a 30-day month, or (ii) the last day of the Calculation Period is the last day of the month of February, in which case the month of February shall not be considered to be lengthened to a 30-day month));
- (vi) if "30E/360" or "Eurobond Basis" is so specified means, the number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360 (the number of days to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with 12 30-day months, without regard to the date of the first day or last day of the Calculation Period unless, in the case of the final Calculation Period, the date of final maturity is the last day of the month of February, in which case the month of February shall not be consideded to be lengthened to a 30-day month);

Each period beginning on (and including) such date of issue or such other date as aforesaid and ending on (but excluding) the first Interest Payment Date and each period beginning on (and including) an Interest Payment Date and ending on (but excluding) the next Interest Payment Date is herein called an "Interest Period".

As used herein, the term "Regular Period" means:

- in the case of Instruments where interest is scheduled to be paid only by means of regular payments, each period from and including the Interest Commencement Date to but excluding the first Interest Payment Date and each successive period from and including one Interest Payment Date to but excluding the next Interest Payment Date;
- (ii) in the case of Instruments where, apart from the first Interest Period, interest is scheduled to be paid only by means of regular payments, each period from and including a Regular Date falling in any year to but excluding the next Regular Date, where "Regular Date" means the day and month (but not the year) on which any Interest Payment Date falls; and
- (iii) in the case of Instruments where, apart from one Interest Period other than the first Interest Period, interest is scheduled to be paid only by means of regular payments, each period from and including a Regular Date falling in any year to but excluding the next Regular Date, where "Regular Date" means the day and month (but not the year) on which any Interest Payment Date falls other than the Interest Payment Date falling at the end of the irregular Interest Period.

Notification of Rates of Interest, Interest Amounts and Interest Payment Dates

5D.03 The Determination Agent will cause each Rate of Interest, floating rate, Interest Payment Date, final day of a calculation period, Interest Amount, floating amount or other item, as the case may be, determined or calculated by it to be notified to the Issue and Paying Agent. The Issue and Paying Agent will cause all such determination or calculations to be notified to the other Paying Agents and, in the case of Registered Instruments, the Registrar (from whose respective specified offices such information will be available) and to the Holders in accordance with Condition 14 as soon as practicable after such determination or calculation but in any event not later than the fourth London Banking Day thereafter or, if earlier, in the case of notification to any listing authority, stock exchange and/or quotation system, the time required by the rules of any such listing authority, stock exchange and/or quotation system. The Determination Agent will be entitled to

amend any Interest Amount, floating amount, Interest Payment Date or final day of a calculation period (or to make appropriate alternative arrangements by way of adjustment) without prior notice in the event of the extension or abbreviation of any relevant Interest Period or calculation period and such amendment will be notified in accordance with the first two sentences of this Condition 5D.03.

5D.04 The determination by the Determination Agent of all items falling to be determined by it pursuant to these Terms and Conditions shall, in the absence of manifest error, be final and binding on all parties.

"Determination Agent" means the Issue and Paying Agent or such other person specified in the relevant Final Terms as the party responsible for calculating the Rate(s) of Interest and Interest Amount(s) and/or such other amount(s) as may be specified in the relevant Final Terms.

Accrual of Interest

5D.05 Interest shall accrue on the principal amount of each Instrument or, in the case of an Instalment Instrument, on each instalment of principal, on the paid up principal amount of such Instrument or otherwise as indicated in the Final Terms from the Interest Commencement Date. Interest will cease to accrue as from the due date for redemption therefor (or, in the case of an Instalment Instrument, in respect of each instalment of principal, on the due date for payment thereof) unless upon (except in the case of any payment where presentation and/or surrender of the relevant Instrument is not required as a precondition of payment) due presentation or surrender thereof, payment in full of the principal amount or the relevant instalment or, as the case may be, redemption amount is improperly withheld or refused or default is otherwise made in the payment thereof in which case interest shall continue to accrue thereon (as well after as before any demand or judgment) at the rate then applicable to the principal amount of the Instruments or such other rate as may be specified in the relevant Final Terms ("Default Rate") until the earlier of (i) the date on which, upon due presentation of the relevant Instrument (if required), the relevant payment is made or (ii) (except in the case of any payment where presentation and/or surrender of the relevant Instrument is not required as a precondition of payment) the seventh day after the date on which notice is given to the Holders in accordance with Condition 14 that the Issue and Paying Agent or the Registrar (as the case may be) has received the funds required to make such payment (except to the extent that there is failure in the subsequent payment thereof to the relevant Holder).

5E Non-Interest Bearing Instruments

If any Redemption Amount (as defined in Condition 6.10) or Instalment Amount in respect of any Instrument which is non-interest bearing is not paid when due, interest shall accrue on the overdue amount at a rate per annum (expressed as a percentage per annum) equal to the Amortisation Yield defined in, or determined in accordance with the provisions of, the Final Terms or at such other rate as may be specified for this purpose in the Final Terms until the date on which, upon due presentation or surrender of the relevant Instrument (if required), the relevant payment is made or, if earlier (except where presentation or surrender of the relevant Instrument is not required as a precondition of payment), the seventh day after the date on which, the Issue and Paying Agent or, as the case may be, the Registrar having received the funds required to make such payment, notice is given to the Holders of the Instruments in accordance with Condition 14 that the Issue and Paying Agent or, as the case may be, the Registrar has received the required funds (except to the extent that there is failure in the subsequent payment thereof to the relevant Holder). The amount of any such interest shall be calculated in accordance with the provisions of Condition 5B.06 as if the Rate of Interest was the Amortisation Yield, the Outstanding Principal Amount was the principal amount and the Day Count

Fraction was as specified for this purpose in the Final Terms or, if not so specified, 30E/360 (as defined in Condition 5D).

6. Credit Linked Instruments

If the Notes are specified as Credit Linked Instruments in the applicable Final Terms then the provisions of this Condition 6 apply as modified by the applicable Final Terms.

(a) Redemption of Credit Linked Instruments

Unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled and subject to Conditions to Settlement being satisfied during the Notice Delivery Period, each nominal amount of Instruments equal to the lowest Specified Denomination set out in the applicable Final Terms will be redeemed by the Issuer at its Redemption Amount specified in, or determined in the manner specified in, the applicable Final Terms in the relevant Specified Currency on the Maturity Date.

If Conditions to Settlement are satisfied during the Notice Delivery Period then (i) if Cash Settlement is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the provisions of Condition 6(b) shall apply or (ii) if Physical Delivery is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the provisions of Condition 6(c) shall apply.

(b) Cash Settlement

If Cash Settlement is specified in the applicable Final Terms and Conditions to Settlement are satisfied during the Notice Delivery Period (such date of satisfaction, the "Credit Event Determination Date"), the Issuer shall give notice (such notice a "Settlement Notice") to the Holders in accordance with Condition 15 and redeem all but not some only of the Instruments, each nominal amount of Instruments equal to the lowest Specified Denomination being redeemed by the Issuer at the Credit Event Redemption Amount specified in, or determined in the manner specified in the applicable Final Terms in the relevant Specified Currency on the Credit Event Redemption Date.

If Conditions to Settlement are satisfied and the Instruments become redeemable in accordance with this Condition 6(b), upon payment of the Credit Event Redemption Amounts in respect of the Instruments the Issuer shall have discharged its obligations in respect of the Notes and shall have no other liability or obligation whatsoever in respect thereof. The Credit Event Redemption Amount may be less than the lowest Specified Denomination of an Instrument. Any shortfall shall be borne by the Holders and no liability shall attach to the Issuer or the Guarantor.

(c) Physical Settlement

If Physical Delivery is specified in the applicable Final Terms and Conditions to Settlement are satisfied during the Notice Delivery Period (such date of satisfaction, the "Credit Event Determination Date"), the Issuer shall give notice (such notice a "Notice of Physical Settlement") to the Holders in accordance with Condition 15 and redeem all but not some only of the Instruments, each nominal amount of Instruments equal to the lowest Specified Denomination being redeemed by the Issuer by Delivery of the Deliverable Obligations comprising the Asset Amount, subject to and in accordance with Conditions 6(g) and (h)

In the Notice of Physical Settlement, the Issuer shall specify the Deliverable Obligations comprising the Asset Amount that it reasonably expects to Deliver. For the avoidance of doubt, the Issuer shall be entitled to select any of the Deliverable Obligations to constitute the Asset Amount, irrespective of their market value.

If "Restructuring Maturity Limitation and Fully Transferable Obligation" is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms and Restructuring is the only Credit Event specified in a Credit Event Notice, then a Deliverable Obligation may be included in the Asset Amount only if it (i) is a Fully Transferable Obligation and (ii) has a final maturity date not later than the Restructuring Maturity Limitation Date.

If "Modified Restructuring Maturity Limitation and Conditionally Transferable Obligation Applicable" is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms and Restructuring is the only Credit Event specified in a Credit Event Notice, then a Deliverable Obligation may be included in the Asset Amount only if it (i) is a Conditionally Transferable Obligation and (ii) has a final maturity date not later than the applicable Modified Restructuring Maturity Limitation Date.

If Conditions to Settlement are satisfied and the Instruments become redeemable in accordance with this Condition 6(c), upon Delivery of the Deliverable Obligations Deliverable and/or payment of the Cash Settlement Amounts, as the case may be, the Issuer shall have discharged its obligations in respect of the Instruments and shall have no other liability or obligation whatsoever in respect thereof. The value of such Deliverable Obligations and/or the Cash Settlement Amount may be less than the Specified Denomination of an Instrument. Any shortfall shall be borne by the Holders and no liability shall attach to the Issuer or the Guarantor.

(d) Repudiation/Moratorium Extension

Where Repudiation/Moratorium is specified as a Credit Event in the applicable Final Terms, the provisions of this Condition 6(e) shall apply

Where Conditions to Settlement have not been satisfied on or prior to the Scheduled Termination Date but the Repudiation/Moratorium Extension Condition has been satisfied on or prior to the Scheduled Termination Date or, if Condition 6(f)(y) applies, the Postponed Maturity Date and the Repudiation/Moratorium Evaluation Date in respect of such Potential Repudiation Moratorium will, in the sole determination of the Calculation Agent, fall after the Scheduled Termination Date, then the Calculation Agent shall notify the Holders in accordance with Condition 15 that a Potential Repudiation/Moratorium has occurred and:

- (i) where a Repudiation/Moratorium has not occurred on or prior to the Repudiation/Moratorium Evaluation Date:
 - (A) each nominal amount of Instruments equal to the lowest Specified Denomination will be redeemed by the Issuer at the Redemption Amount on the fifth Business Day following the Repudiation/Moratorium Evaluation Date; and
 - (B) in the case of interest bearing Instruments, the Issuer shall be obliged to pay interest calculated as provided herein, accruing from (and including) the Interest Payment Date immediately preceding the Scheduled Termination Date or, if none, the Interest Commencement Date to (but excluding) the Scheduled Maturity Date but shall only be obliged to make such payment of interest on the fifth Business Day following the Repudiation/Moratorium Evaluation Date and no further or other amount in respect of interest shall be payable and no additional amount shall be payable in respect of such delay; and
- (ii) where a Repudiation/Moratorium has occurred on or prior to the Repudiation/Moratorium Evaluation Date and Conditions to Settlement are satisfied in the Notice Delivery Period, the provisions of Condition 6(b) or Condition 6(c), as applicable, shall apply to the Instruments

The Luxemburg Stock Exchange will be notified in respect of any such postponement of the Maturity Date pursuant to this Condition 6(d).

(e) Grace Period Extension

If "Grace Period Extension" is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, the provisions of this Condition 6(e) shall apply.

Where Conditions to Settlement have not been satisfied on or prior to the Scheduled Termination Date but a Potential Failure to Pay has occurred with respect to one or more Obligation(s) in respect

of which a Grace Period is applicable on or prior to the Scheduled Termination Date (and such Grace Period(s) is/are continuing as at the Scheduled Termination Date), then:

- (i) where a Failure to Pay has not occurred on or prior to the Grace Period Extension Date:
 - (A) each nominal amount of Instruments equal to the lowest Specified Denomination will be redeemed by the Issuer at the Redemption Amount on the fifth Business Day following the Grace Period Extension Date; and
 - (B) in the case of interest bearing Instruments, the Issuer shall be obliged to pay interest calculated as provided herein, accruing from (and including) the Interest Payment Date immediately preceding the Scheduled Termination Date or, if none, the Interest Commencement Date to (but excluding) the Scheduled Maturity Date but shall only be obliged to make such payment of interest on the fifth Business Day following the Grace Period Extension Date and no further or other amount in respect of interest shall be payable and no additional amount shall be payable in respect of such delay; and
- (ii) where a Failure to Pay has occurred on or prior to the Grace Period Extension Date and Conditions to Settlement are satisfied in the Notice Delivery Period, the provisions of Condition 6(b) or Condition 6(c), as applicable, shall apply to the Instruments.

The Luxembourg Stock Exchange will be notified in respect of such postponement of the Maturity Date pursuant to this Condition 6(e).

(f) Maturity Date Extension

If:

- (x) on (A) the Scheduled Termination Date or, (B), if applicable, the Repudiation/Moratorium Evaluation Date, or (C) if Grace Period Extension is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, the Grace Period Extension Date, as the case may be, Conditions to Settlement have not been satisfied but, in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, a Credit Event may have occurred; or
- (y) on the Scheduled Termination Date, in the opinion of the Calculation Agent a Potential Repudiation/Moratorium may have occurred,

the Calculation Agent may notify the Holders in accordance with Condition 15 that the Scheduled Maturity Date, the Repudiation/Moratorium Evaluation Date or the Grace Period Extension Date, as the case maybe, has been postponed to a date (such date the "Postponed Maturity Date") specified in such notice falling 14 calendar days after the Scheduled Termination Date, the Repudiation/ Moratorium Evaluation Date or the Grace Period Extension Date, as the case may be, and

where:

- (i) in the case of Condition 6(f)(x), Conditions to Settlement are not satisfied on or prior to the Postponed Maturity Date or, in the case of Condition 6(f)(y), the Repudiation/Moratorium Extension Condition is not satisfied on or prior to the Postponed Maturity Date:
 - (A) subject as provided below, each nominal amount of Instruments equal to the lowest Specified Denomination will be redeemed by the Issuer at the Redemption Amount on the fifth Business Day following the Postponed Maturity Date; and
 - (B) in the case of interest bearing Instruments, the Issuer shall be obliged to pay interest calculated as provided herein accruing from (and including) the Interest Payment Date immediately preceding the Scheduled Termination Date or, if none, the Interest Commencement Date to (but excluding) the Scheduled Maturity Date but shall only be obliged to make such payment of interest on the fifth Business Day following the Postponed Maturity Date and no further or other amount in respect of interest shall be payable and no additional amount shall be payable in respect of such delay; or

(ii) where

- (A) in the case of Condition 6(f)(x), Conditions to Settlement are satisfied on or prior to the Postponed Maturity Date, the provisions of Condition 6(b) or 6(c) as applicable shall apply to the Instruments; or
- (B) in the case of Condition 6(f)(y), the Repudiation/Moratorium Extension Condition is satisfied on or prior to the Postponed Maturity Date, the provisions of Condition 6(d) shall apply to the Instruments

The Luxemburg Stock Exchange will be notified in respect of any such postponement of the Maturity Date pursuant to this Condition 6(f)

(g) Physical Delivery

- (i) If any Note is to be redeemed by delivery of the Asset Amount(s), in order to obtain delivery of such Asset Amount(s):
 - (A) if such Note is represented by a Global Note, the relevant Noteholder must deliver to Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg (as applicable), with a copy to the Issuer not later than the close of business in each place of reception on the Cut-Off Date, a duly completed Asset Transfer Notice; and
 - (B) if such Note is in definitive form, the relevant Noteholder must deliver this Note to any Paying Agent with a copy to the Issuer not later than the close of business in each place of reception on the Cut-Off Date, together with a duly completed Asset Transfer Notice.

Forms of the Asset Transfer Notice may be obtained during normal business hours from the specified office of any Paying Agent.

An Asset Transfer Notice may only be delivered (i) if such Note is represented by a Global Note, in such manner as is acceptable to Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be, or if such Note is in definitive form, in writing or by authenticated SWIFT message.

If this Note is in definitive form, this Note must be delivered together with the duly completed Asset Transfer Notice.

An Asset Transfer Notice must:

- (1) specify the name and address of the relevant Noteholder, the person from whom the Issuer may obtain details for the delivery of the Asset Amount and any details required for delivery of the Asset Amount set out in the applicable Final Terms;
- (2) in the case of Instruments represented by a Global Note, specify the nominal amount of Instruments which are the subject of such notice and the number of the Noteholder's account at Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be, to be debited with such Instruments and irrevocably instruct and authorise Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be, to debit the relevant Noteholder's account with such Instruments on or before the Settlement Date;
- (3) include an undertaking to pay all Delivery Expenses and, in the case of Instruments represented by a Global Note, an authority to debit a specified account of the Noteholder at Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be, in respect thereof and to pay such Delivery Expenses;
- (4) specify an account to which any amounts payable pursuant to Condition 6(h) or any other cash amounts specified in the applicable Final Terms as being payable are to be paid; and
- (5) authorise the production of such notice in any applicable administrative or legal proceedings

No Asset Transfer Notice may be withdrawn after receipt thereof by Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or a Paying Agent, as the case may be, as provided above. After delivery of an Asset Transfer Notice, the relevant Noteholder may not transfer the Instruments which are the subject of such notice.

In the case of Instruments represented by a Global Note, upon receipt of such notice, Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be, shall verify that the person specified therein as the Noteholder is the holder of the specified nominal amount of Instruments according to its books

Failure properly to complete and deliver an Asset Transfer Notice may result in such notice being treated as null and void Any determination as to whether such notice has been properly completed and delivered as provided in these Terms and Conditions shall be made, in the case of Instruments represented by a Global Note, by Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be, after consultation with the Issuer and shall be conclusive and binding on the Issuer, the Guarantor and the relevant Noteholder and, in the case of Instruments in definitive form, by the relevant Paying Agent after consultation with the Issuer or the Guarantor, as applicable, and shall be conclusive and binding on the Issuer, the Guarantor and the relevant Noteholder.

Delivery of the Asset Amount(s) in respect of each Note shall be made at the risk of the relevant Noteholder in such commercially reasonable manner as the Calculation Agent shall in its sole discretion determine and notify to the person designated by the Noteholder in the relevant Asset Transfer Notice or in such manner as is specified in the applicable Final Terms

If a Noteholder fails to give an Asset Transfer Notice as provided herein on or prior to the Cut-Off Date specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may be, will, subject as provided above, deliver the Deliverable Obligations constituting the Asset Amount in respect of the relevant Instruments as soon as practicable after the receipt of the duly completed Asset Transfer Notice, Provided That if, in respect of a Note, a Noteholder fails to give an Asset Transfer Notice prior to the day falling 180 calendar days after the Cut-Off Date, the obligations of the Issuer and the Guarantor in respect of such Holders shall be discharged and neither the Issuer nor the Guarantor shall have any liability in respect thereof

(ii) All Delivery Expenses arising from the delivery of the Asset Amount in respect of any Holders shall be for the account of the relevant Noteholder and no delivery of any Asset Amount shall be made until all Delivery Expenses have been paid to the satisfaction of the Issuer by the relevant Noteholder

After delivery of an Asset Amount in respect of a Note and for the Intervening Period, none of the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Calculation Agent and any other person shall at any time (i) be under any obligation to deliver or procure delivery to any Noteholder any letter, certificate, notice, circular or any other document or, except as provided herein, payment whatsoever received by that person in respect of the securities or obligations included in such Asset Amount, (ii) be under any obligation to exercise or procure exercise of any or all rights attaching to such securities or obligations included in such Asset Amount or (iii) be under any liability to a Noteholder in respect of any loss or damage which such Noteholder may sustain or suffer as a result, whether directly or indirectly, of that person being registered during such Intervening Period as legal owner of such securities or obligations included in such Asset Amount

(iii) In relation to each Deliverable Obligation constituting any Asset Amount, the Issuer will Deliver or procure the Delivery of the relevant Deliverable Obligation as provided below on the Settlement Date Provided That if all or some of the Deliverable Obligations included in the Asset Amount in respect of a Note are Undeliverable Obligations and/or Hedge Disruption Obligations, then the Issuer shall continue to attempt to Deliver all or a portion of such Undeliverable Obligations or Hedge Disruption Obligations, as the case may be, on or before the 30th Business Day following the Settlement Date (the "Final Delivery Date"),

Provided Further That if all or a portion of such Undeliverable Obligations or Hedge Disruption Obligations, as the case may be, are not Delivered by the Final Delivery Date the provisions of Condition 6(h) shall apply

(h) Partial Cash Settlement

If all or a portion of the Undeliverable Obligations or Hedge Disruption Obligations comprising the Asset Amount in respect of a Note are not Delivered by the Final Delivery Date, the Issuer shall give notice (a "Cash Settlement Notice") to the Holders in accordance with Condition 13 and the Issuer shall pay in respect of each Undeliverable Obligation or Hedge Disruption Obligation, as the case may be, the Cash Settlement Amount on the Cash Settlement Date

In the Cash Settlement Notice, the Issuer must give details of why it is unable to deliver the relevant Undeliverable Obligations or Hedge Disruption Obligation, as the case may be.

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms, for the purposes of this Condition 6(h) the following terms shall be defined as follows:

"Cash Settlement Amount" is deemed to be, for each Undeliverable Obligation or Hedge Disruption Obligation, as the case may be, an amount calculated by the Calculation Agent equal to the greater of (i) (A) the Outstanding Principal Balance, the Due and Payable Amount or the Currency Amount, as applicable, of each Undeliverable Obligation or Hedge Disruption Obligation, as the case may be, multiplied by (B) the Final Price with respect to such Undeliverable Obligation or Hedge Disruption Obligation, as the case may be, less if applicable (C) Unwind Costs, if any (but excluding any Unwind Costs already taken into account in calculating the relevant Asset Amount), and (ii) zero

"Cash Settlement Date" is deemed to be the date falling three Business Days after the calculation of the Final Price.

"Indicative Quotation" means, in accordance with the Quotation Method, each quotation obtained from a Quotation Dealer at the Valuation Time for (to the extent reasonably practicable) an amount of the Undeliverable Obligation or Hedge Disruption Obligations, as the case may be, equal to the Quotation Amount, which reflects such Quotation Dealer's reasonable assessment of the price of such Undeliverable Obligation or Hedge Disruption Obligation, as the case may be, based on such factors as such Quotation Dealer may consider relevant, which may include historical prices and recovery rates.

"Market Value" means, with respect to an Undeliverable Obligation or Hedge Disruption Obligation, as the case may be, on a Valuation Date, (i) if more than three Full Quotations are obtained, the arithmetic mean of such Full Quotations, disregarding the Full Quotations having the same highest and lowest values (and, if more than one such Full Quotations have the same highest or lowest value, then one of such highest or lowest Full Quotations shall be disregarded); (ii) if exactly three Full Quotations are obtained, the Full Quotation remaining after disregarding the highest and lowest Full Quotations (and, if more than one such Full Quotations have the same highest value or lowest value, then one of such highest or lowest Full Quotations shall be disregarded); (iii) if exactly two Full Quotations are obtained, the arithmetic mean of such Full Quotations; (iv) if fewer than two Full Quotations are obtained and a Weighted Average Quotation is obtained, such Weighted Average Quotation; (v) if Indicative Quotations are specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms and exactly three Indicative Quotations are obtained, the Indicative Quotation remaining after disregarding the highest and lowest Indicative Quotations (and, if more than one such Indicative Quotations have the same highest or lowest value, then one of such highest or lowest Indicative Quotations shall be disregarded); (vi) if fewer than two Full Quotations are obtained and no Weighted Average Quotation is obtained (and, if Indicative Quotations are applicable, fewer than three Indicative Quotations are obtained) then, subject to paragraph (ii) of the definition of "Quotation" below, an amount as determined by the

Calculation Agent on the next Business Day on which at least two Full Quotations or a Weighted Average Quotation or, if applicable, three Indicative Quotations are obtained; and (vii) if the Quotations are deemed to be zero, the Market Value shall be zero

"Quotation" means each Full Quotation, the Weighted Average Quotation and, if Indicative Quotations are specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, each Indicative Quotation obtained and expressed as a percentage with respect to a Valuation Date in the manner that follows:

- The Calculation Agent shall attempt to obtain Full Quotations with respect to each Valuation Date from five or more Quotation Dealers. If the Calculation Agent is unable to obtain two or more such Full Quotations on the same Business Day within three Business Days of a Valuation Date, then on the next following Business Day (and, if necessary, on each Business Day thereafter until the tenth Business Day following the relevant Valuation Date) the Calculation Agent shall attempt to obtain Full Quotations from five or more Quotation Dealers, and, if two or more Full Quotations are not available, a Weighted Average Quotation If two or more such Full Quotations or a Weighted Average Quotation are not available on any such Business Day and Indicative Quotations are specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, the Calculation Agent shall attempt to obtain three Indicative Quotations from five or more Quotation Dealers.
- (ii) If the Calculation Agent is unable to obtain two or more Full Quotations or a Weighted Average Quotation (or, if Indicative Quotations are specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, three Indicative Quotations) on the same Business Day on or prior to the tenth Business Day following the Valuation Date, the Quotations shall be deemed to be any Full Quotation obtained from a Quotation Dealer at the Valuation Time on such tenth Business Day of, if no Full Quotation is obtained, the weighted average of any firm quotations (or, if applicable, Indicative Quotations) for the Undeliverable Obligation or the Hedge Disruption Obligation, as the case may be, obtained from Quotation Dealers at the Valuation Time on such tenth Business Day with respect to the aggregate portion of the Quotation Amount for which such quotations were obtained and a quotation deemed to be zero for the balance of the Quotation Amount for which firm quotations (or, if applicable, Indicative Quotations) were not obtained on such day.
- (iii) The Calculation Agent shall determine, based on the then current market practice in the market of the relevant Undeliverable Obligation or Hedge Disruption Obligations, as the case may be, whether such Quotations shall include or exclude accrued but unpaid interest All Quotations shall be obtained in accordance with this specification or determination.
- (iv) If any Quotation obtained with respect to an Accreting Obligation is expressed as a percentage of the amount payable in respect of such obligation at maturity, such Quotation will instead be expressed as a percentage of the Outstanding Principal Balance for purposes of determining the Final Price.

"Quotation Amount" is deemed to be, with respect to each type or issue of Undeliverable Obligation or Hedge Disruption Obligations, as the case may be, an amount equal to the Outstanding Principal Balance or Due and Payable Amount (or, in either case, its equivalent in the relevant Obligation Currency converted by the Calculation Agent in a commercially reasonable manner by reference to exchange rates in effect at the time that the relevant Quotation is being obtained), as applicable, of such Undeliverable Obligation or Hedge Disruption Obligations, as the case may be

"Quotation Method" is deemed to be Bid

"Reference Obligation" is deemed to be each Undeliverable Obligation or Hedge Disruption Obligation, as the case may be.

"Valuation Method" is deemed to be Highest unless fewer than two Full Quotations are obtained or a Weighted Average Quotation applies (or, if applicable, Indicative Quotations), in which case "Valuation Method" is deemed to be Market.

"Valuation Time" is the time specified as such in the applicable Final Terms, or, if no time is so specified, 11:00 a.m. in the principal trading market for the Undeliverable Obligation or the Hedge Disruption Obligation, as the case may be.

"Weighted Average Quotation" means, in accordance with the Quotation Method, the weighted average of firm quotations obtained from Quotation Dealers at the Valuation Time, to the extent reasonably practicable, each for an amount of the Undeliverable Obligation or the Hedge Disruption Obligation, as the case may be, with an Outstanding Principal Balance of as large a size as available but less than the Quotation Amount that in aggregate are approximately equal to the Quotation Amount.

(i) Redemption following a Merger Event

Where "Merger Event" is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, in the event that in the determination of the Calculation Agent a Merger Event has occurred, the Issuer may give notice to the Holders in accordance with Condition 15 and redeem each Note at the Early Redemption Amount on the Merger Event Redemption Date.

(j) Definitions applicable to Credit Linked Notes

"Accreted Amount" means, with respect to an Accreting Obligation, an amount equal to (a) the sum of (i) the original issue price of such obligation and (ii) the portion of the amount payable at maturity that has accreted in accordance with the terms of the obligation (or as otherwise described below), less (b) any cash payments made by the obligor thereunder that, under the terms of such obligation, reduce the amount payable at maturity (unless such cash payments have been accounted for in (a)(ii) above), in each case calculated as of the earlier of (A) the date on which any event occurs that has the effect of fixing the amount of a claim in respect of principal and (B) the Delivery Date or applicable Valuation Date, as the case may be. Such Accreted Amount shall include any accrued and unpaid periodic cash interest payments (as determined by the Calculation Agent in its sole and absolute discretion) only if "Include Accrued Interest" is specified as being applicable in the applicable Final Terms. If an Accreting Obligation is expressed to accrete pursuant to a straight-line method or if such Obligation's yield to maturity is not specified in, nor implied from, the terms of such Obligation, then, for the purposes of (a)(ii) above, the Accreted Amount shall be calculated using a rate equal to the yield to maturity of such Obligation. Such yield shall be determined on a semi-annual bond equivalent basis using the original issue price of such obligation and the amount payable at the scheduled maturity of such obligation, and shall be determined as of the earlier of (A) the date on which any event occurs that has the effect of fixing the amount of a claim in respect of principal and (B) the Delivery Date or applicable Valuation Date, as the case may be. The Accreted Amount shall exclude, in the case of an Exchangeable Obligation, any amount that may be payable under the terms of such obligation in respect of the value of the Equity Securities for which such obligation is exchangeable

"Accreting Obligation" means any obligation (including, without limitation, a Convertible Obligation or an Exchangeable Obligation), the terms of which expressly provide for an amount payable upon acceleration equal to the original issue price (whether or not equal to the face amount thereof) plus an additional amount or amounts (on account of original issue discount or other accruals of interest or principal not payable on a periodic basis) that will or may accrete, whether or not (a) payment of such additional amounts is subject to a contingency or determined by reference to a formula or index, or (b) periodic cash interest is also payable

"Affiliate" means, in relation to any entity (the "First Entity"), any entity controlled, directly or indirectly, by the First Entity, any entity that controls, directly or indirectly, the First Entity or any entity directly or indirectly under common control with the First Entity For these purposes "control" means ownership of a majority of the voting power of an entity.

"Asset Amount" means, in respect of each nominal amount of Holders equal to the lowest Specified Denomination, Deliverable Obligations, as selected by the Calculation Agent in its sole and absolute discretion, with:

- (i) in the case of Deliverable Obligations that are Borrowed Money, an Outstanding Principal Balance (including accrued but unpaid interest (as determined by the Calculation Agent) if "Include Accrued Interest" is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, but excluding accrued but unpaid interest if "Exclude Accrued Interest" is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, and if neither "Include Accrued Interest" nor "Exclude Accrued Interest" is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, excluding accrued but unpaid interest); or
- (ii) in the case of Deliverable Obligations that are not Borrowed Money, a Due and Payable Amount,

(or, in the case of either (i) or (ii), the equivalent Currency Amount of any such amount), in an aggregate amount as of the relevant Delivery Date equal to the lowest Specified Denomination less, if Unwind Costs are specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, Deliverable Obligations with a market value determined by the Calculation Agent in its sole and absolute discretion on the Business Day selected by the Calculation Agent falling during the period from and including the Credit Event Determination Date to and including the Delivery Date equal to Unwind Costs

If an obligation by its terms represents or contemplates an obligation to pay an amount greater than the Outstanding Principal Balance of such obligation as of the Delivery Date as a result of the occurrence or non-occurrence of an event or circumstance, the Outstanding Principal Balance of such obligation shall not include any additional amount that would be payable upon the occurrence or non-occurrence of such event or circumstance.

"Asset Transfer Notice" means a duly completed asset transfer notice substantially in the form set out in the Agency Agreement.

"Bankruptcy" means a Reference Entity:

- (a) is dissolved (other than pursuant to a consolidation, amalgamation or merger);
- (b) becomes insolvent or is unable to pay its debts or fails or admits in writing in a judicial, regulatory or administrative proceeding or filing its inability generally to pay its debts as they become due;
- (c) makes a general assignment, arrangement or composition with or for the benefit of its creditors;
- (d) institutes or has instituted against it a proceeding seeking a judgment of insolvency or bankruptcy or any other relief under any bankruptcy or insolvency law or other similar law affecting creditors' rights, or a petition is presented for its winding-up or liquidation, and, in the case of any such proceeding or petition instituted or presented against it, such proceeding or petition (i) results in a judgment of insolvency or bankruptcy or the entry of an order for relief or the making of an order for its winding-up or liquidation or (ii) is not dismissed, discharged, stayed or restrained in each case within thirty calendar days of the institution or presentation thereof or before the Scheduled Termination Date, whichever is earlier;
- (e) has a resolution passed for its winding-up, official management or liquidation (other than pursuant to a consolidation, amalgamation or merger);
- seeks or becomes subject to the appointment of an administrator, provisional liquidator, conservator, receiver, trustee, custodian or other similar official for it or for all or substantially all its assets;
- (g) has a secured party take possession of all or substantially all its assets or has a distress, execution, attachment, sequestration or other legal process levied, enforced or sued on or

- against all or substantially all its assets and such secured party maintains possession, or any such process is not dismissed, discharged, stayed or restrained, in each case within thirty calendar days thereafter or before the Scheduled Termination Date, whichever is earlier; or
- (h) causes or is subject to any event with respect to it which, under the applicable laws of any jurisdiction, has any analogous effect to any of the events specified in clauses (a) to (g) (inclusive).

"Best Available Information" means:

- (i) in the case of a Reference Entity which files information with its primary securities regulator or primary stock exchange that includes unconsolidated, pro forma financial information which assumes that the relevant Succession Event has occurred or which provides such information to its shareholders, creditors or other persons whose approval of the Succession Event is required, that unconsolidated, pro forma financial information and, if provided subsequently to the provision of unconsolidated, pro forma financial information but before the Calculation Agent makes its determination for the purposes of the definition of "Successor", other relevant information that is contained in any written communication provided by the Reference Entity to its primary securities regulator, primary stock exchange, shareholders, creditors or other persons whose approval of the Succession Event is required; or
- (ii) in the case of a Reference Entity which does not file with its primary securities regulators or primary stock exchange, or which does not provide to shareholders, creditors or other persons whose approval of the Succession Event is required, the information contemplated in (i) above, the best publicly available information at the disposal of the Calculation Agent to allow it to make a determination for the purposes of the definition of "Successor"

Information which is made available more than fourteen calendar days after the legally effective date of the Succession Event shall not constitute "Best Available Information".

"Calculation Agent City Business Day" means a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets are generally open to settle payments in the Calculation Agent City specified in the applicable Final Terms.

"Conditionally Transferable Obligation" means a Deliverable Obligation that is either Transferable, in the case of Bonds, or capable of being assigned or novated to all Modified Eligible Transferees without the consent of any person being required, in the case of any Deliverable Obligation other than Bonds, provided, however, that a Deliverable Obligation other than Bonds will be a Conditionally Transferable Obligation notwithstanding that consent of the Reference Entity or the guarantor, if any, of a Deliverable Obligation other than Bonds (or the consent of the relevant obligor if a Reference Entity is guaranteeing such Deliverable Obligation) or any agent is required for such novation, assignment or transfer so long as the terms of such Deliverable Obligation provide that such consent may not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Any requirement that notification of novation, assignment or transfer of a Deliverable Obligation be provided to a trustee, fiscal agent, administrative agent, clearing agent or paying agent for a Deliverable Obligation shall not be considered to be a requirement for consent for purposes of this definition of "Conditionally Transferable Obligation"

For purposes of determining whether a Deliverable Obligation satisfies the requirements of the definition of Conditionally Transferable Obligation, such determination shall be made as of the Delivery Date for the Deliverable Obligation, taking into account only the terms of the Deliverable Obligation and any related transfer or consent documents which have been obtained by the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may be.

"Conditions to Settlement" means the delivery by the Calculation Agent to the Issuer of a Credit Event Notice that is effective and if notice of Publicly Available Information is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, a Notice of Publicly Available Information, that is effective, in each case, during the Notice Delivery Period

"Convertible Obligation" means any obligation that is convertible, in whole or in part, into Equity Securities solely at the option of holders of such obligation or a trustee or similar agent acting for the benefit only of holders of such obligation (or the cash equivalent thereof, whether the cash settlement option is that of the issuer or of (or for the benefit of) the holders of such obligation).

"Credit Event" means the occurrence of any one or more of the Credit Events specified in the applicable Final Terms which may include Bankruptcy, Failure to Pay, Obligation Acceleration, Obligation Default, Repudiation/Moratorium or Restructuring, or any additional Credit Event specified in the applicable Final Terms, as determined by the Calculation Agent.

If an occurrence would otherwise constitute a Credit Event, such occurrence will constitute a Credit Event whether or not such occurrence arises directly or indirectly from, or is subject to a defense based upon:

- (a) any lack or alleged lack of authority or capacity of a Reference Entity to enter into any Obligation or, as applicable, an Underlying Obligor to enter into any Underlying Obligation;
- (b) any actual or alleged unenforceability, illegality, impossibility or invalidity with respect to any Obligation or, as applicable, any Underlying Obligation, however described;
- (c) any applicable law, order, regulation, decree or notice, however described, or the promulgation of, or any change in, the interpretation by any court, tribunal, regulatory authority or similar administrative or judicial body with competent or apparent jurisdiction of any applicable law, order, regulation, decree or notice, however described; or
- (d) the imposition of, or any change in, any exchange controls, capital restrictions or any other similar restrictions imposed by any monetary or other authority, however described

"Credit Event Notice" means an irrevocable notice from the Calculation Agent (which may be by telephone) to the Issuer (which the Calculation Agent has the right but not the obligation to deliver) that describes a Credit Event that occurred at or after 12:01 a.m. Greenwich Mean Time on the Trade Date and at or prior to 11:59 p.m., Greenwich Mean Time, on the latest of:

- (a) the Scheduled Termination Date;
- (b) where "Grace Period Extension" is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, the Grace Period Extension Date if (i) the Credit Event that is the subject of the Credit Event Notice is a Failure to Pay that occurs after the Scheduled Termination Date; and (ii) the Potential Failure to Pay with respect to such Failure to Pay occurs at or prior to 11:59 p.m., Greenwich Mean Time, on the Scheduled Termination Date; and
- (c) the Repudiation/Moratorium Evaluation Date if:
 - the Credit Event that is the subject of the Credit Event Notice is a Repudiation/ Moratorium that occurs after the Scheduled Termination Date;
 - (ii) the Potential Repudiation/Moratorium with respect to such Repudiation/Moratorium occurs at or prior to 11:59 p.m., Greenwich Mean Time, on the Scheduled Termination Date; and
 - (iii) the Repudiation/Moratorium Extension Condition is satisfied

A Credit Event Notice must contain a description in reasonable detail of the facts relevant to the determination that a Credit Event has occurred The Credit Event that is the subject of the Credit Event Notice need not be continuing on the date the Credit Event Notice is effective. A Credit Event Notice shall be subject to the requirements regarding notices set out in Condition 6(o).

"Credit Event Redemption Amount" means the amount specified as such in the applicable Final Terms or if no such amount is specified in the applicable Final Terms, an amount calculated by the Calculation Agent equal to:

 $(A \times B) - C$

where:

"A" is the lowest Specified Denomination;

"B" is the Final Price; and

"C" is Unwind Costs,

provided that in no event shall the Credit Event Amount be less than zero

"Credit Event Redemption Date" means the day falling the number of Business Days specified in the applicable Final Terms after the calculation of the Final Price

"Currency Amount" means, whenever an amount is denominated in a currency other than the Settlement Currency and is specified to be determined by reference to a Currency Amount, such amount converted to the relevant Settlement Currency using the Currency Rate

"Currency Rate" means:

- (a) the rate determined by the Calculation Agent equal to the rate of conversion of the currency of the Deliverable Obligation into the Settlement Currency by reference to:
 - (i) if the Settlement Currency is U.S. Dollars, the Federal Reserve Bank of New York 10:00 a.m. (New York time) mid point rate as displayed on Reuters page FEDSPOT on the date that the Notice of Physical Settlement is deemed given, or in such other commercially reasonable manner as it shall determine; or
 - (ii) if the Settlement Currency is euro, the MEAN price as displayed on Reuters Page EUROFX/1 as of 12:00 p.m. (London time) on the date that the Notice of Physical Settlement is deemed given, or in such other commercially reasonable manner as it shall determine; or
- (b) if the Settlement Currency is not U.S Dollars or euro, the rate determined by the Calculation Agent in its sole and absolute discretion in a commercially reasonable manner

"Default Requirement" means the amount specified as such in the applicable Final Terms or its equivalent in the relevant Obligation Currency or, if a Default Requirement is not specified in the applicable Final Terms, USD10,000,000, or its equivalent as calculated by the Calculation Agent in the relevant Obligation Currency, in either case, as of the occurrence of the relevant Credit Event

"Deliver" means to deliver, novate, transfer (including, in the case of a Qualifying Guarantee, transfer of the benefit of the Qualifying Guarantee), assign or sell, as appropriate, in the manner customary for the settlement of the applicable Deliverable Obligations (which shall include executing all necessary documentation and taking any other necessary actions), in order to convey all right, title and interest in the Asset Amount(s) to the relevant Noteholder free and clear of any and all liens, charges, claims or encumbrances (including without limitation any counterclaim, defence (other than a counterclaim or defense based on the factors set out in (a) to (d) in the definition of "Credit Event" above or right of set-off by or of the Reference Entity or, as applicable, an Underlying Obligor) provided that if all or a portion of an Asset Amount consists of Direct Loan Participations, "Deliver" means to create (or procure the creation) of a participation in favour of the relevant Noteholder and to the extent that the Deliverable Obligations consist of Qualifying Guarantees, "Deliver" means to Deliver both the Qualifying Guarantee and the Underlying

Obligation. "Delivery" and "Delivered" will be construed accordingly in the case of a Loan, Delivery shall be effected using documentation substantially in the form of the documentation customarily used in the relevant market for Delivery of such Loan at that time

"Deliverable Obligation" means, subject as provided in Condition 6(c):

- (a) any obligation of a Reference Entity (either directly, as provider of a Qualifying Affiliate Guarantee or, if All Guarantees is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, as provider of any Qualifying Guarantee) determined pursuant to the method described in "(A) Method for Determining Deliverable Obligations" below (but excluding any Excluded Deliverable Obligation specified in the applicable Final Terms) that (i) is payable in an amount equal to its Outstanding Principal Balance or Due and Payable Amount, as applicable, (ii) is not subject to any counterclaim, defense (other than a counterclaim or defense based on the factors set forth in paragraphs (a) to (d) of the definition of "Credit Event" above)) or right of set off by or of a Reference Entity or, as applicable, an Underlying Obligor and (iii) in the case of a Qualifying Guarantee other than a Qualifying Affiliate Guarantee, is capable, at the Delivery Date, of immediate assertion or demand by or on behalf of the holder or holders against the Reference Entity for an amount at least equal to the Outstanding Principal Balance or Due and Payable Amount being Delivered apart from the giving of any notice of non-payment or similar procedural requirement, it being understood that acceleration of an Underlying Obligation shall not be considered a procedural requirement;
- (b) subject to the second paragraph of the definition of "Not Contingent" in "(A) *Method for Determining Deliverable Obligations*" below, each Reference Obligation, unless specified in the applicable Final Terms as an Excluded Deliverable Obligation;
- (c) solely in relation to a Restructuring Credit Event applicable to a Sovereign Reference Entity, any Sovereign Restructured Deliverable Obligation (but excluding any Excluded Deliverable Obligation) that (i) is payable in an amount equal to its Outstanding Principal Balance or Due and Payable Amount, as applicable, (ii) is not subject to any counterclaim, defense (other than a counterclaim or defense based on the factors set forth in paragraphs (a)-(d) of the definition of "Credit Event" above) or right of set-off by or of a Reference Entity or, as applicable, an Underlying Obligor and (iii) in the case of a Qualifying Guarantee other than a Qualifying Affiliate Guarantee, is capable, at the Delivery Date, of immediate assertion or demand by or on behalf of the holder or holders against the Reference Entity for an amount at least equal to the Outstanding Principal Balance or Due and Payable Amount being Delivered apart from the giving of any notice of non-payment or similar procedural requirement, it being understood that acceleration of an Underlying Obligation shall not be considered a procedural requirement; and
- (d) any Additional Deliverable Obligation of a Reference Entity specified as such in the applicable Final Terms.
 - (A) Method for Determining Deliverable Obligations. For the purposes of this definition of "Deliverable Obligation", the term "Deliverable Obligation" may be defined as each obligation of each Reference Entity described by the Deliverable Obligation Category specified in the applicable Final Terms, and, subject to (B)(3) below, having each of the Deliverable Obligation Characteristics, if any, specified in the applicable Final Terms, in each case, as of the Delivery Date. The following terms shall have the following meanings:
 - (1) "Deliverable Obligation Category" means one of Payment, Borrowed Money, Reference Obligations Only, Bond, Loan, or Bond or Loan (each as defined in the definition of "Obligation" below, except that, for the purpose of determining Deliverable Obligations, the definition of "Reference Obligations Only" shall be

- amended to state that no Deliverable Obligation Characteristics shall be applicable to Reference Obligations Only)
- (2) "Deliverable Obligation Characteristics" means any one or more of Not Subordinated, Specified Currency, Not Sovereign Lender, Not Domestic Currency, Not Domestic Law, Listed, Not Domestic Issuance (each as defined in the definition of "Obligation" below), Not Contingent, Assignable Loan, Consent Required Loan, Direct Loan Participation, Transferable, Maximum Maturity, Accelerated or Matured and Not Bearer where:
 - (i) "Not Contingent" means any obligation having as of the Delivery Date and all times thereafter an Outstanding Principal Balance or, in the case of obligations that are not Borrowed Money, a Due and Payable Amount, that pursuant to the terms of such obligation may not be reduced as a result of the occurrence or non-occurrence of an event or circumstance (other than payment). A Convertible Obligation, an Exchangeable Obligation and an Accreting Obligation shall constitute Deliverable Obligations that are Not Contingent if such Deliverable Obligation otherwise meets the requirements of the preceding sentence so long as, in the case of a Convertible Obligation or an Exchangeable Obligation, the right (A) to convert or exchange such obligation or (B) to require the issuer to purchase or redeem such obligation (if the issuer has exercised the right to pay the purchase or redemption price, in whole or in part, in Equity Securities) has not been exercised (or such exercise has been effectively rescinded) on or before the Delivery Date.

If a Reference Obligation is a Convertible Obligation or an Exchangeable Obligation, then such Reference Obligation may be included as a Deliverable Obligation only if the rights referred to in clauses (A) and (B) of paragraph (i) above have not been exercised (or such exercise has been effectively rescinded) on or before the Delivery Date.

- (ii) "Assignable Loan" means a Loan that is capable of being assigned or novated to, at a minimum, commercial banks or financial institutions (irrespective of their jurisdiction of organisation) that are not then a lender or a member of the relevant lending syndicate, without the consent of the relevant Reference Entity or the guarantor, if any, of such Loan (or the consent of the applicable borrower if a Reference Entity is guaranteeing such Loan) or any agent;
- (iii) "Consent Required Loan" means a Loan that is capable of being assigned or novated with the consent of the relevant Reference Entity or the guarantor, if any, of such Loan (or the consent of the relevant borrower if a Reference Entity is guaranteeing such loan) or any agent;
- (iv) "Direct Loan Participation" means a Loan in respect of which, pursuant to a participation agreement, the Issuer is capable of creating, or procuring the creation of, a contractual right in favour of each Noteholder that provides each Noteholder with recourse to the participation seller for a specified share in any payments due under the relevant Loan which are received by such participation seller, any such agreement to be entered into between each Noteholder and either (A) the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may be, (to the extent that the Issuer or the Guarantor, as applicable, is then a lender or a member of the relevant lending syndicate), or (B) a Qualifying Participation Seller (if any) (to the extent such Qualifying Participation Seller is then a lender or a member of the relevant lending syndicate);

- (v) "Transferable" means an obligation that is transferable to institutional investors without any contractual, statutory or regulatory restriction, provided that none of the following shall be considered contractual, statutory or regulatory restrictions:
 - (a) contractual, statutory or regulatory restrictions that provide for eligibility for resale pursuant to Rule 144A or Regulation S promulgated under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (and any contractual, statutory or regulatory restrictions promulgated under the laws of any jurisdiction having a similar effect in relation to the eligibility for resale of an obligation); or
 - restrictions on permitted investments such as statutory or regulatory investment restrictions on insurance companies and pension funds;
- (vi) "Maximum Maturity" means an obligation that has a remaining maturity from the Settlement Date of not greater than the period specified in the applicable Final Terms;
- (vii) "Accelerated or Matured" means an obligation under which the total amount owed, whether at maturity, by reason of acceleration, upon termination or otherwise (other than amounts in respect of default interest, indemnities, tax gross-ups and other similar amounts), is, or on or prior to the Delivery Date will be, due and payable in full in accordance with the terms of such obligation, or would have been but for, and without regard to, any limitation imposed under any applicable insolvency laws; and
- (viii) "Not Bearer" means any obligation that is not a bearer instrument unless interests with respect to such bearer instrument are cleared via Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg or any other internationally recognised clearing system

(B) Interpretation of Provisions

- (1) If the Obligation Characteristic "Listed" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Final Terms shall be construed as though Listed had been specified as an Obligation Characteristic only with respect to Bonds and shall only be relevant if Bonds are covered by the selected Obligation Category;
- if (i) either of the Deliverable Obligation Characteristics "Listed" or "Not Bearer" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Final Terms shall be construed as though such Deliverable Obligation Characteristic had been specified as a Deliverable Obligation Characteristic only with respect to Bonds and shall only be relevant if Bonds are covered by the selected Deliverable Obligation Category; (ii) the Deliverable Obligation Characteristic "Transferable" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Final Terms shall be construed as though such Deliverable Obligation Characteristic had been specified as a Deliverable Obligation Characteristic only with respect to Deliverable Obligations that are not Loans (and shall only be relevant to the extent that obligations other than Loans are covered by the selected Deliverable Obligation Category); or (iii) any of the Deliverable Obligation Characteristics "Assignable Loan", "Consent Required Loan" or "Direct Loan Participation" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Final Terms shall be construed as though such Deliverable Obligation Characteristic had been specified as a Deliverable Obligation Characteristic only with respect to Loans and shall only be relevant if Loans are covered by the selected Deliverable Obligation Category;

- (3) if any of Payment, Borrowed Money, Loan or Bond or Loan is specified as the Deliverable Obligation Category and more than one of Assignable Loan, Consent Required Loan and Direct Loan Participation are specified as Deliverable Obligation Characteristics, the Deliverable Obligations may include any Loan that satisfies any one of such Deliverable Obligation Characteristics specified and need not satisfy all such Deliverable Obligation Characteristics; and
- (4) in the event that an Obligation or a Deliverable Obligation is a Qualifying Guarantee, the following will apply:
 - (i) For purposes of the application of the Obligation Category or the Deliverable Obligation Category, the Qualifying Guarantee shall be deemed to be described by the same category or categories as those that describe the Underlying Obligation.
 - (ii) For purposes of the application of the Obligation Characteristics or the Deliverable Obligation Characteristics, both the Qualifying Guarantee and the Underlying Obligation must satisfy on the relevant date each of the applicable Obligation Characteristics or the Deliverable Obligation Characteristics, if any, specified in the applicable Final Terms from the following list: Specified Currency, Not Sovereign Lender, Not Domestic Currency and Not Domestic Law. For these purposes, unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms, (A) the lawful currency of any of Canada, Japan, Switzerland, the United Kingdom or the United States of America or the euro shall not be a Domestic Currency and (B) the laws of England and the laws of the State of New York shall not be a Domestic Law
 - (iii) For purposes of the application of the Obligation Characteristics or the Deliverable Obligation Characteristics, only the Qualifying Guarantee must satisfy on the relevant date the Obligation Characteristic or the Deliverable Obligation Characteristic of Not Subordinated, if specified in the applicable Final Terms.
 - (iv) For purposes of the application of the Obligation Characteristics or the Deliverable Obligation Characteristics, only the Underlying Obligation must satisfy on the relevant date each of the applicable Obligation Characteristics or the Deliverable Obligation Characteristics, if any, specified in the applicable Final Terms from the following list: Listed, Not Contingent, Not Domestic Issuance, Assignable Loan, Consent Required Loan, Direct Loan Participation, Transferable, Maximum Maturity, Accelerated or Matured and Not Bearer.
 - (v) For purposes of the application of the Obligation Characteristics of the Deliverable Obligation Characteristics to an Underlying Obligation, references to the Reference Entity shall be deemed to refer to the Underlying Obligor.
 - (vi) The terms "Outstanding Principal Balance" and "Due and Payable Amount" (as they are used in these Terms and Conditions, including without limitation, the definitions of "Cash Settlement Amount" and "Quotation Amount" in Condition 6(h)), when used in connection with Qualifying Guarantees are to be interpreted to be the then "Outstanding Principal Balance" or "Due and Payable Amount", as applicable, of the Underlying Obligation which is supported by a Qualifying Guarantee.

For the avoidance of doubt the provisions of this paragraph (B) apply in respect of the definitions of Obligation and Deliverable Obligation as the context admits

"Delivery Date" means, with respect to a Deliverable Obligation, the date such Deliverable Obligation is Delivered.

"Delivery Expenses" means all costs, taxes, duties and/or expenses, including stamp duty, stamp duty reserve tax and/or other costs, duties or taxes arising from the Delivery of the Asset Amount

"Domestic Currency" means the currency specified as such in the applicable Final Terms and any successor currency. If no currency is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Domestic Currency shall be the lawful currency and any successor currency of (a) the relevant Reference Entity, if the Reference Entity is a Sovereign, or (b) the jurisdiction in which the relevant Reference Entity is organised, if the Reference Entity is not a Sovereign. In no event shall Domestic Currency include any successor currency if such successor currency is the lawful currency of any of Canada, Japan, Switzerland, the United Kingdom or the United States of America or the euro (or any successor currency to any such currency).

"Downstream Affiliate" means an entity, at the date of the event giving rise to the Credit Event which is the subject of the Credit Event Notice, the Delivery Date or the time of identification of a Substitute Reference Obligation (as applicable), whose outstanding Voting Shares are more than 50 per cent owned, directly or indirectly, by the Reference Entity "Voting Shares" shall mean those shares or other interests that have the power to elect the board of directors or similar governing body of an entity

"Due and Payable Amount" means, subject as provided in sub-paragraph (4)(vi) of paragraph (B) (Interpretation of Provisions) in the definition of Deliverable Obligation, the amount that is due and payable under (and in accordance with the terms of) a Deliverable Obligation on the Delivery Date, whether by reason of acceleration, maturity, termination or otherwise (excluding sums in respect of default interest, indemnities, tax gross-ups and other similar amounts)

"Eligible Transferee" means each of the following:

- (a) (i) any bank or other financial institution;
 - (ii) an insurance or reinsurance company;
 - (iii) a mutual fund, unit trust or similar collective investment vehicle (other than an entity specified in sub paragraph (c)(i) below); and
 - (iv) a registered or licensed broker or dealer (other than a natural person or proprietorship),

provided, however, in each case that such entity has total assets or at least U.S.\$500 million;

- (b) an Affiliate of an entity specified in the preceding sub-paragraph (a);
- (c) each of a corporation, partnership, proprietorship, organisation, trust or other entity:
 - (ii) that is an investment vehicle (including, without limitation, any hedge fund, issuer of collateralised debt obligations, commercial paper conduit or other special purpose vehicle) that (1) has total assets of at least U.S.\$100 million or (2) is one of a group of investment vehicles under common control or management having, in the aggregate, total assets of at least U.S.\$100 million; or
 - (ii) that has total assets of at least U.S.\$500 million; or
 - (iii) the obligations of which under an agreement, contract or transaction are guaranteed or otherwise supported by a letter of credit or keepwell, support, or other agreement by an entity described in sub-paragraphs (a), (b), (c)(ii) or (d); and
- (d) a Sovereign, Sovereign Agency or Supranational Organisation;

All references in this definition to U.S.\$ include equivalent amounts in other currencies

"Equity Securities" means:

- (a) in the case of a Convertible Obligation, equity securities (including options and warrants) of the issuer of such obligation or depositary receipts representing equity securities of the issuer of such obligation together with any other property distributed to or made available to holders of those equity securities from time to time; and
- (b) in the case of an Exchangeable Obligation, equity securities (including options and warrants) of a person other than the issuer of such obligation or depositary receipts representing those equity securities of a person other than the issuer of such obligation together with any other property distributed to or made available to holders of those equity securities from time to time

"Exchangeable Obligation" means any obligation that is exchangeable, in whole or in part, for Equity Securities solely at the option of holders of such obligation or a trustee or similar agent acting for the benefit only of holders of such obligation (or the cash equivalent thereof, whether the cash settlement option is that of the issuer or of (or for the benefit of) the holders of such obligation).

"Excluded Deliverable Obligation" means any obligation of a Reference Entity specified as such or of a type described in the applicable Final Terms

"Excluded Obligation" means any obligation of a Reference Entity specified as such or of a type described in the applicable Final Terms.

"Failure to Pay" means after the expiration of any applicable Grace Period (after the satisfaction of any conditions precedent to the commencement of such Grace Period), the failure by a Reference Entity to make, when and where due, any payments in an aggregate amount of not less than the Payment Requirement under one or more Obligations in accordance with the terms of such Obligations at the time of such failure.

"Final Price" means the price of the Reference Obligation, expressed as a percentage, determined in accordance with the Valuation Method specified in the applicable Final Terms or, where applicable, Condition 6(k) The Calculation Agent shall as soon as practicable after obtaining all Quotations for a Valuation Date, make available for inspection by Holders at the specified office of the Agent and, for so long as the Holders are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange at the office of the Paying Agent in Luxembourg (i) each such Quotation that it receives in connection with the calculation of the Final Price and (ii) a written computation showing its calculation of the Final Price

"Full Quotation" means, in accordance with the Quotation Method each firm quotation obtained from a Quotation Dealer at the Valuation Time, to the extent reasonably practicable, for an amount of the Reference Obligation with an Outstanding Principal Balance equal to the Quotation Amount

"Fully Transferable Obligation" means a Deliverable Obligation that is either Transferable, in the case of Bonds, or capable of being assigned or novated to all Eligible Transferees without the consent of any person being required in the case of any Deliverable Obligation other than Bonds. Any requirement that notification of novation, assignment or transfer of a Deliverable Obligation be provided to a trustee, fiscal agent, administrative agent, clearing agent or paying agent for a Deliverable Obligation shall not be considered as a requirement for consent for purposes of this definition of "Fully Transferable Obligation". For purposes of determining whether a Deliverable Obligation satisfies the requirements of this definition of "Fully Transferable Obligation", such determination shall be made as of the Delivery Date for the relevant Deliverable Obligation, taking into account only the terms of the Deliverable Obligation and any related transfer or consent documents which have been obtained by the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may be

"Governmental Authority" means any de facto or de jure government (or any agency, instrumentality, ministry or department thereof), court, tribunal, administrative or other governmental authority or any other entity (private or public) charged with the regulation of the financial markets (including the central bank) of a Reference Entity or of the jurisdiction of organisation of a Reference Entity

"Grace Period" means:

- (a) subject to paragraphs (b) and (c) below, the applicable grace period with respect to payments under the relevant Obligation under the terms of such Obligation in effect as of the later of the Trade Date and the date as of which such Obligation is issued or incurred;
- (b) if Grace Period Extension is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, a Potential Failure to Pay has occurred on or prior to the Scheduled Termination Date and the applicable grace period cannot, by its terms, expire on or prior to the Scheduled Termination Date, the Grace Period shall be deemed to be the lesser of such grace period and the period specified as such in the applicable Final Terms or, if no period is specified in the applicable Final Terms, thirty calendar days; and
- (c) if, at the later of the Trade Date and the date as of which an Obligation is issued or incurred, no grace period with respect to payments or a grace period with respect to payments of less than three Grace Period Business Days is applicable under the terms of such Obligation, a Grace Period of three Grace Period Business Days shall be deemed to apply to such Obligation; provided that, unless Grace Period Extension is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, such deemed Grace Period shall expire no later than the Scheduled Termination Date.

"Grace Period Business Day" means a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets are generally open to settle payments in the place or places and on the days specified for that purpose in the relevant Obligation and if a place or places are not so specified, in the jurisdiction of the Obligation Currency

"Grace Period Extension Date" means, if:

- (a) Grace Period Extension is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms; and
- (b) a Potential Failure to Pay occurs on or prior to the Scheduled Termination Date,

the day falling the number of days in the Grace Period after the date of such Potential Failure to pay

"Hedge Disruption Event" means in the opinion of the Calculation Agent any event as a result of which the Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates has not received the relevant Deliverable Obligations under the terms of any transaction entered into by the Issuer and/or any such Affiliate to hedge the obligations or position of the Issuer in respect of the Instruments.

"Hedge Disruption Obligation" means a Deliverable Obligation included in the Asset Amount which, on the Settlement Date for such Deliverable Obligation, the Calculation Agent determines cannot be Delivered as a result of a Hedge Disruption Event.

"Intervening Period" means such period of time as any person other than the relevant Noteholder shall continue to be registered as the legal owner of any securities or other obligations comprising the Asset Amount

"Market Value" means, with respect to a Reference Obligation on a Valuation Date:

- (a) if more than three Full Quotations are obtained, the arithmetic mean of such Full Quotations, disregarding the Full Quotations having the highest and lowest values (and, if more than one such Full Quotations have the same highest value or lowest value, then one of such highest or lowest Full Quotations shall be disregarded);
- (b) if exactly three Full Quotations are obtained, the Full Quotation remaining after disregarding the highest and lowest Full Quotations (and, if more than one such Full Quotations have the same highest value or lowest value, then one of such highest or lowest Full Quotations shall be disregarded);
- (c) if exactly two Full Quotations are obtained, the arithmetic mean of such Full Quotations;
- (d) if fewer than two Full Quotations and a Weighted Average Quotation is obtained, such Weighted Average Quotation;
- (e) if fewer than two Full Quotations are obtained and no Weighted Average Quotation is obtained, subject as provided in the definition of Quotation, an amount as determined by the Calculation

- Agent on the next Business Day on which two or more Full Quotations or a Weighted Average Ouotation is obtained; and
- (f) if two or more Full Quotations or a Weighted Average Quotation are not obtained on or prior to the tenth Business Day following the applicable Valuation Date the Market Value shall be any Full Quotation obtained from a Quotation Dealer at the Valuation Time on such tenth Business Day, or if no Full Quotation is obtained, the weighted average of any firm quotations for the Reference Obligation obtained from Quotation Dealers at the Valuation Time on such tenth Business Day with respect to the aggregate portion of the Quotation Amount for which such quotations were obtained and a quotation deemed to be zero for the balance of the Quotation Amount for which firm quotations were not obtained on such day

"Merger Event" means that at any time during the period from (and including) the Trade Date to (but excluding) the Scheduled Termination Date the Guarantor or a Reference Entity consolidates or amalgamates with, or merges into, or transfers all or substantially all of its assets to, a Reference Entity or the Guarantor, as applicable, or the Guarantor and a Reference Entity become Affiliates.

"Minimum Quotation Amount" means the amount specified as such in the applicable Final Terms (or its equivalent in the relevant Obligation Currency) or, if no amount is so specified, the lower of (a) USD1,000,000 (or its equivalent in the relevant Obligation Currency) and (b) the Quotation Amount.

"Modified Eligible Transferee" means any bank, financial institution or other entity which is regularly engaged in an established for the purpose of making, purchasing or investing in loans, securities and other financial assets

"Modified Restructuring Maturity Limitation Date" means, with respect to a Deliverable Obligation, the date that is the later of (x) the Scheduled Maturity Date and (y) 60 months following the Restructuring Date in the case of a Restructured Bond or Loan, or 30 months following the Restructuring Date in the case of all other Deliverable Obligations.

"Notice Delivery Period" means the period from and including the Trade Date to and including (a) the Scheduled Termination Date; (b) the Grace Period Extension Date if (i) "Grace Period Extension" is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, (ii) the Credit Event that is the subject of the Credit Event Notice is a Failure to Pay that occurs after the Scheduled Termination Date, and (iii) the Potential Failure to Pay with respect to such Failure to Pay occurs on or prior to the Scheduled Termination Date; (c) the Repudiation/Moratorium Evaluation Date if (i) the Credit Event that is the subject of the Credit Event Notice is a Repudiation/Moratorium that occurs after the Scheduled Termination Date, (ii) the Potential Repudiation/Moratorium with respect to such Repudiation/Moratorium occurs on or prior to the Scheduled Termination Date and (iii) the Repudiation/Moratorium Extension Condition is satisfied; or (d) the Postponed Maturity Date if the Maturity Date is postponed pursuant to Condition 6(f).

"Notice of Publicly Available Information" means an irrevocable notice from the Calculation Agent (which may be by telephone) to the Issuer (which the Calculation Agent has the right but not the obligation to deliver) that cites Publicly Available Information confirming the occurrence of the Credit Event or Potential Repudiation/Moratorium, as applicable, described in the Credit Event Notice or Repudiation/Moratorium Extension Notice In relation to a Repudiation/Moratorium Credit Event, the Notice of Publicly Available Information must cite Publicly Available Information confirming the occurrence of both clauses (i) and (ii) of the definition of Repudiation/Moratorium. The notice given must contain a copy or description in reasonable detail, of the relevant Publicly Available Information If Notice of Publicly Available Information is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms and a Credit Event Notice or Repudiation/Moratorium Extension Notice, as applicable, contains Publicly Available Information, such Credit Event Notice or Repudiation/Moratorium Extension Notice will also be deemed to be a Notice of Publicly Available Information. A Notice of Publicly Available Information shall be subject to the requirements regarding notices in Condition 6(m)

"Obligation" means:

- (a) any obligation of a Reference Entity (either directly, as a provider of a Qualifying Affiliate Guarantee or, if All Guarantees is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, as provider of any Qualifying Guarantee) determined pursuant to the method described in "Method for Determining Obligations" below (but excluding any Excluded Obligation);
- (b) each Reference Obligation specified in the applicable Final Terms, unless specified as an Excluded Obligation; and
- (c) any Additional Obligation of a Reference Entity specified as such in the applicable Final Terms

Method for Determining Obligations. For the purposes of paragraph (a) of this definition of "Obligation", the term "Obligation" may be defined as each obligation of each Reference Entity described by the Obligation Category specified in the applicable Final Terms, and having each of the Obligation Characteristics (if any) specified in the applicable Final Terms, in each case, as of the date of the event which constitutes the Credit Event which is the subject of the Credit Event Notice. The following terms shall have the following meanings:

- (A) "Obligation Category" means Payment, Borrowed Money, Reference Obligations Only, Bond, Loan, or Bond or Loan, only one of which shall be specified in the applicable Final Terms, where:
 - (1) "Payment" means any obligation (whether present or future, contingent or otherwise) for the payment or repayment of money, including, without limitation, Borrowed Money;
 - (2) "Borrowed Money" means any obligation (excluding an obligation under a revolving credit arrangement for which there are no outstanding unpaid drawings in respect of principal) for the payment or repayment of borrowed money (which term shall include, without limitation, deposits and reimbursement obligations arising from drawings pursuant to letters of credit);
 - (3) "Reference Obligations Only" means any obligation that is a Reference Obligation and no Obligation Characteristics shall be applicable to Reference Obligations Only;
 - (4) "Bond" means any obligation of a type included in the "Borrowed Money" Obligation Category that is in the form of, or represented by, a bond, note (other than notes delivered pursuant to Loans), certificated debt security or other debt security and shall not include any other type of Borrowed Money;
 - (5) "Loan" means any obligation of a type included in the "Borrowed Money" Obligation Category that is documented by a term loan agreement, revolving loan agreement or other similar credit agreement and shall not include any other type of Borrowed Money; and
 - (6) "Bond or Loan" means any obligation that is either a Bond or a Loan.
- (B) "Obligation Characteristics" means any one or more of Not Subordinated, Specified Currency, Not Sovereign Lender, Not Domestic Currency, Not Domestic Law, Listed and Not Domestic Issuance specified in the applicable Final Terms, where:
 - (1) (a) "Not Subordinated" means an obligation that is not Subordinated to the most senior Reference Obligation in priority of payment or, if no Reference Obligation is specified in the applicable Final Terms, any unsubordinated Borrowed Money obligation of the Reference Entity For purposes of determining whether an obligation satisfies the "Not Subordinated" Obligation Characteristic or Deliverable Obligation Characteristic, the ranking in priority of payment of each Reference Obligation shall be determined as of the later of (1) the Trade Date specified in the applicable Final Terms and

- (2) the date on which such Reference Obligation was issued or incurred and shall not reflect any change to such ranking in priority of payment after such later date;
- (b) "Subordination" means, with respect to an obligation (the "Subordinated Obligation") and another obligation of the Reference Entity to which such obligation is being compared (the "Senior Obligation"), a contractual, trust or other similar arrangement providing that (i) upon the liquidation, dissolution, reorganisation or winding up of the Reference Entity, claims of the holders of the Senior Obligation will be satisfied prior to the claims of the holders of the Subordinated Obligation or (ii) the holders of the Subordinated Obligation will not be entitled to receive or retain payments in respect of their claims against the Reference Entity at any time that the Reference Entity is in payment arrears or is otherwise in default under the Senior Obligation. "Subordinated" will be construed accordingly. For purposes of determining whether Subordination exists or whether an obligation is Subordinated with respect to another obligation to which it is being compared, the existence of preferred creditors arising by operation of law or of collateral, credit support or other credit enhancement arrangements shall not be taken into account, except that notwithstanding the foregoing, priorities arising by operation of law shall be taken into account where the Reference Entity is a Sovereign;
- (2) "Specified Currency" means an obligation that is payable in the currency or currencies specified as such in the applicable Final Terms (or, if Specified Currency is specified in the applicable Final Terms and no currency is so specified, any of the lawful currencies of Canada, Japan, Switzerland, the United Kingdom and the United States of America and the euro and any successor currency to any of the aforementioned currencies, which currencies shall be referred to collectively in the applicable Final Terms as the "Standard Specified Currencies");
- (3) "Not Sovereign Lender" means any obligation that is not primarily owed to a Sovereign or Supranational Organisation, including, without limitation, obligations generally referred to as "Paris Club debt";
- (4) "Not Domestic Currency" means any obligation that is payable in any currency other than the Domestic Currency;
- (5) "Not Domestic Law" means any obligation that is not governed by the laws of (a) the relevant Reference Entity, if such Reference Entity is a Sovereign, or (b) the jurisdiction of organisation of the relevant Reference Entity, if such Reference Entity is not a Sovereign;
- (6) "Listed" means an obligation that is quoted, listed or ordinarily purchased and sold on an exchange; and
- (7) "Not Domestic Issuance" means any obligation other than an obligation that was, at the time the relevant obligation was issued (or reissued, as the case may be) or incurred, intended to be offered for sale primarily in the domestic market of the relevant Reference Entity. Any obligation that is registered or qualified for sale outside the domestic market of the relevant Reference Entity (regardless of whether such obligation is also registered or qualified for sale within the domestic market of the relevant Reference Entity) shall be deemed not to be intended for sale primarily in the domestic market of the Reference Entity

"Obligation Acceleration" means one or more Obligations in an aggregate amount of not less than the Default Requirement have become due and payable before they would otherwise have been due and payable as a result of, or on the basis of, the occurrence of a default, event or default or other similar condition or event (however described), other than a failure to make any required payment, in respect of a Reference Entity under one or more Obligations

"Obligation Currency" means the currency or currencies in which the Obligation is denominated

"Obligation Default" means one or more Obligations in an aggregate amount of not less than the Default Requirement have become capable of being declared due and payable before they would otherwise have been due and payable as a result of, or on the basis of, the occurrence of a default, event of default, or other similar condition or event (however described), other than a failure to make any required payment, in respect of a Reference Entity under one or more Obligations

"Outstanding Principal Balance" means, subject as provided in sub-paragraph (4)(vi) of paragraph (B) (Interpretation of Provisions) in the definition of Deliverable Obligation:

- (a) with respect to any Accreting Obligation, the Accreted Amount thereof; and
- (b) with respect to any other obligation, the outstanding principal balance of such obligation,

Provided That with respect to any Exchangeable Obligation that is not an Accreting Obligation, "Outstanding Principal Balance" shall exclude any amount that may be payable under the terms of such obligation in respect of the value of the Equity Securities for which such obligation is exchangeable.

"Payment Requirement" means the amount specified as such in the applicable Final Terms or its equivalent in the relevant Obligation Currency or, if a Payment Requirement is not specified in the applicable Final Terms, USD1,000,000, or its equivalent as calculated by the Calculation Agent in the relevant Obligation Currency, in either case, as of the occurrence of the relevant Failure to Pay or Potential Failure to Pay, as applicable

"Permitted Currency" means (i) the legal tender of any Group of 7 country (or any country that becomes a member of the Group of 7 if such Group of 7 expands its membership), or (ii) the legal tender of any country which, as of the date of such change, is a member of the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development and has a local currency long term debt rating of either AAA or higher assigned to it by Standard & Poor's, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. or any successor to the rating business thereof, Aaa or higher assigned to it by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. or any successor to the rating business thereof or AAA or higher assigned to it by Fitch Ratings or any successor to the rating business thereof.

"Physical Settlement Period" means the number of Business Days specified as such in the applicable Final Terms or, if a number of Business Days is not so specified, then, with respect to a Deliverable Obligation comprising the Asset Amount, the longest number of Business Days for settlement in accordance with then current market practice of such Deliverable Obligation, as determined by the Calculation Agent.

"Potential Failure to Pay" means the failure by a Reference Entity to make, when and where due, any payments in an aggregate amount of not less than the Payment Requirement under one or more Obligations, without regard to any grace period or any conditions precedent to the commencement of any grace period applicable to such Obligations, in accordance with the terms of such Obligations at the time of such failure

"Potential Repudiation/Moratorium" means the occurrence of an event described in paragraph (i) of the definition of Repudiation/Moratorium

"Publicly Available Information" means:

- (a) information that reasonably confirms any of the facts relevant to the determination that the Credit Event or a Potential Repudiation/Moratorium, as applicable, described in a Credit Event Notice or Repudiation/Moratorium Extension Notice has occurred and which:
 - (i) has been published in or not less than the Specified Number of Public Sources, regardless of whether the reader or user thereof pays a fee to obtain such information provided that, if either the Calculation Agent or the Issuer, the Guarantor or any of their respective Affiliates is cited as the sole source of such information, then such information shall not be deemed to be Publicly Available Information unless either the Calculation Agent or the Issuer, the Guarantor or any of their Affiliates is acting in its capacity as trustee, fiscal agent, administrative agent, clearing agent or paying agent for an Obligation;

- (ii) is information received from or published by (A) a Reference Entity or, as the case may be, a Sovereign Agency in respect of a Reference Entity which is a Sovereign or (B) a trustee, fiscal agent, administrative agent, clearing agent or paying agent for an Obligation; or
- (iii) is information contained in any petition or filing instituting a proceeding described in paragraph (d) of the definition of Bankruptcy against or by a Reference Entity; or
- (iv) is information contained in any order, decree, notice or filing, however described, of or filed with a court, tribunal, exchange, regulatory authority or similar administrative, regulatory or judicial body
- (b) In the event that the Calculation Agent is (i) the sole source of information in its capacity as trustee, fiscal agent, administrative agent, clearing agent or paying agent for an Obligation and (ii) a holder of the Obligation with respect to which a Credit Event has occurred, the Calculation Agent shall be required to deliver to the Issuer a certificate signed by a Managing Director (or other substantially equivalent title) of the Calculation Agent, which shall certify the occurrence of a Credit Event with respect to a Reference Entity
- (c) In relation to any information of the type described in paragraphs (a) (ii), (iii) and (iv) above, the Calculation Agent may assume that such information has been disclosed to it without violating any law, agreement or understanding regarding the confidentiality of such information and that the entity disclosing such information has not taken any action or entered into any agreement or understanding with the Reference Entity or any Affiliate of the Reference Entity that would be breached by, or would prevent, the disclosure of such information to third parties
- (d) Publicly Available Information need not state:
 - (i) in relation to the definition of "Downstream Affiliate", the percentage of Voting Shares owned, directly or indirectly, by the Reference Entity; and
 - (ii) that such occurrence:
 - (A) has met the Payment Requirement or Default Requirement;
 - (B) is the result of exceeding any applicable Grace Period; or
 - (C) has met the subjective criteria specified in certain Credit Events

"Public Source" means each source of Publicly Available Information specified as such in the applicable Final Terms (or if a source is not specified in the applicable Final Terms, each of Bloomberg Service, Dow Jones Telerate Service, Reuter Monitor Money Rates Services, Dow Jones News Wire, Wall Street Journal, New York Times, Nihon Keizai Shinbun, Asahi Shinbun, Yomiuri Shinbun, Financial Times, La Tribune, Les Echos and The Australian Financial Review (and successor publications), the main source(s) of business news in the country in which the Reference Entity is organised and any other internationally recognised published or electronically displayed news sources)

"Qualifying Affiliate Guarantee" means a Qualifying Guarantee provided by a Reference Entity in respect of an Underlying Obligation of a Downstream Affiliate of that Reference Entity

"Qualifying Guarantee" means an arrangement evidenced by a written instrument pursuant to which a Reference Entity irrevocably agrees (by guarantee of payment or equivalent legal arrangement) to pay all amounts due under an obligation (the "Underlying Obligation") for which another party is the obligor (the "Underlying Obligor") and that is not at the time of the Credit Event Subordinated to any unsubordinated Borrowed Money obligation of the Underlying Obligor (with references in the definition of Subordination to the Reference Entity deemed to refer to the Underlying Obligor). Qualifying Guarantees shall exclude any arrangement structured as a surety bond, financial guarantee insurance policy, letter of credit or equivalent legal arrangement. The benefit of a Qualifying Guarantee must be capable of being Delivered together with the Delivery of the Underlying Obligation.

"Qualifying Participation Seller" means any participation seller that meets the requirements specified in the applicable Final Terms. If no such requirements are specified, there shall be no Qualifying Participation Seller

"Quotation" means each Full Quotation and the Weighted Average Quotation obtained and expressed as a percentage with respect to a Valuation Date in the manner that follows:

- (a) The Calculation Agent shall attempt to obtain Full Quotations with respect to each Valuation Date from five or more Quotation Dealers. If the Calculation Agent is unable to obtain two or more such Full Quotations on the same Business Day within three Business Days of a Valuation Date, then on the next following Business Day (and, if necessary, on each Business Day thereafter until the tenth Business Day following the relevant Valuation Date) the Calculation Agent shall attempt to obtain Full Quotations from five or more Quotation Dealers and, if two or more Full Quotations are not available, a Weighted Average Quotation. If the Calculation Agent is unable to obtain two or more Full Quotations or a Weighted Average Quotation on the same Business Day on or prior to the tenth Business Day following the applicable Valuation Date the Quotations shall be deemed to be any Full Quotation obtained from a Quotation Dealer at the Valuation Time on such tenth Business Day, or if no Full Quotation is obtained, the weighted average of any firm quotations for the Reference Obligation obtained from Quotation Dealers at the Valuation Time on such tenth Business Day with respect to the aggregate portion of the Quotation Amount for which such quotations were obtained and a quotation deemed to be zero for the balance of the Quotation Amount for which firm quotations were not obtained on such day.
- (b) (i) If "Include Accrued Interest" is specified in the applicable Final Terms in respect of Quotations, such Quotations shall include accrued but unpaid interest;
 - (ii) if "Exclude Accrued Interest" is specified in the applicable Final Terms in respect of Quotations, such Quotations shall not include accrued but unpaid interest; and
 - (iii) if neither "Include Accrued Interest" nor "Exclude Accrued Interest" is specified in the applicable Final Terms in respect of Quotations, the Calculation Agent shall determine based on then current market practice in the market of the Reference Obligation, whether such Quotations shall include or exclude accrued but unpaid interest. All Quotations shall be obtained in accordance with this specification or determination
- (c) If any Quotation obtained with respect to an Accreting Obligation is expressed as a percentage of the amount payable in respect of such obligation at maturity, such Quotation will instead be expressed as a percentage of the Outstanding Principal Balance for the purposes of determining the Final Price

"Quotation Amount" means the amount specified as such in the applicable Final Terms (which may be specified by reference to an amount in a currency or by reference to a Representative Amount) or, if no amount is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Aggregate Nominal Amount (or, in either case, its equivalent in the relevant Obligation Currency converted by the Calculation Agent in a commercially reasonable manner by reference to exchange rates in effect at the time that the relevant Quotation is being obtained).

"Quotation Dealer" means a dealer in obligations of the type of Obligation(s) for which Quotations are to be obtained including each Quotation Dealer specified in the applicable Final Terms. If no Quotation Dealers are specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Calculation Agent shall select the Quotation Dealers in its sole and absolute discretion. Upon a Quotation Dealer no longer being in existence (with no successors), or not being an active dealer in the obligations of the type for which Quotations are to be obtained, the Calculation Agent may substitute any other Quotation Dealer(s) for such Quotation Dealer(s).

- "Quotation Method" means the applicable Quotation Method specified in the applicable Final Terms by reference to one of the following terms:
- (a) "Bid" means that only bid quotations shall be requested from Quotation Dealers;
- (b) "Offer" means that only offer quotations shall be requested from Quotation Dealers; or
- (c) "Mid-market" means that bid and offer quotations shall be requested from Quotation Dealers and shall be averaged for purposes of determining a relevant Quotation Dealer's quotation.

If a Quotation Method is not specified in the applicable Final Terms, Bid shall apply

"Reference Entity" means the entity or entities specified as such in the applicable Final Terms Any Successor to a Reference Entity identified pursuant to the definition of "Successor" in this Condition 6(j) shall be the Reference Entity for the purposes of the relevant Series.

"Reference Obligation" means each obligation specified or of a type described as such in the applicable Final Terms (if any are so specified or described) and any Substitute Reference Obligation.

"Relevant Obligations" means the Obligations constituting Bonds and Loans of the Reference Entity outstanding immediately prior to the effective date of the Succession Event, excluding any debt obligations outstanding between the Reference Entity and any of its Affiliates, as determined by the Calculation Agent. The Calculation Agent will determine the entity which succeeds to such Relevant Obligations on the basis of the Best Available Information If the date on which the Best Available Information becomes available or is filed precedes the legally effective date of the relevant Succession Event, any assumptions as to the allocation of obligations between or among entities contained in the Best Available Information will be deemed to have been fulfilled as of the legally effective date of the Succession Event, whether or not this is in fact the case.

"Representative Amount" means an amount that is representative for a single transaction in the relevant market and at the relevant time, such amount to be determined by the Calculation Agent

"Repudiation/Moratorium" means the occurrence of both of the following events:

- (i) an authorised officer of a Reference Entity or a Governmental Authority:
 - (x) disaffirms, disclaims, repudiates or rejects, in whole or in part, or challenges the validity of, one or more Obligations in an aggregate amount of not less than the Default Requirement; or
 - (y) declares or imposes a moratorium, standstill, roll-over or deferral, whether de facto or de jure, with respect to one or more Obligations in an aggregate amount of not less than the Default Requirement; and
- (ii) a Failure to Pay, determined without regard to the Payment Requirement, or a Restructuring, determined without regard to the Default Requirement, with respect to any such Obligation occurs on or prior to the Repudiation/Moratorium Evaluation Date.

"Repudiation/Moratorium Evaluation Date" means, if a Potential Repudiation/Moratorium occurs on or prior to the Scheduled Maturity Date, (i) if the Obligations to which such Potential Repudiation/ Moratorium relates include Bonds, the date that is the later of (A) the date that is 60 days after the date of such Potential Repudiation/Moratorium and (B) the first payment date under any such Bond after the date of such Potential Repudiation/Moratorium (or, if later, the expiration date of any applicable Grace Period in respect of such payment date) and (ii) if the Obligations to which such Potential Repudiation/ Moratorium relates do not include Bonds, the date that is 60 days after the date of such Potential Repudiation/Moratorium.

"Repudiation/Moratorium Extension Condition" means the delivery of a Repudiation/Moratorium Extension Notice and, if specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, Notice of Publicly

Available Information by the Calculation Agent to the Issuer that is effective during the period from and including the Trade Date to and including the Scheduled Termination Date or, if Condition 6(f)(y) applies, the Postponed Maturity Date

"Repudiation/Moratorium Extension Notice" means an irrevocable notice (which may be by telephone) from the Calculation Agent to the Issuer (which the Calculation Agent has the right but not the obligation to deliver) that describes a Potential Repudiation/Moratorium that occurred on or after the Trade Date and on or prior to the Scheduled Termination Date. A Repudiation/Moratorium Extension Notice must contain a description in reasonable detail of the facts relevant to the determination that a Potential Repudiation/Moratorium has occurred and indicate the date of the occurrence. The Potential Repudiation/Moratorium that is the subject of the Repudiation/Moratorium Extension Notice need not be continuing on the date the Repudiation/Moratorium Extension Notice is effective.

"Restructuring" means, with respect to one or more Obligations and in relation to an aggregate amount of not less than the Default Requirement, any one or more of the following events occurs in a form that binds all holders of such Obligation, is agreed between a Reference Entity or a Governmental Authority and a sufficient number of holders of the Obligation to bind all the holders of such Obligation or is announced (or otherwise decreed) by a Reference Entity or a Governmental Authority in a form that binds all holders of such Obligation, and such event is not expressly provided for under the terms of such Obligation in effect as of the later of the Trade Date and the date as of which such Obligation is issued or incurred:

- (i) a reduction in the rate or amount of interest payable or the amount of scheduled interest accruals;
- (ii) a reduction in the amount of principal or premium payable at maturity or at scheduled redemption dates;
- (iii) a postponement or other deferral of a date or dates for either (i) the payment or accrual of interest or (ii) the payment of principal or premium;
- (iv) a change in the ranking in priority of payment of any Obligation, causing the Subordination of such Obligation to any other Obligation; or
- (v) any change in the currency or composition of any payment of interest or principal to any currency which is not a Permitted Currency

Notwithstanding the above provisions, none of the following shall constitute a Restructuring:

- (a) the payment in euro of interest or principal in relation to an Obligation denominated in a currency of a Member State of the European Union that adopts or has adopted the single currency in accordance with the Treaty establishing the European Community, as amended by the Treaty on European Union;
- (b) the occurrence of, agreement to or announcement of any of the events described in (i) to (v) above due to an administrative adjustment, accounting adjustment or tax adjustment or other technical adjustment occurring in the ordinary course of business; and
- (c) the occurrence of, agreement to or announcement of any of the events described in (i) to (v) above in circumstances where such event does not directly or indirectly result from a deterioration in the creditworthiness or financial condition of the Reference Entity

For purposes of the definition of Restructuring and Condition 6(l), the term Obligation shall be deemed to include Underlying Obligations for which the Reference Entity is acting as provider of a Qualifying Affiliate Guarantee or, if All Guarantees is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, as provider of any Qualifying Guarantee. In the case of a Qualifying Guarantee and an Underlying Obligation, references to the Reference Entity in the definition of Restructuring and the definition of Subordination shall be deemed to refer to the Underlying Obligor and the reference to the Reference Entity in the second paragraph of this definition of Restructuring shall continue to refer to the Reference Entity

"Restructured Bond or Loan" means an Obligation which is a Bond or Loan and in respect of which the Restructuring that is the subject of a Credit Event Notice has occurred.

"Restructuring Date" means, with respect to a Restructured Bond or Loan, the date on which a Restructuring is legally effective in accordance with the terms of the documentation governing such Restructuring.

"Restructuring Maturity Limitation Date" means the date that is the earlier of (x) thirty months following the Restructuring Date and (y) the latest final maturity date of any Restructured Bond or Loan, provided, however, that under no circumstances shall the Restructuring Maturity Limitation Date be earlier than the Scheduled Termination Date or later than thirty months following the Scheduled Termination Date and if it is, it shall be deemed to be the Scheduled Termination Date or thirty months following the Scheduled Termination Date, as the case may be

"Settlement Currency" means the currency specified as such in the applicable Final Terms, or if no currency is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Specified Currency of the Holders.

"Settlement Date" means the last day of the longest Physical Settlement Period following the satisfaction of Conditions to Settlement (the "Scheduled Settlement Date") Provided That if a Hedge Disruption Event has occurred and is continuing on the second Business Day immediately preceding the Scheduled Settlement Date, the Settlement Date shall be the earlier of (i) the second Business Day following the date on which no Hedge Disruption Event subsists and (ii) the day falling 60 Business Days following the Scheduled Settlement Date

"Sovereign" means any state, political subdivision or government, or any agency, instrumentality, ministry, department or other authority (including without limiting the foregoing, the central bank) thereof.

"Sovereign Agency" means any agency, instrumentality, ministry, department or other authority (including, without limiting the foregoing, the central bank) of a Sovereign.

"Sovereign Restructured Deliverable Obligation" means an Obligation of a Sovereign Reference Entity (a) in respect of which a Restructuring that is the subject of the relevant Credit Event Notice has occurred and (b) described by the Deliverable Obligation Category specified in the applicable Final Terms, and, subject to paragraph (3) of "(B) Interpretation of Provisions" in the definition of "Deliverable Obligation", having each of the Deliverable Obligation Characteristics, if any, specified in the applicable Final Terms, in each case, immediately preceding the date on which such Restructuring is legally effective in accordance with the terms of the documentation governing such Restructuring without regard to whether the Obligation would satisfy such Deliverable Obligation Category or Deliverable Obligation Characteristics after such Restructuring.

"Specified Number" means the number of Public Source(s) specified in the applicable Final Terms, or if no number is specified in the applicable Final Terms, two

"Substitute Reference Obligation" means one or more obligations of a Reference Entity (either directly or as provider of a Qualifying Affiliate Guarantee or, if All Guarantees is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, as provider of any Qualifying Guarantee) that will replace one or more Reference Obligations in respect of such Reference Entity, identified by the Calculation Agent in accordance with the following procedures:

(a) In the event that:

- (i) a Reference Obligation in respect of such Reference Entity is redeemed in whole; or
- (ii) in the opinion of the Calculation Agent (A) the aggregate amounts due under any Reference
 Obligation in respect of such Reference Entity have been materially reduced by redemption
 or otherwise (other than due to any scheduled redemption, amortisation or prepayments),
 (B) any Reference Obligation in respect of such Reference Entity is an Underlying

Obligation with a Qualifying Guarantee of a Reference Entity and, other than due to the existence or occurrence of a Credit Event, the Qualifying Guarantee is no longer a valid and binding obligation of such Reference Entity enforceable in accordance with its terms or (C) for any other reason, other than due to the existence or occurrence of a Credit Event, any Reference Obligation in respect of a Reference Entity is no longer an obligation of such Reference Entity,

the Calculation Agent shall identify one or more Obligations to replace such Reference Obligation in respect of a Reference Entity.

- (b) Any Substitute Reference Obligation or Substitute Reference Obligations shall be an Obligation that (1) ranks pari passu (or, if no such Obligation exists, then, at the option of the Issuer an Obligation that ranks senior) in priority of payment with such Reference Obligation (with the ranking in priority of payment of such Reference Obligation being determined as of the later of (A) the Trade Date and (B) the date on which such Reference Obligation was issued or incurred and not reflecting any change to such ranking in priority of payment after such later date), (2) preserves the economic equivalent, as closely as practicable as determined by the Calculation Agent of the delivery and payment obligations of the Issuer and (3) is an obligation of a Reference Entity (either directly or as provider of a Qualifying Affiliate Guarantee or, if All Guarantees is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, as provider of any Qualifying Guarantee). The Substitute Reference Obligation or Substitute Reference Obligations identified by the Calculation Agent shall, without further action, replace such Reference Obligation or Reference Obligations.
- (c) If more than one specific Reference Obligation is identified as a Reference Obligation in respect of a Reference Entity, in relation to a Series, any of the events set forth in paragraph (a) above has occurred with respect to one or more but not all such Reference Obligations, and the Calculation Agent determines that no Substitute Reference Obligation is available for one or more of such Reference Obligations, each such Reference Obligation for which no Substitute Reference Obligation is available shall cease to be a Reference Obligation.
- (d) If more than one specific Reference Obligation is identified as a Reference Obligation in respect of a Reference Entity in relation to a Series, any of the events set forth in paragraph (a) above has occurred with respect to all such Reference Obligations, and the Calculation Agent determines that at least one Substitute Reference Obligation is available for any such Reference Obligation, then each such Reference Obligation shall be replaced by a Substitute Reference Obligation and each Reference Obligation for which no Substitute Reference Obligation is available will cease to be a Reference Obligation.

(e) If:

- (i) more than one specific Reference Obligation is identified as a Reference Obligation in respect of a Reference Entity in relation to a Series, any of the events set forth in paragraph (a) above has occurred with respect to all such Reference Obligations and the Calculation Agent determines that no Substitute Reference Obligation is available for any of such Reference Obligations; or
- (ii) only one specific Reference Obligation is identified as a Reference Obligation in respect of a Reference Entity in relation to a Series, any of the events set forth in paragraph (a) above has occurred with respect to such Reference Obligation and the Calculation Agent determines that no Substitute Reference Obligation is available for that Reference Obligation,

then the Calculation Agent shall continue to attempt to identify a Substitute Reference Obligation until the later of (A) the Scheduled Termination Date, (B) the Grace Period Extension Date (if any) and (C) the Repudiation/Moratorium Evaluation Date (if any) If (i) either Cash Settlement is specified in the applicable Final Terms and the Credit Event Redemption Amount is determined

by reference to a Reference Obligation or Physical Delivery is specified in the applicable Final Terms and the Reference Obligation is the only Deliverable Obligation and (ii) on or prior to the later of (A) the Scheduled Termination Date, (B) the Grace Period Extension Date or (C) the Repudiation/Moratorium Evaluation Date, a Substitute Reference Obligation has not been identified, the obligations of the Issuer under the Holders shall cease as of the later of (A) the Scheduled Termination Date, (B) the Grace Period Extension Date or (C) the Repudiation/Moratorium Evaluation Date.

(f) For the purposes of identification of a Reference Obligation, any change in the Reference Obligation's CUSIP or ISIN number or other similar identifier will not, in and of itself, convert such Reference Obligation into a different Obligation.

"Succession Event" means an event such as a merger, de-merger, consolidation, amalgamation, transfer of assets or liabilities, spin off or other similar event in which one entity succeeds to the obligations of another entity, whether by operation of law or pursuant to any agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, "Succession Event" shall not include an event in which the holders of obligations of the Reference Entity exchange such obligations for the obligations of another entity, unless such exchange occurs in connection with a merger, demerger, consolidation, amalgamation, transfer of assets or liabilities, spin-off or other similar event.

"Successor" means:

- (a) in relation to a Reference Entity that is not a Sovereign, the entity or entities, if any, determined as set forth below:
 - (i) if one entity directly or indirectly succeeds to seventy-five per cent or more of the Relevant Obligations of the Reference Entity by way of a Succession Event, that entity will be the sole Successor;
 - (ii) if only one entity directly or indirectly succeeds to more than twenty-five per cent, (but less than seventy-five per cent) of the Relevant Obligations of the Reference Entity by way of a Succession Event, and not more than twenty-five per cent of the Relevant Obligations of the Reference Entity remain with the Reference Entity, the entity that succeeds to more than twenty-five per cent of the Relevant Obligations will be the sole Successor;
 - (iii) if more than one entity each directly or indirectly succeed to more than twenty-five per cent of the Relevant Obligations of the Reference Entity by way of a Succession Event, and not more than twenty-five per cent of the Relevant Obligations of the Reference Entity remain with Reference Entity, the entities that succeed to more than twenty-five per cent of the Relevant Obligations will each be a Successor and these Terms and Conditions and or the applicable Final Terms will be adjusted as provided below;
 - (iv) if one or more entity each directly or indirectly succeed to more than twenty-five per cent of the Relevant Obligations of the Reference Entity by way of a Succession Event, and more than twenty-five per cent of the Relevant Obligations of the Reference Entity remain with the Reference Entity, each such entity and the Reference Entity will each be a Successor and these Terms and Conditions and/or the applicable Final Terms will be adjusted as provided below;
 - (v) if one or more entities directly or indirectly succeed to a portion of the Relevant Obligations of the Reference Entity by way of a Succession Event, but no entity succeeds to more than twenty-five per cent of the Relevant Obligations of the Reference Entity and the Reference Entity continues to exist there will be no Successor and the Reference Entity will not be changed in any way as a result of the Succession Event; and

- (vi) if one or more entities directly or indirectly succeed to a portion of the Relevant Obligations of the Reference Entity by way of a Succession Event, but no entity succeeds to more than twenty-five per cent of the Relevant Obligations of the Reference Entity and the Reference Entity ceases to exist, the entity which succeeds to the greatest percentage of Relevant Obligations (or, if two or more entities succeed to an equal percentage of Relevant Obligations, the entity from among those entities which succeeds to the greatest percentage of obligations of the Reference Entity) will be the sole Successor; and
- (b) in relation to a Sovereign Reference Entity, any direct or indirect successor(s) to that Reference Entity irrespective of whether such successor(s) assumes any of the obligations of such Reference Entity

In the case of (a) above, the Calculation Agent will be responsible for determining, as soon as reasonably practicable after it becomes aware of the relevant Succession Event (but no earlier than fourteen calendar days after the legally effective date of the Succession Event), and with effect from the legally effective date of the Succession Event, whether the relevant thresholds set forth above have been met, or which entity qualifies under (a)(vi) above, as applicable. In calculating the percentages used to determine whether the relevant thresholds set forth above have been met, or which entity qualifies under (a)(vi) above, as applicable, the Calculation Agent shall use, in respect of each applicable Relevant Obligation included in such calculation, the amount of the liability in respect of such Relevant Obligation listed in the Best Available Information and shall, as soon as practicable after such calculation, make such calculation available for inspection by Noteholder(s) at the specified office of the Agent and, for so long as the Holders are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, at the office of the Paying Agent in Luxembourg.

Where pursuant to paragraph (a)(iii) or (a)(iv) above, more than one Successor has been identified, the Calculation Agent shall adjust such of these Terms and Conditions and/or the applicable Final Terms as it in its sole and absolute discretion acting in a commercially reasonable manner shall determine to be appropriate to reflect that the relevant Reference Entity has been succeeded by more than one Successor and shall determine the effective date of that adjustment. The Calculation Agent shall be deemed to be acting in a commercially reasonable manner if it adjusts such of these Terms and Conditions and/or the applicable Final Terms in such a manner as to reflect the adjustment to and/or division of any credit derivative transaction(s) related to or underlying the Holders under the provisions of the 2003 ISDA Credit Derivatives Definitions.

Upon the Calculation Agent making such adjustment, the Issuer shall give notice as soon as practicable to Holders in accordance with Condition 15, stating the adjustment to these Terms and Conditions and/or the applicable Final Terms and giving brief details of the relevant Succession Event.

For the purposes of this definition of "Successor", "succeed" means, with respect to a Reference Entity and its Relevant Obligations (or, as applicable, obligations), that a party other than such Reference Entity (i) assumes or becomes liable for such Relevant Obligations (or, as applicable, obligations) whether by operation of law or pursuant to any agreement or (ii) issues Bonds that are exchanged for Relevant Obligations (or, as applicable, obligations), and in either case such Reference Entity is no longer an obligor (primarily or secondarily) or guarantor with respect to such Relevant Obligations (or, as applicable, obligations). The determinations required pursuant to paragraph (a) of this definition of "Successor" shall be made, in the case of an exchange offer, on the basis of the Outstanding Principal Balance of Relevant Obligations tendered in the exchange and not on the basis of the Outstanding Principal Balance of Bonds for which Relevant Obligations have been exchanged

Where:

- (A) a Reference Obligation is specified in the applicable Final Terms; and
- (B) one or more Successors to the Reference Entity have been identified; and

(C) any one or more such Successors have not assumed the Reference Obligation,

a Substitute Reference Obligation will be determined in accordance with the definition of "Substitute Reference Obligation" above

"Supranational Organisation" means any entity or organisation established by treaty or other arrangement between two or more Sovereigns or the Sovereign Agencies of two or more Sovereigns, and includes, without limiting, the foregoing, the International Monetary Fund, European Central Bank, International Bank for Reconstruction and Development and the European Bank for Reconstruction and Development.

"Trade Date" means the date specified as such in the applicable Final Terms.

"Undeliverable Obligation" means a Deliverable Obligation included in the Asset Amount which, on the Settlement Date for such Deliverable Obligation, the Calculation Agent determines for any reason (including without limitation, failure of the relevant clearance system or due to any law, regulation, court order or market conditions or the non-receipt of any requisite consents with respect to the Delivery of Loans) it is impossible or illegal to Deliver on the Settlement Date

"Unwind Costs" means the amount specified in the applicable Final Terms or if "Standard Unwind Costs" are specified in the applicable Final Terms, an amount determined by the Calculation Agent equal to the sum of (without duplication) all costs, expenses (including loss of funding), tax and duties incurred by the Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates in connection with the redemption of the Holders and the related termination settlement or re-establishment of any hedge or related trading position, such amount to be apportioned pro rata amongst each nominal amount of Holders in the lowest Specified Denomination.

"Valuation Date" means (a) where Physical Delivery is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms the day falling three Business Days after the Final Delivery Date, or (b) where Cash Settlement is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, if "Single Valuation Date" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the date that is the number of Business Days specified in the Final Terms after the Credit Event Determination Date or, if the number of Business Days is not so specified, five Business Days after the Credit Event Determination Date, and if "Multiple Valuation Dates" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, each of the following dates:

- (i) the date that is the number of Business Days specified in the applicable Final Terms after the Credit Event Determination Date (or, if the number of Business Days is not specified, five Business Days); and
- (ii) each successive date that is the number of Business Days specified in the applicable Final Terms (or if the number of Business Days is not so specified, five Business Days) after the date on which the Calculation Agent obtains a Market Value with respect to the immediately preceding Valuation Date

When "Multiple Valuation Dates" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the total number of Valuation Dates shall be equal to the number of Valuation Dates specified in the applicable Final Terms (or, if the number of Valuation Dates is not so specified, five Valuation Dates)

If neither Single Valuation Date nor Multiple Valuation Dates is specified in the applicable Final Terms, Single Valuation Date shall apply.

"Valuation Method":

- (a) The following Valuation Methods may be specified in the applicable Final Terms for a Series with only one Reference Obligation and only one Valuation Date:
 - (i) "Market" means the Market Value determined by the Calculation Agent with respect to the Valuation Date; or

(ii) "Highest" means the highest Quotation obtained by the Calculation Agent with respect to the Valuation Date.

If no such Valuation Method is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Valuation Method shall be Highest.

- (b) The following Valuation Methods may be specified in the applicable Final Terms for a Series with only one Reference Obligation and more than one Valuation Date:
 - (i) "Average Market" means the unweighted arithmetic mean of the Market Values determined by the Calculation Agent with respect to each Valuation Date; or
 - (ii) "Highest" means the highest Quotation obtained by the Calculation Agent with respect to any Valuation Date; or
 - (iii) "Average Highest" means the unweighted arithmetic mean of the highest Quotations obtained by the Calculation Agent with respect to each Valuation Date

If no such Valuation Method is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Valuation Method shall be Average Highest.

- (c) The following Valuation Methods may be specified in the applicable Final Terms for a Series with more than one Reference Obligation and only one Valuation Date:
 - (i) "Blended Market" means the unweighted arithmetic mean of the Market Value for each Reference Obligation determined by the Calculation Agent with respect to the Valuation Date; or
 - (ii) "Blended Highest" means the unweighted arithmetic mean of the highest Quotations obtained by the Calculation Agent for each Reference Obligation with respect to the Valuation Date

If no such Valuation Method is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Valuation Method shall be Blended Highest

- (d) The following Valuation Methods may be specified in the applicable Final Terms for a Series with more than one Reference Obligation and more than one Valuation Date:
 - (i) "Average Blended Market" means, using values with respect to each Valuation Date determined by the Calculation Agent in accordance with the Blended Market Valuation Method, the unweighted arithmetic mean of the values so determined with respect to each Valuation Date; or
 - (ii) "Average Blended Highest" means, using values with respect to each Valuation Date determined by the Calculation Agent in accordance with the Blended Highest Valuation Method, the unweighted arithmetic mean of the values so determined with respect to each Valuation Date.

If no such Valuation Method is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Valuation Method shall be Average Blended Highest

(e) Notwithstanding paragraphs (a) to (d) above, if Quotations include Weighted Average Quotations or fewer than two Full Quotations, the Valuation Method shall be Market, Average Market, Blended Market or Average Blended Market, as the case may be.

"Valuation Time" means the time specified as such in the applicable Final Terms or, if no time is so specified, 11:00 am in the principal trading market for the Reference Obligation

"Weighted Average Quotation" means in accordance with the Quotation Method, the weighted average of firm quotations obtained from Quotation Dealers at the Valuation Time, to the extent reasonably practicable, each for an amount of the Reference Obligation with an Outstanding Principal Balance of as large a size as available but less than the Quotation Amount (but, if a Minimum Quotation Amount

is specified in the applicable Final Terms, of a size equal to the Minimum Quotation Amount or, if quotations of a size equal to the Minimum Quotation Amount are not available, quotations as near in size as practicable to the Minimum Quotation Amount) that in aggregate are approximately equal to the Quotation Amount

(k) Credit Event Notice after Restructuring Credit Event

If Condition 6(k) is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, then, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in these Terms and Conditions, upon the occurrence of a Restructuring Credit Event during the Notice Delivery Period:

- (a) the Calculation Agent may deliver a Credit Event Notice in respect of an amount (the "Partial Redemption Amount") that is less than the principal amount outstanding of each Note immediately prior to the delivery of such Credit Event Notice. In such circumstances the provisions of Condition 6 shall be deemed to apply to the Partial Redemption Amount only and each such Note shall be redeemed in part (such redeemed part being equal to the Partial Redemption Amount).
- (b) For the avoidance of doubt (i) the principal amount of each such Note not so redeemed in part shall remain outstanding and interest shall accrue on the principal amount outstanding of such Note as provided in Condition 3 (adjusted in such manner as the Calculation Agent in its sole and absolute discretion determines to be appropriate), (ii) the provisions of Condition 6 shall apply to such principal amount outstanding of such Note in the event that subsequent Credit Event Notices are delivered in respect of the Reference Entity that was the subject of the Restructuring Credit Event and (iii) once a Credit Event Notice with respect to a Restructuring Credit Event has been delivered in respect of a Reference Entity, no further Credit Event Notices may be delivered in respect of any Reference Entity other than the Reference Entity that was the subject of the Restructuring Credit Event.
- (c) If the provisions of this Condition 6(k) apply in respect of the Holders, on redemption of part of each such Note the relevant Note or, if the Holders are represented by a Global Note, such Global Note, shall be endorsed to reflect such part redemption

(1) Provisions relating to Multiple Holder Obligation

If Condition 6(1) is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the definition of Restructuring and related provisions, the occurrence of, agreement to, or announcement of, any of the events described in sub-paragraphs (i) to (v) of the definition of "Restructuring" shall not be a Restructuring unless the Obligation in respect of any such events is a Multiple Holder Obligation.

"Multiple Holder Obligation" means an Obligation that (i) at the time of the event which constitutes a Restructuring Credit Event is held by more than three holders that are not Affiliates of each other and (ii) with respect to which a percentage of holders (determined pursuant to the terms of the Obligation as in effect on the date of such event) at least equal to sixty-six and two-thirds is required to consent to the event which constitutes a Restructuring Credit Event

(m) Provisions taken from the ISDA supplement titled "Additional Provisions - Monoline Insurer as Reference Entity (May 2003)"

If Condition 6(m) is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the following provisions will apply:

(a) Obligation and Deliverable Obligation. Paragraph (a) of the definition of "Obligation" in Condition 6(j) and paragraph (a) of the definition of "Deliverable Obligation" in Condition 6(j) are hereby amended by adding "or Qualifying Policy" after "or as provider of a Qualifying Affiliate Guarantee"

- (b) Interpretation of Provisions. In the event that an Obligation or a Deliverable Obligation is a Qualifying Policy, paragraph (B) of the definition of "Deliverable Obligation" in Condition 6(j) will apply, with references to the Qualifying Guarantee, the Underlying Obligation and the Underlying Obligor deemed to include the Qualifying Policy, the Insured Instrument and the Insured Obligor, respectively, except that:
 - (i) the Obligation Category Borrowed Money and the Obligation Category and Deliverable Obligation Category Bond shall be deemed to include distributions payable under an Insured Instrument in the form of a pass-through certificate or similar funded beneficial interest, the Deliverable Obligation Category Bond shall be deemed to include such an Insured Instrument, and the terms "obligation" and "obligor" as used in this Condition 6 in respect of such an Insured Instrument shall be construed accordingly;
 - (ii) references in the definitions of Assignable Loan and Consent Required Loan to "the guarantor" and "guaranteeing" shall be deemed to include "the insurer" and "insuring", respectively;
 - (iii) neither the Qualifying Policy nor the Insured Instrument must satisfy on the relevant date the Deliverable Obligation Characteristic of Accelerated or Matured, whether or not that characteristic is otherwise specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms;
 - (iv) if the Assignable Loan, Consent Required Loan, Direct Loan Participation or Transferable Deliverable Obligation Characteristics are specified in the applicable Final Terms and if the benefit of the Qualifying Policy is not transferred as part of any transfer of the Insured Instrument, the Qualifying Policy must be transferable at least to the same extent as the Insured Instrument; and
 - (v) with respect to an Insured Instrument in the form of a pass-through certificate or similar funded beneficial interest, the term "Outstanding Principal Balance" shall mean the outstanding Certificate Balance and "maturity", as such term is used in the Maximum Maturity Deliverable Obligation Characteristic, shall mean the specified date by which the Qualifying Policy guarantees or insures, as applicable, that the ultimate distribution of the Certificate Balance will occur.
- (c) Not Contingent. An Insured Instrument will not be regarded as failing to satisfy the Not Contingent Deliverable Obligation Characteristic solely because such Insured Instrument is subject to provisions limiting recourse in respect of such Insured Instrument to the proceeds of specified assets (including proceeds subject to a priority of payments) or reducing the amount of any Instrument Payments owing under such Insured Instrument, provided that such provisions are not applicable to the Qualifying Policy by the terms thereof and the Qualifying Policy continues to guarantee or insure, as applicable, the Instrument Payments that would have been required to be made absent any such limitation or reduction. By specifying that this Condition 6(m) is applicable, no inference should be made as to the interpretation of the "Not Contingent" Deliverable Obligation Characteristic in the context of limited recourse or similar terms applicable to Deliverable Obligations other than Qualifying Policies
- (d) Deliver. For the purposes of the definition of "Deliver" in Condition 6(j), "Deliver" with respect to an obligation that is a Qualifying Policy means to Deliver both the Insured Instrument and the benefit of the Qualifying Policy (or a custodial receipt issued by an internationally recognised custodian representing an interest in such an Insured Instrument and the related Qualifying Policy), and "Delivery" and "Delivered" will be construed accordingly.
- (e) Provisions for Determining a Successor. The paragraph commencing "For the purposes of this definition of "Successor" in the definition of "Successor" in Condition 6(j) is hereby amended by adding "or insurer" after "or guarantor".

- (f) Substitute Reference Obligation. The first paragraph of the definition of "Substitute Reference Obligation" and paragraph (b) thereof in Condition 6(j) is hereby amended by adding "or Qualifying Policy" after "or as provider of a Qualifying Affiliate Guarantee". For purposes of sub-paragraph (a)(ii)(B) the definition of "Substitute Reference Obligation" references to "the Qualifying Guarantee" and the "Underlying Obligation" shall be deemed to include "the Qualifying Policy" and "the Insured Instrument", respectively
- (g) Other Provisions. For purposes of paragraph (a)(ii) of the definition of "Deliverable Obligation" and the definitions of "Credit Event" and "Deliver" in Condition 6(j) references to "the Underlying Obligation" and "the Underlying Obligor" shall be deemed to include "Insured Instruments" and the "Insured Obligor", respectively
- (h) Additional Definition.

"Qualifying Policy" means a financial guaranty insurance policy or similar financial guarantee pursuant to which a Reference Entity irrevocably guarantees or insures all Instrument Payments of an instrument that constitutes Borrowed Money (modified as set forth in this Condition 6(m)) (the "Insured Instrument") for which another party (including a special purpose entity or trust) is the obligor (the 'Insured Obligor"). Qualifying Policies shall exclude any arrangement (i) structured as a surety bond, letter of credit or equivalent legal arrangement or (ii) pursuant to the express contractual terms of which the payment obligations of the Reference Entity can be discharged or reduced as a result of the occurrence or non-occurrence of an event or circumstance (other than the payment of instrument Payments). The benefit of a Qualifying Policy must be capable of being Delivered together with the Delivery of the Insured Instrument.

"Instrument Payments" means (A) in the case of any Insured Instrument that is in the form of a pass-through certificate or similar funded beneficial interest, (x) the specified periodic distributions in respect of interest or other return on the Certificate Balance on or prior to the ultimate distribution of the Certificate Balance and (y) the ultimate distribution of the Certificate Balance on or prior to a specified date and (B) in the case of any other Insured Instrument, the scheduled payments of principal and interest, in the case of both (A) and (B) (1) determined without regard to limited recourse or reduction provisions of the type described in Condition 6(n)(c) above and (2) excluding sums in respect of default interest, indemnities, tax gross-ups, make-whole amounts, early redemption premiums and other similar amounts (whether or not guaranteed or insured by the Qualifying Policy)

"Certificate Balance" means, in the case of an Insured Instrument that is in the form of a passthrough certificate or similar funded beneficial interest, the unit principal balance, certificate balance or similar measure of unreimbursed principal investment.

- (n) Supplement to provisions relating to Qualifying Guarantee and Underlying Obligation
 - (a) If this Condition 6(n) is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, Condition 6(j) shall be amended by:
 - (i) the deletion of the definition of "Downstream Affiliate" and the substitution of the following therefor:
 - "Downstream Affiliate" means an entity whose outstanding Voting Shares were, at the date of issuance of the Qualifying Guarantee, more than 50% owned, directly or indirectly, by the Reference Entity";
 - (ii) the deletion of paragraphs (B)(4)(ii) and (B)(4)(iii) of the definition of "Deliverable Obligation", the substitution of the following therefor and the re-numbering of the remaining paragraphs accordingly:
 - "(ii) For purposes of the application of the Obligation Characteristics or the Deliverable Obligation Characteristics, both the Qualifying Guarantee and the Underlying

Obligation must satisfy on the relevant date each of the applicable Obligation Characteristics or Deliverable Obligation Characteristics, if any, specified in the applicable Final Terms from the following list: Not Subordinated, Specified Currency, Not Sovereign Lender, Not Domestic Currency and Not Domestic Law. For these purposes, unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms, (A) the lawful currency of any of Canada, Japan, Switzerland, the United Kingdom or the United States of America or the euro shall not be a Domestic Currency and (B) the laws of England and the laws of the State of New York shall not be a Domestic Law"; and

(iii) the deletion of the definition of "Qualifying Guarantee" and the substitution of the following therefor;

"Qualifying Guarantee" means an arrangement evidenced by a written instrument pursuant to which a Reference Entity irrevocably agrees (by guarantee of payment or equivalent legal arrangement) to pay all amounts due under an obligation (the "Underlying Obligation") for which another party is the obligor (the "Underlying Obligor") Qualifying Guarantees shall exclude any arrangement (i) structured as a surety bond, financial guarantee insurance policy, letter of credit or equivalent legal arrangement or (ii) pursuant to the terms of which the payment obligations of the Reference Entity can be discharged, reduced or otherwise altered or assigned (other than by operation law) as a result of the occurrence or non-occurrence of an event or circumstance (other than payment). The benefit of a Qualifying Guarantee must be capable of being Delivered together with the Delivery of the Underlying Obligation";

(b) Condition 6(l) shall be amended by the insertion of the following at the end of the first paragraph thereof:

"provided that any Obligation that is a Bond shall be deemed to satisfy the requirement in (ii) of the definition of "Multiple Holder Obligation" below"

(o) Calculation Agent and Calculation Agent Notices

Whenever the Calculation Agent is required to act or exercise judgment, it will do so in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner. The Calculation Agent shall, as soon as practicable after making any determination pursuant to this Condition 6, notify the Issuer, the Guarantor and the Holders of such determination The Calculation Agent is not acting as a fiduciary for or as an advisor to the Holders in respect of its duties as Calculation Agent in connection with any Holders.

The determination by the Calculation Agent of any amount or of any state of affairs, circumstance, event or other matter, or the formation of any opinion or the exercise of any discretion required or permitted to be determined, formed or exercised by the Calculation Agent pursuant to this Condition 6 shall (in the absence of manifest error) be final and binding on the Issuer, the Guarantor and the Holders In performing its duties pursuant to the Holders, the Calculation Agent shall act in its sole and absolute discretion Any delay, deferral or forbearance by the Calculation Agent in the performance or exercise of any of its obligations or its discretion under the Holders, including, without limitation, the giving of any notice by it to any person, shall not affect the validity or binding nature of any later performance or exercise of such obligation or discretion, and none of the Calculation Agent, the Issuer and the Guarantor shall, in the absence of wilful misconduct and gross negligence, bear any liability in respect of, or consequent upon, any such delay, deferral or forbearance.

In relation to the delivery by the Calculation Agent to the Issuer or the Guarantor, as applicable, of any notice pursuant to this Condition 6, a notice delivered on or prior to 4:00 pm (Calculation

Agent City time) on a Calculation Agent City Business Day will be effective on such Calculation Agent City Business Day. A notice delivered after 4:00 p.m. (Calculation Agent City time) on a Calculation Agent City Business Day or on a day which is not a Calculation Agent City Business Day will be deemed effective on the next following Calculation Agent City Business Day, regardless of the form in which it is delivered. For purposes of the two preceding sentences, a notice given by telephone will be deemed to have been delivered at the time the telephone conversation takes place If the notice is delivered by telephone, a written confirmation will be executed and delivered confirming the substance of that notice within one Calculation Agent City Business Day of that notice Failure to provide that written confirmation will not affect the effectiveness of that telephonic notice.

7. Redemption and Purchase

Redemption at Maturity

7.01 Unless previously redeemed, or purchased and cancelled, each Instrument shall be redeemed at its maturity redemption amount (the "**Maturity Redemption Amount**") (which shall be its principal amount or such other Maturity Redemption Amount as may be specified in or determined in accordance with the relevant Final Terms) (or, in the case of Instalment Instruments, in such number of instalments and in such amounts as may be specified in the relevant Final Terms) on the date or dates (or, in the case of Instruments which bear interest at a floating rate of interest, on the date or dates upon which interest is payable) specified in the relevant Final Terms. Subordinated Instruments qualifying as regulatory capital (*recursos propios*) in accordance with Banco de España requirements will have a maturity of not less than five years or as otherwise permitted by Banco de España.

Early Redemption for Taxation Reasons

7.02 If, in relation to any Series of Instruments, (i) as a result of any change in the laws or regulations of Spain or in either case of any political subdivision thereof or any authority or agency therein or thereof having power to tax or in the interpretation or administration of any such laws or regulations which becomes effective on or after the date of issue of such Instruments or any earlier date specified in the relevant Final Terms, the relevant Issuer (or, if either the Senior Guarantee or the Subordinated Guarantee was called, the Guarantor) would be required to pay additional amounts as provided in Condition 9 and (ii) such circumstances are evidenced by the delivery by the relevant Issuer or (as the case may be) the Guarantor to the Issue and Paying Agent of a certificate signed by two directors of the relevant Issuer or (as the case may be) the Guarantor stating that the said circumstances prevail and describing the facts leading thereto, an opinion of independent legal advisers of recognised standing to the effect that such circumstances prevail and, in the case of Subordinated Instruments qualifying as regulatory capital (recursos propios), a copy of the Banco de España consent to the redemption, the relevant Issuer may, at its option and having given no less than thirty nor more than sixty days' notice (ending, in the case of Instruments which bear interest at a floating rate, on a day upon which interest is payable) to the Holders of the Instruments in accordance with Condition 15 (which notice shall be irrevocable), redeem all (but not some only) of the outstanding Instruments (in the case of Subordinated Instruments qualifying as regulatory capital (recursos propios) in accordance with the requirements of Banco de España) comprising the relevant Series at their early tax redemption amount (the "Early Redemption Amount (Tax)") (which shall be their principal amount or at such other Early Redemption Amount (Tax) as may be specified in or determined in accordance with the relevant Final Terms) less, in the case of any Instalment Instrument, the aggregate amount of all instalments that shall have become due and payable in respect of such Instrument prior to the date fixed for redemption under any other Condition (which amount, if and to the extent not then paid, remains due and payable), together with accrued interest (if any) thereon provided, however, that (i) no such notice of redemption may be given earlier than 90 days (or, in the case of Instruments which bear interest at a floating rate a number of days which is equal to the aggregate of the number of days falling within the then current interest period applicable to the Instruments plus 60 days) prior to the earliest date on which the relevant Issuer or (as the case may be) the Guarantor would be obliged to pay such additional amounts were a payment in respect of the Instruments then due and (ii) in the case of Subordinated Instruments qualifying as regulatory capital (recursos propios), that the Banco de España consents to redemption of the Subordinated Instruments.

In the case of Subordinated Instruments qualifying as regulatory capital (*recursos propios*), redemption for taxation reasons is subject to the prior consent of Banco de España and may not take place within a period of five years from their date of issue or as otherwise permitted by Banco de España.

Optional Early Redemption (Call)

7.03 If this Condition 7.03 is specified in the relevant Final Terms as being applicable, then the relevant Issuer may, upon the expiry of the appropriate notice and subject to such conditions as may be specified in the relevant Final Terms (and subject, in the case of Subordinated Instruments qualifying as regulatory capital (recursos propios), in accordance with the requirements of Banco de España, to the prior consent of Banco de España) redeem all (but not, unless and to the extent that the relevant Final Terms specifies otherwise, some only) of the Instruments of the relevant Series at their call early redemption amount (the "Early Redemption Amount (Call)") (which shall be their principal amount or such other Early Redemption Amount (Call) as may be specified in or determined in accordance with the relevant Final Terms) less, in the case of any Instalment Instrument, the aggregate amount of all instalments that shall have become due and payable under any other Condition (which amount, if and to the extent not then paid, remains due and payable), together with accrued interest (if any) thereon.

In the case of Subordinated Instruments qualifying as regulatory capital (*recursos propios*), redemption at the option of the relevant Issuer is subject to the prior consent of Banco de España and may not take place within a period of five years from their date of issue or as otherwise permitted by Banco de España.

7.04 The appropriate notice referred to in Condition 7.03 is a notice given by the relevant Issuer to the Issue and Paying Agent, the Registrar (in the case of Registered Instruments) and the Holders of the Instruments of the relevant Series, which notice shall be signed by two duly authorised officers of the Issuer and shall specify:

- the Series of Instruments subject to redemption;
- whether such Series is to be redeemed in whole or in part only and, if in part only, the aggregate principal amount of the Instruments of the relevant Series which are to be redeemed;
- the due date for such redemption which shall be a Business Day, which shall be not less than thirty days (or such lesser period as may be specified in the relevant Final Terms) after the date on which such notice is validly given and which is, in the case of Instruments which bear interest at a floating rate, a date upon which interest is payable; and
- the Early Redemption Amount (Call) at which such Instruments are to be redeemed.

Any such notice shall be irrevocable, and the delivery thereof shall oblige the relevant Issuer to make the redemption therein specified.

Partial Redemption

7.05 If the Instruments of a Series are to be redeemed in part only on any date in accordance with Condition 7.03:

- in the case of Bearer Instruments, the Instruments to be redeemed shall be drawn by lot, with the intervention of the relevant Commissioner and before a Notary Public who will take the minutes, in such European city as the Issue and Paying Agent may specify, or identified in such other manner or in such other place as the Issue and Paying Agent may approve and deem appropriate and fair; and
- in the case of Registered Instruments, the Instruments shall be redeemed (so far as may be practicable) pro rata to their principal amounts, subject always as aforesaid and provided always that

the amount redeemed in respect of each Instrument shall be equal to the minimum denomination thereof or an integral multiple thereof,

subject always to compliance with all applicable laws and the requirements of any listing authority, stock exchange and/or quotation system on which the relevant Instruments may be listed and/or quoted.

In the case of the redemption of part only of a Registered Instrument, a new Registered Instrument in respect of the unredeemed balance shall be issued in accordance with Conditions 2.04 to 2.09 which shall apply as in the case of a transfer of Registered Instruments as if such new Registered Instrument were in respect of the untransferred balance.

In connection with an exercise of the option contained in Condition 7.03 (Optional Early *Redemption (Call)*) in relation to some only of the Instruments, the Permanent Global Instrument may be redeemed in part in the principal amount specified by the Issuer in accordance with the Conditions and the Instruments to be redeemed will not be selected as provided in the Conditions but in accordance with the rules and procedures of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg (to be reflected in the records of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg as either a pool factor or a reduction in principal amount, at their discretion).

In the case of Subordinated Instruments qualifying as regulatory capital (*recursos propios*) partial redemption is subject to the prior consent of Banco de España and may not take place within a period of five years from which their date of issue or as otherwise permitted by Banco de España.

Optional Early Redemption (Put)

7.06 If this Condition 7.06 is specified in the relevant Final Terms as being applicable, then the Issuer shall, upon the exercise of the relevant option by the Holder of any Instrument of the relevant Series, redeem such Instrument on the date or the dates specified in the relevant Final Terms at its put early redemption amount (the "Early Redemption Amount (Put)") (which shall be its principal amount or such other Early Redemption Amount (Put) as may be specified in or determined in accordance with the relevant Final Terms) less, in the case of any Instalment Instrument, the aggregate amount of all instalments that shall have become due and payable in respect of such Instrument under any other Condition prior to the date fixed for redemption (which amount, if and to the extent not then paid, remains due and payable), together with accrued interest (if any) thereon. In order to exercise such option, the Holder must, not less than sixty days before the date so specified (or such other period as may be specified in the relevant Final Terms), deposit the relevant Instrument (together, in the case of an interest-bearing Definitive Instrument, with any unmatured Coupons appertaining thereto) with, in the case of a Bearer Instrument, any Paying Agent or, in the case of a Registered Instrument, the Registrar together with a duly completed redemption notice in the form which is available from the specified office of any of the Paying Agents or, as the case may be, the Registrar specifying, in the case of a Registered Instrument, the aggregate principal amount in respect of which such option is exercised (which must be the minimum denomination specified in the Final Terms or an integral multiple thereof). No Instrument so deposited and option exercised may be withdrawn (except as provided in the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement).

In the case of Subordinated Instruments qualifying as regulatory capital (*recursos propios*), redemption at the option of the Holders is subject to the prior consent of Banco de España and may not take place within a period of five years from their date of issue or as otherwise permitted by Banco de España.

In the case of the redemption of part only of a Registered Instrument, a new Registered Instrument in respect of the unredeemed balance shall be issued in accordance with Conditions 2.04 to 2.09 which shall apply as in the case of a transfer of Registered Instruments as if such new Registered Instrument were in respect of the untransferred balance.

The Holder of an Instrument may not exercise such option in respect of any Instrument which is the subject of an exercise by the Issuer of its option to redeem such Instrument under either Condition 7.02 or 7.03.

Purchase of Instruments

7.07 The Issuers and the Guarantor and any of their respective subsidiaries may at any time purchase Instruments (except for Subordinated Instruments which qualify as regulatory capital (*recursos propios*)) in the

open market or otherwise and at any price provided that, in the case of interest-bearing Definitive Instruments, all unmatured Coupons appertaining thereto are purchased therewith.

Cancellation of Redeemed and Purchased Instruments

7.08 All unmatured Instruments and Coupons and unexchanged Talons redeemed or purchased otherwise than in the ordinary course of business of dealing in securities or as a nominee in accordance with this Condition 7 will be cancelled forthwith and may not be reissued or resold.

Further Provisions applicable to Redemption Amount and Instalment Amounts

- **7.09** The provisions of Condition 5D.03 shall apply to any determination or calculation of the Redemption Amount or any Instalment Amount required by the Final Terms to be made by the Determination Agent.
- **7.10** References herein to "Redemption Amount" shall mean, as appropriate, the Maturity Redemption Amount, the final Instalment Amount, Early Redemption Amount (Tax), Early Redemption Amount (Call), Early Redemption Amount (Put) and Early Termination Amount or such other amount in the nature of a redemption amount as may be specified in, or determined in accordance with the provisions of, the Final Terms.
- **7.11** In the case of any Instrument which is non-interest bearing, the "Amortised Face Amount" shall be an amount equal to the sum of:
 - (i) the issue price specified in the Final Terms; and
 - (ii) the product of the Amortisation Yield (compounded annually) being applied to the Issue Price from (and including) the date of issue specified in the Final Terms to (but excluding) the date fixed for redemption or (as the case may be) the date upon which such Instrument becomes due and repayable.

Where such calculation is to be made for a period which is not a whole number of years, the calculation in respect of the period of less than a full year shall be made on the basis of the Day Count Fraction (as defined in Condition 5D) specified in the Final Terms for the purposes of this Condition 7.11.

- **7.12** In the case of any Instrument which is non-interest bearing, if any Redemption Amount (other than the Maturity Redemption Amount) is improperly withheld or refused or default is otherwise made in the payment thereof, the Amortised Face Amount shall be calculated as provided in Condition 7.11 but as if references in subparagraph (ii) to the date fixed for redemption or the date upon which such Instrument becomes due and repayable were replaced by references to the earlier of:
 - (i) the date on which, upon due presentation or surrender of the relevant Instrument (if required), the relevant payment is made; and
 - (ii) (except where presentation or surrender of the relevant Instrument is not required as a precondition of payment), the seventh day after the date on which, the Issue and Paying Agent or, as the case may be, the Registrar having received the funds required to make such payment, notice is given to the Holders of the Instruments in accordance with Condition 15 of that circumstance (except to the extent that there is a failure in the subsequent payment thereof to the relevant Holder).

Notices

7.13 Notices of early redemption (whether full or partial) of Instruments shall be given in accordance with Condition 15 (*Notices*).

Notification of Luxembourg Stock Exchange

7.14 The relevant Issuer shall notify the Luxembourg Stock Exchange of any early redemption (whether full or partial) of Instruments.

8. Events of Default

8.01 Unless otherwise specified in the relevant Final Terms, if, in the case of Subordinated Instruments, any of the events set out in paragraphs (i), (ii), (iv), (v), (vi), (vii) or (viii) occurs and is continuing or, in the case of Senior Instruments, any of the following events occurs and is continuing (each an "Event of Default"), such Event of Default shall be an acceleration event in relation to the Instruments of any Series, namely:

- (i) *Non-payment*: if default is made in the payment of any interest or principal due in respect of the Instruments of the relevant Series or any of them and such default continues for a period of seven days (or such other period as may be specified in the relevant Final Terms); or
- (ii) Breach of other obligations: if the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor fails to perform or observe any of its other obligations under or in respect of the Instruments of the relevant Series, the relevant Guarantee or the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement and (except in any case where such failure is incapable of remedy when no such continuation as is hereinafter mentioned will be required) the failure continues for a period of 30 days next following the service by the relevant Commissioner (as defined in Condition 14 below) on the relevant Issuer of a notice requiring the same to be remedied; or
- (iii) Cross default: if any Indebtedness for Borrowed Money (as defined in Condition 8.02) of the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor becomes due and repayable prematurely by reason of an event of default (however described) or the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor fails to make any payment in respect of any Indebtedness for Borrowed Money on the due date for such payment or within any originally applicable grace period or any security given by the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor for any Indebtedness for Borrowed Money becomes enforceable and steps are taken to enforce the same or if default is made by the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor in making any payment when due (or within any originally applicable grace period in respect thereof) under any guarantee and/or indemnity given by it in relation to any Indebtedness for Borrowed Money of any other person, provided that no such event as aforesaid shall constitute an Event of Default unless the Indebtedness for Borrowed Money or other liability relative thereto either alone or when aggregated with other Indebtedness for Borrowed Money and/or other liabilities relative to all (if any) other such events which shall have occurred shall amount to at least U.S.\$50,000,000 (or its equivalent in any other currency on the basis of the middle spot rate for the relevant currency against the U.S. Dollar as quoted by any leading bank on the day on which this paragraph operates); or
- (iv) Winding up: if any order is made by any competent court or resolution passed for the winding up or dissolution of the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (except in any such case for the purpose of reconstruction or a merger or amalgamation which has been previously approved by a resolution of the relevant Syndicate of Holders of the Instruments or a merger with another financial institution in this case even without being approved by a resolution of the relevant Syndicate of Holders of the Instruments, provided that any entity that survives or is created as a result of such merger is given a rating by an internationally recognised rating agency at least equal to the then current rating of the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may be, at the time of such merger); or
- (v) Cessation of business: if the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor ceases or threatens to cease to carry on the whole or a substantial part of its business, save for the purposes of a reorganisation (except in any such case for the purpose of reconstruction or a merger or amalgamation which has been previously approved by a resolution of the relevant Syndicate of Holders of the Instruments or a merger with another financial institution in this case even without being approved by a resolution of the relevant Syndicate of Holders of the Instruments, provided that any entity that survives or is created as a result of such merger is given a rating by an internationally recognised rating agency at least equal to the then current rating of the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may be, at the time of such merger), or the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor stops or threatens to stop payment of, or is unable to, or admits inability to, pay, its debts (or any class thereof) as they fall due, or is

- deemed unable to pay its debts pursuant to or for the purposes of any applicable law, or is adjudicated or found bankrupt or insolvent; or
- (vi) Insolvency proceedings: if (a) proceedings are initiated against the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor under any applicable liquidation, insolvency, composition, reorganisation or other similar laws, or an application made for the appointment of an administrative or other receiver, manager, administrator or other similar official, or an administrative or other receiver, manager, administrator or other similar official is appointed, in relation to the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor or in relation to the whole or a part of the undertaking or assets of either of them, or an encumbrancer takes possession of the whole or a part of the undertaking or assets of either of them, or a distress, execution, attachment, sequestration or other process is levied, enforced upon, sued out or put in force against the whole or a part of the undertaking or assets or any of them and (b) in any case is not discharged within 14 days; or
- (vii) Arrangements with creditors: if the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor initiates or consents to judicial proceedings relating to itself under any applicable liquidation, insolvency, composition, reorganisation or other similar laws or makes a conveyance or assignment for the benefit of, or enters into any composition or other arrangement with, its creditors generally (or any class of its creditors); or
- (viii) *Guarantee*: if any of the Senior Guarantee or the Subordinated Guarantee ceases to be a valid and binding obligation of the Guarantor or it becomes unlawful for the Guarantor to perform its obligations under either the Senior Guarantee or the Subordinated Guarantee or either the Senior Guarantee or the Subordinated Guarantee is claimed by the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor not to be in full force and effect.
- **8.02** As used herein "**Indebtedness for Borrowed Money**" means (i) money borrowed and premiums and accrued interest in respect thereof, (ii) liabilities under or in respect of any acceptance or acceptance credit and (iii) the principal and premium (if any) and accrued interest in respect of any bonds, notes, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, certificates of deposit or other securities whether issued for cash or in whole or in part for a consideration other than cash.
- **8.03** If any Event of Default shall occur in relation to any Series of Instruments, the relevant Commissioner, acting upon a resolution of the relevant Syndicate of Holders of the Instruments of the relevant Series, in respect of all the Instruments of a relevant Series, or any Holder of an Instrument in respect of such Instrument and provided that such Holder does not contravene the resolution of the relevant Syndicate (if any) may, by written notice to the relevant Issuer, at the specified office of the Issue and Paying Agent, declare that such Instrument or Instruments and (if the Instrument or Instruments is or are interest-bearing) all interest then accrued on such Instrument or Instruments shall (when permitted by applicable Spanish law) be forthwith due and payable, whereupon the same shall become immediately due and payable at its early termination amount (the "Early Termination Amount") (which shall be its principal amount or such other Early Termination Amount as may be specified in or determined in accordance with the relevant Final Terms) less, in the case of any Instalment Instrument, the aggregate amount of all instalments that shall have become due and payable in respect of such Instruments under any other Condition prior to the date fixed for redemption (which amount, if and to the extent not then paid, remains due and payable), together with all interest (if any) accrued thereon without presentment, demand, protest or other notice of any kind, all of which the relevant Issuer will expressly waive, anything contained in such Instrument or Instruments to the contrary notwithstanding, unless, prior thereto, all Events of Default in respect of the Instruments of the relevant Series shall have been cured.

9. Taxation

9.01 All amounts payable (whether in respect of principal, redemption amount, interest or otherwise) in respect of the Instruments, the Receipts and the Coupons, the Senior Guarantee and the Subordinated Guarantee by an Issuer or the Guarantor (as the case may be) will be made free and clear of and without withholding or deduction

for or on account of any present or future taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature imposed or levied by or on behalf of Spain or any political subdivision thereof or any authority or agency therein or thereof having power to tax, unless the withholding or deduction of such taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges is required by law. In that event, the relevant Issuer or (as the case may be) the Guarantor shall pay such additional amounts as will result in receipt by the Holder of any Instrument or Coupon of such amounts as would have been received by them had no such withholding or deduction been required.

9.02 Neither the relevant Issuer nor the Guarantor shall be required to pay any additional amounts as referred to in Condition 9.01 in relation to any payment in respect of any Instrument or Coupon:

- (i) to, or to a third party on behalf of, a Holder of an Instrument or Coupon who is liable for such taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges in respect of such Instrument or Coupon by reason of his having some connection with Spain other than the mere holding of such Instrument or Coupon; or
- (ii) to, or to a third party on behalf of, a Holder in respect of whom the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor does not receive such information (which may include a tax residence certificate) concerning such Holder's identity and tax residence as it may require in order to comply with Law 19/2003 of 4 July and any implementing legislation; or
- (iii) presented for payment more than thirty days after the Relevant Date, except to the extent that the relevant Holder would have been entitled to such additional amounts on presenting the same for payment on the expiry of such period of thirty days; or
- (iv) where the withholding or deduction referred to in Condition 9.01 is imposed on a payment to an individual and is required to be made pursuant to European Council Directive 2003/48/EC or any law implementing or complying with, or introduced in order to conform to, such Directive; or
- (v) presented for payment by or on behalf of a Holder of an Instrument or Coupon who would have been able to avoid such withholding or deduction by presenting the relevant Instrument or Coupon to another Paying Agent in a Member State of the European Union; or
- (vi) to, or to a third party on behalf of, individuals resident for tax purposes in The Kingdom of Spain or a resident in a tax haven (as defined in Royal Decree 1080/1991 of 5 July as amended from time to time); or
- (vii) to, or to a third party on behalf of, a Spanish-resident legal entity subject to Spanish corporation tax if the Spanish tax authorities determine that the Instruments do not comply with exemption requirements specified in the Reply to a Consultation of the Directorate General for Taxation (*Dirección General de Tributos*) dated 27th July 2004 and require a withholding to be made.
- **9.03** For the purposes of these Terms and Conditions, the "**Relevant Date**" means, in respect of any payment, the date on which such payment first becomes due and payable, but if the full amount of the moneys payable has not been received by the Issue and Paying Agent, or as the case may be, the Registrar on or prior to such due date, it means the first date on which, the full amount of such moneys having been so received and being available for payment to Holders of Instruments and Coupons, notice to that effect shall have been duly given to the Holders of the Instruments of the relevant Series in accordance with Condition 15.
- **9.04** Unless the context otherwise requires, any reference in these Terms and Conditions to "**principal**" shall include any premium payable in respect of an Instrument, any Instalment Amount or Redemption Amount and any other amounts in the nature of principal payable pursuant to these Terms and Conditions and "**interest**" shall include all amounts payable pursuant to Condition 5 and any other amounts in the nature of interest payable to these Terms and Conditions.

10. Payments

10A Payments — Bearer Instruments

10A.01 This Condition 10A is applicable in relation to Instruments in bearer form.

10A.02 Payment of amounts (other than interest) due in respect of Bearer Instruments will be made against presentation and (save in the case of a partial redemption which includes, in the case of an Instalment Instrument, payment of any instalment other than the final instalment) surrender of the relevant Bearer Instruments at the specified office of any of the Paying Agents.

10A.03 Payment of amounts in respect of interest on Bearer Instruments will be made:

- (i) in the case of a Temporary Global Instrument or Permanent Global Instrument, against presentation of the relevant Temporary Global Instrument or Permanent Global Instrument at the specified office of any of the Paying Agents outside (unless Condition 10A.04 applies) the United States and, in the case of a Temporary Global Instrument, upon due certification as required therein;
- (ii) in the case of Definitive Instruments without Coupons attached thereto at the time of their initial delivery, against presentation of the relevant Definitive Instruments at the specified office of any of the Paying Agents outside (unless Condition 10A.04 applies) the United States; and
- (iii) in the case of Definitive Instruments delivered with Coupons attached thereto at the time of their initial delivery, against surrender of the relevant Coupons or, in the case of interest due otherwise than on a scheduled date for the payment of interest, against presentation of the relevant Definitive Instruments, in either case at the specified office of any of the Paying Agents outside (unless Condition 10A.04 applies) the United States.

10A.04 Payments of amounts due in respect of interest on the Bearer Instruments and exchanges of Talons for Coupon sheets in accordance with Condition 10A.04 will not be made at the specified office of any Paying Agent in the United States (as defined in the United States Internal Revenue Code and Regulations thereunder) unless (a) payment in full of amounts due in respect of interest on such Instruments when due or, as the case may be, the exchange of Talons at all the specified offices of the Paying Agents outside the United States is illegal or effectively precluded by exchange controls or other similar restrictions and (b) such payment or exchange is permitted by applicable United States law. If paragraphs (a) and (b) of the previous sentence apply, the relevant Issuer shall forthwith appoint a further Paying Agent with a specified office in New York City.

10A.05 If the due date for payment of any amount due in respect of any Bearer Instrument is not both a Relevant Financial Centre Day (as defined in Condition 10C.03) and a local banking day (as defined in Condition 10C.03), then the Holder thereof will not be entitled to payment thereof until the next day which is such a day (or as otherwise specified in the relevant Final Terms) and, thereafter will be entitled to receive payment by cheque on any local banking day, and will be entitled to payment by transfer to a designated account on any day which is a local banking day, a Relevant Financial Centre Day and a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments in the relevant currency in the place where the relevant designated account is located and no further payment on account of interest or otherwise shall be due in respect of such delay or adjustment unless there is a subsequent failure to pay in accordance with these Terms and Conditions in which event interest shall continue to accrue as provided in Condition 5D.05.

10A.06 Each Definitive Instrument initially delivered with Coupons attached thereto should be presented and, save in the case of partial payment which includes, in the case of an Instalment Instrument, payment of any instalment other than the final instalment, surrendered for final redemption together with all unmatured Coupons and Talons appertaining thereto, failing which:

(i) in the case of Definitive Instruments which bear interest at a fixed rate or rates, the amount of any missing unmatured Coupons (or, in the case of a payment not being made in full, that portion of the amount of such missing Coupon which the redemption amount paid bears to the total redemption

amount due) (excluding, for this purpose, Talons) will be deducted from the amount otherwise payable on such final redemption, the amount so deducted being payable against surrender of the relevant Coupon at the specified office of any of the Paying Agents at any time within ten years of the Relevant Date applicable to payment of such final redemption amount;

- (ii) in the case of Definitive Instruments which bear interest at, or at a margin above or below, a floating rate, all unmatured Coupons (excluding, for this purpose, but without prejudice to paragraph (iii) below, Talons) relating to such Definitive Instruments (whether or not surrendered therewith) shall become void and no payment shall be made thereafter in respect of them; and
- (iii) in the case of Definitive Instruments initially delivered with Talons attached thereto, all unmatured Talons (whether or not surrendered therewith) shall become void and no exchange for Coupons shall be made thereafter in respect of them.

The provisions of paragraph (i) of this Condition 10A.06 notwithstanding, if any Definitive Instruments which bear interest at a fixed rate or rates should be issued with a maturity date and a fixed rate or fixed rates such that, on the presentation for payment of any such Definitive Instrument without any unmatured Coupons attached thereto or surrendered therewith, the amount required by paragraph (i) to be deducted would be greater than the amount otherwise due for payment, then, upon the due date for redemption of any such Definitive Instrument, such unmatured Coupons (whether or not attached) shall become void (and no payment shall be made in respect thereof) as shall be required so that, upon application of the provisions of paragraph (i) in respect of such Coupons as have not so become void, the amount required by paragraph (i) to be deducted would not be greater than the amount otherwise due for payment. Where the application of the foregoing sentence requires some but not all of the unmatured Coupons relating to a Definitive Instrument to become void, the relevant Paying Agent shall determine which unmatured Coupons are to become void, and shall select for such purpose Coupons maturing on later dates in preference to Coupons maturing on earlier dates.

10A.07 In relation to Definitive Instruments initially delivered with Talons attached thereto, on or after the due date for the payment of interest on which the final Coupon comprised in any Coupon sheet matures, the Talon comprised in the Coupon sheet may be surrendered at the specified office of any Paying Agent outside (unless Condition 10A.04 applies) the United States in exchange for a further Coupon sheet (including any appropriate further Talon), subject to the provisions of Condition 11 below. Each Talon shall, for the purpose of these Conditions, be deemed to mature on the due date for the payment of interest on which the final Coupon comprised in the relative Coupon sheet matures.

10A.08 For the purposes of these Terms and Conditions, the "**United States**" means the United States of America (including the States thereof and the District of Columbia) and its possessions (including Puerto Rico, the U.S. Virgin Islands, Guam, American Samoa, Wake Island and Northern Mariana Islands).

10B. Payments — Registered Instruments

10B.01 This Condition 10B is applicable in relation to Instruments in registered form.

10B.02 Payment of amounts (whether principal, redemption amount or otherwise and including accrued interest) due in respect of Registered Instruments on the final redemption of Registered Instruments will be made against presentation and, save in the case of partial payment of the amount due upon final redemption by reason of insufficiency of funds, surrender of the relevant Registered Instruments at the specified office of the Registrar. If the due date for payment of the final redemption amount of any Registered Instrument is not both a Relevant Financial Centre Day (as defined in Condition 10C.03) and a local banking day (as defined in Condition 10C.03), then the Holder thereof will not be entitled to payment thereof until the next day which is such a day and, thereafter will be entitled to receive payment by cheque on any local banking day, and, will be entitled to payment by transfer to a designated account on any day which is a local banking day, a Relevant Financial Centre Day and a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments in the relevant currency in the place where the relevant designated account is located and no further payment on account of

interest or otherwise shall be due in respect of such postponed payment unless there is a subsequent failure to pay in accordance with these Terms and Conditions in which event interest shall continue to accrue as provided in Condition 5D.05.

10B.03 Payment of amounts (whether principal, redemption amount, interest or otherwise) due (other than in respect of the final redemption of Registered Instruments) in respect of Registered Instruments will be paid to the Holder thereof (or, in the case of joint Holders, the first-named) as appearing in the register kept by the Registrar as at opening of business (local time in the place of the specified office of the Registrar) on the fifteenth Relevant Banking Day (as defined in Condition 2.06) before the due date for such payment (the "**Record Date**").

10B.04 Notwithstanding the provisions of Condition 10C.02, payment of amounts (whether principal, redemption amount, interest or otherwise) due (other than in respect of final redemption of Registered Instruments) in respect of Registered Instruments will be made by cheque (in the case of payment in Japanese Yen to a non-resident of Japan, drawn on an authorised foreign exchange bank) and posted to the address (as recorded in the register held by the Registrar) of the Holder thereof (or, in the case of joint Holders, the firstnamed) on the Relevant Banking Day (as defined in Condition 2.06) not later than the relevant date for payment unless prior to the relevant Record Date the Holder thereof (or, in the case of joint Holders, the first named) has applied to the Registrar and the Registrar has acknowledged such application for payment to be made to a designated account denominated in the relevant currency (in the case of payment in Japanese Yen to a nonresident in Japan, a non-resident account with an authorised foreign exchange bank) in which case payment shall be made on the relevant due date for payment by transfer to such account. In the case of payment by transfer to an account, if the due date for any such payment is not a Relevant Financial Centre Day, then the Holder thereof will not be entitled to payment thereof until the first day thereafter which is a Relevant Financial Centre Day and a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments in the relevant currency in the place where the relevant designated account is located and no further payment on account of interest or otherwise shall be due in respect of such postponed payment unless there is a subsequent failure to pay in accordance with these Terms and Conditions in which event interest shall continue to accrue as provided in Condition 5D.05.

10C Payments — General Provisions

10C.01 Save as otherwise specified herein, this Condition 9C is applicable in relation to Instruments whether in bearer or in registered form.

10C.02 Payments of amounts due (whether principal, redemption amount, interest or otherwise) in respect of Instruments will be made in the currency in which such amount is due by (a) cheque or (b) at the option of the payee, transfer to an account denominated in the relevant currency specified by the payee. Payments will, without prejudice to the provisions of Condition 9, be subject in all cases to any applicable fiscal or other laws and regulations.

10C.03 For the purposes of these Terms and Conditions:

- (i) "Business Day" means a day:
 - in relation to Instruments denominated or payable in Euro which is a TARGET Business Day; and
 - in relation to Instruments payable in any other currency, on which commercial banks are open for business and foreign exchange markets settle payments in the Relevant Financial Centre in respect of the relevant currency; and, in either case,
 - on which commercial banks are open for business and foreign exchange markets settle payments in any place specified in the relevant Final Terms;
- (ii) "local banking day" means a day (other than a Saturday and Sunday) on which commercial banks are open for business (including dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the place of presentation of the relevant Instrument or, as the case may be, Coupon;

- (iii) "Relevant Financial Centre" means such financial centre or centres as may be specified in relation to the relevant currency for the purposes of the definition of "Business Day" in the ISDA Definitions;
- (iv) "Relevant Financial Centre Day" means, in the case of any currency other than Euro, a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments in the Relevant Financial Centre (which in the case of Australian dollars shall be Melbourne and which in the case of New Zealand dollars shall be Wellington) and in any other place specified in the relevant Final Terms and in the case of payment in Euro, a day which is a TARGET Business Day;
- (v) "TARGET Business Day" means a day in which the TARGET System is operating; and
- (vi) "TARGET System" means the Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross Settlement Express Transfer (TARGET) System.

and, in the case of any of paragraphs (i) to (iv) of this Condition 10C.03, as the same may be modified in the relevant Final Terms.

11. Prescription

- 11.01 Claims against the relevant Issuer for payment of principal and interest in respect of Instruments will be prescribed and become void unless made, in the case of principal, within ten years or, in the case of interest, five years after the Relevant Date for payment thereof.
- 11.02 In relation to Definitive Instruments initially delivered with Talons attached thereto, there shall not be included in any Coupon sheet issued upon exchange of a Talon any Coupon which would be void upon issue pursuant to Condition 10A.06 or the due date for the payment of which would fall after the due date for the redemption of the relevant Instrument or which would be void pursuant to this Condition 11 or any Talon the maturity date of which would fall after the due date for redemption of the relevant Instrument.

12. The Paying Agents, the Registrars and the Determination Agent

12.01 The initial Paying Agents and Registrars and their respective initial specified offices are specified below. The Determination Agent in respect of any Instruments shall be specified in the Final Terms. The Issuer reserves the right at any time to vary or terminate the appointment of any Paying Agent (including the Issue and Paying Agent) or the Registrar or the Determination Agent and to appoint additional or other Paying Agents or another Registrar or another Determination Agent Provided that it will at all times maintain (i) an Issue and Paying Agent, (ii) in the case of Registered Instruments, a Registrar, (iii) a Paying Agent (which may be the an Issue and Paying Agent) with a specified office in a continental European city, (iv) so long as the Instruments are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and/or any other listing authority, stock exchange and/or quotation system, a Paying Agent (which may be the Issue and Paying Agent) and a Registrar each with a specified office in Luxembourg and/or in such other place as may be required by the rules of such other listing authority, stock exchange and/or quotation system, (v) in the circumstances described in Condition 10A.04, a Paying Agent with a specified office in New York City, (vi) a Paying Agent in a European Union member state that will not be obliged to withhold or deduct tax pursuant to European Council Directive 2003/48/EC or any law implementing or complying with, or introduced to conform to, such Directive, and (vii) a Determination Agent where required by the Terms and Conditions applicable to any Instruments (in the case of (i), (ii), (iii) and (vii) with a specified office located in such place (if any) as may be required by the Terms and Conditions). The Paying Agents, the Registrar and the Determination Agent reserve the right at any time to change their respective offices to some other specified office in the same city. Notice of all changes in the identities or specified offices of the Paying Agents, the Registrar or the Determination Agent will be given promptly by the Issuer to the Holders of the Instruments in accordance with Condition 15.

12.02 The Paying Agents, the Registrar and the Determination Agent act solely as agents of the relevant Issuer and, save as provided in the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement or any other agreement entered into with respect to its appointment, do not assume any obligations towards or relationship of agency or trust for any Holder of any Instrument or Coupon and each of them shall only be responsible for the performance of the duties and obligations expressly imposed upon it in the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement or other agreement entered into with respect to its appointment or incidental thereto.

13. Replacement of Instruments

If any Instrument or Coupon is lost, stolen, mutilated, defaced or destroyed, it may be replaced at the specified office of the Issue and Paying Agent or such Paying Agent or Paying Agents as may be specified for such purpose in the relevant Final Terms (in the case of Bearer Instruments and Coupons) or of the Registrar (in the case of Registered Instruments), subject to all applicable laws and the requirements of any listing authority, stock exchange and/or quotation system on which the relevant Instruments are listed and/or quoted, upon payment by the claimant of all expenses incurred in connection with such replacement and upon such terms as to evidence, security, indemnity and otherwise as the relevant Issuer and the Issue and Paying Agent, the relevant Paying Agent or, as the case may be, the Registrar may require. Mutilated or defaced Instruments and Coupons must be surrendered before replacements will be delivered therefor.

14. Syndicate of Holders of the Instruments and Modification

The Holders of the Instruments of the relevant Series shall meet in accordance with the regulations governing the relevant Syndicate of Holders of the Instruments (the "**Regulations**"). The Regulations shall contain the rules governing the functioning of each Syndicate and the rules governing its relationship with the relevant Issuer and shall be attached to the relevant Public Deed of Issuance. A set of pro forma Regulations is included in the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement.

A temporary Commissioner will be appointed for each Syndicate. Upon the subscription of the Instruments, the Commissioner will call a general meeting of the Syndicate to ratify or oppose the acts of the temporary Commissioner, confirm his appointment or appoint a substitute and to ratify the Regulations.

Provisions for meetings of the Syndicate of Holders of the Instruments will be contained in the Regulations and the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement. Such provisions shall have effect as if incorporated herein.

The relevant Issuer may, with the consent of the Issue and Paying Agent and the relevant Commissioner, but without the consent of the Holders of the Instruments of any Series or Coupons, amend these Terms and Conditions and the Deed of Covenant insofar as they may apply to such Instruments to correct a manifest error. Subject as aforesaid, no other modification may be made to these Terms and Conditions or the Deed of Covenant except with the sanction of a resolution of the relevant Syndicate of Holders of Instruments.

For the purposes of these Terms and Conditions,

- (i) "Commissioner" means the trustee (*comisario*) as this term is defined under the Spanish Corporations Law (*Ley de Sociedades Anónimas*) of each Syndicate of Holders of the Instruments; and
- (ii) "**Syndicate**" means the syndicate (*sindicato*) as this term is described under the Spanish Corporations law (*Ley de Sociedades Anónimas*).

15. Notices

To Holders of Bearer Instruments

15.01 Notices to Holders of Bearer Instruments will, save where another means of effective communication has been specified herein or in the relevant Final Terms, be deemed to be validly given if published in an English language daily newspaper in London (which is expected to be the *Financial Times*) or on the website of the

Luxembourg Stock Exchange (www.bourse.lu) if the Instruments are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (so long as such Instruments are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and the rules of that exchange so require), in a leading newspaper having general circulation in Luxembourg (which is expected to be *d'Wort*) or, in either case if such publication is not practicable, if published in a leading English language daily newspaper having general circulation in Europe or, in the case of a Temporary Global Instrument or Permanent Global Instrument, if delivered to Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg and any other relevant clearing system for communication by them to the persons shown in their respective records as having interests therein provided that, in the case of Instruments admitted to listing on any listing authority, stock exchange and/or quotation system, the requirements of such listing authority, stock exchange and/or quotation system, have been complied with. Any notice so given will be deemed to have been validly given on the date of such publication (or, if published more than once, on the first date on which publication is made) or, as the case may be, on the fourth day after the date of such delivery to Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg and any other relevant clearing system. Holders of Coupons will be deemed for all purposes to have notice of the contents of any notice given to Holders of Bearer Instruments in accordance with this Condition.

To Holders of Registered Instruments

15.02 Notices to Holders of Registered Instruments will be deemed to be validly given if sent by first class mail (or equivalent) or (if posted to an overseas address) by air mail to them (or, in the case of joint Holders, to the first-named in the register kept by the Registrar) at their respective addresses as recorded in the register kept by the Registrar, and will be deemed to have been validly given on the fourth day after the date of such mailing or, if posted from another country, on the fifth such day. With respect to Registered Instruments listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, any notices to Holders must also be published in a daily Luxembourg newspaper having general circulation in Luxembourg (which is expected to be *d'Wort*) or on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (www.bourse.lu) and, in addition to the foregoing, will be deemed validly given only after the date of such publication.

To Commissioners

15.03 Copies of any notice given to any Holders of the Instruments will be also given to the Commissioner of the Syndicate of Holders of the Instruments of the relevant Series.

16. Further Issues

The relevant Issuer may, from time to time without the consent of the Holders of any Instruments or Coupons create and issue further instruments, bonds or debentures having the same terms and conditions as such Instruments in all respects (or in all respects except for the first payment of interest, if any, on them and/or the denomination thereof) so as to form a single series with the Instruments of any particular Series.

17. Currency Indemnity

The currency in which the Instruments are denominated or, if different, payable, as specified in the relevant Final Terms (the "Contractual Currency") is the sole currency of account and payment for all sums payable by the relevant Issuer in respect of the Instruments, including damages. Any amount received or recovered in a currency other than the Contractual Currency (whether as a result of, or of the enforcement of, a judgment or order of a court of any jurisdiction or otherwise) by any Holder of an Instrument or Coupon in respect of any sum expressed to be due to it from the relevant Issuer shall only constitute a discharge to the relevant Issuer to the extent of the amount in the Contractual Currency which such Holder is able to purchase with the amount so received or recovered in that other currency on the date of that receipt or recovery (or, if it is not practicable to make that purchase on that date, on the first date on which it is practicable to do so). If that amount is less than the amount in the Contractual Currency expressed to be due to any Holder of an Instrument or Coupon in respect of such Instrument or Coupon the relevant Issuer shall indemnify such Holder against any loss sustained by such Holder as a result. In any event, the relevant Issuer shall indemnify each such Holder against any cost of making

such purchase which is reasonably incurred. These indemnities constitute a separate and independent obligation from the relevant Issuer's other obligations, shall give rise to a separate and independent cause of action, shall apply irrespective of any indulgence granted by any Holder of an Instrument or Coupon and shall continue in full force and effect despite any judgment, order, claim or proof for a liquidated amount in respect of any sum due in respect of the Instruments or any judgment or order. Any such loss aforesaid shall be deemed to constitute a loss suffered by the relevant Holder of an Instrument or Coupon and no proof or evidence of any actual loss will be required by the relevant Issuer.

18. Waiver and Remedies

No failure to exercise, and no delay in exercising, on the part of the Holder of any Instrument, any right hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof nor shall any single or partial exercise thereof preclude any other or future exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right. Rights hereunder shall be in addition to all other rights provided by law. No notice or demand given in any case shall constitute a waiver of rights to take other action in the same, similar or other instances without such notice or demand.

19. Law and Jurisdiction

19.01 The issue of the Instruments, including their legal nature (*obligaciones*), the status of the Instruments and the status of the guarantee in respect of them, the capacity of the Issuers, the relevant corporate resolutions, the appointment of the Commissioner and the constitution of the Syndicates of Holders of the Instruments shall be governed by Spanish law. The terms and conditions of the Instruments and all matters arising from or connected with the Instruments, the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement and the Deed of Covenant are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, English law.

19.02 The courts of England have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any disputes, which may arise out of or in connection with the Instruments (respectively, "**Proceedings**" and "**Disputes**").

19.03 The Issuers and the Guarantor irrevocably waive any objection which they might now or hereafter have to the courts of England being nominated as the forum to hear and determine any Proceedings and to settle any Disputes and agrees not to claim that any such court is not a convenient or appropriate forum.

19.04 The Issuers and the Guarantor agree that the process by which any proceedings in England are begun may be served on them by being delivered to Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A., London Branch at Santander House, 100 Ludgate Hill, London EC4M 7NJ or such other person on whom, and at such other place at which, process may from time to time be served on the Guarantor in accordance with Part XXIII of the Companies Act 1985 (as modified or re-enacted from time to time). If the appointment of the person mentioned in this Condition 19.04 ceases to be effective, the Issuers and the Guarantor shall forthwith appoint a further person in England to accept service of process on its behalf in England and notify the name and address of such person to the Issue and Paying Agent and, failing such appointment within fifteen days, any Holder of an Instrument shall be entitled to appoint such a person by written notice addressed to the Issuers and the Guarantor and delivered to the Issuers and the Guarantor or to the specified office of the Issue and Paying Agent. Nothing contained herein shall affect the right of any Holder of an Instrument to serve process in any other manner permitted by law.

19.05 The submission to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of England is for the benefit of the Holders of the Instruments only and therefore shall not (and shall not be construed so as to) limit the right of the Holders of the Instruments or any of them to take Proceedings in any other court of competent jurisdiction nor shall the taking of proceedings in any one or more jurisdictions preclude the taking of Proceedings in any other jurisdiction (whether concurrently or not) if and to the extent permitted by applicable law.

20. Rights of Third Parties

No person shall have any right to enforce any term or condition of any Series of Instruments under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999.

PRO FORMA FINAL TERMS

The Final Terms in respect of each Tranche of Instruments will be substantially in the following form, duly supplemented (if necessary) amended (if necessary) and completed to reflect the particular terms of the relevant Instruments and their issue. Text in this section appearing in italics does not form part of the form of the Final Terms but denotes directions for completing the Final Terms.

Final Terms dated •

[Santander International Debt, S.A. Unipersonal Santander Issuances, S.A. Unipersonal

Issue of [Aggregate Nominal Amount of Tranche] [Title of Instruments] Guaranteed by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. under the €32,000,000,000 Programme for the Issuance of Debt Instruments guaranteed by Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A.

PART A — CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set forth in the Base Prospectus dated 16 November 2006 [and the supplement to the Base Prospectus dated [●] which [together] constitute[s] a base prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC) (the Prospectus Directive). This document constitutes the Final Terms of the Instruments described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive and must be read in conjunction with such Base Prospectus [as so supplemented]. Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Instruments is only available on the Art. 14.2 basis of the combination of these Final Terms and the Base Prospectus dated 16 November 2006. [The Base PD Prospectus [and the supplement to the Base Prospectus] [is] [are] available for viewing at the registered office of each of the Issuers and the head office of the Guarantor (being Ciudad Grupo Santander, Avenida de Cantabria s/n, 28660 Boadilla del Monte, Madrid, Spain), the offices of the Issue and Paying Agent, The Bank of New York at One Canada Square, London E14 5AL and at the offices of the Paying Agent and Listing Agent, The Bank of New York (Luxembourg) S.A. at Aerogolf Centre, 1A, Hochenhof, L-1736 Senningerberg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg and [on the website www.bourse.lu] and copies may be obtained from the addresses specified above.]

The following alternative language applies if the first tranche of an issue which is being increased was issued under a Base Prospectus with an earlier date.

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions (the Conditions) set forth in the Base Prospectus dated 16 November 2006 [and the supplement to the Base Prospectus dated [●]]¹. This document constitutes the Final Terms of the Instruments described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC) (the Prospectus Directive) and must be read in conjunction with the Base Prospectus dated 16 November 2006 [and the supplement to the Base Prospectus dated [•]], which [together] constitute[s] a base prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive, save in respect of the Conditions which are extracted from the Base Prospectus dated 16 November 2006 [and the supplement to the Base Prospectus dated [●]] and are attached hereto. Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Instruments is only available on the basis of the combination of these Final Terms and the Base Prospectus dated 16 November 2006 and [current date] [and the supplement to the Base Prospectuses dated [●] and [●]]. [The Base Prospectus [and the supplement to the Base Prospectuses] are available for viewing at the registered office of each of the Issuers and the head office of the Guarantor (being Ciudad Grupo Santander, Avenida de Cantabria

¹ Only include details of a supplement to the Base Prospectus in which the Conditions have been amended for the purposes of all issues under the Programme.

s/n, 28660 Boadilla del Monte, Madrid, Spain), the offices of the Issue and Paying Agent, The Bank of New York at One Canada Square, London E14 5AL and at the offices of the Paying Agent and Listing Agent, The Bank of New York (Luxembourg) S.A. at Aerogolf Centre, IA, Hoehenhof, L-1736 Senningerberg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg, and [on the website www.bourse.lu] and copies may be obtained from the addresses specified above.]

[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as "Not Applicable" (N/A). Note that the numbering should remain as set out below, even if "Not Applicable" is indicated for individual paragraphs or sub-paragraphs. Italics denote guidance for completing the Final Terms.]

[When adding any other final terms or information including final terms consideration should be given as to whether such terms or information constitute "significant new factors" and consequently trigger the need for a supplement to the Base Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.]

| | | | | _ | |
|----|--------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------|
| 1. | (i) Is | ssuer: | | International Debt, S.A. Unipersonal/Santander A. Unipersonal]. | |
| | (ii) G | huarantor: | Banco Santa | ander Central Hispano, S.A. | |
| 2. | (i) S | eries Number: | [|] | |
| | [(ii)] | Tranche Number: | [|] | |
| | details | ingible with an existing Series, of that Series, including the date hich the Instruments become le).] | | | |
| 3. | Specif | ied Currency or Currencies: | [|] | Annex V, 4.4 |
| 4. | Aggre | gate Principal Amount: | [|] | Annex V, 5.1.2 |
| | [(i)] | Series: | [|] | |
| | [(ii)] | Tranche: | [|]] | |
| 5. | Issue I | Price: | [accrued inte |] per cent. of the Aggregate Principal Amount [plus rest from [insert date] (if applicable)] | Annex V, 5.3.1 Annex XII, 5.3 |
| 6. | Specified Denominations: | | (Instruments (including Instruments denominated in Sterling) in respect of which the issue proceeds are to be accepted by the Issuer in the United Kingdom or whose issue otherwise constitutes a contravention of S19 FSMA and] which have a maturity of less than one year must have a minimum redemption value of £100,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies).) | | |
| | | | [|] | |
| 7. | [(i)] | Issue Date: | [|] | Annex V, 4.12 |
| | [(ii) | Interest Commencement Date (if different from the Issue Date): | [|]] | Annex V, 4.7 |
| 8. | Maturity Date: | | | te or (for Floating Rate — Instruments) Interest ate falling in the relevant month and year] | Annex V, 4.8 |
| 9. | Interest Basis: | | • % Fixed [[specify ref [Non-Intere [Index-Link [Other (specify ref [Non-Intere part]]]] | Annex V, 4.7 | |

10. Redemption/Payment Basis:2 [Redemption at par] Annex V, 4.8 [Index-Linked Redemption] [Partly Paid] [Instalment] [Other (specify)] Change of Interest or Redemption/ [Specify details of any provision for convertibility of Instruments Payment Basis: into another interest or redemption/payment basis] 12. Put/Call Options: [Investor Put] [Issuer Call] [(further particulars specified below)] [(i)] Status of the Instruments: [Senior/Subordinated] 13. Annex V, 4.5 [(ii)] Status of the Guarantee: [Senior/Subordinated] [(iii)] [Date [Board] approval for (N.B. Only relevant where Board (or similar) authorisation is Annex V, 4.11 issuance of Instruments [and required for the particular tranche of Instruments or related Guarantee] obtained: *Guarantee*) Method of distribution: 14. [Syndicated/Non-syndicated]

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

Specify the matters required for the relevant Condition, that is to say:

| 15. | Fixed Rate Instrument Provisions | | [Applicable/Not Applicable] | | | |
|-----|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------|----------------------------------------|--|
| | | | (If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this paragraph) | | | |
| | (i) | Rate[(s)] of Interest: | [annually/qu |] per cent. per narterly/monthly] is | annum [payable [annually/semin arrear] | |
| | (ii) Interest Commencement Date:(iii) Interest Payment Date(s): | | [If different than the Issue Date] | | | |
| | | | [] in each year [adjusted in accordance with [specify Business Day Convention/not adjusted]. | | | |
| | (iv) | Fixed Coupon Amount[(s)]: | [|] per [|] in Nominal Amount | |
| | (v) | Day Count Fraction: | [30/360]/[30E/360]/[Actual/Actual (ICMA)]/ other (give details) | | | |
| | (vi) Determination Dates: | | [] in each year (insert regular interest payment dates, ignoring issue date or maturity date in the case of a long or short first or last coupon. | | | |
| | | | (N.B. only in ([ICMA]) | relevant where Do | ay Count Fraction is Actual/Actual | |
| | (vii) | Broken Amount(s): | [Insert particulars of any initial or final broken interest amwhich do not correspond with the Fixed Coupon Amount(s)] | | | |
| | (viii) | Other terms relating to the method of calculating interest for Fixed Rate Instruments: | [Not Applic | cable/give details] | | |

² If the Maturity Redemption Amount is linked to an underlying or less than 100% of the nominal value the Instruments will be derivative securities for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive and the requirements of Annex XII to the Prospectus Directive Regulation will apply. This pro forma has been annotated to indicate where the key additional requirements of Annex XII are dealt with.

| 16. | Floating Rate Instrument Provisions | | [Applicable/Not Applicable] | | | |
|-----|-------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--|--|
| | | | (If not appli paragraph) | Annex XIII, 4.12 | | |
| | (i) | Interest Period(s): | [| 1 | | |
| | (ii) | Interest Payment Dates: | [If Modified | Following Business Day Convention applies] | | |
| | (iii) | Business Day Convention: | | ention/Following Business Day Convention/Modified usiness Day Convention/other (give details)] | | |
| | (iv) | Manner in which the Rate(s) of Interest is/are to be determined: | [Screen Rat details)] | te Determination/ISDA Determination/other (give | | |
| | (v) | Screen Rate Determination | | | | |
| | | — Reference Rate: | [| 1 | | |
| | | — Interest Determination Date(s): | [If different] to the releva | from that specified in Condition 5B.03(i) in relation nt currency] | | |
| | | — Relevant Screen Page: | [| 1 | | |
| | (vi) | ISDA Determination: | | | | |
| | | — Floating Rate Option: | [| 1 | | |
| | | — Designated Maturity: | [|] | | |
| | | — Reset Date: | [|] | | |
| | (vii) | Margin(s): | [+/-] [|] per cent. per annum | | |
| | (viii) | Minimum Rate of Interest: | [|] per cent. per annum | | |
| | (ix) | Maximum Rate of Interest: | [|] per cent. per annum | | |
| | (x) | Day Count Fraction: | [|] | | |
| | (xi) | Fall back provisions, rounding provisions denominator and any other terms relating to the method of calculating interest on Floating Rate Instruments if different from those set out in the Conditions: | [| | | |
| 17. | | Non-Interest Bearing Instrument Provisions | | [Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this paragraph) | | |
| | (i) | Amortisation Yield: | [|] per cent per annum | | |
| | (ii) | Day Count Fraction: | [| 1 | | |
| | (iii) | Any other formula/basis of determining amount payable: | [|] | | |

| 18. | Index-Linked Interest Instrument/ other Variable-Linked Interest Instrument Provisions | | [Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this paragraph) | | | | |
|-----|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------------|--|--|--|
| | (i) | Index/Formula/other variables: | [give or annex details] | | | | |
| | (ii) | Provisions for determining Coupon where calculation by reference to Index and/or Formula and/or other variables is impossible or impracticable or otherwise disrupted: | (Need to include a description of market disruption settlement, | Annex V, 4.7 | | | |
| | (iii) | Determination Date(s): | [] | | | | |
| | (iv) | Specified Period(s)/Specified Interest Payment Dates: | [] | | | | |
| | (v) | Business Day Convention: | [Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day Convention/ Modified Following Business Day Convention/other (give details) | | | | |
| | (vi) | Minimum Rate/Amount of Interest: | [] per cent. per annum | | | | |
| | (vii) | Maximum Rate/Amount of Interest: | [] per cent. per annum | | | | |
| | (viii) | Day Count Fraction: | [] | | | | |
| 19. | Other | Rates Provisions: | [Applicable/Not Applicable] (Set out full interest determination provisions e.g. interest commencement date, rate of calculation basis for interest or actual amounts of interest payable, amount and dates for payment, applicable convention) | | | | |
| PRC | VISIO | NS IN RELATION TO REDEN | MPTION | | | | |
| 20. | Call Option: | | [Condition 7.03 is Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this paragraph) | | | | |
| | (i) | Optional Early Redemption Date(s): | | | | | |
| | (ii) | Early Redemption Amount (Call) of each Instrument and method, if any, of calculation of such amount(s): | [] per Instrument of [] specified denomination | | | | |
| | (iii) | If redeemable in part: | | | | | |
| | | (a) Minimum Redemption Amount: | | | | | |
| | | (b) Maximum Redemption Amount: | [] | | | | |
| | (iv) | Notice period ³ | [] | | | | |

³ If setting notice periods which are different to those provided in the terms and conditions, issuers are advised to consider the practicalities of distribution of information through intermediaries, for example, clearing systems and custodians, as well as any other notice requirements which may apply, for example, as between the issuer and its fiscal agent or any trustee.

| 21. | Put Option | | [Condition 7.06 is Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this paragraph) | | | | |
|-----|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------------------|--|--|--|
| | (i) | Optional Early Redemption Date(s): | [|] | | | |
| | (ii) | Early Redemption Amount (Put) of each Instrument and method, if any, of calculation of such amount(s): | [denomination |] per Instrument of [] specified on | | | |
| | (iii) | Notice period ³ | [|] | | | |
| 22. | | ity Redemption Amount of astrument | [[denomination |] per Instrument of [] specified on /other/see Appendix] | | | |
| | In cases where the Maturity Redemption Amount is Index-Linked or other variable-linked: | | | | | | |
| | (i) | Index/Formula/variable: | [give or ann | nex details] | | | |
| | (ii) | Calculation Agent responsible for calculating the Maturity Redemption Amount: | [|] | | | |
| | (iii) | Provisions for determining Final Redemption Amount where calculated by reference to Index and/or Formula and/ or other variable: | [| | | | |
| | (iv) | Determination Date(s): | [|] | | | |
| | (v) | Provisions for determining Final Redemption Amount where calculation by reference to Index and/or Formula and/ or other variable is impossible or impracticable or otherwise disrupted: | [| | | | |
| | (vi) | Payment Date: | [|] | | | |
| | (vii) | Minimum Final Redemption Amount: | [|] | | | |
| | (viii) | Maximum Final Redemption Amount: | [|] | | | |
| 23. | Early l | Redemption Amount (Tax) | | | | | |
| | Instrum taxation or othe method require | tedemption Amount(s) of each nent payable on redemption for a reasons or on event of default rearly redemption and/or the dof calculating the same (if dor if different from that set out Conditions): | [| | | | |

³ If setting notice periods which are different to those provided in the terms and conditions, issuers are advised to consider the practicalities of distribution of information through intermediaries, for example, clearing systems and custodians, as well as any other notice requirements which may apply, for example, as between the issuer and its fiscal agent or any trustee.

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE INSTRUMENTS

24. Form of Instruments:

Bearer/Registered. [If in bearer form specify:

[Temporary Global Instrument exchangeable for a Permanent Global Instrument which is exchangeable for Definitive Instruments on [•] days' notice/at any time/in the limited circumstances specified in the Permanent Global Instrument]

[Temporary Global Instrument exchangeable for Definitive Instruments on [•]days' notice]

[Permanent Global Instrument exchangeable for Definitive Instruments on [•] days' notice/at any time/in the limited circumstances specified in the Permanent Global Instrument]

25 Talons for future Coupons or Receipts to be attached to Definitive Instruments (and dates on which such Talons mature):

[Yes/No. *If yes, give details*]

26 Details relating to Partly Paid
Instruments: amount of each payment
comprising the Issue Price and date on
which each payment is to be made [and
consequences (if any) of failure to pay,
including any right of the Issuer to
forfeit the Instruments and interest due
on late payment]:

[Yes/No. *If yes, give details*]

27. Business Day:

[Specify any additional financial centres necessary for the purposes of Condition 10C.03 or any modification required].

28. Relevant Financial Centre:

[Specify any modification required.]

29. Relevant Financial Centre Day:

[Specify any additional financial centres necessary for the purposes of Condition 10C.03, or 10A.05 (Bearer Instruments) or 9B.02 (Registered Instruments).]

30. Details relating to [Instalment]
Instruments: amount of each
Instrument, date on which each
payment is made:

[Not Applicable/give details]

Annex V, 4.8

31. Temporary Commissioner:

[]

32 Other final terms:

[Not Applicable/give details]

(When adding any other final terms consideration should be given as to whether such terms constitute "significant new factors" and consequently trigger the need for a supplement to the Base Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.)

DISTRIBUTION

33. (i) If syndicated, names and addresses of Managers and underwriting commitments:

(Include names and addresses of entities agreeing to underwrite Annex V, 5.4.1, the issue on a firm commitment basis and names and addresses 5.4.3 of the entities agreeing to place the issue without a firm commitment or on a "best efforts" basis if such entities are not the same as the Managers.)

| | (ii) | Date of [Subscription | Г | 1 | Annay V 5 4 4 |
|-----|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------|
| | (11) | Agreement] | l | | Annex V, 5.4.4. |
| | (iii) | Stabilising Manager: | [|] | |
| 34. | | syndicated, mane and address of /Manager: | [| 1 | |
| 35. | Stabili | sation Manager: | [|] | |
| 36. | Additi | onal Selling Restrictions: | [Not Applie | cable/give details] | Annex V, 6.1 |
| OPE | RATIO | ONAL INFORMATION | | | |
| 37. | ISIN: | | [|] | Annex V, 4.1 |
| 38. | Comm | on Code: | [|] | Annex XII 4.1.1 |
| 39. | New C | Global Note: | [Yes/No] | | |
| 40. | a man | Global Note intended to be held in ner which would allow ystem eligibility: | Instruments Euroclear of and does not recognised and intra-da issue or at a will dependent criteria.][In | ote that the designation "Yes" simply means that the sare intended upon issue to be deposited with or Clearstream, Luxembourg as common safekeeper of necessarily mean that the Instruments will be as eligible collateral for Eurosystem monetary policy ay credit operations by the Eurosystem either upon any or all times during their life. Such recognition I upon satisfaction of the Eurosystem eligibility aclude this text if "Yes" selected in which case the be issued in NGN form] | |
| 41. | Euroc | learing System other than ear and Clearstream, abourg: | [| 1 | |
| 42. | | s and addresses of additional g Agent(s) (if any): | [|] | Annex V, 5.4.2 |
| 43. | Settler | ment Procedures: | [Specify w settlement a | | |
| | CREDIT LINKED INSTRUMENTS: [NB: Consider whether definitions included in Conditions are up to date] | | [Applicable (If not app paragraph) | | |
| 44. | Genera | al | | | |
| | (i) | Redemption Amount: | [Express pe | er Specified Denomination] | |
| | (ii) | Trade Date: | [|] | |
| | (iii) | Scheduled Termination Date: | | falling five Business days prior to the Scheduled ate/specify other] | |
| | (iv) | Calculation Agent responsible for making calculations and determinations pursuant to Condition 6: | [|] | |
| | (v) | Calculation Agent City: | [| 1 | |
| | Credit | Provisions | | | |
| | (vi) | Reference Entity(ies): | ſ | 1 | |

| (vii) | Reference Obligation(s): |] | | | | |
|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------|--|--|--|
| | [The obligation[s] identified as follows: | | | | | |
| | Primary Obligor: |] | | | | |
| | Guarantor: |] | | | | |
| | Maturity: |] | | | | |
| | Coupon: |] | | | | |
| | CUSIP/ISIN: |]] | | | | |
| | [The obligation identified as follows: | | | | | |
| (viii) | All Guarantees: | oplicable/Not Applicable] | | | | |
| | | _ | ifying Guarantee and Underlying [Applicable/Not Applicable] | | | |
| (ix) | Credit Events: | inkruptcy] idure to Pay] [Grace Period Extension (Capplicable/Not Applicable] [If Applicable: Grace Period: [[Obligation Acceleration] [Obligation Default] [Repudiation/Moratorium [Maturity Date Extension] [Applicable/Not Applicable/Not Applicable/Not Applicable/Not Applicable (Condition 6(k) [Applicable/Provisions relating to Multiple Provisions relating to Multiple (Papplicable) [Restructuring] | sion: Condition 6(f): icable]] ructuring Credit Event: | | | |
| | | Condition 6(l) [Applicable/Not Applicable] — [Restructuring Maturity Limitation and Fully Transferable Obligation [Applicable/Not Applicable] | | | | |
| | | [Modified Restructuring Maturity Limitation and Conditionally Transferable Obligation [Applicable/Not Applicable] | | | | |
| | | [other] | | | | |
| Default | Requirement: |] | | | | |
| Paymen | t Requirement: |] | | | | |
| (x) | Conditions to Settlement: | tice of Publicly Availabl plicable] | e Information [Applicable/Not | | | |
| [If Applicable: Public Source(s): []] (If other than in the definition in Condition 6(Specified Number: []] (If none specified, then it is deemed to be two) | | | | | | |

| (xi) | Obligations: | |
|---------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| | Obligation Category [select one only]: | [Payment] [Borrowed Money] [Reference Obligations Only] [Bond] [Loan] [Bond or Loan] |
| | Obligation Characteristics: [select all of which apply]: | [Not Subordinated] [Specified Currency: [specify currency] [Standard Specified Currencies]] [Not Sovereign Lender] [Not Domestic Current:] [Domestic Currency means: [specify currency]] [Not Domestic Law] [Listed] |
| | | [Not Domestic Issuance] |
| | Additional Obligation(s): | [] |
| (xii) | Provisions relating to Monoline Insurer to Reference Entity: | Condition 6(m) [Applicable/Not Applicable] |
| (xiii) | Excluded Obligation(s): | [] |
| (xiv) | Whether redemption of the Notes will be by (a) Cash Settlement or (b) Physical Delivery: | [Cash Settlement/Physical Delivery] |
| (xv) | Accrual of interest upon Credit Event: | [Applicable/Not Applicable] |
| (xvi) | Merger Event: Condition 6(i): If Applicable: Merger Event Redemption Date: | |
| [(xvii) | Unwind Costs: | [Standard Unwind Costs/Not Applicable] |
| Terms 1 | relating to Cash Settlement | |
| (xviii) | Credit Event Redemption Amount: | [Express per Specified Denomination] |
| (xix) | Credit Event Redemption Date: | [] Business Days |
| (xx) | Valuation Date: | [Single Valuation Date: [] Business Days] [Multiple Valuation Dates: [] Business Days; and each [] Business Days thereafter. Number of Valuation Date: []] |

| (xxi) | Valuation Time: | |
|----------|----------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| (xxii) | Quotation Method: | [Bid/Offer/Mid-market] |
| (xxiii) | Quotation Amount: | [[]/Representative Amount] |
| [(xxiv) | Minimum Quotation Amount: | []] |
| (xxv) | Quotation Dealers: | [] |
| (xxvi) | Quotations: | [Include Accrued Interest/Exclude Accrued Interest] |
| (xxvii) | Valuation Method: | [Market/Highest] [Average Market/Highest/Average Highest] [Blended Market/Blended Highest] [Average Blended Market/Average Blended Highest] |
| (xxviii) | Other terms or special conditions: | [] |
| Terms r | relating to Physical Delivery | |
| (xxix) | Physical Settlement Period: | [] Business Days |
| (xxx) | Asset Amount: | [Include Accrued Interest/Exclude Accrued Interest] |
| (xxxi) | Settlement Currency: | [] |
| (xxxii) | Deliverable Obligations: | |
| | Deliverable Obligation Category: [select one only]: | [Payment] [Borrowed Money] [Reference Obligations Only] [Bond] [Loan] [Bond or Loan] |
| | Deliverable Obligation Characteristics: [select all of which apply]: | [Not Subordinated] [Specified Currency: [specify currency] [Standard Specified Currencies] [Not Sovereign Lender] [Not Domestic Currency] [Domestic Currency means: [specify currency]] [Not Domestic Law] [Listed] [Not Contingent] [Not Domestic Issuance] [Assignable Loan] [Consent Required Loan] [Direct Loan Participant [Qualifying Participant Seller: - insert details] [Transferable] [Maximum Maturity: []] [Accelerated or Matured] [Not Bearer] |

| | | Additional Deliverable Obligations: | [|] | | |
|-----------------------|------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------|-----------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------|
| (xx | xxiii) | Excluded Deliverable Obligations: | [|] | | |
| (xx | (xiv | Indicative Quotations: | [Appli | icable/N | ot Applicable] | |
| (xx | (xxv) | Cut-Off Date: | [|] | | |
| (xx | xxvi) | Delivery provisions for Asset Amount (including details of who is to make such delivery if different from Terms and Conditions: | ſ | 1 | | |
| (xx | (xvii) | Other terms or special | L | , | | |
| (11) | , | conditions: | [|] | | |
| T TOTAL | ~ | | , , pp. | T.C. 1 (7) 1 | A.V. | |
| | | D ADMISSION TO TRADING | | | | Annex V, 6. |
| described | l here onal D | in pursuant to the €32,000,000,0 bebt, S.A. Unipersonal and Santa | 00 Prog | gramme | nd have admitted to trade the issue of Instruments for the Issuance of Debt Instruments of Santander S.A. Unipersonal guaranteed by Banco Santander | |
| RESPON | NSIBI | LITY | | | | Annex V, 9 |
| has been been accu | extra uratel | cted from [•]. [Each of the] [Th | e] Issue t is awa | er [and t are, and | e information contained in these Final Terms. [•] the Guarantor] confirms that such information has is able to ascertain from information published by used inaccurate or misleading.] | Annex V, 7. |
| CONFIR | RMEI |) | | | | |
| [SANTA UNIPER | | | S.A. UN | NIPERS | ONAL/SANTANDER ISSUANCES, S.A. | |
| By: | | | | | | |
| Aut | horise | ed Signatory | | | | |
| Date | | | | | | |
| BANCO | SAN | TANDER CENTRAL HISPAN | O, S.A | | | |
| Ву: | | | | | | |
| Aut | | ed Signatory | | | | |
| Date | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |

PART B — OTHER INFORMATION

1. LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING

| (i) | Listing: | [Luxembourg/other (specification of the content of | fy)/None] | Annex V, 6.1 |
|------|-----------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|--------------|
| (ii) | Admission to trading: | - 11 | de for the Instruments to be admitted | <u>.</u> |
| | | to trading on [|] with effect from [].] | |

[Not Applicable.]

(Where documenting a fungible issue need to indicate that

original securities are already admitted to trading.)

Annex V, 6.2

2. RATINGS

Ratings: The Instruments to be issued have been rated:

Annex V, 7.5

[S & P: []] [Moody's: []] [[Other]: []]

[Need to include a brief explanation of the meaning of the ratings if this has previously been published by the rating provider.]

(The above disclosure should reflect the rating allocated to Instruments of the type being issued under the Programme generally or, where the issue has been specifically rated, that rating.)

3. [NOTIFICATION

The [include name of competent authority in home Member State] [has been requested to provide/has provided — include first alternative for an issue which is contemporaneous with the establishment or update of the Programme and the second alternative for subsequent issues] the [include names of competent authorities of host Member States] with a certificate of approval attesting that the Base Prospectus has been drawn up in accordance with the Prospectus Directive.]

4. [INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE [ISSUE/OFFER]

Need to include a description of any interest, including conflicting ones, that is material to the issue/offer, detailing the persons involved and the nature of the interest. May be satisfied by the inclusion of the Annex V, 3.1 following statement:

"Save as discussed in the Base Prospectus under "The Instruments, paragraph 5.4.3", so far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved in the offer of the Instruments has an interest material to the offer."]

5. REASONS FOR THE OFFER, ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS AND TOTAL EXPENSES

[(i) Reasons for the offer []

(See ["Use of Proceeds"] wording in Base Prospectus — if reasons for offer different from making profit and/or hedging Annex XII, 3.2

certain risks will need to include those reasons here.)]

[(ii)] Estimated net proceeds: [●]

(If proceeds are intended for more than one use will need to split out and present in order of priority. If proceeds insufficient to fund all proposed uses state amount and sources of other funding.)

[(iii)] Estimated total expenses: [•]. [Include breakdown of expenses.]

(If the Instruments are derivative securities to which Annex XII of the Prospectus Directive Regulation applies it is only necessary to include disclosure of net proceeds and total expenses at (ii) and (iii) above where disclosure is included at (i) above.)

6. [Fixed Rate Instruments only — YIELD

Indication of yield: [●]

Annex V, 4.9

Calculated as [include details of method of calculation in summary form] on the Issue Date.

As set out above, the yield is calculated at the Issue Date on the basis of the Issue Price. It is not an indication of future yield.]

7. [Floating Rate Instruments only — HISTORIC INTEREST RATES

Details of historic [LIBOR/EURIBOR/other] rates can be obtained from [Telerate].]

8 [Index-Linked or other variable-linked Instruments only — PERFORMANCE OF INDEX/ FORMULA/other variable, EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND Annex V, 4.7 ASSOCIATED RISKS and other information concerning the underlying

Need to include details of where past and future performance and volatility of the index/formula/other Annex XII, variable can be obtained and a clear and comprehensive explanation of how the value of the investment is 4.1.2, 4.2.2 affected by the underlying and the circumstances when the risks are most evident. [Where the underlying is an index need to include the name of the index and a description if composed by the Issuer and if the index is not composed by the Issuer need to include details of where the information about the index can be obtained. Where the underlying is not an index need to include equivalent information. Also set out an indication where information about the past and the further performance of the underlying and its volatility can be obtained. If the underlying is a security, the name of the issuer, its ISIN or common code. If an interest rate, a description of that rate and, otherwise, if the underlying is none of the above equivalent information.

* Required for derivative securities to which Annex XII to the Prospectus Directive Regulation applies. See footnote 1 above.

| (i) | Other conditions to which the offering is subject (if any): | [|] | | |
|-----|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------|-----------------|-------------------------------------------------------|-----------|
| (ii |) Time period during which the offer will be open and a description of the application process: | [|] | | |
| (ii | i) Description, if applicable, of the possibility to reduce subscriptions and the manner for refunding excess amounts paid by applicants: | [|] | | |
| (i | Details, if any, of minimum and/or maximum amount of application (whether in number of securities or aggregate amounts to invest): | [|] | | |
| (v | Method and time limits for paying up the securities and for delivery: | [|] | | |
| (v | i) If applicable, a description of the manner and date in which results of the offer are to be made public: | [|] | | |
| (v | ii) Procedure for the exercise of any right of pre-emption, the negotiability of subscription rights and the treatment of subscription rights not exercised: | [|] | | |
| (v | iii) All regulated markets or equivalent markets on which securities of the same class as the securities offered or admitted to trading are already admitted to trading: | | | | |
| [I | Derivatives only] | | | | |
| In | formation concerning the Securities to be Of | fered (Ar | nnex XII) | | |
| (i) | A clear and comprehensive explanation investment is affected by the value circumstances when the risks are most eat least EUR 50,000 or can only be acquired. | of the evident up | underlying i | nstrument(s), especially uities have a denomination p | ınder the |
| [|] | | | | |
| (ii | • | price of t | he underlying | | |
| Ĺ |] | | | | |
| (ii | A statement setting out the type of the un can be obtained: | nderlying | and details of | where information on the u | nderlying |
| | - an indication where information a | bout the | past and the fu | urther performance of the u | nderlying |

OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE OFFER

9.

10.

and its volatility can be obtained. where the underlying is a security.

| - the name of the issuer of the security. | - | the name | of the | issuer | of the | security. |
|-------------------------------------------|---|----------|--------|--------|--------|-----------|
|-------------------------------------------|---|----------|--------|--------|--------|-----------|

- where the underlying is an index.
- the name of the index and a description of the index if it is composed by the issuer. If the index is not composed by the issuer, where information about the index can be obtained.
- where the underlying is an interest rate.
- a description of the interest rate.
- others:
 - where the underlying does not fall within the categories specified above the securities note shall contain equivalent information.

| | - where the underlying is a basket of underlyings. |
|------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| | - disclosure of the relevant weightings of each underlying in the basket. |
|] | 1 |
| (iv) | A description of any market disruption or settlement disruption events that affect the underlying. |
| [| 1 |
| (v) | Adjustment rules with relation to events concerning the underlying. |
| [| 1 |
| (vi) | Name and address of a calculation agent. |
| [| 1 |

11. An indication in the prospectus whether or not the issuer intends to provide post-issuance information. Where the issue has indicated that it intends to report such information, the issuer shall specify in the prospectus what information will be reported and where such information can be obtained.

[]

GUARANTEE BUILDING BLOCK

1. NATURE OF THE GUARANTEE

1.1 A description of any arrangement intended to ensure that any obligation material to the issue will be duly serviced, whether in the form of guarantee, surety, Keep well Agreement, Mono-line Insurance policy or other equivalent commitment (hereafter referred to generically as "guarantees" and their provider as "guarantor" for convenience).

Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, such arrangements encompass commitments to ensure obligations to repay debt securities and/or the payment of interest and the description shall set out how the arrangement is intended to ensure that the guaranteed payments will be duly serviced.

Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. (the "Guarantor" or the "Bank") has executed and delivered a Deed of Guarantee (the "Senior Guarantee") dated 16 November 2006 for the benefit of the Holders of Senior Instruments from time to time. The Guarantor shall, on an Issue by Issue basis, on or before the Issue Date of any Subordinated Instruments, for the benefit of Holders of Subordinated Instruments from time to time, execute and deliver a Deed of Guarantee (a "Subordinated Guarantee"). See the forms of the Guarantees under "Scope of the Guarantee" below.

2. SCOPE OF THE GUARANTEE

2.1 Details shall be disclosed about the terms and conditions and scope of the guarantee. Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, these details should cover any conditionality on the application of the guarantee in the event of any default under the terms of the security and the material terms of any Mono-line Insurance or Keep well Agreement between the issuer and the guarantor. Details must also be disclosed of any guarantor's power of veto in relation to changes to the security holder's rights, such as is often found in Mono-line Insurance.

The forms of Senior Guarantee and Subordinated Guarantee are as follows:

FORM OF SENIOR GUARANTEE

THIS DEED OF SENIOR GUARANTEE is made on 16 November 2006

BY

BANCO SANTANDER CENTRAL HISPANO, S.A. (the "Guarantor")

IN FAVOUR OF the Holders of the Senior Instruments referred to below and the Accountholders (as defined in the Deed of Covenant) in respect of the Senior Instruments (the "Senior Accountholders").

WHEREAS:

(A) Santander International Debt, S.A. Unipersonal ("Santander International" or the "Issuer") and Santander Issuances, S.A. Unipersonal ("Santander Issuances" and together with Santander International the "Issuers") have established a programme (the "Programme") for the continuous issuance of debt instruments in an aggregate principal amount outstanding at any one time not exceeding Euro 32,000,000,000 (the "Instruments"), in connection with which they have entered into a dealership agreement (the "Dealership Agreement") dated 16 November 2006 and made between the Issuers, the Guarantor and the Dealers named therein, and an issue and paying agency agreement (the "Issue and Paying Agency Agreement") dated 16 November 2006 and made between, *inter alia*, the Issuers, the Guarantor and The Bank of New York in its capacity as issue and paying agent (the "Issue and Paying Agent") and have executed a deed of covenant (the "Deed of Covenant") in respect of English law governed Instruments dated 16 November 2006.

(B) The Guarantor has agreed to guarantee irrevocably the payment of principal and interest together with all other sums payable by (i) Santander International under the English law governed Instruments issued by Santander International on or after the date of this Deed of Senior Guarantee (the "Senior Instruments") and the Deed of Covenant and (ii) on an issue by issue basis, by Santander Issuances under the English law governed Instruments issued by Santander Issuances (the "Subordinated Instruments") and the Deed of Covenant.

NOW THIS DEED WITNESSES as follows:

1. INTERPRETATION

Unless otherwise defined herein or unless the context requires otherwise, expressions defined in the terms and conditions of the Instruments or the Deed of Covenant have the same meanings in this Deed of Senior Guarantee.

2. GUARANTEE AND INDEMNITY

- 2.1 The Guarantor hereby unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees:
 - (a) to the Holder of each Senior Instrument the due and punctual payment of all sums expressed to be payable from time to time by the Issuer in respect of such Senior Instrument as and when the same become due and payable and accordingly undertakes to pay to such Holder, forthwith in the manner and currency prescribed by the relevant Senior Instrument for payments by the Issuer in respect thereof, any and every sum or sums which the Issuer is at any time liable to pay in respect of such Senior Instrument and which the Issuer has failed to pay; and
 - (b) to each Senior Accountholder the due and punctual payment of all sums expressed to be payable from time to time by the Issuer to such Senior Accountholder under the Deed of Covenant as and when the same become due and payable and accordingly undertakes to pay to such Senior Accountholder, in the manner and currency prescribed by the Deed of Covenant for payments by the Issuer in respect of the Senior Instruments, any and every sum or sums which the Issuer is at any time liable to pay under the Deed of Covenant in respect of the Senior Instruments and which the Issuer has failed to pay.
- 2.2 The Guarantor undertakes to the Holder of each Senior Instrument and to each Senior Accountholder that, if any sum referred to in Clause 2.1 is not recoverable from the Guarantor thereunder for any reason whatsoever (including, without limitation, by reason of any Senior Instrument or Deed of Covenant (or any provision thereof) being or becoming void, unenforceable or otherwise invalid under any applicable law), then, notwithstanding that the same may have been known to such Holder or Accountholder, the Guarantor will, forthwith upon demand by such Holder or Accountholder, pay such sum by way of a full indemnity in the manner and currency prescribed by such Senior Instrument or (as the case may be) the Deed of Covenant. This indemnity constitutes a separate and independent obligation from the other obligations under this Deed of Senior Guarantee and shall give rise to a separate and independent cause of action.

3. PRESERVATION OF RIGHTS

- 3.1 The obligations of the Guarantor hereunder shall be deemed to be undertaken as principal obligor and not merely as surety.
- 3.2 The obligations of the Guarantor hereunder shall be continuing obligations notwithstanding any settlement of account or other matter or thing whatsoever and, in particular but without limitation, shall not be considered satisfied by any intermediate payment or satisfaction of all or any of the Issuer's obligations under or in respect of any Senior Instrument or the Deed of Covenant and shall continue in full force and effect until all sums due from the Issuer in respect of the Senior Instruments and under the Deed of Covenant have been paid, and all other obligations of the Issuer thereunder or in respect thereof have been satisfied, in full.

- 3.3 Neither the obligations expressed to be assumed by the Guarantor herein nor the rights, powers and remedies conferred upon the Holders of Instruments and the Accountholders by this Deed of Senior Guarantee or by law shall be discharged, impaired or otherwise affected by:
 - (a) the winding up or dissolution of the Issuer or analogous proceedings in any jurisdiction or any change in its status, function, control or ownership;
 - (b) any of the obligations of the Issuer under or in respect of any of the Senior Instruments or the Deed of Covenant being or becoming illegal, invalid or unenforceable;
 - (c) time or other indulgence being granted or agreed to be granted to the Issuer in respect of its obligations under or in respect of any of the Senior Instruments or the Deed of Covenant;
 - (d) any amendment to, or any variation, waiver or release of, any obligation of the Issuer under or in respect of any of the Senior Instruments or the Deed of Covenant or any security or other guarantee or indemnity in respect thereof; or
 - (e) any other act, event or omission which, but for this Clause 3.3, might operate to discharge, impair or otherwise affect the obligations expressed to be assumed by the Guarantor herein or any of the rights, powers or remedies conferred upon the Holders of the Senior Instruments, the Accountholders or any of them by this Deed of Senior Guarantee or by law.
- 3.4 Any settlement or discharge between the Guarantor and the Holders of the Senior Instruments, the Senior Accountholders or any of them shall be conditional upon no payment to the Holders of the Senior Instruments, the Senior Accountholders or any of them by the Issuer or any other person on the Issuer's behalf being avoided or reduced by virtue of any provision or enactment relating to bankruptcy, insolvency or liquidation for the time being in force and, in the event of any such payment being so avoided or reduced, the Holders of the Senior Instruments and the Senior Accountholders shall be entitled to recover the amount by which such payment is so avoided or reduced from the Guarantor subsequently as if such settlement or discharge had not occurred.
- 3.5 The obligations of the Guarantor are independent of those of the Issuer. The Guarantor shall remain liable as the principal and sole debtor hereunder pursuant to the terms of this Guarantee, and shall not be able to demand that the Holders of the Senior Instruments exhaust any of their rights or take any legal action against the Issuer prior to taking action against the Guarantor.
- 3.6 No Holder of a Senior Instrument or Senior Accountholder shall be obliged before exercising any of the rights, powers or remedies conferred upon it by this Deed of Senior Guarantee or by law:
 - (a) to make any demand of the Issuer, other than the presentation of the relevant Senior Instrument;
 - (b) to take any action or obtain judgment in any court against the Issuer; or
 - (c) to make or file any claim or proof in a winding up or dissolution of the Issuer,
 - and, save as aforesaid, the Guarantor hereby expressly waives, in respect of each Senior Instrument, presentment, demand, protest and notice of dishonour.
- 3.7 The Guarantor agrees that, so long as any sums are or may be owed by the Issuer in respect of the Senior Instruments or under the Deed of Covenant or the Issuer is under any other actual or contingent obligation thereunder or in respect thereof, the Guarantor will not exercise any right which the Guarantor may at any time have by reason of the performance by the Guarantor of its obligations hereunder:
 - (a) to be indemnified by the Issuer;
 - (b) to claim any contribution from any other guarantor of the Issuer's obligations under or in respect of the Senior Instruments or the Deed of Covenant:
 - (c) to take the benefit (in whole or in part) of any security enjoyed in connection with any of the Senior Instruments or the Deed of Covenant by any Holder of a Senior Instrument or Senior Accountholder; or

(d) to be subrogated to the rights of any Holder of a Senior Instrument or Senior Accountholder against the Issuer in respect of amounts paid by the Guarantor under this Deed of Senior Guarantee.

4. STATUS

The Guarantor undertakes that its obligations hereunder will at all times rank at least *pari passu* with all other present and future unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Guarantor save for those preferred by law.

5. **DELIVERY**

A duly executed original of this Deed of Senior Guarantee shall be delivered promptly after execution to the Issue and Paying Agent and such originals shall be held to the exclusion of the Guarantor until the date on which complete performance by the Guarantor of the obligations contained in this Deed of Senior Guarantee and in all Senior Instruments then outstanding from time to time occurs and no further Senior Instruments can be issued under the Programme. A certified copy of this Deed of Senior Guarantee may be obtained by the relevant Commissioner, any Holder of a Senior Instrument or any Senior Accountholder from the Issue and Paying Agent at its specified office at the expense of the relevant Commissioner or such Holder or Accountholder. Any Holder of a Senior Instrument or Senior Accountholder may protect and enforce his rights under this Deed of Senior Guarantee (in the courts specified in Clause 11 below) upon the basis described in the Deed of Covenant (in the case of an Accountholder) and a copy of this Deed of Senior Guarantee certified as being a true copy by a duly authorised officer of the Issue and Paying Agent without the need for production in any court of the actual records described in the Deed of Covenant or this Deed of Senior Guarantee. Any such certification shall be binding, except in the case of manifest error or as may be ordered by any court of competent jurisdiction, upon the Guarantor and all Holders of Senior Instruments and Senior Accountholders. This Clause shall not limit any right of any Holder of a Senior Instrument or Senior Accountholder to the production of the originals of such records or documents or this Deed of Senior Guarantee in evidence.

6. CONTRACTUAL CURRENCY

The currency in which the relevant Senior Instrument, Coupons and Direct Rights are denominated or, if different, payable (the "Contractual Currency") is the sole currency of account and payment for all sums payable by the Guarantor in respect of such Senior Instruments, Coupons and Direct Rights, including damages. Any amount received or recovered in a currency other than the Contractual Currency (whether as a result of, or of the enforcement of, a judgment or order of a court of any jurisdiction or otherwise) by any Holder of a Senior Instrument or Coupon or any Senior Accountholder in respect of any sum expressed to be due to it from the Guarantor hereunder shall only constitute a discharge to the Guarantor to the extent of the amount in the Contractual Currency which such Holder or Accountholder is able to purchase with the amount so received or recovered in that other currency on the date of that receipt or recovery (or, if it is not practicable to make that purchase on that date, on the first date on which it is practicable to do so). If that amount is less than the amount in the Contractual Currency expressed to be due to any Holder of a Senior Instrument or Coupon or any Accountholder in respect of the relevant Senior Instrument, Coupon or Direct Rights the Guarantor shall indemnify such Holder or Accountholder against any loss sustained by such Holder or Accountholder as a result. In any event, the Guarantor shall indemnify each such holder or Accountholder against any cost of making such purchase which is reasonably incurred. These indemnities constitute a separate independent obligation from the Guarantor's other obligations hereunder, shall give rise to a separate and independent cause of action, shall apply irrespective of any indulgence granted by any Holder of a Senior Instrument or Accountholder and shall continue in full force and effect despite any judgment, order, claim or proof for a liquidated amount in respect of any sum due in respect of the Senior Instruments or any judgment or order. Any such loss aforesaid shall be deemed to constitute a loss suffered by the Holder of a Senior Instrument or Accountholder and no proof or evidence of any actual loss will be required by the Guarantor.

7. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE INSTRUMENTS

The Guarantor hereby undertakes to comply with and be bound by those provisions of the terms and conditions of the Instruments which relate to it.

8. BENEFIT OF DEED OF SENIOR GUARANTEE

- 8.1 This Deed of Senior Guarantee shall take effect as a deed poll for the benefit of the Holders of the Senior Instruments and the Senior Accountholders from time to time.
- 8.2 The obligations expressed to be assumed by the Guarantor herein shall enure for the benefit of each Holder of a Senior Instrument and Senior Accountholder, and each Holder of a Senior Instrument and Senior Accountholder shall be entitled severally to enforce such obligations against the Guarantor upon the basis described in the Deed of Covenant.
- 8.3 The Guarantor may not assign or transfer all or any of its rights, benefits or obligations hereunder, provided, however, that the foregoing shall not preclude the Guarantor from merging or consolidating with, or transferring or otherwise assigning all or substantially all of its assets to, a banking organisation or any other entity permitted by applicable laws without obtaining any approval of such Holders of Senior Instruments.
- 8.4 This Guarantee is solely for the benefit of the Holders of Senior Instruments and is not separately transferable from the Instruments.
- 8.5 Except for those changes (a) which do not adversely affect the rights of Holders of Senior Instruments or (b) which are necessary or desirable to give effect to any one or more transactions referred to in the proviso to Clause 8.3 (in any of which cases no agreements will be required), this Guarantee shall be changed only by agreement in writing signed by the Guarantor with the prior approval of a resolution of each Syndicate of Holders of the Instruments.
- 8.6 Any Senior Instruments issued under the Programme on or after the date of this Deed of Senior Guarantee shall have the benefit of this Deed of Senior Guarantee but shall not have the benefit of any subsequent guarantee relating to the Programme (unless expressly so provided in any such subsequent guarantee).

9. **PARTIAL INVALIDITY**

If at any time any provision hereof is or becomes illegal, invalid or unenforceable in any respect under the laws of any jurisdiction, neither the legality, validity or enforceability of the remaining provisions hereof nor the legality, validity or enforceability of such provision under the laws of any other jurisdiction shall in any way be affected or impaired thereby.

10. **NOTICES**

10.1 All communications to the Guarantor hereunder shall be made in writing (by letter, telex or fax) and shall be sent to the Guarantor at:

Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. Ciudad Grupo Santander Edificio Encinar, Planta O Avenida de Cantabria, s/n 28660 Boadilla del Monte Madrid Spain

Fax: +34 91 257 1473

Attention: Emisiones Corporativas

or to such other address or fax number or for the attention of such other person or department as the Guarantor has notified to the Holders of the Senior Instruments in the manner prescribed for the giving of notices in connection with the Senior Instruments.

10.2 Every communication sent in accordance with Clause 10.1 shall be effective upon receipt by the Guarantor *provided that* any such notice or communication which would otherwise take effect after 4.00 p.m. on any particular day shall not take effect until 10.00 a.m. on the immediately succeeding business day in the place of the Guarantor.

11. LAW AND JURISDICTION

- 11.1 Save for Clause 4 (Status) which shall be governed by Spanish law, this Deed of Senior Guarantee and all matters arising from or connected with it are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, English law.
- 11.2 The courts of England have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute (a "**Dispute**"), arising from or in connection with this Deed of Senior Guarantee (including a dispute regarding the existence, validity or termination of this Deed of Senior Guarantee) or the consequence of its nullity.
- 11.3 The Guarantor agrees that the courts of England are the most appropriate and convenient courts to settle any Dispute and, accordingly, that it will not argue to the contrary.
- 11.4 Clause 11.2 is for the benefit of the Holders of the Senior Instruments and the Senior Accountholders only. As a result nothing in this Clause 11 prevents the Holders of the Senior Instruments and the Senior Accountholders from taking proceedings relating to a Dispute ("**Proceedings**") in any other courts with jurisdiction. To the extent allowed by law, the Holders of the Senior Instruments and the Senior Accountholders may take concurrent Proceedings in any number of jurisdictions.
- 11.5 The Guarantor agrees that the documents which start any Proceedings and any other documents required to be served in relation to those Proceedings may be served on it by being delivered to Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A., London Branch at Santander House, 100 Ludgate Hill, London EC4M 7NJ or, if different, any address of the Guarantor in Great Britain at which process may be served on it in accordance with Part XXIII of the Companies Act 1985 (as modified or re-enacted from time to time). If such person is not or ceases to be effectively appointed to accept service of process on behalf of the Guarantor, the Guarantor shall, on the written demand of any Holder of a Senior Instrument or Senior Accountholder addressed and delivered to the Guarantor appoint a further person in England to accept service of process on its behalf and, failing such appointment within 15 days, any Holder of a Senior Instrument or Senior Accountholder shall be entitled to appoint such a person by written notice addressed and delivered to the Guarantor. Nothing in this paragraph shall affect the right of any Holder of a Senior Instrument or Senior Accountholder to serve process in any other manner permitted by law. This Clause applies to Proceedings in England and to Proceedings elsewhere.

IN WITNESS whereof this Deed of Senior Guarantee has been executed as a deed by a duly authorised attorney on behalf of the Guarantor and is intended to be and is hereby delivered on the date first above written.

EXECUTED as a deed by **BANCO SANTANDER CENTRAL HISPANO, S.A.** By:

FORM OF SUBORDINATED GUARANTEE

THIS DEED OF SUBORDINATED GUARANTEE is made on [on or before relevant Issue Date]

BY

(1) BANCO SANTANDER CENTRAL HISPANO, S.A. (the "Guarantor")

IN FAVOUR OF

- (2) THE HOLDERS for the time being and from time to time of the Subordinated Instruments referred to below (each a "*Holder*" of a Subordinated Instrument); and
- (3) **THE ACCOUNTHOLDERS** (as defined in the Deed of Covenant described below) (together with the Holders,

the "Beneficiaries").

WHEREAS:

- (A) Santander International Debt, S.A. Unipersonal ("Santander International") and Santander Issuances, S.A. Unipersonal ("Santander Issuances") (each, an "Issuer" and together, the "Issuers") have established a programme (the "Programme") for the continuous issuance of debt instruments in an aggregate principal amount outstanding at any one time not exceeding Euro 32,000,000,000 (the "Instruments"), in connection with which they have entered into a dealership agreement (the "Dealership Agreement") dated 16 November 2006 and made between the Issuers, the Guarantor and the Dealers named therein, and an issue and paying agency agreement (the "Issue and Paying Agency Agreement") dated 16 November 2006 and made between, inter alia, the Issuers and The Bank of New York, in its capacity as issue and paying agent (the "Issue and Paying Agent") and have executed a deed of covenant (the "Deed of Covenant") in respect of English law governed Instruments dated 16 November 2006.
- (B) The Guarantor has agreed to guarantee irrevocably the payment of principal and interest together with all other sums payable by (i) Santander Issuances under the [●] Subordinated Instruments due [●] issued by Santander Issuances (the "Subordinated Instruments") and, on an issue by issue basis any other subordinated instruments issued by Santander Issuances under the Programme, and the Deed of Covenant and (ii) by Santander International under the English law governed Instruments issued by Santander International on or after the date of the Deed of Senior Guarantee executed by the Guarantor on 16 November 2006 (the "Senior Instruments") and the Deed of Covenant.

NOW THIS DEED OF SUBORDINATED GUARANTEE WITNESSES as follows:

1. Interpretation

1.1 **Definitions:**

In this Deed of Subordinated Guarantee the following expressions have the following meanings:

"Conditions" means the terms and conditions of the Subordinated Instruments, and any reference to a numbered "Condition" is to the correspondingly numbered provision thereof;

"person" means any individual, company, corporation, firm, partnership, joint venture, association, organisation, state or agency of a state or other entity, whether or not having separate legal personality;

1.2 Other defined terms

Unless otherwise defined herein or unless the context requires otherwise, expressions defined in the Conditions or the Deed of Covenant have the same meanings in this Deed of Subordinated Guarantee.

1.3 Clauses

Any reference in this Deed of Subordinated Guarantee to a Clause is, unless otherwise stated, to a clause hereof.

1.4 Headings

Headings and sub-headings are for ease of reference only and shall not affect the construction of this Deed of Subordinated Guarantee.

2. Subordinated Guarantee and Indemnity

2.1 Subordinated Guarantee

The Guarantor hereby unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees:

- 2.1.1 to the Holder of each Subordinated Instrument the due and punctual payment of all sums from time to time payable by the Issuer in respect of such Subordinated Instrument as and when the same become due and payable and accordingly undertakes to pay to such Holder, in the manner and currency prescribed by the Conditions for payments by the Issuer in respect of the Subordinated Instruments, any and every sum or sums which the Issuer is at any time liable to pay in respect of such Subordinated Instrument and which the Issuer has failed to pay, subject to the provisions of Clause 4.7; and
- 2.1.2 to each Accountholder the due and punctual payment of all sums from time to time payable by the Issuer to such Accountholder in respect of the Direct Rights as and when the same become due and payable and accordingly undertakes to pay to such Accountholder, in the manner and currency prescribed by the Conditions for payments by the Issuer in respect of the Subordinated Instruments, any and every sum or sums which the Issuer is at any time liable to pay to such Accountholder in respect of the Subordinated Instruments and which the Issuer has failed to pay, subject to the provisions of Clause 4.7.

2.2 *Indemnity*

The Guarantor irrevocably and unconditionally agrees as a primary obligation to indemnify each Beneficiary from time to time from and against any loss incurred by such Beneficiary as a result of any of the obligations of the Issuer under or pursuant to any Subordinated Instrument, the Deed of Covenant or any provision thereof being or becoming void, voidable, unenforceable or ineffective for any reason whatsoever, whether or not known to such Beneficiary or any other person, the amount of such loss being the amount which such Beneficiary would otherwise have been entitled to recover from the Issuer. Any amount payable pursuant to this indemnity shall be payable in the manner and currency prescribed by the Conditions for payments by the Issuer in respect of the Subordinated Instruments, but subject always to the provisions of Clause 4.7. This indemnity constitutes a separate and independent obligation from the other obligations under this Deed of Subordinated Guarantee and shall give rise to a separate and independent cause of action.

3. Compliance with Conditions

The Guarantor covenants in favour of each Beneficiary that it will duly perform and comply with the obligations expressed to be undertaken by it in the Conditions.

4. Preservation of Rights

4.1 Principal obligor

The obligations of the Guarantor hereunder shall be deemed to be undertaken as principal obligor and not merely as surety.

4.2 Continuing obligations

The obligations of the Guarantor herein contained shall constitute and be continuing obligations notwithstanding any settlement of account or other matter or thing whatsoever and shall not be considered satisfied by any intermediate payment or satisfaction of all or any of the Issuer's obligations under or in respect of any Subordinated Instrument or the Deed of Covenant and shall continue in full force and effect until all sums due from the Issuer in respect of the Subordinated Instruments and under the Deed of Covenant have been paid, and all other actual or contingent obligations of the Issuer thereunder or in respect thereof have been satisfied, in full.

4.3 Obligations not discharged

Neither the obligations of the Guarantor herein contained nor the rights, powers and remedies conferred upon the Beneficiaries by this Deed of Subordinated Guarantee or by law shall be discharged, impaired or otherwise affected by:

- 4.3.1 the winding up, dissolution, administration or re-organisation of the Issuer or any change in its status, function, control or ownership;
- 4.3.2 any of the obligations of the Issuer under or in respect of the Subordinated Instruments or the Deed of Covenant being or becoming illegal, invalid, unenforceable or ineffective in any respect;
- 4.3.3 time or other indulgence being granted or agreed to be granted to the Issuer in respect of any of its obligations under or in respect of the Subordinated Instruments or the Deed of Covenant;
- 4.3.4 any amendment to, or any variation, waiver or release of, any obligation of the Issuer under or in respect of the Subordinated Instruments or the Deed of Covenant or any security or other guarantee or indemnity in respect thereof; or
- 4.3.5 any other act, event or omission which, but for this sub-clause, might operate to discharge, impair or otherwise affect the obligations expressed to be assumed by the Guarantor herein or any of the rights, powers or remedies conferred upon the Beneficiaries or any of them by this Deed of Subordinated Guarantee or by law.

4.4 Settlement conditional

Any settlement or discharge between the Guarantor and the Beneficiaries or any of them shall be conditional upon no payment to the Beneficiaries or any of them by the Issuer or any other person on the Issuer's behalf being avoided or reduced by virtue of any laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, liquidation or similar laws of general application for the time being in force and, in the event of any such payment being so avoided or reduced, the Beneficiaries shall be entitled to recover the amount by which such payment is so avoided or reduced from the Guarantor subsequently as if such settlement or discharge had not occurred.

4.5 Exercise of Rights

No Beneficiary shall be obliged before exercising any of the rights, powers or remedies conferred upon it by this Deed of Subordinated Guarantee or by law:

- 4.5.1 to make any demand of the Issuer, save for the presentation of the relevant Subordinated Instrument;
- 4.5.2 to take any action or obtain judgment in any court against the Issuer; or
- 4.5.3 to make or file any claim or proof in a winding up or dissolution of the Issuer, and (save as aforesaid) the Guarantor hereby expressly waives presentment, demand, protest and notice of dishonour in respect of each Subordinated Instrument.

4.6 Deferral of Guarantor's Rights

The Guarantor agrees that, so long as any sums are or may be owed by the Issuer in respect of the Subordinated Instruments or under the Deed of Covenant or the Issuer is under any other actual or

contingent obligation thereunder or in respect thereof, the Guarantor will not exercise any rights which the Guarantor may at any time have by reason of the performance by the Guarantor of its obligations hereunder:

- 4.6.1 to be indemnified by the Issuer;
- 4.6.2 to claim any contribution from any other guarantor of the Issuer's obligations under or in respect of the Subordinated Instruments or the Deed of Covenant; or
- 4.6.3 to take the benefit (in whole or in part and whether by way of subrogation or otherwise) of any rights of any Beneficiary against the Issuer in respect of amounts paid by the Guarantor under this Deed of Subordinated Guarantee or any security enjoyed in connection with the Subordinated Instruments or the Deed of Covenant by any Beneficiary.

4.7 Status and Covenants

- 4.7.1 This Deed of Subordinated Guarantee constitutes direct, unconditional subordinated and unsecured obligations of the Guarantor.
- 4.7.2 The Guarantor undertakes that its obligations hereunder will at all times rank (in relation to the Subordinated Instruments) as described in Condition 3.03.

5. Deposit of Deed of Subordinated Guarantee

This Deed of Subordinated Guarantee shall be deposited with and held by the Issue and Paying Agent until after all the obligations of the Issuer under or in respect of the Subordinated Instruments and the Deed of Covenant have been discharged in full. The Guarantor hereby acknowledges the right of every Beneficiary and the relevant Commissioner to the production of this Deed of Subordinated Guarantee.

6. Contractual Currency

The currency in which the relevant Subordinated Instrument is denominated or, if different, payable (the "Contractual Currency") is the sole currency of account and payment for all sums payable by the Guarantor in respect of the Subordinated Instruments, including damages. Any amount received or recovered in a currency other than the Contractual Currency (whether as a result of, or of the enforcement of, a judgment or order of a court of any jurisdiction or otherwise) by any Beneficiary in respect of any sum expressed to be due to it from the Guarantor hereunder shall only constitute a discharge to the Guarantor to the extent of the amount in the Contractual Currency which such Beneficiary is able to purchase with the amount so received or recovered in that other currency on the date of that receipt or recovery (or, if it is not practicable to make that purchase on that date, on the first date on which it is practicable to do so). If that amount is less than the amount in the Contractual Currency expressed to be due to any Beneficiary in respect of the relevant Subordinated Instrument the Guarantor shall indemnify such Beneficiary against any loss sustained by such Beneficiary as a result. In any event, the Guarantor shall indemnify each such Beneficiary against any cost of making such purchase which is reasonably incurred. These indemnities constitute a separate independent obligation from the Guarantor's other obligations hereunder, shall give rise to a separate and independent cause of action, shall apply irrespective of any indulgence granted by any Beneficiary and shall continue in full force and effect despite any judgment, order, claim or proof for a liquidated amount in respect of any sum due in respect of the Subordinated Instruments or any judgment or order. Any such loss aforesaid shall be deemed to constitute a loss suffered by the Beneficiary and no proof or evidence of any actual loss will be required by the Guarantor.

7. Stamp Duties

The Guarantor shall pay all stamp, registration and other taxes and duties (including any interest and penalties thereon or in connection therewith) which are payable upon or in connection with the execution

and delivery of this Deed of Subordinated Guarantee, and shall indemnify each Beneficiary against any claim, demand, action, liability, damages, cost, loss or expense (including, without limitation, legal fees and any applicable value added tax) which it incurs as a result or arising out of or in relation to any failure to pay or delay in paying any of the same.

8. Benefit of Deed of Subordinated Guarantee

8.1 Deed poll

This Deed of Subordinated Guarantee shall take effect as a deed poll for the benefit of the Beneficiaries from time to time.

8.2 Benefit

This Deed of Subordinated Guarantee shall enure to the benefit of each Beneficiary and its (and any subsequent) successors and assigns, each of which shall be entitled severally to enforce this Deed of Subordinated Guarantee against the Guarantor upon the basis described in the Deed of Covenant.

8.3 Assignment

The Guarantor shall not be entitled to assign or transfer all or any of its rights, benefits and obligations hereunder. Each Beneficiary shall be entitled to assign all or any of its rights and benefits hereunder, however the Subordinated Guarantee is not separately transferable from the Subordinated Instruments.

9. **Partial Invalidity**

If at any time any provision hereof is or becomes illegal, invalid or unenforceable in any respect under the laws of any jurisdiction, neither the legality, validity or enforceability of the remaining provisions hereof nor the legality, validity or enforceability of such provision under the laws of any other jurisdiction shall in any way be affected or impaired thereby.

10. Notices

10.1 Address for notices

All notices and other communications to the Guarantor hereunder shall be made in writing (by letter, telex or fax) and shall be sent to the Guarantor at:

Ciudad Grupo Santander Edificio Encinar, planta O Avenida de Cantabria s/n 28660 Boadilla del Monte Madrid Spain

Fax: +34 91 257 1473

Attention: Emisiones Corporativas

or to such other address or fax number or for the attention of such other person or department as the Guarantor has notified to the Holders in the manner prescribed for the giving of notices in connection with the Subordinated Instruments.

10.2 Effectiveness

Every notice or other communication sent in accordance with Clause 10.1 shall be effective upon receipt by the Guarantor provided that any such notice or other communication which would otherwise take effect after 4.00 p.m. on any particular day shall not take effect until 10.00 a.m. on the immediately succeeding business day in the place of the Guarantor.

11. Law and Jurisdiction

11.1 Governing law

This Deed of Subordinated Guarantee and all matters arising from or connected with it are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, English law save for Clauses 4.7 and 4.8 which shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, Spanish law.

11.2 English courts

The courts of England have jurisdiction to settle any dispute (a "Dispute") arising from or in connection with this Deed of Subordinated Guarantee.

11.3 Appropriate forum

The Guarantor agrees that the courts of England are the most appropriate and convenient courts to settle any Dispute and, accordingly, that it will not argue to the contrary.

11.4 Rights of the Beneficiaries to take proceedings outside England

Clause 11.2 is for the benefit of the Beneficiaries only. As a result, nothing in this Clause 11 prevents any Beneficiary from taking proceedings relating to a Dispute ("**Proceedings**") in any other courts with jurisidiction. To the extent allowed by law, Beneficiaries may take concurrent Proceedings in any number of jurisdictions.

11.5 Service of process

The Guarantor agrees that the documents which start any Proceedings and any other documents required to be served in relation to those Proceedings may be served on it by being delivered to it at Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. London Branch at Santander House, 100 Ludgate Hill, London EC4M 7NJ or at any other address of the Guarantor in Great Britain at which service of process may be served on it in accordance with Part XXIII of the Companies Act 1985. Nothing in this paragraph shall affect the right of any Beneficiary to serve process in any other manner permitted by law.

12. Modification

Any modification of any provision of this Deed of Subordinated Guarantee may be made by supplemental deed poll if sanctioned by a resolution of the Syndicate of Holders of the Instruments.

IN WITNESS whereof this Deed of Subordinated Guarantee has been executed by the Guarantor and is intended

to be and is hereby delivered on the date first before written.

EXECUTED as a deed by BANCO SANTANDER CENTRAL HISPANO, S.A. acting by {

REGISTERED OFFICES OF THE ISSUERS

Santander International Debt, S.A. Unipersonal

Ciudad Grupo Santander Avenida de Cantabria, s/n 28660 Boadilla del Monte Madrid Spain

Santander Issuances, S.A. Unipersonal

Ciudad Grupo Santander Avenida de Cantabria, s/n 28660 Boadilla del Monte Madrid Spain

REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE GUARANTOR

Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A.

Paseo de Pereda 9-12 39004 Santander Spain

HEAD OFFICE OF THE GUARANTOR

Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A.

Ciudad Grupo Santander Avda de Cantabria s/n 28660 Boadilla del Monte Madrid Spain

ARRANGERS

Morgan Stanley & Co. International Limited

25 Cabot Square Canary Wharf London E14 4QA United Kingdom

Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A.

Ciudad Grupo Santander Avda. de Cantabria, s/n 28660 Boadilla del Monte Madrid Spain

DEALERS

ABN AMRO Bank N.V.

250 Bishopsgate London EC2M 4AA United Kingdom

Banco Santander de Negócios, S.A.

Avendia Eng° Duarte Pacheco Torre 1 – 6° 1099 – 024, Lisboa Portugal

Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft

60, Gracechurch Street London EC3V 0HR United Kingdom

Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch

Winchester House 1 Great Winchester Street London EC2N 2DB United Kingdom

HSBC Bank plc

8 Canada Square London E14 5HQ United Kingdom

Lehman Brothers International (Europe)

25 Bank Street Canary Wharf London E14 5LE United Kingdom

Morgan Stanley & Co. International Limited

25 Cabot Square Canary Wharf London E14 4QA United Kingdom

The Royal Bank of Scotland plc

135 Bishopsgate London EC2M 3UR United Kingdom

Barclays Bank PLC

5 The North Colonnade Canary Wharf London E14 4BB United Kingdom

Citigroup Global Markets Limited

Citigroup Centre Canada Square Canary Wharf London E14 5LB United Kingdom

Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited

One Cabot Square London E14 4QJ United Kingdom

Goldman Sachs International

Peterborough Court 133 Fleet Street London EC4A 2BB United Kingdom

J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd.

125 London Wall London EC2Y 5AJ United Kingdom

Merrill Lynch International

Merrill Lynch Financial Centre 2 King Edward Street London EC1A 1HQ United Kingdom

Société Générale

29 Boulevard Haussman 75009 Paris France

UBS Limited

1 Finsbury Avenue London EC2M 2PP United Kingdom

AUDITORS OF THE ISSUERS AND THE GUARANTOR Deloitte S.L.

Plaza Pablo Ruiz Picasso, 1 Torre Picasso 28020 Madrid Spain

ISSUE AND PAYING AGENT AND PRINCIPAL REGISTRAR

The Bank of New York

One Canada Square London E14 5AL

ALTERNATIVE REGISTRAR, LISTING AGENT AND PAYING AGENT The Bank of New York (Luxembourg) S.A.

Aerogolf Centre IA Hoehenhof L-1736 Senningerberg Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

LEGAL ADVISERS

To the Issuers and the Guarantor

As to Spanish Law

Natalia Butragueño

Ciudad Grupo Santander

Edificio Encinar

Avda de Cantabria s/n

28660 Boadilla del Monte

Madrid

Spain

To the Dealers
As to English law and Spanish law
Clifford Chance, S.L.
Paseo de la Castellana 110
Madrid 28046
Spain